
 

 
 

PLAN COMMISSION / ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
AGENDA 

  
Thursday, January 13, 2022                                                                         Frankfort Village Hall        
6:30 P.M.                                                                                               432 W. Nebraska Street (Board Room) 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2.  Roll Call 
 
3. Approval of Minutes of December 9, 2021 
 
4.  Public Hearing Request: 22791 S. Challenger Road (Ref #104) 

Public Hearing Request: Special use for outdoor storage to permit the construction and operation of a 
building trades’ and contractor’s office with outdoor storage, located at 22791 S. Challenger Road.  Other: 
Plat of resubdivision for Lots 10, 11 and 21 within the Fey-Graefen Industrial Park Phase 1. (Christopher 
Gruba) 

 
5.  Public Hearing Requests: 22265 S. 80th Ave (Ref #105) 

Public Hearing Requests: Special use for institutional use (school addition) and variation request to permit 
cyclone fencing in a residential zone district. Other: Plat of resubdivision to combine two parcels to create 
one lot: (Christopher Gruba) 

 
6.  Public Hearing Request: 20499 S. La Grange Road (Ref #106) 
 Public Hearing Request: Special use for massage establishment. (Christopher Gruba) 

 
7.  Workshop: Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment – Accessory Uses & Structures 

Future Public Hearing Request: Consideration of proposed revisions to the Village of Frankfort Zoning 
Ordinance regarding accessory structures. (Christopher Gruba)  

 
8.  Public Comments 
 
9.  Village Board & Committee Updates  
 
10. Other Business 
 a. 2021 Year End Review (Janine Farrell) 
 
11. Attendance Confirmation (January 27, 2022) 
 
12.  Adjournment 
____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
All applicants are advised to be present when the meeting is called to order.  Agenda items are generally reviewed in the order 
shown on the agenda, however, the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals reserves the right to amend the agenda and consider 
items in a different order. The Commission may adjourn its meeting to another day prior to consideration of all agenda items.  All 
persons interested in providing public testimony are encouraged to do so.  If you wish to provide public testimony, please come 
forward to the podium and state your name for the record and address your comments and questions to the Chairperson. 



Minutes of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals – December 9, 2021                                                             1 

MINUTES 
MEETING OF VILLAGE OF FRANKFORT 

PLAN COMMISSION / ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
DECEMBER 9, 2021–VILLAGE ADMINISTRATION BUILDING    
 432 W. NEBRASKA STREET 

 
 
Call to Order: Chair Rigoni called the meeting to order at 6:31 P.M. 

 
 
Commissioners Present: Chair Maura Rigoni, Dan Knieriem, Will Markunas, Ken 

Guevara, Nichole Schaeffer 
 
 
 Commissioners Absent: Lisa Hogan, David Hogan  
 
  
Staff Present: Senior Planner Christopher Gruba, Senior Planner Janine 

Farrell, Community and Economic Development 
Department Director Michael Schwarz 

 
 
Elected Officials Present:  None 
 
Chair Rigoni provided an overview of the meeting process and swore in members of the 
public who wished to speak.  
 
A. Approval of the Minutes from November 18, 2021  

 
Motion (#1): Approval of the minutes, as presented, from November 18, 2021 

 
Motion by: Knieriem Seconded by: Markunas 
 
Approved: (5 to 0) 
 

B. Public Hearing/Final Plat: Nebraska Pines  
 

Chair Rigoni introduced the case. The applicant, Pat McMahon, is requesting (1) 
approval of a Final Plat of Subdivision of Nebraska Pines, a two-lot subdivision 
located at 314 W. Nebraska St.; (2) a variation for proposed Lot 1 of Nebraska Pines 
Subdivision for minimum lot size from 15,000 sq. ft. to 14,543 sq. ft.; (3) a variation 
for proposed Lot 1 of Nebraska Pines Subdivision for minimum lot width from 100 ft. 
to 88 ft.; (4) a variation for proposed Lot 1 of Nebraska Pines Subdivision for building 
materials to permit the use of non-masonry materials on the first-floor level; and (5) a 
variation for proposed Lot 2 of Nebraska Pines Subdivision for building materials to 
permit the use of non-masonry materials on the first-floor level. 
 
Farrell presented the case.  Summarized, she stated:  

• A workshop was held on October 28 for this case and the requests are 
unchanged since then.  

• Recommendations from the workshop and the status of those items:  

 
 



Minutes of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals – December 9, 2021                                                             2 

o Complete the flood study so that the extent of the flood limits and 
required setback were known. Completed, but some information is 
missing and revisions were requested by Robinson.  

o Make the storm sewer/drainage easement on the southern portion of Lot 
2 larger and shift it further north so that underground piping would not 
negatively impact the neighbor. Completed.  

o Include tree preservation measures for the neighbor’s trees closest to the 
shared property line. Not shown on plans so staff recommends it as a 
condition. 

o Provide architectural plans which detail the proposed building 
materials. Completed.  

o Provide color renderings of the proposed residences. Completed. 
• This is actually a corner parcel with unimproved Elm Street to the east.  
• Parcel is about 36,300 sq. ft. Proposed Lot 1 of the Nebraska Pines subdivision 

deficient in size and width.  
• A few new items to address on the site plan since the workshop:   

o Homes and development meet setbacks and other applicable 
requirements.  

o As of this morning, the applicant will be removing the retaining wall 
and instead will provide an engineered basement option with dry 
floodproofing. This was discussed with Robinson and preliminarily 
approved. This engineered basement option will not alter the height of 
the home or size of the basement. Everything else, including the setback 
of the house, will remain unchanged.   

o With the retaining wall being removed from the 100-year floodplain 
area, the elevation will likely not increase to the point where 
compensatory storage will be required.   

o With the shift in the parcels from the first version of the Final Plat, one 
tree which was slated to be removed appears to be saved and one 
appears to be removed not previously shown on the plan. A condition of 
approval for the Final Plat is that trees on the neighboring property to 
the south be protected during construction.  

• Building materials variations are requested for both of the proposed residences. 
Masonry is supposed to be used on 100% of the first-floor level.  

• A brief assessment of the standards of variation for the four variation requests 
with full responses in the packet:   

o In regard to lot width and size, the property could yield a reasonable 
rate of return as one lot. The circumstance is created by the division of 
the parcel and the presence of the 100-year floodplain. Smaller than 
standard lots are common in this area with the Lisburn and Bartkus 
Subdivisions as recent examples.  

o For building materials, the property could yield a reasonable rate of 
return complying with regulations pertaining to materials, but the area is 
characterized by older homes which are typically not masonry 
construction.  
 

Chair Rigoni asked if the applicant was present and wished to speak. Pat McMahon 
and Brian Hertz approached the podium and introduced themselves. They had a 
conference call with the Village engineers and staff this morning. The retaining wall 
will be removed and the engineered foundation plans will be submitted. The house 



Minutes of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals – December 9, 2021                                                             3 

plans won’t change but the foundation may change. For the variations, Hardie board is 
more expensive than brick and it looks better for the area.  
 
Chair Rigoni asked if there were any initial questions from the Commission:  

• Commissioner Markunas asked if the retaining wall was originally there to 
maximize the footprint for the house. Mr. Hertz stated it was not, it was needed 
to help move the house closer to the 100-year floodplain.  

• Commissioner Knieriem asked about the basement foundation. Mr. McMahon 
stated that dry proofing will be installed. The foundation may need extra rebar 
and might be thicker than first proposed.  

• Chair Rigoni asked if the 20 ft. setback is still required and if not, can the home 
on Lot 2 move further east to allow for Lot 1 to be 15,000 sq. ft. The applicant 
responded that it may be possible.  

• Chair Rigoni asked for clarification on the conservation easement. The 
applicant agreed it is not technically conservation and will clarify the language 
on the Final Plat.  

• Commissioner Schaeffer asked about the driveway on Lot 2 within the 
easement. Farrell stated that the driveway is allowed a 4 ft. setback since the 
garage is side-loaded and it’s not recommended to have it in the easement but a 
permit can be issued for it.  

• Commissioner Guevara preferred Lot 1 to be 15,000 sq. ft. if possible.  
 
Chair Rigoni asked if there was anyone from the public who wished to speak.  
 
Julie Fletcher approached the podium and asked about removal of junk trees along the 
shared property line. Mr. McMahon stated that he will clear out the overgrown brush 
and plant some burning bushes. Ms. Fletcher asked if the changes to the plan will 
affect the drainage on her property. Mr. Hertz stated that they had to complete a flood 
study and are installing a storm sewer system in the backyard to help with drainage in 
the area.  
 
There was no one else from the public who wished to speak and the public hearing was 
closed.  
 
During Commissioner discussion:  

• Commissioner Schaeffer asked if the large size of the homes in proportion to 
the size of the lots was a concern for the other Commissioners. Commissioner 
Guevara and Chair Rigoni commented that the lots are held to the 20% lot 
coverage which would restrict any other structures on the sites. Chair Rigoni 
expressed concern that the new owners may come back for a lot coverage 
variation on Lot 1 in the future. Mr. McMahon stated that he will instruct the 
future buyer that no other structures are permitted on the property.  

• Commissioner Markunas asked if there would be any issues with moving the 
home 3 ft. to the east on Lot 2. Mr. Hertz stated that the home will be over 5:1 
with the slope so some rock outcroppings that drop down to help the slope 
transition may have to be constructed.  

• Commissioner Knieriem asked about the term “hereby dedicated” on the Final 
Plat and if the Village would be liable for the maintenance of the drainage area. 
Chair Rigoni stated that the dedication just allows the Village to enter the 



Minutes of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals – December 9, 2021                                                             4 

easement for any work. Staff and the Commissioners agreed that the 
conservation language needed to be updated on the Plat to reflect certain areas 
are just “drainage and utility” easements.  

• Commissioner Knieriem asked if neighbors could tie into the proposed storm 
sewer in backyard. Mr. Hertz responded that since the easement is contiguous 
to the neighboring properties, they could tie into it.  

• Chair Rigoni requested that a note be added to the Final Plat stating that the lots 
are permitted a maximum of 20% lot coverage.   

• Chair Rigoni supported the variation for building materials since the downtown 
area does not have many masonry homes.   

• The Commissioners generally agreed that they preferred Lot 1 increased in size 
by 3 ft. in order to meet the minimum 15,000 sq. ft. standard. The 
Commissioners discussed the applicant’s timeline for commencing construction 
and the ability to condition the Final Plat and variation approval based upon 
increasing Lot 1 in size.  

 
Motion (#2): Motion to close the public hearing.   
 
Motion by: Knieriem  Seconded by: Schaeffer 
 
Approved: (5 to 0)  
 
Motion (#3): Motion to recommend the Village Board approve the Final Plat of 
Subdivision of Nebraska Pines conditioned upon (1) approval of the variations for lot 
size and lot width as provided below; (2) final engineering approval; (3) tree 
preservation measures shall be provided during construction on the northern-most 
tree(s) located at 301 Oregon St.; (4) the addition of a note that all lots cannot exceed 
20% lot coverage; and (5) a review of engineering to add 3 ft. from Lot 2 to Lot 1 
provided it meets best engineering practices.   
 
Motion by: Knieriem Seconded by: Schaeffer 
 
Approved: (5 to 0)  
 
Motion (#4): Motion to recommend approval of a variation for proposed Lot 1 of 
Nebraska Pines Subdivision for minimum lot size from 15,000 sq. ft. to 14,543 sq. ft. 
in accordance with the reviewed plans, public testimony, Findings of Fact, and 
conditioned upon a review of engineering to add 3 ft. from Lot 2 to Lot 1 provided it 
meets best engineering practices.   
 
Motion by: Knieriem Seconded by: Guevara 
 
Approved: (5 to 0)  
 
Motion (#5): Motion to recommend approval of a variation for proposed Lot 1 of 
Nebraska Pines Subdivision for minimum lot width from 100 ft. to 88 ft. in accordance 
with the reviewed plans, public testimony, Findings of Fact, and conditioned upon a 
review of engineering to add 3 ft. from Lot 2 to Lot 1 provided it meets best 



Minutes of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals – December 9, 2021                                                             5 

engineering practices.   
 
Motion by: Knieriem Seconded by: Schaeffer 
 
Approved: (5 to 0)  
 
Motion (#6): Motion to recommend approval of a variation for proposed Lot 1 of 
Nebraska Pines Subdivision for building materials to permit the use of non-masonry 
materials on the first-floor level in accordance with the reviewed plans, public 
testimony, and Findings of Fact. 
 
Motion by: Knieriem Seconded by: Markunas 
 
Approved: (5 to 0)  
 
Motion (#7): Motion to recommend approval of a variation for proposed Lot 2 of 
Nebraska Pines Subdivision for building materials to permit the use of non-masonry 
materials on the first-floor level in accordance with the reviewed plans, public 
testimony, and Findings of Fact. 
 
Motion by: Guevara Seconded by: Schaeffer 
 
Approved: (5 to 0)  
 

C. Workshop: Village of Frankfort Sign Regulations Amendments – Electronic 
Order/Menu Boards and Gas Station Price Signs 
 
Chair Rigoni introduced the workshop.  
 
Schwarz presented on the digital menu boards:  

• On June 7, staff was directed by the Committee of the Whole to undertake 
research on signage regulations for gas station pricing and electronic menu 
boards.  

• Staff received correspondence from Jim Olguin regarding McDonald’s request 
for digital menu boards which are currently not permitted.   

• There is currently one digital menu board in the Village.   
• Staff was approached by Speedway gas station who is looking to update their 

pricing information to digital which is currently not permitted.  
• Staff conducted research into neighboring municipalities’ regulations for these 

types of signs.  
• Schwarz showed examples of digital menu boards from neighboring 

municipalities and McDonald’s proposal for their Frankfort locations.  
• Schwarz read through the proposed text amendments for digital menu boards.  

  
Chair Rigoni asked the Commissioners if they agreed that they would like to allow 
these types of signs. The Commission generally agreed.  
 
Commissioner Markunas’ comments:  

• McDonald’s proposal seems to be on the smaller size of the parameters.  
• 7 ft. in height is reasonable.  



Minutes of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals – December 9, 2021                                                             6 

• The anti-glare screen provision should be revised to state that the content of the 
sign is not visible. The anti-glare screen should also be required for pre-sale 
menu boards.  

• Questioned where the 15 ft. setback regulation came from. Schwarz believed it 
was from another town.  

• Questioned if the decibel level of the speaker should be addressed. Schwarz 
stated that there are noise regulations in the codes currently and that staff did 
not receive direction from the Board to investigate that issue.   

 
Chair Rigoni’s comments:  

• Questioned the comparisons to neighboring towns and if they were regulations 
for digital menu boards or for regular signs. Schwarz responded both.  

• Does not want the menu board to be taller than a regular free-standing sign 
which is only 6 ft. in height.  

• Would like to see an increased setback from the 15 ft. proposed.  
 

Commissioner Schaeffer’s comments: 
• Recommended staff review other vendors for these types of monitors.  
• Questioned what the middle ground would be for Nits.  

 
Commissioner Guevara’s comments:  

• Concerned if this is the right size and height and if the Commission will receive 
many variation requests in the future.  

• There should be a size cap.  
• Visibility should not exceed 10 ft. beyond the sign.   

 
Jim Olguin, an attorney for McDonald’s, approached the podium. In summary he 
stated:  

• The signs for McDonald’s are typically smaller than what other vendors use.  
• 7 ft. in height is appropriate. The current signs are just under 7 ft. at 

McDonald’s. 
• Mr. Olguin has an issue with the proposed 15 ft. setback from the property line 

and would like to see that provision eliminated.  
• 2500 Nits is the max that McDonald’s uses.   
• Mr. Olguin has an issue with the number of times per hour the screens can 

change. The screens list your order on the board, changing for each individual. 
The Commission and staff agreed that allowing a portion of the menu board to 
have changeable copy in conjunction with ordering would be permissible.  

 
Schwarz stated that the next steps would be to incorporate the feedback from the 
Commission and present it to the Committee of the Whole before a public hearing is 
held.  
 
Schwarz presented on the gas station pricing:  

• All free-standing signs are allowed to be a maximum of 30 sq. ft. but many 
existing gas stations have signs larger than that.   

• The Commission needs to determine what percentage of the total sign should 
be allowed to be digital fuel pricing. 

• Schwarz showed examples of gas station signs from within Frankfort and 



Minutes of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals – December 9, 2021                                                             7 

neighboring municipalities. 
 
Debbie, a manager with Speedway in Frankfort, introduced herself and stated that the 
station is looking to update its pricing signage.   
 
Chair Rigoni asked about the illumination of these signs and if any other portions of 
the code need to change. Schwarz stated no. The Commissioners requested that the 
maximum Nits language from the menu board amendments be carried over into the gas 
station pricing amendments.  
 
The Commission generally agreed to limit the sign to 30 sq. ft. and place a cap at 25% 
of the overall sign for pricing.  
 
Debbie with Speedway asked about the content of the pricing signs and if “unleaded, 
car wash, diesel, or Speedy Freeze” would be allowed. Chair Rigoni recommended that 
staff verify with legal counsel regarding regulation of sign content.  
 

D. Workshop: Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment – Accessory 
Uses & Structures 
 
Chair Rigoni introduced the workshop. Due to time constraints, Chair Rigoni asked 
that only sports courts be addressed.   
 
Gruba presented the sports court section of the proposed amendments only:  

• Currently there is a 144 sq. ft. limitation on the size.  
• It is possible to require a special use for sports courts since meeting the 

standards of variation is difficult and a variation for sports court size has not 
been approved by Board since 2015. Gruba contacted the Village Attorney to 
see if the sports court use could be banned altogether but has not received a 
response. Commissioner Knieriem stated that there are larger lots which allow 
for outdoor lifestyles. The Commissioners generally did not agree to eliminate 
the sports court use.  

• Size could be based on the size of the lot with an ultimate cap.  
• Requiring sound deadening material is a possibility. Asphalt is quieter than 

concrete due to the air bubbles in the material. Commissioner Markunas stated 
that people placing asphalt in their backyards is unrealistic.  

• Since sports courts function like pools, there is potential to use the same 
screening regulations used for pools. Or, as a special use, the screening would 
be reviewed case by case.  

 
During Commissioner discussion:  

• Commissioner Knieriem asked about lot coverage and impervious coverage 
calculations. Gruba clarified that the sports courts would be counted towards 
impervious coverage. There was discussion about impervious coverage and 
adding driveways and sidewalks to the calculation which could limit the sports 
court size. Commissioners generally agreed that driveways and sidewalks 
should be counted towards impervious coverage in the text amendment 
revisions.  

• The  15 ft. maximum height currently in place is reasonable and should be 
retained.   



Minutes of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals – December 9, 2021                                                             8 

• Requiring a special use for sports courts was debated and no consensus was 
reached.  

• Permitting only one per lot was agreed upon.  
• Instituting a maximum size was agreed upon. The Commissioners requested to 

see what size a court would need to be in order to include a three-point line.   
• The Commission desired to see the sliding scale for the sports court size in 

relation to lot size investigated more fully since everything, including 
driveways, would now be included in the impervious calculation.  

• Locating sports courts in the rear yard only was agreed upon.  
• The Commissioners did not agree to a sliding scale for setbacks and 

recommended to leave the setback at 10 ft.  
• Counting sports courts towards the maximum impervious coverage was agreed 

upon.    
• The Commissioners agreed to use the swimming pool regulations for screening.  
• The Commissioners recommended to remove mention of chain link fencing 

since it was prohibited. They agreed to leave the height of the fencing 
unchanged from current regulations.   

• The Commissioner agreed to remove the surface material requirement that was 
proposed.   

• Prohibiting illumination was agreed upon.  
• The Commissioners recommended to amend the proposed language that 

permanent goals were limited to one.  
 
Gruba presented comments received by Trustee  Farina and the Commissioners 
commented:  

• Commissioners agreed that hockey rinks should be classified as a sports court.  
• Commissioners agreed that lighting should be prohibited.  
• Commissioners did not agree that the sports courts should be moved closer to 

the home on the property. They stated that all accessory structures including 
sports courts should be held to this requirement or none at all.  

• The Commissioners agreed that swimming pools should count towards 
impervious coverage.  

• The Commissioners did not agree that only evergreen screening should be 
allowed. The Commissioners recommended being consistent with swimming 
pool screening regulations.  

• The Commissioners did not agree that pool pumps and noisy equipment should 
be allowed in the rear yard only.  

• The Commissioners did not agree that screening should be required around 
equipment like AC units and pool pumps since that equipment needs proper air 
circulation.  

• The Commissioners did not agree to limit the amount of accessory structures 
permitted on a property since including driveways and sidewalks in the 
impervious calculation will now restrict the amount of accessory structures.   

 
The Commissioners agreed that another workshop was necessary. Chair Rigoni asked 
about the potential to have a joint workshop with the Village Board. 
 
The Commission requested that staff review the two most recent sports courts and 
calculate the impervious coverage with including sidewalks and driveways for those 



Minutes of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals – December 9, 2021                                                             9 

proposals.  
 

E. Public Comments – None.  
 
F. Village Board & Committee Updates  

Schwarz noted that the special use for Hollie’s Massage was approved by the Village 
Board.  

 
G. Other Business – None.  

 
H. Attendance Confirmation (December 23, 2021) 

 
Gruba informed the Commission that there were no public hearings scheduled. The 
Commission recommended that this meeting be canceled due to a lack of pressing 
business. The next meeting will be January 13, 2022.  
 

Motion (#8): Adjournment 9:40 P.M. 
 
Motion by: Schaeffer            Seconded by: Markunas 
 
Unanimously approved by voice vote. 
 
Approved January 13, 2022 
 
As Presented _____ As Amended _____ 
 
_____________________ /s/Maura Rigoni, Chair 
 
 
_____________________ s/ Secretary 



Disclaimer of Warranties and Accuracy of Data: Although the data developed by Will County for its maps, websites, and Geographic 
Information System has been produced and processed from sources believed to be reliable, no warranty, expressed or implied, is made 
regarding accuracy, adequacy, completeness, legality, reliability or usefulness of any information. This disclaimer applies to both isolated and 
aggregate uses of the information. The County and elected officials provide this information on an "as is" basis. All warranties of any kind, 
express or implied, including but not limited to the implied warranties of merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose, freedom from 
contamination by computer viruses or hackers and non-infringement of proprietary rights are disclaimed. Changes may be periodically made 
to the information herein; these changes may or may not be incorporated in any new version of the publication. If you have obtained 
information from any of the County web pages from a source other than the County pages, be aware that electronic data can be altered 
subsequent to original distribution. Data can also quickly become out of date. It is recommended that careful attention be paid to the contents 
of any data, and that the originator of the data or information be contacted with any questions regarding appropriate use. Please direct any 
questions or issues via email to gis@willcountyillinois.com.

Notes

Legend

0.28

1: 9,028

0 Miles

22791 Challenger

WGS_1984_Web_Mercator_Auxiliary_Sphere

Projection

12/9/2021 Date:

0.14

Roadways

Federal

State

County

Local and Private

Parcels LY

Townships

cgruba
Line



FEY & GRAEFEN INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE 1

FEY & GRAEFEN INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE 2

LOT 22

LOT 20

LOT 9

LOT 11

C
I
T

A
T

I
O

N
 
 
 
R

O
A

D

C
H

A
L

L
E

N
G

E
R

 
 
R

O
A

D

LOT  21
LOT  10

SITE B.M. #1

ELEV. 773.06

SITE B.M. #2

ELEV. 770.57

SITE BENCHMARK #3

ELEV. 772.04

8"

8"

PROPOSED LOT 1
FUTURE CONSOLIDATION PLAT

9
9

3
0

 W
. 

1
9

0
t

h
 S

t
r

e
e

t
, 

S
u

it
e

 L

M
o

k
e

n
a

, 
Il

l
in

o
is

 6
0

4
4

8

(
7

0
8

)
 3

2
6

 -
- 
4

9
6

1

F
a

x
: 

(
7

0
8

)
 3

2
6

 -
 4

9
6

2

IL
 P

r
o

f
. 

L
ic

. 
N

o
.:

 1
8

4
 -
- 
0

0
3

7
4

0

D
e

s
ig

n
T

e
k

 E
n

g
in

e
e

r
in

g
,
 I

n
c

.

DEI

&
o

n
s

u
l

t
in

J
, 

&
iY

il
 (

n
J

in
e

e
r

in
J

 	
 L

a
n

G
 S

u
r

Y
e

\
in

J

LEGEND

B

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

FOR

SITE PLAN

MILLINEUM-KYLE HOLDINGS
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

PARCEL IDENTIFICATION

NUMBER

BASIS OF BEARING

SITE DATA

CALL 1-800-892-0123 or 811
AT LEAST 48 HOURS (2 WORKING

DAYS) BEFORE YOU DIG
WWW.ILLINOIS1CALL.COM

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Commercial Building

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Commercial Building

AutoCAD SHX Text
(66' RIGHT-OF-WAY HERETOFORE DEDICATED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(66' RIGHT-OF-WAY HERETOFORE DEDICATED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Catch Basin (C.L.) (Buried)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Inlet Rim 770.33 Inv. 724.91 (12" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Catch Basin (C.L.) Rim 771.62 Inv. 764.32 (18" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Catch Basin (O.L.) Rim 766.11 (18" RCP, S) Inv. 760.62 (30" RCP, W-N) Inv. 759.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
Catch Basin (O.L.) Rim 768.75 Inv. (No data, frozen rim)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Inlet Rim 769.84 (15" RCP) Inv. 764.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/F 768.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/F 768.62

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Commercial Building

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/F 776.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
Catch Basin (C.L.) Rim 773.31 (36" RCP, W) Inv. 763.81 (36" RCP, S-N) Inv. 755.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAILBOX BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sanitary Manhole Rim 772.50 Inv. 748.42 (15" PVC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sanitary Service per plans

AutoCAD SHX Text
Trash Enclosure

AutoCAD SHX Text
Electric Transformer

AutoCAD SHX Text
Electric Transformer

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fence is  1.0' N.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fence is  1.0' N.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Catch Basin (O.L.) Rim 768.89 Inv. 759.44 (24" RCP, W & 30" RCP, E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Water Valve Vault Rim 774.15 T/P 768.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECESSED LOADING DOCK GRAVITY DRAIN TO STORM

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED OUTDOOR STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAW-CUT EXISTING C&G TO PROVIDE DEPRESSED C&G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 12'x12' TRASH ENCLOSURE PAD & 12'x30' LANDING PAD12'x30' LANDING PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
B-6.0 C

AutoCAD SHX Text
B-6.0 C

AutoCAD SHX Text
B-6.0 C

AutoCAD SHX Text
B-6.0 C

AutoCAD SHX Text
B-6.0 C

AutoCAD SHX Text
B-6.12 C&G

AutoCAD SHX Text
B-6.12 C&G

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ASPHALT PAVEMENT (TYPICAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sanitary Service per plans

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED "STOP" SIGN ON POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED "STOP" SIGN ON POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAW-CUT EXISTING C&G TO PROVIDE DEPRESSED C&G

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'x21" CONCRETE APRON W/ 2-BOLLARDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 8' BLACK VINYL-COATED CHAIN LINK FENCE W/BLACK OPAQUE SLATS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 8' GATE TO BE BLACK VINYL-COATED CHAIN LINK W/BLACK OPAQUE SLATS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 8' BLACK VINYL-COATED CHAIN LINK FENCE W/BLACK OPAQUE SLATS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 8' GATE TO BE BLACK VINYL-COATED CHAIN LINK W/BLACK OPAQUE SLATS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED HANDICAP SIGN ON POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED HANDICAP SYMBOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED DETECTABLE  WARNING PLATE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 12,209 S.F. COMMERCIAL BUILDING TOTAL PARKING STALLS PROVIDED 24 STANDARD AND 1 HC

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L:\Projects\2021\21-0005\Engineering\DWG\Final\LOTS 10 & 21\21-0005 10&21 FE.dwg Plot Date:12/8/2021 8:37:44 AM By:dvieth Plot Date:12/8/2021 8:37:44 AM By:dvieth12/8/2021 8:37:44 AM By:dvieth By:dviethdvieth

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project No.: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Design By: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn By: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked By: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAEFEN DEVELOPMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
22774 CITATION ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS 60423

AutoCAD SHX Text
(815) 464-7090

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOTS 10, 11 & 21

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEY & GRAEFEN INDUSTRIAL PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-0005

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
11-30-2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DJB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch = 30 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
 EXISTING             PROPOSED EXISTING             PROPOSED              PROPOSED        PROPOSED PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER SANITARY SERVICE SANITARY MANHOLE STORM SEWER STORM SERVICE CATCH BASIN OPEN LID STORM MANHOLE CLOSED LID STORM MANHOLE STORM INLET FLARED END SECTION WATER MAIN WATER SERVICE VALVE VAULT B-BOX HYDRANT VALVE BOX STREET LIGHT UTILITY POLE RETAINING WALL SILT FENCE CONTOUR FORCE MAIN SPOT GRADES OVERFLOW ARROW TOP OF FOUNDATION FINISH GRADE FINISH FLOOR GARAGE FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TF~XXX.XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG~XXX.XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
FF~XXX.XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
GF~XXX.XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
TF XXX.XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
 XXX.X x

AutoCAD SHX Text
FF XXX.XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
GF XXX.XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG XXX.XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
XXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
TF~XXX.XXx

AutoCAD SHX Text
XXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOTS 10, 11 AND 21 IN FEY & GRAFEN INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE 1, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE WEST 1/2 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 10, 2007 AS DOCUMENT NO. R2007-054973, IN WILL COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL AREA: 130,710 SQUARE FEET        OR 3.00 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 10: 19-09-34-403-005-0000 LOT 11: 19-09-34-403-006-0000 LOT 21: 19-09-34-403-002-0000

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER THE RECORDED PLAT OF FEY & GRAEFEN INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 10 AREA:  43,570 SQUARE FEET 43,570 SQUARE FEET LOT 11 AREA: 43,570 SQUARE FEET 43,570 SQUARE FEET LOT 21 AREA:  43,570 SQUARE FEET 43,570 SQUARE FEET TOTAL AREA:  130,710 SQUARE FEET130,710 SQUARE FEET

cgruba
Received



LOT 22

LOT 20

LOT 9

LOT 11

LOT  10

PROPOSED LOT 1
FUTURE CONSOLIDATION PLAT

FEY & GRAEFEN INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE 1

FEY & GRAEFEN INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE 1

LOT  21

PARCEL IDENTIFICATION
NUMBER

BASIS OF BEARING

SITE DATA

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

DEI

C
o

n
s

u
ltin

g
, C

iv
il E

n
g

in
e

e
r

in
g

 &
 L

a
n

d
 S

u
r

v
e

yin
g

CALL 1-800-892-0123 or 811
AT LEAST 48 HOURS (2 WORKING

DAYS) BEFORE YOU DIG
WWW.ILLINOIS1CALL.COM

LEGEND

B

FOR REFERENCE ONLY 

cgruba
Received

cgruba
Approved



NOTES:
1. THE EXACT LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SUCH AS GAS,

TELEPHONE, FIBER OPTIC, ELECTRIC, CABLE TV AND PIPE LINES ARE
UNKNOWN.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT JULIE (1-800-892-0123 OR
811) AND ALL OTHER UTILITY OWNERS WHICH ARE IN THE PROJECT
LIMITS BEFORE COMMENCING EXCAVATION.

2. THE SUBSURFACE UTILITY QUALITY INFORMATION IN THIS PLAN IS
LEVEL D.  THIS UTILITY QUALITY LEVEL WAS DETERMINED ACCORDING
TO THE GUIDELINES OF CI / ASCE 38-02 ENTITLED "STANDARD
GUIDELINES FOR THE COLLECTION AND DEPICTION OF EXISTING
SUBSURFACE UTILTIY DATA."

OWNER:
GRAEFEN DEVELOPMENT
22774 CITATION ROAD
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS 60423
(815) 464-7090

ENGINEER & SURVEYOR:
DESIGNTEK ENGINEERING, INC.
9930 W. 190TH STREET, SUITE L
MOKENA, ILLINOIS 60448
(708) 326-4961

LOCATION MAP

FOR
FINAL ENGINEERING PLANS

LOTS 10, 11 & 21 GRAEFEN INDUSTRIAL PARK
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

CALL 1-800-892-0123 or 811
AT LEAST 48 HOURS (2 WORKING

DAYS) BEFORE YOU DIG
WWW.ILLINOIS1CALL.COM

LEGEND

B

SURFACE WATER
DRAINAGE CERTIFICATE

INDEX OF PLAN SHEETS

1. COVER SHEET

2. GENERAL NOTES

3. PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS

4. EXISTING CONDITIONS & REMOVAL

5-6. SOIL EROSION & SEDIMENT CONTROL PLAN & DETAILS

7. GEOMETRIC & UTILITY PLAN

8. GRADING PLAN

9. CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

BENCHMARKS

PARCEL IDENTIFICATION
NUMBER

BASIS OF BEARING

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

ADDRESSES

9
9

3
0

 W
. 1

9
0

th
 S

tr
e

e
t,

 S
u

it
e

 L
M

o
k

e
n

a
, I

ll
in

o
is

 6
0

4
4

8
(7

0
8

) 
3

2
6

 --
 4

9
6

1
F

a
x

: (
7

0
8

) 
3

2
6

 - 
4

9
6

2

IL
 P

r
o

f
. L

ic
. N

o
.: 

1
8

4
 --

 0
0

3
7

4
0

D
e

s
ig

n
T

e
k

 E
n

g
in

e
e

r
in

g
, I

n
c

.

DEI

&
o

n
s

u
l

t
in

J
, 

&
iY

il
 (

n
J

in
e

e
r

in
J

 	
 L

a
n

G
 S

u
r

Y
e

\
in

J

SITE DATA

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
12-01-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
DMV

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
05-21-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEW SET NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
L:\Projects\2021\21-0005\Engineering\DWG\Final\LOTS 10 & 21\21-0005 10&21 FE.dwg Plot Date:12/8/2021 8:30:48 AM By:dvieth Plot Date:12/8/2021 8:30:48 AM By:dvieth12/8/2021 8:30:48 AM By:dvieth By:dviethdvieth

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

http://maps.yahoo.com/
http://maps.yahoo.com/
AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
 EXISTING             PROPOSED EXISTING             PROPOSED              PROPOSED        PROPOSED PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER SANITARY SERVICE SANITARY MANHOLE STORM SEWER STORM SERVICE CATCH BASIN OPEN LID STORM MANHOLE CLOSED LID STORM MANHOLE STORM INLET FLARED END SECTION WATER MAIN WATER SERVICE VALVE VAULT B-BOX HYDRANT VALVE BOX STREET LIGHT UTILITY POLE RETAINING WALL SILT FENCE CONTOUR FORCE MAIN SPOT GRADES OVERFLOW ARROW TOP OF FOUNDATION FINISH GRADE FINISH FLOOR GARAGE FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TF~XXX.XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG~XXX.XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
FF~XXX.XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
GF~XXX.XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
TF XXX.XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
 XXX.X x

AutoCAD SHX Text
FF XXX.XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
GF XXX.XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG XXX.XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
XXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
TF~XXX.XXx

AutoCAD SHX Text
XXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATED 1st DAY OF DECEMBER, 2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF ILLINOIS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY OF WILL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO THE BEST OF OUR KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF THE DRAINAGE OF SURFACE WATERS WILL NOT BE CHANGED BY THE CONSTRUCTION OF THESE LOT IMPROVEMENTS OR ANY PART THEREOF, OR THAT IF SUCH SURFACE WATER DRAINAGE WILL BE CHANGED, REASONABLE PROVISIONS HAVE BEEN MADE FOR THE COLLECTION AND DIVERSION OF SUCH WATERS INTO PUBLIC AREAS OR DRAINS WHICH THE OWNER HAS A RIGHT TO USE, AND THAT SUCH SURFACE WATERS WILL BE PLANNED FOR IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED ENGINEERING PRACTICES SO AS TO REDUCE THE LIKELIHOOD OF DAMAGE TO THE ADJOINING PROPERTIES BECAUSE OF THE CONSTRUCTION OF THESE LOT IMPROVEMENTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE NORTHWEST FLANGE BOLT ON FIRE HYDRANT LOCATED ON THE EAST SIDE OF CITATION ROAD, OPPOSITE THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 10, SHOWN HEREON. ELEVATION: 773.06 (NAVD 88) CUT CROSS ON TOP OF CURB OPPOSITE THE ABOVE FIRE HYDRANT. ELEVATION: 770.57 (NAVD 88) THE SOUTHWEST FLANGE BOLT ON FIRE HYDRANT LOCATED AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 21, SHOWN HEREON. ELEVATION: 772.04 (NAVD 88)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 10: 19-09-34-403-005-0000 LOT 21: 19-09-34-403-002-0000

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOTS 10 AND 21 IN FEY & GRAEFEN INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE 1, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE WEST 1/2 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 10, 2007 AS DOCUMENT NO. R2007054973, IN WILL COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER THE RECORDED PLAT OF FEY & GRAEFEN INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 10:  22790 S. CITATION ROAD 22790 S. CITATION ROAD LOT 21:  22791 S. CHALLENGER ROAD 22791 S. CHALLENGER ROAD FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS 60423

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project No.: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Design By: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn By: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked By: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAEFEN DEVELOPMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
22774 CITATION ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS 60423

AutoCAD SHX Text
(815) 464-7090

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINAL ENGINEERING PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOTS 10, 11 & 21

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEY & GRAEFEN INDUSTRIAL PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-0005

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS NOTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
04-23-2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEI

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVER SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL AREA: 87,140 SQUARE FEET        OR 2.00 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 10 AREA:  43,570 SQUARE FEET 43,570 SQUARE FEET LOT 21 AREA:  43,570 SQUARE FEET 43,570 SQUARE FEET TOTAL AREA:  87,140 SQUARE FEET87,140 SQUARE FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
06-08-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE REVEIW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
06-15-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE REVEIW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
10-06-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 11 IMPROVEMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

cgruba
Received



FEY & GRAEFEN INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE 1

FEY & GRAEFEN INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE 2

LOT 22

LOT 20

LOT 9

LOT 11

C
IT

A
TI

O
N

   
R

O
A

D

C
H

A
LL

EN
G

ER
  R

O
A

D

LOT  21
LOT  10

SITE B.M. #1
ELEV. 773.06

SITE B.M. #2
ELEV. 770.57

SITE BENCHMARK #3
ELEV. 772.04

FIP 3/4"
0.22' N.

FIP 3/4"
AT CORNER

RESET BENT 3/4" PIPE
WITH 1" PIPE AT CORNER

FD. IRON
0.22' E.

FIR 1/2"
3.25' W. &

0.23' N.

FIP 3/4"
AT CORNER

FIP 3/4"
0.25' E.

FIP 3/4" AT
CORNER

8"

8"

EXISTING CONDITIONS & REMOVAL PLAN

9
9

3
0

 W
. 1

9
0

th
 S

tr
e

e
t,

 S
u

it
e

 L
M

o
k

e
n

a
, I

ll
in

o
is

 6
0

4
4

8
(7

0
8

) 
3

2
6

 --
 4

9
6

1
F

a
x

: (
7

0
8

) 
3

2
6

 - 
4

9
6

2

IL
 P

r
o

f
. L

ic
. N

o
.: 

1
8

4
 --

 0
0

3
7

4
0

D
e

s
ig

n
T

e
k

 E
n

g
in

e
e

r
in

g
, I

n
c

.

DEI

&
o

n
s

u
l

t
in

J
, 

&
iY

il
 (

n
J

in
e

e
r

in
J

 	
 L

a
n

G
 S

u
r

Y
e

\
in

J

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Commercial Building

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Commercial Building

AutoCAD SHX Text
(66' RIGHT-OF-WAY HERETOFORE DEDICATED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(66' RIGHT-OF-WAY HERETOFORE DEDICATED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Catch Basin (C.L.) (Buried)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Inlet Rim 770.33 Inv. 724.91 (12" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Catch Basin (C.L.) Rim 771.62 Inv. 764.32 (18" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Catch Basin (O.L.) Rim 766.11 (18" RCP, S) Inv. 760.62 (30" RCP, W-N) Inv. 759.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
Catch Basin (O.L.) Rim 768.75 Inv. (No data, frozen rim)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Inlet Rim 769.84 (15" RCP) Inv. 764.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/F 768.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/F 768.62

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Commercial Building

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/F 776.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
Catch Basin (C.L.) Rim 773.31 (36" RCP, W) Inv. 763.81 (36" RCP, S-N) Inv. 755.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAILBOX BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sanitary Manhole Rim 772.50 Inv. 748.42 (15" PVC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sanitary Service per plans

AutoCAD SHX Text
Trash Enclosure

AutoCAD SHX Text
Electric Transformer

AutoCAD SHX Text
Electric Transformer

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fence is  1.0' N.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fence is  1.0' N.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Catch Basin (O.L.) Rim 768.89 Inv. 759.44 (24" RCP, W & 30" RCP, E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Water Valve Vault Rim 774.15 T/P 768.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAW-CUT 75 L.F. OF EXISTING CURB & GUTTER AT PROPOSED DRIVEWAY IN ACCORDANCE WITH VILLAGE SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAW-CUT 75 L.F. OF EXISTING CURB & GUTTER AT PROPOSED DRIVEWAY IN ACCORDANCE WITH VILLAGE SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sanitary Service per plans

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISTURBED AREA OF PARKWAY FOR RECEIVING PIT TO BE RESTORED WITH 4" MIN TOPSOIL AND SOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch = 30 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEW SET NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
L:\Projects\2021\21-0005\Engineering\DWG\Final\LOTS 10 & 21\21-0005 10&21 FE.dwg Plot Date:12/8/2021 8:30:54 AM By:dvieth Plot Date:12/8/2021 8:30:54 AM By:dvieth12/8/2021 8:30:54 AM By:dvieth By:dviethdvieth

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project No.: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Design By: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn By: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked By: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAEFEN DEVELOPMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
22774 CITATION ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS 60423

AutoCAD SHX Text
(815) 464-7090

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINAL ENGINEERING PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOTS 10, 11 & 21

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEY & GRAEFEN INDUSTRIAL PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-0005

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
04-23-2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEI

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONDITIONS & REMOVAL PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
05-21-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
06-08-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE REVEIW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
06-15-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE REVEIW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
10-06-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 11 IMPROVEMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
12-01-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
DMV



FEY & GRAEFEN INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE 1

FEY & GRAEFEN INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE 2

LOT 22

LOT 20

LOT 9

LOT 11

C
IT

A
TI

O
N

   
R

O
A

D

C
H

A
LL

EN
G

ER
  R

O
A

D
LOT  21

LOT  10

SITE B.M. #1
ELEV. 773.06

SITE B.M. #2
ELEV. 770.57

SITE BENCHMARK #3
ELEV. 772.04

FIP 3/4"
0.22' N.

RESET BENT 3/4" PIPE
WITH 1" PIPE AT CORNER

FD. IRON
0.22' E.

FIR 1/2"
3.25' W. &

0.23' N.

FIP 3/4"
AT CORNER

FIP 3/4"
0.25' E.

FIP 3/4" AT
CORNER

8"

8"

SOIL EROSION & SEDIMENTATION CONTROL PLAN

SOIL PROTECTION CHART

9
9

3
0

 W
. 1

9
0

th
 S

tr
e

e
t,

 S
u

it
e

 L
M

o
k

e
n

a
, I

ll
in

o
is

 6
0

4
4

8
(7

0
8

) 
3

2
6

 --
 4

9
6

1
F

a
x

: (
7

0
8

) 
3

2
6

 - 
4

9
6

2

IL
 P

r
o

f
. L

ic
. N

o
.: 

1
8

4
 --

 0
0

3
7

4
0

D
e

s
ig

n
T

e
k

 E
n

g
in

e
e

r
in

g
, I

n
c

.

DEI

&
o

n
s

u
l

t
in

J
, 

&
iY

il
 (

n
J

in
e

e
r

in
J

 	
 L

a
n

G
 S

u
r

Y
e

\
in

J

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOCK PILE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Commercial Building

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Commercial Building

AutoCAD SHX Text
(66' RIGHT-OF-WAY HERETOFORE DEDICATED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(66' RIGHT-OF-WAY HERETOFORE DEDICATED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Catch Basin (C.L.) (Buried)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Inlet Rim 770.33 Inv. 724.91 (12" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Catch Basin (C.L.) Rim 771.62 Inv. 764.32 (18" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Catch Basin (O.L.) Rim 766.11 (18" RCP, S) Inv. 760.62 (30" RCP, W-N) Inv. 759.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
Catch Basin (O.L.) Rim 768.75 Inv. (No data, frozen rim)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Inlet Rim 769.84 (15" RCP) Inv. 764.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/F 768.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/F 768.62

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Commercial Building

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/F 776.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
Catch Basin (C.L.) Rim 773.31 (36" RCP, W) Inv. 763.81 (36" RCP, S-N) Inv. 755.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAILBOX BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sanitary Manhole Rim 772.50 Inv. 748.42 (15" PVC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sanitary Service per plans

AutoCAD SHX Text
Trash Enclosure

AutoCAD SHX Text
Electric Transformer

AutoCAD SHX Text
Electric Transformer

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fence is  1.0' N.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fence is  1.0' N.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Catch Basin (O.L.) Rim 768.89 Inv. 759.44 (24" RCP, W & 30" RCP, E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Water Valve Vault Rim 774.15 T/P 768.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 12,209 S.F. COMMERCIAL BUILDING FF ~773.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
72.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
72.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
72.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
71.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
69.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
69.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
72.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
72.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.06%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.50%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.50%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.42%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.32%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
71.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
68.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
68.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
69.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.32%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.81%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.32%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.05%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
71.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.56%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.12%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
68.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
68.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
68.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
68.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
68.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
68.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
72.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.53%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.72%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.89%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
72.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
72.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
66.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
67.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
67.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
67.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
67.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
68.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
68.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.50%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sanitary Service per plans

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.40%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.40%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
72.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.56%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.78%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.38%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
72.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
72.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOADING DOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.7 73.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.25 69.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
16'x12' ~6" TO 8" ROCK RIP RAP AT DEPRESSED CURB. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.6 CY~6" TO 8" ROCK RIP RAP AT DEPRESSED CURB. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
E4

AutoCAD SHX Text
E4

AutoCAD SHX Text
E4

AutoCAD SHX Text
E2

AutoCAD SHX Text
E2

AutoCAD SHX Text
E1

AutoCAD SHX Text
E3

AutoCAD SHX Text
72.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
E4

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.94%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
72.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
72.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
66.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
66.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISTURBED AREA OF PARKWAY FOR RECEIVING PIT TO BE RESTORED WITH 4" MIN TOPSOIL AND SOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
71.9R

AutoCAD SHX Text
67.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
67.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
66.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
66.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
67.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
67.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
67.6ME

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.8R

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY DITCH CHECKS TO BE REMOVED ONCE SUB-GRADE WORK BEGINS (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY DITCH CHECK (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SOIL STOCKPILE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.80%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.45 69.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
74.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
74.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.80%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.60%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.60%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.60%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
E2

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
E4

AutoCAD SHX Text
E5

AutoCAD SHX Text
E5

AutoCAD SHX Text
E5

AutoCAD SHX Text
E5

AutoCAD SHX Text
E5

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch = 30 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEW SET NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
L:\Projects\2021\21-0005\Engineering\DWG\Final\LOTS 10 & 21\21-0005 10&21 FE.dwg Plot Date:12/8/2021 8:30:57 AM By:dvieth Plot Date:12/8/2021 8:30:57 AM By:dvieth12/8/2021 8:30:57 AM By:dvieth By:dviethdvieth

AutoCAD SHX Text
STABILIZATION TYPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERMANENT SEEDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DORMANT SEEDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY SEEDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SODDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
MULCHING

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUN

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUL

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUG

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
OCT

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOV

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E**

AutoCAD SHX Text
D*

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
A. KENTUCKY BLUEGRASS KENTUCKY BLUEGRASS 90 LBS/AC MIXED WITH PERENNIAL RYEGRASS 30 LBS/AC B. KENTUCKY BLUEGRASS KENTUCKY BLUEGRASS 135 LBS/AC MIXED WITH PERENNIAL RYEGRASS 45 LBS/AC + 2 TONS STRAW MULCH/AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
C. SPRING OATS 100 LBS/AC SPRING OATS 100 LBS/AC D. WHEAT OR CEREAL RYE 150 WHEAT OR CEREAL RYE 150 LBS/AC E. SOD SOD F. STRAW MULCH 2 TONS/ACSTRAW MULCH 2 TONS/AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
* IRRIGATION NEEDED DURING JUNE AND JULY IRRIGATION NEEDED DURING JUNE AND JULY ** IRRIGATION NEEDED FOR 2 TO 3 WEEKS AFTER APPLYING SODIRRIGATION NEEDED FOR 2 TO 3 WEEKS AFTER APPLYING SOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EROSION CONTROL & SEDIMENTATION NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE PER NRCS SPECIFICATIONS SILT FENCE PER NRCS SPECIFICATIONS CONCRETE WASHOUT AREA INLET PROTECTION PER OR EQUIVALENT TO NRCS SPECIFICATIONS TEMPORARY DITCH CHECKS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EROSION CONTROL LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
E#

AutoCAD SHX Text
E4

AutoCAD SHX Text
E3

AutoCAD SHX Text
E2

AutoCAD SHX Text
E1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project No.: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Design By: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn By: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked By: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAEFEN DEVELOPMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
22774 CITATION ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS 60423

AutoCAD SHX Text
(815) 464-7090

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINAL ENGINEERING PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOTS 10, 11 & 21

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEY & GRAEFEN INDUSTRIAL PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-0005

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS NOTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
04-23-2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEI

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL EROSION & SEDIMENT CONTROL PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL VEGETATIVE AND STRUCTURAL EROSION AND SEDIMENT UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL VEGETATIVE AND STRUCTURAL EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PRACTICES WILL BE CONSTRUCTED ACCORDING TO MINIMUM STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS IN THE ILLINOIS URBAN MANUAL, LATEST EDITION, AND ALL OTHER AUTHORITIES HAVING JURISDICTION. 2. THE APPLICANT AND/OR CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR INSURING THE OBTAINED THE APPLICANT AND/OR CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR INSURING THE OBTAINED PERMIT WITH THE COMPLETED SWPPP IS POSTED ON SITE IN A PROMINENT LOCATION BEFORE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK ON SITE AND SHALL CONTACT THE VILLAGE AT LEAST 2 WORKING DAYS BEFORE THE START OF CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION OF SEDIMENT AND EROSION MEASURES AND COMPLETION OF FINAL LANDSCAPING. 3. THE VILLAGE SHALL BE PROVIDED WITH A COPY OF THE IEPA LETTER OF NOTIFICATION OF THE VILLAGE SHALL BE PROVIDED WITH A COPY OF THE IEPA LETTER OF NOTIFICATION OF COVERAGE PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF CONSTRUCTION. 4. THE DEVELOPER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR HAVING THE SWPPP AND A STAMPED AND SIGNED THE DEVELOPER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR HAVING THE SWPPP AND A STAMPED AND SIGNED COPY OF THE APPROVED SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PLAN ON SITE AT ALL TIMES AND BE PRESENTED WHEN REQUESTED BY ANY AUTHORIZED AGENCY. 5. THE DEVELOPER SHALL INSPECT THE SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PRACTICES THE DEVELOPER SHALL INSPECT THE SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PRACTICES EVERY SEVEN (7) DAYS AND AFTER 0.5" OR MORE RAINFALL. IMMEDIATE REPAIR SHALL BE MADE OF ANY DAMAGED EROSION CONTROL ELEMENTS THROUGHOUT THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE PROJECT. 6. ALL CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC SHALL ENTER SITE ONLY AT PROPOSED STABILIZED ALL CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC SHALL ENTER SITE ONLY AT PROPOSED STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE(S) AS SHOWN ON PLANS. 7. ALL DIRT, MUD, OR DEBRIS THAT REACHES THE PUBLIC ROADS SHALL BE CLEANED ALL DIRT, MUD, OR DEBRIS THAT REACHES THE PUBLIC ROADS SHALL BE CLEANED IMMEDIATELY BY THE CONTRACTOR. 8. TECHNIQUES SHALL BE EMPLOYED TO PREVENT THE BLOWING OF DUST OR SEDIMENT FROM TECHNIQUES SHALL BE EMPLOYED TO PREVENT THE BLOWING OF DUST OR SEDIMENT FROM THE SITE. 9. SILT FENCE, SILT BASINS, AND STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE(S) SHALL BE SILT FENCE, SILT BASINS, AND STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE(S) SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED AS DETAILED ON THE FINAL ENGINEERING PLANS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION AND SHALL REMAIN IN PLAN UNTIL THE DISTURBED AREA IS STABILIZED.  IN ADDITION, SILT FENCE SHALL BE PROVIDED FOR AREAS DRAINING 200' AND GREATER IN ACCORDANCE WITH NRCS CODE 920. 10. SCHEDULE OF CONTROL MEASURE IMPLEMENTATION: SCHEDULE OF CONTROL MEASURE IMPLEMENTATION: A. CONSTRUCT THE APPLICABLE PORTIONS OF THE EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION  CONTROLS PRIOR TO SITE CLEARING.       B. CONTROL SITE DEVELOPMENT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SPECIFICATIONS.       C. MAINTAIN INLET PROTECTION, CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC SURFACES, CLEANING OF STORM  STRUCTURES AND THE LIKE ON A REGULAR BASIS AFTER EACH HEAVY RAIN OR AS   OTHERWISE REQUIRED. 11. THE ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE IS AS FOLLOWS:   THE ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE IS AS FOLLOWS:   TOPSOIL STRIPPING    SUMMER  2021  SUMMER  2021  2021  MASS EARTHWORK    SUMMER  2021 SUMMER  2021 2021 UNDERGROUND IMPROVEMENTS  SUMMER  2021 SUMMER  2021 2021 ROADWAY (CURB & PAVEMENT)  SUMMERL  2021 SUMMERL  2021 2021 BUILDING CONSTRUCTION   FALL/WINTER 2021 FALL/WINTER 2021 2021 FINAL GRADING      SPRING  2022 SPRING  2022 2022 BASIN STABILIZATION    SPRING  2022 SPRING  2022 2022 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE ENTIRE SITE MUST BE STABILIZED, USING A HEAVY MULCH LAYER OR ANOTHER  METHOD AT THE CLOSE  OF THE CONSTRUCTION SEASON. OF THE CONSTRUCTION SEASON. 12. DISTURBED AREAS WITHIN ALL PUBLIC R.O.W.'S SHALL BE RESTORED W/ 6" MIN. TOPSOIL DISTURBED AREAS WITHIN ALL PUBLIC R.O.W.'S SHALL BE RESTORED W/ 6" MIN. TOPSOIL & SOD. RESTORATION SHALL OCCUR IMMEDIATELY AFTER COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION, WEATHER PERMITTING. ALL OTHER DISTURBED AREAS SHALL BE RESTORED WITH 4"  TOPSOIL & SEED. 13. STRAW BALES ARE NOT PERMITTED IN AREAS OF CONCENTRATED FLOW. ROCK CHECK  STRAW BALES ARE NOT PERMITTED IN AREAS OF CONCENTRATED FLOW. ROCK CHECK  DAMS SHALL BE USED IN THESE AREAS. TECHNIQUES THAT DIVERT UPLAND RUNOFF PAST DISTURBED SLOPES SHALL BE EMPLOYED. 14. THE PROTECTION OF THE OPEN LID DRAINAGE STRUCTURES SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED AS THE PROTECTION OF THE OPEN LID DRAINAGE STRUCTURES SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED AS SPECIFIED IN DETAILS.  ALL OPEN LID DRAINAGE STRUCTURES LOCATED IN YARD AREAS AND THE SEDIMENTATION BASIN MUST BE PROTECTED PER INLET PROTECTION DETAILS UNTIL SUCH A TIME THAT THE LANDSCAPING IS IN PLACE AND EFFECTIVELY PREVENTING POTENTIAL SILTATION OF THESE STRUCTURES. ALL OPEN LID DRAINAGE STRUCTURES IN PAVED AREAS SHALL HAVE FILTER BASKETS INSTALLED UNDER THE LIDS.  IN THE EVENT THE GRAVEL BASE IS NOT IN PLACE UPON INSTALLATION, INLET PROTECTION SHALL BE PROVIDED AS INDICATED PER INLET PROTECTION DETAIL. 15. EROSION CONTROL BLANKET (ECB) SHALL BE INSTALLED TO ALL DISTURBED AREAS WITH EROSION CONTROL BLANKET (ECB) SHALL BE INSTALLED TO ALL DISTURBED AREAS WITH SLOPES EQUAL TO OR STEEPER THAN 5H:1V AND IN CRITICAL AREAS (EX: DETENTION BASIN PERIMETERS, STREAMBANKS, BERMS, ETC.) IMMEDIATELY UPON FINAL GRADING.  S175 NORTH AMERICAN GREEN (OR SIMILAR) ECB SHALL BE USED. ECB WITH GREEN DYE IS NOT ACCEPTABLE. 16. SOIL STOCKPILES SHALL BE STABILIZED OR COVERED AT THE END OF EACH WORKDAY.  SOIL STOCKPILES SHALL BE STABILIZED OR COVERED AT THE END OF EACH WORKDAY.  STOCKPILES TO REMAIN IN PLACE FOR 14 DAYS OR MORE SHALL RECEIVE TEMPORARY SEEDING. 17. DURING DEWATER OPERATIONS, WATER WILL BE PUMPED INTO SEDIMENT BASINS OR SILT DURING DEWATER OPERATIONS, WATER WILL BE PUMPED INTO SEDIMENT BASINS OR SILT TRAPS. DEWATERING DIRECTLY INTO FIELD TILES OR STORMWATER STRUCTURES IS  PROHIBITED. 18. AN INCIDENT OF NON-COMPLIANCE (ION) MUST BE COMPLETED AND SUBMITTED BY THE AN INCIDENT OF NON-COMPLIANCE (ION) MUST BE COMPLETED AND SUBMITTED BY THE OWNER TO THE IEPA AND COPIED TO THE VILLAGE IF, AT ANY TIME, AN EROSION OR  SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICE FAILS. 19. A NOTICE OF TERMINATION (NOT) SHALL BE COMPLETED BY THE OWNER IN COMPLIANCE A NOTICE OF TERMINATION (NOT) SHALL BE COMPLETED BY THE OWNER IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE NPDES PHASE II REQUIREMENTS WHEN ALL PERMANENT EROSION CONTROL  MEASURES ARE IN PLACE WITH A 70% ESTABLISHED RATE OF VEGETATION. THE NOTICE OF TERMINATION SHALL BE SENT TO THE IEPA AND THE VILLAGE. 20. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL TAKE THE NECESSARY STEPS TO CONTROL WASTE SUCH AS  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL TAKE THE NECESSARY STEPS TO CONTROL WASTE SUCH AS  DISCARDED BUILDING MATERIALS, CONCRETE TRUCK WASHOUT, CHEMICALS, LITTER AND SANITARY WASTE AT THE CONSTRUCTION SITE THAT MAY CAUSE ADVERSE IMPACTS TO WATER QUALITY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
05-21-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
06-08-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE REVEIW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
06-15-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE REVEIW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
10-06-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 11 IMPROVEMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
12-01-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
DMV



TEMPORARY CONCRETE
WASHOUT FACILITY

EARTHEN BERM

CONCRETE WASHOUT
SIGN DETAIL

STAPLE DETAIL

TEMPORARY CONCRETE
WASHOUT FACILITY

CONCRETE WASHOUT
SIGN DETAIL

STAPLE DETAIL

INLET PROTECTION - EXCAVATED
DRAIN PLAN

INLET PROTECTION - FABRIC
DROP PLAN

9
9

3
0

 W
. 1

9
0

th
 S

tr
e

e
t,

 S
u

it
e

 L
M

o
k

e
n

a
, I

ll
in

o
is

 6
0

4
4

8
(7

0
8

) 
3

2
6

 --
 4

9
6

1
F

a
x

: (
7

0
8

) 
3

2
6

 - 
4

9
6

2

IL
 P

r
o

f
. L

ic
. N

o
.: 

1
8

4
 --

 0
0

3
7

4
0

D
e

s
ig

n
T

e
k

 E
n

g
in

e
e

r
in

g
, I

n
c

.

DEI

&
o

n
s

u
l

t
in

J
, 

&
iY

il
 (

n
J

in
e

e
r

in
J

 	
 L

a
n

G
 S

u
r

Y
e

\
in

J

TYPICAL FLAT/RECTANGULAR/ROLLED CURB
INLET FILTER

TYPICAL CURB BOX
INLET FILTER TYPICAL ROUND

INLET FILTER

FILTER BASKET DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEW SET NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
L:\Projects\2021\21-0005\Engineering\DWG\Final\LOTS 10 & 21\21-0005 10&21 FE.dwg Plot Date:12/8/2021 8:30:58 AM By:dvieth Plot Date:12/8/2021 8:30:58 AM By:dvieth12/8/2021 8:30:58 AM By:dvieth By:dviethdvieth

AutoCAD SHX Text
(BELOW GRADE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
16 GAUGE STEEL WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: : 1. THE CONCRETE WASHOUT SIGN SHALL BE INSTALLED THE CONCRETE WASHOUT SIGN SHALL BE INSTALLED WITHIN 32'-10" OF THE TEMPORARY  CONCRETE WASHOUT FACILITY 2. PLASTIC LINER SHALL BE ANCHORED WITH PLASTIC LINER SHALL BE ANCHORED WITH GRAVEL-FILLED BAGS FOR BELOW GRADE CONCRETE WASH FACILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WASHOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD POST (3 " X 3 " X 8'-0")12" X 3 " X 8'-0")12" X 8'-0")

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLYWOOD 4'-0" X 2'-0" PAINTED WHITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLACK LETTERS 6" HEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOG SCREWS ( ")12")

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION B-B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION A-A

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLASTIC LINER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLASTIC LINER PLACED UNDER BERM (ENTRY SIDE ONLY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EARTHEN BERM

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL-FILLED BAG

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLASTIC LINER OVER BERM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLASTIC LINER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLASTIC LINER OVER BERM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EARTHEN BERM

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL-FILLED BAG

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF CUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLASTIC LINER OVER BERM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EARTHEN BERM

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL-FILLED BAG

AutoCAD SHX Text
EARTHEN BERM

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL-FILLED BAGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF PLASTIC LINER

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF CUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EARTHEN BERM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENTRY SIDE OF WASHOUT FACILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF PLASTIC LINER (SEE NOTE 2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EARTHEN BERM

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLASTIC LINER PLACED UNDER BERM (ENTRY SIDE ONLY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
3:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
(ON GRADE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
16 GAUGE STEEL WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: : 1. THE CONCRETE WASHOUT SIGN SHALL BE INSTALLED THE CONCRETE WASHOUT SIGN SHALL BE INSTALLED WITHIN 32'-10" OF THE TEMPORARY  CONCRETE WASHOUT FACILITY 2. PLASTIC LINER SHALL BE ANCHORED WITH PLASTIC LINER SHALL BE ANCHORED WITH GRAVEL-FILLED BAGS FOR BELOW GRADE CONCRETE WASH FACILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WASHOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD POST (3 " X 3 " X 8'-0")12" X 3 " X 8'-0")12" X 8'-0")

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLYWOOD 4'-0" X 2'-0" PAINTED WHITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLACK LETTERS 6" HEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOG SCREWS ( ")12")

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION C-C

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRAW BALES

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD OR METAL STAKES

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEDGE LOOSE STRAW BETWEEN BALES

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL-FILLED BAGS IN CORNERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAPLES (2 PER BALE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD OR METAL STAKES (2 PER BALE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRAW BALES (2 BALES HIGH MAX)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL-FILLED BAG IN CORNERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLASTIC LINER

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD DWG. NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET  1  OF  1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE   3-11-93

AutoCAD SHX Text
IL-555

AutoCAD SHX Text
REFERENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project  

AutoCAD SHX Text
Designed

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked

AutoCAD SHX Text
Approved

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Natural Resources Conservation Service

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UTYPICAL SECTION A-A

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: : 1. SEDIMENT SHALL BE REMOVED AND THE TRAP RESTORED TO ITS ORIGINAL SEDIMENT SHALL BE REMOVED AND THE TRAP RESTORED TO ITS ORIGINAL DIMENSIONS WHEN THE SEDIMENT HAS ACCUMULATED TO   THE DESIGN DEPTH 12 THE DESIGN DEPTH OF THE TRAP. REMOVED SEDIMENT SHALL BE DEPOSITED ON A SUITABLE AREA AND IN SUCH A MANNER THAT IT WILL NOT ERODE. 2. THE SEDIMENT TRAP SHALL VE REMOVED AND THE AREA STABILIZED WHEN THE THE SEDIMENT TRAP SHALL VE REMOVED AND THE AREA STABILIZED WHEN THE CONSTRUCTION DRAINAGE AREA HAS BEEN PROPERLY STABILIZED. 3. ALL CUT SLOPES SHALL BE 2:1 OR FLATTER.ALL CUT SLOPES SHALL BE 2:1 OR FLATTER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPLAN VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAIN INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEEP HOLES FOR DEWATERING

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD DWG. NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET  1  OF  1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE   6-29-93

AutoCAD SHX Text
IL-560

AutoCAD SHX Text
REFERENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project  

AutoCAD SHX Text
Designed

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked

AutoCAD SHX Text
Approved

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Natural Resources Conservation Service

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: : 1. FILTER FABRIC SHALL MEET THE REQUIREMENT OF MATERIAL SPECIFICATION 592 FILTER FABRIC SHALL MEET THE REQUIREMENT OF MATERIAL SPECIFICATION 592 GEOTEXTILE TABLE 1 OR 2, CLASS I, WITH AN EOS OF AT LEAST 30 FOR NONWOVEN  AND 50 FOR WOVEN. 2. THE WIRE MESH SHALL HAVE A MAXIMUM OPENING OF AT LEAST 6 INCHES. THE WIRE MESH SHALL HAVE A MAXIMUM OPENING OF AT LEAST 6 INCHES. 3. LIMIT DRAINAGE AREA TO THE INLET PROTECTION TO 1 ACRE.LIMIT DRAINAGE AREA TO THE INLET PROTECTION TO 1 ACRE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIRE MESH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILTER FABRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"x4" FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
POST DRIVEN INTO GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXCAVATE AND RE-COMPACT EARTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF ROADWAY OR TOP OF EARTH DIKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project No.: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Design By: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn By: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked By: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAEFEN DEVELOPMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
22774 CITATION ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS 60423

AutoCAD SHX Text
(815) 464-7090

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINAL ENGINEERING PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOTS 10, 11 & 21

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEY & GRAEFEN INDUSTRIAL PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-0005

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS NOTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
04-23-2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEI

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL EROSION & SEDIMENT CONTROL PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-PLY REPLACEABLE SEDIMENT BAGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH GEOTEXTILE FILTER FABRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT HANDLES

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAINLESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLAMPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR CURB GUARD FLAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH MAGNETIC TIE-DOWNS

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UINSTALLATION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE GRATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DROP INLET FILTER ONTO 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOAD BEARING LIP OF CASTING OR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE STRUCTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPLACE GRATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD 2"  OVERFLOW AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
11 GAUGE STEEL SUSPENSION SYSTEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATERIALS 1. FRAMING - 11 GAUGE STEEL; CORROSION RESISTANT 2. SEDIMENT BAG - WOVEN GEOTEXTILE (TYPE FF OR APPROVED ALTERNATIVE) 2 CUBIC FOOT TYP VOLUME; STAINLESS STEEL LOCKING BAND SECURING BAG TO FRAME  

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
05-21-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
06-08-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE REVEIW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
06-15-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE REVEIW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
10-06-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 11 IMPROVEMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
12-01-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
DMV



FEY & GRAEFEN INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE 1

FEY & GRAEFEN INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE 2

LOT 22

LOT 20

LOT 9

LOT 11

C
IT

A
TI

O
N

   
R

O
A

D

C
H

A
LL

EN
G

ER
  R

O
A

D

LOT  21
LOT  10

SITE B.M. #1
ELEV. 773.06

SITE B.M. #2
ELEV. 770.57

SITE BENCHMARK #3
ELEV. 772.04

FIP 3/4"
0.22' N.

FIP 3/4"
AT CORNER

RESET BENT 3/4" PIPE
WITH 1" PIPE AT CORNER

FD. IRON
0.22' E.

FIR 1/2"
3.25' W. &

0.23' N.

FIP 3/4"
AT CORNER

FIP 3/4"
0.25' E.

FIP 3/4" AT
CORNER

8"

8"

GEOMETRIC & UTILITY PLAN

9
9

3
0

 W
. 1

9
0

th
 S

tr
e

e
t,

 S
u

it
e

 L
M

o
k

e
n

a
, I

ll
in

o
is

 6
0

4
4

8
(7

0
8

) 
3

2
6

 --
 4

9
6

1
F

a
x

: (
7

0
8

) 
3

2
6

 - 
4

9
6

2

IL
 P

r
o

f
. L

ic
. N

o
.: 

1
8

4
 --

 0
0

3
7

4
0

D
e

s
ig

n
T

e
k

 E
n

g
in

e
e

r
in

g
, I

n
c

.

DEI

&
o

n
s

u
l

t
in

J
, 

&
iY

il
 (

n
J

in
e

e
r

in
J

 	
 L

a
n

G
 S

u
r

Y
e

\
in

J

NOTES:

SANITARY STRUCTURES

SITE/LOT COVERAGE

WATER VALVE VAULTS

HANDICAP PAINTED SYMBOLHANDICAP SIGN POST

HANDICAP PARKING SIGN

HANDICAP PARKING
SIGN REQUIRING "FINE"

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Commercial Building

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Commercial Building

AutoCAD SHX Text
(66' RIGHT-OF-WAY HERETOFORE DEDICATED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(66' RIGHT-OF-WAY HERETOFORE DEDICATED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Catch Basin (C.L.) (Buried)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Inlet Rim 770.33 Inv. 724.91 (12" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Catch Basin (C.L.) Rim 771.62 Inv. 764.32 (18" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Catch Basin (O.L.) Rim 766.11 (18" RCP, S) Inv. 760.62 (30" RCP, W-N) Inv. 759.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
Catch Basin (O.L.) Rim 768.75 Inv. (No data, frozen rim)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Inlet Rim 769.84 (15" RCP) Inv. 764.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/F 768.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/F 768.62

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Commercial Building

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/F 776.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
Catch Basin (C.L.) Rim 773.31 (36" RCP, W) Inv. 763.81 (36" RCP, S-N) Inv. 755.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAILBOX BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sanitary Manhole Rim 772.50 Inv. 748.42 (15" PVC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sanitary Service per plans

AutoCAD SHX Text
Trash Enclosure

AutoCAD SHX Text
Electric Transformer

AutoCAD SHX Text
Electric Transformer

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fence is  1.0' N.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fence is  1.0' N.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Catch Basin (O.L.) Rim 768.89 Inv. 759.44 (24" RCP, W & 30" RCP, E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Water Valve Vault Rim 774.15 T/P 768.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECESSED LOADING DOCK GRAVITY DRAIN TO STORM

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED OUTDOOR STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAW-CUT EXISTING C&G TO PROVIDE DEPRESSED C&G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 8' BLACK VINYL-COATED CHAIN LINK FENCE W/BLACK OPAQUE SLATS

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 12,209 S.F. COMMERCIAL BUILDING FF ~773.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 12'x12' TRASH ENCLOSURE PAD & 12'x30' LANDING PAD12'x30' LANDING PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED HANDICAP SIGN ON POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED HANDICAP SYMBOL (SEE DETAIL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
B-6.0 C

AutoCAD SHX Text
B-6.0 C

AutoCAD SHX Text
B-6.0 C

AutoCAD SHX Text
B-6.0 C

AutoCAD SHX Text
B-6.0 C

AutoCAD SHX Text
B-6.12 C&G

AutoCAD SHX Text
B-6.12 C&G

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ASPHALT PAVEMENT (TYPICAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 8' BLACK VINYL-COATED CHAIN LINK FENCE W/BLACK OPAQUE SLATS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 8' GATE TO BE BLACK VINYL-COATED CHAIN LINK W/BLACK OPAQUE SLATS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 8' GATE TO BE BLACK VINYL-COATED CHAIN LINK W/BLACK OPAQUE SLATS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sanitary Service per plans

AutoCAD SHX Text
80' ~6" PVC SDR-26 SAN. SEWER @ 2.13%

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' ~6" PVC SDR-26 SAN. SEWER @ 6.67%  CONNECT TO EX. STUB (BASED ON ASSUMED EX. SAN. INVERT OF ~665.50)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONNECT TO EXISTING SANITARY STUB. FIELD VERIFY EXISTING INVERT ELEVATION PRIOR TO MANUFACTURING PROPOSED MANHOLES.  ASSUMED INVERT @ STUB ~665.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
74'~12" RCP @ 4.19%  INVERT AT TRENCH DRAIN ~766.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
22' ~2' WIDE TRENCH DRAIN GRATE ~769.50  INV ~766.74 (SW) INV ~766.30 (NE) SLOPE BOTTOM @ 2.00%

AutoCAD SHX Text
16'x12' ~6" TO 8" ROCK RIP RAP AT DEPRESSED CURB. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(12" RCP, SW) INV ~763.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.6 CY~6" TO 8" ROCK RIP RAP AT DEPRESSED CURB. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'x20' AUGER PUSH PIT FOR WATER SERVICE IMPROVEMENTS PER VILLAGE SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'x10' AUGER RECEIVING PIT FOR WATER SERVICE IMPROVEMENTS PER VILLAGE SPECIFICATIONS. DISTURBED PARKWAY AREAS TO BE RESTORED WITH 4" TOPSOIL AND SOD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED DETECTABLE WARNING PLATE PER DETAILS ON SHEET #9

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED "STOP" SIGN ON POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED "STOP" SIGN ON POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
75' OF PROPOSED DEPRESSED CURB & GUTTER ACROSS DRIVEWAY ENTRANCE (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
75' OF PROPOSED DEPRESSED CURB & GUTTER ACROSS DRIVEWAY ENTRANCE (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAW-CUT EXISTING C&G TO PROVIDE DEPRESSED C&G

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
169' ~ 6" AWWA C900  WATER MAIN PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CROSSING INFORMATION: T/6" WM ~763.8 BTM/6" WM ~763.1 T/15" PVC SANITARY ~ 749.60 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJUST RIM TO 671.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. FENCE AT RIP RAP/ OVERLAND FLOW ROUTE WILL MAINTAIN A 1.0' CLEAR GAP BETWEEN THE BOTTOM OF FENCE AND FINISHED GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED FENCE AT RIP RAP/OVERLAND FLOW ROUTE WILL MAINTAIN A 1.0' CLEAR GAP BETWEEN THE BOTTOM OF FENCE AND FINISHED GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'x21" CONCRETE APRON W/ 2-BOLLARDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJUST RIM (AS NEEDED) TO 670.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED FENCE SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED WITH A BOTTOM ELEVATION OF 770.00 OR HIGHER BETWEEN THE TWO POINTS INDICATED, ~ 40 FEET. THIS WILL PROVIDE ADEQUATE FLOW THROUGH ROOM FOR POTENTIAL OVERLAND FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED FENCE SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED WITH A BOTTOM ELEVATION OF 768.30 OR HIGHER BETWEEN THE TWO POINTS INDICATED ~ 50 FEET. THIS WILL PROVIDE ADEQUATE FLOW THROUGH ROOM FOR POTENTIAL OVERLAND FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRIPLE BASIN - SEE ARCHITECTS PLAN FOR DETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEW SET NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
L:\Projects\2021\21-0005\Engineering\DWG\Final\LOTS 10 & 21\21-0005 10&21 FE.dwg Plot Date:12/8/2021 8:31:06 AM By:dvieth Plot Date:12/8/2021 8:31:06 AM By:dvieth12/8/2021 8:31:06 AM By:dvieth By:dviethdvieth

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project No.: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Design By: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn By: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked By: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAEFEN DEVELOPMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
22774 CITATION ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS 60423

AutoCAD SHX Text
(815) 464-7090

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINAL ENGINEERING PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOTS 10, 11 & 21

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEY & GRAEFEN INDUSTRIAL PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-0005

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
04-23-2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEI

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEOMETRIC & UTILITY PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. ALL CURB RADII ARE TO BACK OF CURB UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE ON PLANS. ALL CURB RADII ARE TO BACK OF CURB UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE ON PLANS. 2. ALL PIPE LENGTHS ARE APPROXIMATE. THOSE WHICH INCLUDE A FLARED END SECTION ALL PIPE LENGTHS ARE APPROXIMATE. THOSE WHICH INCLUDE A FLARED END SECTION ARE TO THE END OF THE SECTION. 3. UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHALL RECEIVE FULL DEPTH TRENCH BACKFILL WHERE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHALL RECEIVE FULL DEPTH TRENCH BACKFILL WHERE INDICATED PER UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SPECIFICATIONS ON SHEET 3. 4. DOWNSPOUTS WILL SPLASH TO GRADE UNLESS SHOWN TO BE PIPED. SPLASH PADS DOWNSPOUTS WILL SPLASH TO GRADE UNLESS SHOWN TO BE PIPED. SPLASH PADS SHALL BE PROVIDED AT EACH DOWNSPOUT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
= TRENCH BACKFILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch = 30 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: DESIGNTEK MAKES NO REPRESENTATION AS TO ACCURACY OF DIMENSIONS SHOWN HEREON. FOR ACTUAL DIMENSIONS OF HOME REFER TO FOUNDATION PLAN PREPARED BY OTHERS. FOUNDATION PLAN SHOWN WAS RECEIVED ON FEBRUARY 19, 2021 FROM MJ ROOT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
48" SANITARY M.H., C.L. RIM 673.20 INV 668.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
48" SANITARY M.H., C.L. RIM 673.80 INV 666.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT AREA: 130,710  S.F. 130,710  S.F. PROPOSED: FOUNDATION: 12,209  S.F. 12,209  S.F. LOADING DOCK AREA: 1,325  S.F. 1,325  S.F. WALK (FRONT): 199  S.F. 199  S.F. CONCRETE PADS @ DOORS: 100  S.F. 100  S.F. TRASH ENCLOSURE AREA: 144  S.F. 144  S.F. PARKING LOT PAVEMENT INCLUDING CURB: 82,666  S.F. 82,666  S.F. TOTAL PROPOSED IMPERVIOUS: 96,643  S.F. 96,643  S.F. PROPOSED BUILDING COVERAGE: 12,209 / 130,710 = 9.34% 12,209 / 130,710 = 9.34% PROPOSED LOT COVERAGE: 96,643 / 130,710 = 73.94%96,643 / 130,710 = 73.94%

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" PRESSURE CONNECTION TO 10" MAIN IN 48" VALVE VAULT. RIM 770.20 (ME GRADE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOUBLE COAT OF BLUE PAINT (BACKGROUND)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOUBLE COAT OF WHITE PAINT (SYMBOL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SQUARE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: : 1. SYMBOL TO BE CENTERED ON WIDTH OF SYMBOL TO BE CENTERED ON WIDTH OF PARKING STALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINIMUM 55 HOLES SPACED @ 1" O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
HANDICAP SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
"$100 FINE" SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION D-D

AutoCAD SHX Text
POST MOUNTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/2 R

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2 R

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4 7/8*

AutoCAD SHX Text
4 1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4 1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 1985,  PUBLIC ACT  83-1316 AMENDED SEC.  11-301 OF  "THE  ILLINOIS  VEHICLE CODE" TO REQUIRE HANDICAPPED PARKING SIGNS (FOR PARKING LOTS SUBJECT TO "THE ILLINOIS  VEHICLE CODE")  TO COMPLY  WITH THE R 7-8 SIGN  SHOWN BELOW  (U.S. DEPARTMENT  OF TRANSPORTATION STANDARD).  EXISTING SIGNS MAY REMAIN,  BUT THEIR USEFUL LIVES SHALL NOT BE EXTENDED BY OTHER MEANS THAN NORMAL MAINTENANCE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
       COLORS COLORS LEGEND AND BOARDER - GREEN WHITE SYMBOL ON BLUE BACKGROUND BACKGROUND - WHITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
R7-8 DIMENSIONS (INCHES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
* REDUCE SPACING 50% ** SEE "HANDICAP PAINTED SYMBOL"        FOR SYMBOL PROPORTIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED STANDARD ACCESSIBLE PARKING SIGN AND POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERNATIONAL ACCESS SYMBOL ON PAVEMENT (WHITE ON BLUE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
YELLOW DIAGONALS AND BORDER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: : EACH PARKING SPACE SHALL CONSIST OF A SIXTEEN FOOT WIDE PARKING SPACE INCLUDING AN EIGHT FOOT WIDE DIAGONALLY STRIPED ACCESS AISLE. ADJACENT PARKING SPACES SHALL NOT SHARE A COMMON ACCESS AISLE. A HIGH QUALITY YELLOW PAINT RECOMMENDED BY THE PAINT MANUFACTURER FOR PAVEMENT STRIPING SHALL BE USED. EACH PARKING SPACE SHALL HAVE ITS OWN ACCESS AISLE AND ALL ACCESS AISLES SHALL BLEND TO A COMMON LEVEL WITH AN ACCESSIBLE ROUTE. PARKING SPACES AND ACCESS AISLES SHALL BE LEVEL WITH SURFACE SLOPES NOT EXCEEDING 1:50 (2%) IN ALL DIRECTIONS. MINIMUM VEHICLE CLEARANCE OF 98IN. AT THE PARKING SPACE AND ALONG AT LEAST ONE VEHICLE ACCESS ROUTE TO SUCH SPACES FROM SITE ENTRANCE(S) AND EXITS(S) SHALL BE PROVIDED. A U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION R7-8 (RESERVED PARKING) AND SUPPLEMENTAL SIGNS AS NOTED ABOVE MUST BE MOUNTED ON A PERMANENT POST NO LOWER THAN FOUR FEET FROM THE PAVEMENT.  THE POST MUST BE MOUNTED IN THE CENTER OF THE 8 FOOT WIDE ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACE, NO MORE THAN 5 FEET FROM THE FRONT OF THE PARKING SPACE.  SEE ILLUSTRATION ABOVE. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
B5-126

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
3A

AutoCAD SHX Text
12x6

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKGROUND        - WHITE REFLECTORIZED

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIMENSIONS (INCHES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PANTONE 340C)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND AND BORDER - GREEN NON-REFLECTORIZED

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
GIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAR-

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINES

AutoCAD SHX Text
SERIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
12x6

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UCOLORS

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
STD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLK

AutoCAD SHX Text
DER

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOR-

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: FINE AMOUNT TO BE VERIFIED WITH THE MUNICIPALITY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
05-21-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
06-08-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE REVEIW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
06-15-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE REVEIW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
10-06-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 11 IMPROVEMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
12-01-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
DMV



FEY & GRAEFEN INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE 1

FEY & GRAEFEN INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE 2

LOT 22

LOT 20

LOT 9

LOT 11

C
IT

A
TI

O
N

   
R

O
A

D

C
H

A
LL

EN
G

ER
  R

O
A

D

LOT  21
LOT  10

SITE B.M. #1
ELEV. 773.06

SITE B.M. #2
ELEV. 770.57

SITE BENCHMARK #3
ELEV. 772.04

8"

8"

AA

B

B

DD

CC

GRADING PLAN RETAINING WALL

9
9

3
0

 W
. 1

9
0

th
 S

tr
e

e
t,

 S
u

it
e

 L
M

o
k

e
n

a
, I

ll
in

o
is

 6
0

4
4

8
(7

0
8

) 
3

2
6

 --
 4

9
6

1
F

a
x

: (
7

0
8

) 
3

2
6

 - 
4

9
6

2

IL
 P

r
o

f
. L

ic
. N

o
.: 

1
8

4
 --

 0
0

3
7

4
0

D
e

s
ig

n
T

e
k

 E
n

g
in

e
e

r
in

g
, I

n
c

.

DEI

&
o

n
s

u
l

t
in

J
, 

&
iY

il
 (

n
J

in
e

e
r

in
J

 	
 L

a
n

G
 S

u
r

Y
e

\
in

J

SPECIAL CURB AREAS

 OVERLAND FLOW SECTION D-D

NOTES:

 OVERLAND FLOW SECTION B-B

 OVERLAND FLOW SECTION C-C OVERLAND FLOW SECTION A-A

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Commercial Building

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Commercial Building

AutoCAD SHX Text
(66' RIGHT-OF-WAY HERETOFORE DEDICATED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(66' RIGHT-OF-WAY HERETOFORE DEDICATED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Catch Basin (C.L.) (Buried)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Inlet Rim 770.33 Inv. 724.91 (12" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Catch Basin (C.L.) Rim 771.62 Inv. 764.32 (18" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Catch Basin (O.L.) Rim 766.11 (18" RCP, S) Inv. 760.62 (30" RCP, W-N) Inv. 759.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
Catch Basin (O.L.) Rim 768.75 Inv. (No data, frozen rim)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Inlet Rim 769.84 (15" RCP) Inv. 764.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/F 768.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/F 768.62

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Commercial Building

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/F 776.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
Catch Basin (C.L.) Rim 773.31 (36" RCP, W) Inv. 763.81 (36" RCP, S-N) Inv. 755.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAILBOX BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sanitary Manhole Rim 772.50 Inv. 748.42 (15" PVC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sanitary Service per plans

AutoCAD SHX Text
Trash Enclosure

AutoCAD SHX Text
Electric Transformer

AutoCAD SHX Text
Electric Transformer

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fence is  1.0' N.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fence is  1.0' N.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Catch Basin (O.L.) Rim 768.89 Inv. 759.44 (24" RCP, W & 30" RCP, E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Water Valve Vault Rim 774.15 T/P 768.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 12,209 S.F. COMMERCIAL BUILDING FF ~773.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
72.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
72.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
72.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
71.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
69.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
69.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
72.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
72.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.06%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.50%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.50%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.42%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.32%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
71.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
68.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
68.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
69.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.32%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.81%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.32%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.05%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
71.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.56%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.12%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
68.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
68.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
68.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
68.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
68.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
68.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
72.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.53%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.72%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.89%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
72.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
72.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
66.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
67.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
67.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
67.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
67.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
68.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
68.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.50%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sanitary Service per plans

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.40%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.40%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
72.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.56%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.78%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.38%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
72.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
72.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOADING DOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.7 73.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.25 69.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
16'x12' ~6" TO 8" ROCK RIP RAP AT DEPRESSED CURB. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.6 CY~6" TO 8" ROCK RIP RAP AT DEPRESSED CURB. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
72.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.94%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
16A

AutoCAD SHX Text
72.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
72.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
66.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
66.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
75' OF PROPOSED DEPRESSED CURB & GUTTER ACROSS DRIVEWAY ENTRANCE (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
75' OF PROPOSED DEPRESSED CURB & GUTTER ACROSS DRIVEWAY ENTRANCE (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE CALCULATED HWL OF 100-YEAR OVERLAND FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISTURBED AREA OF PARKWAY FOR RECEIVING PIT TO BE RESTORED WITH 4" MIN TOPSOIL AND SOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
71.9R

AutoCAD SHX Text
67.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
67.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
66.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
66.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
67.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
67.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
67.6ME

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.8R

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED FENCE SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED WITH A BOTTOM ELEVATION OF 770.00 OR HIGHER BETWEEN THE TWO POINTS INDICATED, ~ 40 FEET. THIS WILL PROVIDE ADEQUATE FLOW THROUGH ROOM FOR POTENTIAL OVERLAND FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED FENCE SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED WITH A BOTTOM ELEVATION OF 768.30 OR HIGHER BETWEEN THE TWO POINTS INDICATED ~ 50 FEET. THIS WILL PROVIDE ADEQUATE FLOW THROUGH ROOM FOR POTENTIAL OVERLAND FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.80%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.45 69.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
74.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
74.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.80%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.60%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.60%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.60%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch = 30 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
TW~773.00 BW (PVMT)~772.30 BW (DOCK)~769.50 TW~773.00 BW (PVMT)~771.60 BW (DOCK)~769.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
L:\Projects\2021\21-0005\Engineering\DWG\Final\LOTS 10 & 21\21-0005 10&21 FE.dwg Plot Date:12/8/2021 8:31:09 AM By:dvieth Plot Date:12/8/2021 8:31:09 AM By:dvieth12/8/2021 8:31:09 AM By:dvieth By:dviethdvieth

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project No.: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Design By: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn By: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked By: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAEFEN DEVELOPMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
22774 CITATION ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS 60423

AutoCAD SHX Text
(815) 464-7090

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINAL ENGINEERING PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOTS 10, 11 & 21

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEY & GRAEFEN INDUSTRIAL PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-0005

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
04-23-2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEI

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADING PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC~773.09 EP~772.58 HGT OF B/C ~0.50' TC~773.75 EP~772.75 HGT OF B/C ~1.0' TC~774.00 EP~772.85 HGT OF B/C ~1.15' TC~774.24 EP~773.74 HGT OF B/C ~0.50' TC~774.00 EP~773.30 HGT OF B/C ~0.70' TC~773.70 EP~773.20 HGT OF B/C ~0.50' TC~773.00 EP~772.50 HGT OF B/C ~0.50' TC~772.80 EP~772.00 HGT OF B/C ~0.80' TC~772.50 EP~771.00 HGT OF B/C ~1.50' TC~772.00 EP~770.00 HGT OF B/C ~2.00' TC~771.00 EP~769.60 HGT OF B/C ~1.40' TC~770.00 EP~769.28 HGT OF B/C ~0.72'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC~769.50 EP~769.00 HGT OF B/C ~0.50' TC~771.90 EP~771.40 GR BEHIND CURB ~771.00 EXPOSED B/C ~0.90' TC~771.80 EP~771.30 GR BEHIND CURB ~770.00 EXPOSED B/C ~1.80' TC~770.50 EP~770.00 GR BEHIND CURB ~769.00 EXPOSED B/C ~1.50' TC~769.50 EP~769.00 GR BEHIND CURB ~768.00 EXPOSED B/C ~1.50' TC~768.50 EP~768.00 GR BEHIND CURB ~767.20 EXPOSED B/C ~1.30' TC~767.10 EP~767.10 GR BEHIND CURB ~767.10 EXPOSED B/C ~0.00' TC~770.45 EP~769.95 GR BEHIND CURB ~769.00 EXPOSED B/C ~1.45' TC~770.90 EP~770.40 GR BEHIND CURB ~769.50 EXPOSED B/C ~1.40' TC~771.45 EP~770.95 GR BEHIND CURB ~770.00 EXPOSED B/C ~1.45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.00%

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV.770.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YR HWL 771.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSVERSE SLOPE =1.0%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
Qmax = 138 CFS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW DEPTH =1.00' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC 771.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
05-21-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
06-08-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE REVEIW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.	DOWNSPOUTS WILL SPLASH TO GRADE UNLESS SHOWN TO BE PIPED. SPLASH PADS DOWNSPOUTS WILL SPLASH TO GRADE UNLESS SHOWN TO BE PIPED. SPLASH PADS SHALL BE PROVIDED AT EACH DOWNSPOUT THAT DOES NOT SPLASH TO A HARD SURFACE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
06-15-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE REVEIW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.50%

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.94%

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV. 768.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YR HWL 769.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSVERSE SLOPE =1.0%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
Qmax = 138 CFS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW DEPTH =0.64' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.00%

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV.769.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YR HWL 770.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSVERSE SLOPE =1.0%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
Qmax = 138 CFS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW DEPTH =1.00' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC 770.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
10-06-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 11 IMPROVEMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.00%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.32%

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV. 767.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YR HWL 768.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSVERSE SLOPE =1.5%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
Qmax = 138 CFS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW DEPTH =0.60' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TW~771.00 BW~770.60 TW~771.00 BW~770.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
16A

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
12-01-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
DMV



9
9

3
0

 W
. 1

9
0

th
 S

tr
e

e
t,

 S
u

it
e

 L
M

o
k

e
n

a
, I

ll
in

o
is

 6
0

4
4

8
(7

0
8

) 
3

2
6

 --
 4

9
6

1
F

a
x

: (
7

0
8

) 
3

2
6

 - 
4

9
6

2

IL
 P

r
o

f
. L

ic
. N

o
.: 

1
8

4
 --

 0
0

3
7

4
0

D
e

s
ig

n
T

e
k

 E
n

g
in

e
e

r
in

g
, I

n
c

.

DEI

&
o

n
s

u
l

t
in

J
, 

&
iY

il
 (

n
J

in
e

e
r

in
J

 	
 L

a
n

G
 S

u
r

Y
e

\
in

J

STANDARD CONNECTION TO EXISTING
STORM MANHOLE

AUGERING DETAIL

BOLLARD DETAIL

PRECAST WHEEL STOPB-6.12 CURB AND GUTTER CONCRETE BARRIER CURB CONCRETE SIDEWALK SECTION

TYPICAL PAVEMENT SECTION

CONCRETE PAVEMENT AT LOADING
DOCK,  TRASH ENCLOSURE & APRONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEW SET NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
L:\Projects\2021\21-0005\Engineering\DWG\Final\LOTS 10 & 21\21-0005 10&21 FE.dwg Plot Date:12/8/2021 8:31:10 AM By:dvieth Plot Date:12/8/2021 8:31:10 AM By:dvieth12/8/2021 8:31:10 AM By:dvieth By:dviethdvieth

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project No.: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Design By: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn By: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked By: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAEFEN DEVELOPMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
22774 CITATION ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS 60423

AutoCAD SHX Text
(815) 464-7090

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINAL ENGINEERING PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOTS 10, 11 & 21

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEY & GRAEFEN INDUSTRIAL PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-0005

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS NOTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
04-23-2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEI

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADE "A" CONCRETE TO UNDISTURBED EARTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" CONCRETE COLLAR OR 8" BRICK COLLAR WITH 1/2" THICK MORTAR PLASTER COAT (12" MIN. OVERLAP FROM OPENING).

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE DRILL AT 3" CENTERS - CAULK BETWEEN SEWER & MANHOLE WITH APPROVED NON-SHRINK MORTAR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: : 1. EXCAVATION SHALL EXTEND AROUND ENTIRE PERIMETER EXCAVATION SHALL EXTEND AROUND ENTIRE PERIMETER OF MANHOLE SO THAT THE DIFFERENTIAL OF EXCAVATION ON OPPOSITE SIDES DOES NOT EXCEED 6 FEET.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRIM CONNECTION FLUSH WITH INSIDE FACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHEN THIS HEIGHT EXCEEDS 24" INSTALL DROP CONNECTION. SEE STD. SHEET WCD-8

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPROILE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING EDGE OF PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8" MIN. WALL THICKNESS STEEL CASING WITH WELDED JOINTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL STAINLESS STEEL BANDED RUBBER CASING SEAL BOTH ENDS CASCADE WATERWORKS MFG OR EQUIVALENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPACER INTERVAL NOT MORE THAN 2' FROM EACH END OF CASING AND AT NO MORE THAN 10' INTERVALS OR PER MANUFACTURER SPECIFICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENDING PIT (PROVIDE SHORING AS REQUIRED) BACK FILL PIT WITH GRANULAR BACK FILL IN ACCORDANCE WITH COA SPECIFICATIONS. (TYP. BOTH ENDS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SENDING PIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 16" STEEL CASING

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECEIVING PIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING UTILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECEIVING PIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAINLESS STEEL CASING SPACER TO BE CASCADE WATERWORKS MFG OR EQUIVALENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USECTION A-A

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
POURED CONC. BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISHED GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" DIA. STEEL PIPE FILLED WITH CONC. PAINT PER CITY OF NAPERVILLE SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROUNDED CONC. CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUXILIARY VALVE & BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOLLARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACK OF CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UEND VIEWS

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UINSTALLATION PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8" TOOLED EDGE (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 - #3

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUT HOLE FULL

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOLE FOR  " STD. PIPE 12" STD. PIPE OR  " DIAM. REINF. ROD 34" DIAM. REINF. ROD (OPTIONAL 1"x 3" HOLE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" STD. PIPE OR  " REINF. ROD 34" REINF. ROD SHALL BE PLACED PRIOR TO SURFACING OR IN A HOLE DRILLED IN THE FINISHED SURFACE WITH A TIGHT FIT OBTAINED BY AN APPROVED METHOD, OR DRIVEN INTO THE SURFACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE OPENING

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE OF PARKING STALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHEEL STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINTED STRIPES IF SHOWN ON THE DRAWINGS OR REQUIRED BY THE SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'-6" TO EDGE OF PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: : 1. 3/4" PREFORMED BITUMINOUS EXPANSION JOINT 3/4" PREFORMED BITUMINOUS EXPANSION JOINT MATERIAL WITH TWO(2) NUMBER 6 SMOOTH DOWEL BARS (3/4" DIA. X 18") WITH GREASE CAPS SHALL BE PLACED EVERY 150 FEET, 10 FEET EITHER SIDE OF DRAINAGE STRUCTURES, P.C.'S, RADIUS POINTS AND BACK OF CUL-DE-SACS. WHEN EXPANSION JOINTS ARE CONSTRUCTED ADJACENT TO EXISTING CURB AND GUTTER THE EXISTING CURB SHALL BE DRILLED WITH TWO (2) NUMBER 6 SMOOTH DOWEL BARS (3/4" DIA. X 18") GROUTED IN PLACE. GREASE CAPS SHALL BE PLACED ON THE SIDE OF THE NEW CURB AND GUTTER. 2. TOOLED CONTROL JOINTS OR SAWCUTS SHALL BE MADE TOOLED CONTROL JOINTS OR SAWCUTS SHALL BE MADE EVERY 15 FEET. 3. SAWCUTS SHALL BE MADE WITHIN TWENTY-FOUR(24) SAWCUTS SHALL BE MADE WITHIN TWENTY-FOUR(24) HOURS AND SEALED WITH A CITY APPROVED JOINT SEALANT. JOINTS SHALL BE CLEAN AND DRY PRIOR TO APPLICATION OF SEALANT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" PITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"R

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"R

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAINTAIN BITUMINOUS SURFACE 1/4" ABOVE GUTTER FLAG

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESERVE PITCH GUTTER WHERE NOTED ON PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED AGGREGATE SUB-BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-#6 DOWEL BARS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEPRESSED CURB WHERE SHOWN ON PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: : 1. 3/4" PREFORMED EXPANSION STRIPS WITH TWO (2) NUMBER 6 3/4" PREFORMED EXPANSION STRIPS WITH TWO (2) NUMBER 6 SMOOTH DOWEL BARS WITH GREASE CAPS SHALL BE PLACED EVERY 150 FEET, AT PC's AND PT's RADIUS POINTS AND BACK OF CUL-DE-SACS. WHEN EXPANSION JOINTS ARE CONSTRUCTED ADJACENT TO EXISTING CURB, THE EXISTING CURB SHALL BE DRILLED WITH TWO (2) NUMBER 6 SMOOTH DOWEL BARS (3/4" DIA. X 18") GROUTED IN PLACE. GREASE CAPS SHALL BE PLACED ON THE SIDE OF THE NEW CURB. 2. TOOLED CONTROL JOINTS OR SAWCUTS SHALL BE MADE EVERY TOOLED CONTROL JOINTS OR SAWCUTS SHALL BE MADE EVERY 15 FEET. 3. SAWCUTS SHALL BE MADE WITHIN TWENTY-FOUR (24) HOURS SAWCUTS SHALL BE MADE WITHIN TWENTY-FOUR (24) HOURS AND SEALED WITH AN APPROVED JOINT SEALANT. JOINTS SHALL BE CLEAN AND DRY PRIOR TO APPLICATION OF SEALANT.  4. CONCRETE BARRIER CURB TO BE CONSTRUCTED EXCEPT WHERE     NOTED OTHERWISE ON PLANS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED ON GRADING PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES 1. 3-1/2" REINFORCING BARS (10' LONG) SHALL BE PLACED, 3-1/2" REINFORCING BARS (10' LONG) SHALL BE PLACED, EQUALLY SPACED & CENTERED OVER ALL TRENCH CROSSINGS. 2. 3/4" EXPANSION JOINTS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED AT A 3/4" EXPANSION JOINTS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED AT A MAXIMUM SPACING OF 45' & AT SIDEWALK INTERSECTIONS & AGAINST DRIVEWAYS, CURB & GUTTERS & BUILDINGS. 3. CONTROL JOINTS SHALL BE THE SAME AS THE SIDEWALK CONTROL JOINTS SHALL BE THE SAME AS THE SIDEWALK WIDTH & 1/4" IN DEPTH. 4. MINIMUM SIDEWALK THICKNESS ACCROSS DRIVEWAYS IS 6". MINIMUM SIDEWALK THICKNESS ACCROSS DRIVEWAYS IS 6". 5. SIDEWALK SHAL BE CONSTRUCTED WITH A MAXIMUM 2% SIDEWALK SHAL BE CONSTRUCTED WITH A MAXIMUM 2% CROSS SLOPE. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED SUB-BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" COMPACTED AGGREGATE BASE, CA-6.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5" PCC SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.0% (MAX.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETECTABLE WARNING PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLOR TO BE BRICK RED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. 1.5" HOT MIX ASPHALT SURFACE COURSE, MIX C, N50 1.5" HOT MIX ASPHALT SURFACE COURSE, MIX C, N50 2. BITUMINOUS MATERIALS, TACK COAT BITUMINOUS MATERIALS, TACK COAT 3. 2.25" HOT MIX ASPHALT BINDER COURSE, IL-19.0, N50 2.25" HOT MIX ASPHALT BINDER COURSE, IL-19.0, N50 4. 8" AGGREGATE BASE COURSE, TYPE B, CA-6 OR 8" AGGREGATE BASE COURSE, TYPE B, CA-6 OR RECLAIMED ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. 6"  PCC WITH WELDED WIRE MESH 6"  PCC WITH WELDED WIRE MESH 2. 4"  AGGREGATE BASE COURSE, CA-6 4"  AGGREGATE BASE COURSE, CA-6 3. WELL DRAINED SUB-GRADE (SUB-GRADE TO WELL DRAINED SUB-GRADE (SUB-GRADE TO MODIFIED 95 PROCTOR MIN. COMPACTION) NOTE: WIRE MESH REINFORCEMENT & TOOLED  WIRE MESH REINFORCEMENT & TOOLED CONTROL JOINTS TO BE EVENLY SPACED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
05-21-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
06-08-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE REVEIW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
06-15-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE REVEIW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
10-06-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 11 IMPROVEMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
12-01-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
DMV



cgruba
Received



LOT 19

C
IT

A
TI

O
N

   
R

O
A

D

C
H

A
LL

EN
G

ER
  R

O
A

D

FIP 3/4"
0.22' N.

FIP 3/4"
AT CORNER

RESET BENT 3/4" PIPE
WITH 1" PIPE AT CORNER

FD. IRON
0.22' E.

FIR 1/2"
3.25' W. & 0.23' N.

FIP 3/4"
AT CORNER

FIP 3/4"
0.25' E.

FIP 3/4" AT
CORNER

SIP 1"

SIP 1"

FEY & GRAEFEN INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE 2

LOT 22

LOT 20

LOT 9

LOT 12

LOT 21 LOT 10

LOT 11

L    O    T        1

FEY & GRAEFEN INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE 1

FEY & GRAEFEN INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE 1

SIP 1"

SIP 1"

PARCEL IDENTIFICATION
NUMBERBASIS OF BEARING

SITE DATA

FOR
FINAL PLAT

MILLINEUM-KYLE HOLDINGS

ABBREVIATIONSLEGEND

RESERVED FOR THE RECORDER OF WILL COUNTY

9
9

3
0

 W
. 

1
9

0
t

h
 S

t
r

e
e

t
, 

S
u

it
e

 L

M
o

k
e

n
a

, 
Il

l
in

o
is

 6
0

4
4

8

(
7

0
8

)
 3

2
6

 -
- 
4

9
6

1

F
a

x
: 

(
7

0
8

)
 3

2
6

-4
6

9
2

IL
 P

r
o

f
. 

L
ic

. 
N

o
.:

 1
8

4
 -
- 
0

0
3

7
4

0

D
e

s
ig

n
T

e
k

 E
n

g
in

e
e

r
in

g
, I

n
c

.

DEI

&
o

n
s

u
l

t
in

J
, 

&
iY

il
 (

n
J

in
e

e
r

in
J

 	
 L

a
n

G
 S

u
r

Y
e

\
in

J

PROJECT
LOCATION

ADDRESSES

AutoCAD SHX Text
(80' RIGHT-OF-WAY HERETOFORE DEDICATED PER DOC. R2007054973)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCM

AutoCAD SHX Text
73' WIDE SURFACE OVERLAND FLOW EASEMENT HEREBY GRANTED TO THE VILLAGE OF FRANKFORT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(80' RIGHT-OF-WAY HERETOFORE DEDICATED PER DOC. R2007054973)

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' P.U. & D.E. Doc. No. R2007139369

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' P.U. & D.E. Doc. No. R2007099129

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' P.U. & D.E. (Doc. No. R2007054973)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(DOC. NO. R2008026631)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(DOC. NO. R2007054973)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(DOC. NO. R2007054973)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' P.U. & D.E. (Doc. No. R2008026631)

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E. (Doc. No. R2007054973)

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E. (Doc. No. R2007054973)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' P.U. & D.E. (Doc. No. R2007054973)

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E. (Doc. No. R2007054973)

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E. (Doc. No. R2007054973)

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E. (Doc. No. R2007054973)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' P.U. & D.E. (Doc. No. R2007054973)

AutoCAD SHX Text
289.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
289.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
289.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
289.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
150.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
150.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
150.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
150.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
289.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
150.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' P.U. & D.E. Doc. No. R2007139369

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' P.U. & D.E. Doc. No. R2007139369

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' P.U. & D.E. Doc. No. R2007099129

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.5' WIDE SURFACE OVERLAND FLOW EASEMENT HEREBY GRANTED TO THE VILLAGE OF FRANKFORT

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5' P.U. & D.E. (Doc. No. R2007054973)

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch = 30 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL AREA: 87,140 SQUARE FEET        OR 3.00 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 10: 19-09-34-403-005-0000 LOT 11: 19-09-34-403-006-0000 LOT 21: 19-09-34-403-002-0000

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER THE RECORDED PLAT OF FEY & GRAEFEN INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
L:\Projects\2021\21-0005\Survey\dwg\Subdivision\Final Plat\21-0005 FP.dwg Plot Date:11/9/2021 1:07:43 PM By:steve Plot Date:11/9/2021 1:07:43 PM By:steve11/9/2021 1:07:43 PM By:steve By:stevesteve

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 10 AREA:  43,570 SQUARE FEET 43,570 SQUARE FEET LOT 11 AREA: 43,570 SQUARE FEET 43,570 SQUARE FEET LOT 21 AREA:  43,570 SQUARE FEET 43,570 SQUARE FEET TOTAL AREA:  130,710 SQUARE FEET130,710 SQUARE FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEING A RE-SUBDIVISION OF LOTS 10, 11 AND 21 IN FEY & GRAEFEN INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE 1, A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE WEST 1/2 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN WILL COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE MONUMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND IRON PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND IRON ROD OR PIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECORD DIMENSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEASURED DIMENSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(###.##')

AutoCAD SHX Text
###.##

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET MAG. NAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET 5/8" x 24" IRON PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND IRON PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING EASEMENT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOUNDARY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED EASEMENT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SQUARE FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SQ. FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARC DIMENSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIUS DIMENSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCM

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project No.: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Field Date: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn By: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked By: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAEFEN DEVELOPMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
22774 CITATION ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, IL 60423

AutoCAD SHX Text
815-464-7090

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINAL PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOTS 10 & 21 FEY & GRAEFEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-0005

AutoCAD SHX Text
 1" = 30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
04/06/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
03/02/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
SJL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINAL PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 10:  22790 S. CITATION ROAD 22790 S. CITATION ROAD LOT 11:  22812 S. CITATION ROAD  22812 S. CITATION ROAD  LOT 21:  22791 S. CHALLENGER ROAD 22791 S. CHALLENGER ROAD FRANKFORT, IL 60423 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.  05/21/2021     ADDED OVERLAND FLOW ROUTE EASEMENT     SJL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.  07/13/2021           PER VILLAGE COMMENTS              SJL

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.  11/09/2021               ADDED LOT 11                   SJL

cgruba
Received



FOR
FINAL PLAT

MILLINEUM-KYLE HOLDINGS

RESERVED FOR THE RECORDER OF WILL COUNTY

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

OWNER'S CERTIFICATE

NOTARY PUBLIC CERTIFICATE (OWNER'S AND SCHOOL DISTRICT)

PLAN COMMISSION CERTIFICATE

VILLAGE PRESIDENT'S  CERTIFICATE

SURFACE WATER STATEMENT

NI-COR EASEMENT PROVISIONS
“ ” 

“ ” 

Return the original Mylar to:

DesignTek Engineering, Inc.
9930 W. 190th Street, Ste. L

Mokena, Illinois 60448

Send all future tax bills to:

Fey & Graefen, LLC
10061 W. Lincoln Hwy.

Frankfort, Il 60423

CERTIFICATE AS TO SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS

WILL COUNTY CLERK

TAX MAPPING CERTIFICATE

RECORDER'S CERTIFICATE

Submitted by:

____________________

____________________

____________________

PUBLIC UTILITY AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT PROVISIONS

 EASEMENT PROVISIONS

³ ´ ³ ´ ³ ´
³ ´ ³ ´

³ ´

¶
³ ´ ³ ´ ³ ´ ³ ´

³ ´ ³ ´

³ ´

³ ´ ³ ´ ³ ´ ³ ´ ³ ´ ³ ´ ³ ´ ³ ´ ³
´

9
9

3
0

 W
. 

1
9

0
t

h
 S

t
r

e
e

t
, 

S
u

it
e

 L

M
o

k
e

n
a

, 
Il

l
in

o
is

 6
0

4
4

8

(
7

0
8

)
 3

2
6

 -
- 
4

9
6

1

F
a

x
: 

(
7

0
8

)
 3

2
6

-4
6

9
2

IL
 P

r
o

f
. 

L
ic

. 
N

o
.:

 1
8

4
 -
- 
0

0
3

7
4

0

D
e

s
ig

n
T

e
k

 E
n

g
in

e
e

r
in

g
, I

n
c

.

DEI

&
o

n
s

u
l

t
in

J
, 

&
iY

il
 (

n
J

in
e

e
r

in
J

 	
 L

a
n

G
 S

u
r

Y
e

\
in

J

SURFACE OVERLAND FLOW EASEMENT PROVISIONS

VILLAGE CLERK

PARCEL IDENTIFICATION
NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
L:\Projects\2021\21-0005\Survey\dwg\Subdivision\Final Plat\21-0005 FP.dwg Plot Date:11/9/2021 1:07:44 PM By:steve Plot Date:11/9/2021 1:07:44 PM By:steve11/9/2021 1:07:44 PM By:steve By:stevesteve

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEING A RE-SUBDIVISION OF LOTS 10, 11 AND 21 IN FEY & GRAEFEN INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE 1, A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE WEST 1/2 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN WILL COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
State of Illinois )   )       ) SS  ) SS  County of Will )   )   This is to certify that I, Steven J. Laub, an Illinois Professional Land Surveyor, No. 035-003160, have surveyed and re-subdivided the following described property: Lots 10, 11 and 21 in Fey & Graefen Industrial Park Phase 1, being a Subdivision of part of the West 1/2 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 34, Township 35 North, Range 12 East of the Third Principal Meridian, according to the plat thereof recorded April 10, 2007 as Document No. R2007054973, in Will County, Illinois. as shown by the annexed plat which is a correct representation of said survey and subdivision.   I further certify that this re-subdivision lies within the Village limits or within 1.5 miles of the corporate limits of the Village of Frankfort, Illinois, which has adopted a municipal plan and is exercising special powers authorized by Article 11, Division 12 of the Illinois municipal code, as now and hereafter amended and that all regulations enacted by the Village of Frankfort relative to plats and subdivisions have been complied with in the preparation of this plat.  I further certify that iron pipes 1" (o.d.) x 24" will be set at all lot corners except where concrete monuments are indicated upon the completion of the final grading, and that the plat hereon drawn correctly represents said survey and subdivision.   I further certify that the subject property lies within Zone "X" (unshaded area being outside the 500-year floodplain) as defined by the Federal Emergency Management Agency's (FEMA) Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) of Will County and incorporated areas, Map Number 17197C0327G, Effective Date of February 15, 2019. Dimensions are given in feet and decimal parts thereof and all curve lengths shown are arc dimensions. Given under my hand and seal at Mokena, Illinois, this ____ day of _________ A.D., 2021 __________________________________ Steven J. Laub  Illinois Professional Land Surveyor No. #035-003160  License expires on November. 30, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEVEN J LAUB STATE OF ILLINOIS 035-003160

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
State of Illinois)              ) SS County of Will ) ) This is to certify that Fey and Graefen, LLC, and Illinois Limited Liability Company, dow hereby certify that is is the holder of record title to the property described in the Surveyor's Certificate and that as such title holder it has caused this plat of subdivision to be prepared of said property for uses and purposes therein set forth. Per Public Act #286-765 ILCS 205/1, Fey and Graefen, LLC an Illinois Limited Liability Company, does also certify that as owner of the property hereon described in the Surveyor's Certificate and shall be known as Millineum - Kyle Holdings, and that the same above described property is located in Elementary Grade School District No. 157C , Lincoln-Way High School District No. 210 and Joliet Junior Community College District 525. Dated at ________________________ this ________ day of ______________, A.D. 20___. Fey and Graefen, LLC Address: __________________________________________         ___________________________________________         ____________________________________________ By: _______________________________________________ _______________________________________________ Attest: ___________________________________________ ___________________________________________ State of Illinois )   )       ) SS  ) SS  County of Will )   )   I, _____________________________, a Notary Public in and for the said county and state aforesaid, do hereby certify that (Name) _________________________, (Title)____________________  and (Name) _________________________, (Title) ________________________ of Fey and Graefen, LLC both personally known to me to be the same persons whose names are subscribed to the foregoing instrument, appeared before me this day in person and acknowledged that he (she) (they) signed and delivered the said instruments as his (her) (their) own free and voluntary act of said Fey and Graefen, LLC for the uses and purposes therein set forth.  Given under my hand and notorial seal this _____ day of _______________, A.D., 20____. ________________________________ Notary Public  State of Illinois ) ) ) SS County of Will ) ) I,_____________________________________, Chairman of the Village of Frankfort Plan Commission, do certify that on this ____ of ________________ A.D. 20____, this plat of re-subdivision was duly approved by the Plan Commission of the Village of Frankfort. _____________________________ Chairman State of Illinois) ) SS County of Will ) ) I, _____________________________, President of the Village of Frankfort, IL certify that this plat of subdivision was approved by the Board of Trustees of the Village of Frankfort, IL at a meeting held on the _____ day of __________________, A.D.,  20____. By: ____________________________________________ Village President

AutoCAD SHX Text
To the best of our knowledge and belief, the drainage of surface waters will not be changed by the construction of this subdivision or any part thereof, or, if such surface water drainage will be changed, reasonable provision has been made for collection and diversion of such surface waters into public areas, or drains which the owner has a right to use, and that such surface waters will be planned for in accordance with generally accepted engineering practices so as to reduce the likelihood of damage to the adjoining property because of the construction of this subdivision. ______________________    _______________________ _______________________ Owner         Professional Engineer Professional Engineer ______________________    _______________________ _______________________ Name         NameName

AutoCAD SHX Text
                NI-COR EASEMENT PROVISIONS        NI-COR EASEMENT PROVISIONS An easement is hereby reserved for and granted to NICOR GAS COMPANY OF ILLINOIS, its successors and assigns, in all platted “Easement” areas, streets, alleys, other Easement” areas, streets, alleys, other areas, streets, alleys, other public ways and places shown on this plat, said easement to be for the installation, maintenance, relocation, renewal and removal of gas mains and appurtenances for the purpose of serving all areas shown on this plat as well as other property, whether or not contiguous thereto.  No buildings or other structures shall be constructed or erected in any such “easement” areas, streets, alleys, or other public ways or places nor shall any other use be made thereof which will interfere with easement” areas, streets, alleys, or other public ways or places nor shall any other use be made thereof which will interfere with areas, streets, alleys, or other public ways or places nor shall any other use be made thereof which will interfere with the easements reserved and granted hereby.   

AutoCAD SHX Text
6th

AutoCAD SHX Text
State of Illinois ) ) ) SS County of Will ) ) I, ____________________________________, Village Treasurer of the Village of Frankfort, IL do hereby certify that there are no delinquent or unpaid current or forfeited special assessments or any deferred installments thereof that have been apportioned against the tract of land included in the plat. Dated at Village of Frankfort, Will County, Illinois, this _______day of _______________, 20____. _________________________ Village Treasurer State of Illinois)       ) SS  ) SS  County of Will )   )   This is to certify that I find no delinquent or unpaid current taxes against any of the real estate described in the foregoing certificate.  Dated at Frankfort, Will County, Illinois, this ____ day of ____________, A.D., 20____.  ________________________ Will County Clerk State of Illinois ) ) ) SS County of Will  ) ) I, ______________________________________, do hereby certify that I have checked the legal description of the final plat and find that said plat to be a true and correct representation of the re-subdivision as made by the surveyor.  The property hereon described is located on Tax Map _____________ and identified as permanent real estate tax number(s) 19-09-31-202-030-0000 Dated this ____, day of __________________, A.D. 20___. _______________________________________ Director

AutoCAD SHX Text
State of Illinois ) ) ) SS County of Will  ) ) This instrument, No. _________________________, was filed for record in the Recorder's Office of Will County,  Illinois on the ____ day of ______________________, A.D. 20____ at ________o'clock ___.m and was recorded in Book ____ of Plats on Page _____. __________________________________ Will County Recorder

AutoCAD SHX Text
April

AutoCAD SHX Text
This professional service conforms to the current Illinois minimum standards for a boundary survey.

AutoCAD SHX Text
    PUBLIC UTILITY AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT PROVISIONS Easements are hereby reserved for and granted to the Village of Frankfort, Illinois and to those public utility companies operating under franchise from the Village of Frankfort, including, but not limited to, Comed, Ameritech, NiCor, Comcast and their respective successors and assigns, over all of the areas marked "Public Utilities & Drainage Easements" or (P.U. & D.E.) on the plat for the perpetual right, privilege and authority to construct, reconstruct, repair, inspect, maintain and operate various utility transmission and distribution systems, community antenna television systems and including storm and/or sanitary sewers, together with any and all necessary manholes, catch basins, connections, appliances and other structures and appurtenances as may be deemed necessary by said village, over, upon, along, under and through said indicated easements, together with right of access across the property for necessary personnel and equipment to do any of the above work. The right is also granted to cut down, trim or remove any trees, shrubs or other plants on the easements that interfere with the operation of the sewers or other utilities.  No permanent buildings or obstructions shall be placed on said easements without prior written consent of grantees, but same may be used for gardens, shrubs, landscaping and other purposes that do not then or later interfere with the aforesaid uses or rights. after installations of such facilities, the grade of said easement shall shall not be altered in a manner as to interfere with the proper operation and maintenance thereof. Where an easement is used both for sewers and other utilities, the other utility installation shall be subject to the ordinances of the Village of Frankfort. Easements are hereby reserved for and granted to the Village of Frankfort and other governmental authorities having jurisdiction of the land subdivided hereby, over the entire easement area for ingress, egress and the performance of municipal and other governmental services, including water, storm and sanitary sewer service and maintenance.

AutoCAD SHX Text
 An easement for serving the subdivision and other property with electric and communication service is hereby reserved for and granted to    Commonwealth Edison Company     and   and SBC - Ameritech Illinois a.k.a. Illinois Bell Telephone Company, Grantees, their respective licensees, successors, and assigns, jointly and severally, to construct, operate, repair, maintain, modify, reconstruct, replace, supplement, relocate and remove, from time to time, poles, guys, anchors, wires, cables, conduits, manholes, transformers, pedestals, equipment cabinets or other facilities used in connection with overhead and underground transmission and distribution of electricity, communications, sounds and signals in, over, under, across, along and upon the surface of the property shown within the dashed or dotted lines (or similar designation) on the plat and marked “Easement”, “Utility Easement”, “Public Utility Easement”, Easement”, “Utility Easement”, “Public Utility Easement”, , “Utility Easement”, “Public Utility Easement”, Utility Easement”, “Public Utility Easement”, , “Public Utility Easement”, Public Utility Easement”, , P.U.E” (or similar designation), the property designated in the Declaration of Condominium and/or on this plat as “Common Elements”, and the property designated  (or similar designation), the property designated in the Declaration of Condominium and/or on this plat as “Common Elements”, and the property designated Common Elements”, and the property designated , and the property designated on the plat as “common area or areas”, and the property designated on the plat for streets and alleys, whether public or private, together with the rights to install common area or areas”, and the property designated on the plat for streets and alleys, whether public or private, together with the rights to install , and the property designated on the plat for streets and alleys, whether public or private, together with the rights to install required service connections over or under the surface of each lot and common area or areas to serve improvements thereon, or on adjacent lots, and common area or areas, the right to cut, trim or remove trees, bushes, roots and saplings and to clear obstructions from the surface and subsurface as may be reasonably required incident to the rights herein given, and the right to enter upon the subdivided property for all such purposes. Obstructions shall not be placed over Grantees’ facilities  facilities or in, upon or over the property within the dashed or dotted lines (or similar designation) marked “Easement”, “Utility Easement”, “Public Utility Easement”, “P.U.E” Easement”, “Utility Easement”, “Public Utility Easement”, “P.U.E” , “Utility Easement”, “Public Utility Easement”, “P.U.E” Utility Easement”, “Public Utility Easement”, “P.U.E” , “Public Utility Easement”, “P.U.E” Public Utility Easement”, “P.U.E” , “P.U.E” P.U.E” (or similar designation) without the prior written consent of Grantees.  After installation of any such facilities, the grade of the subdivided property shall not be altered in a manner so as to interfere with the proper operation and maintenance thereof. The term “Common Elements” shall have the meaning set forth for such term in the “Condominium Property Act”, Chapter 765 ILCS 605/2, as amended from time Common Elements” shall have the meaning set forth for such term in the “Condominium Property Act”, Chapter 765 ILCS 605/2, as amended from time  shall have the meaning set forth for such term in the “Condominium Property Act”, Chapter 765 ILCS 605/2, as amended from time Condominium Property Act”, Chapter 765 ILCS 605/2, as amended from time , Chapter 765 ILCS 605/2, as amended from time to time. The term “common area or areas” is defined as a lot, parcel or area of real property, the beneficial use and enjoyment of which is reserved in whole or as an common area or areas” is defined as a lot, parcel or area of real property, the beneficial use and enjoyment of which is reserved in whole or as an  is defined as a lot, parcel or area of real property, the beneficial use and enjoyment of which is reserved in whole or as an appurtenance to the separately owned lots, parcels or areas within the planned development, even though such be otherwise designated on the plat by terms such as outlots”, “common elements”, “open space”, “open area”, “common ground”, “parking” and “common area”.  The term “common area or areas”, and “Common , “common elements”, “open space”, “open area”, “common ground”, “parking” and “common area”.  The term “common area or areas”, and “Common common elements”, “open space”, “open area”, “common ground”, “parking” and “common area”.  The term “common area or areas”, and “Common , “open space”, “open area”, “common ground”, “parking” and “common area”.  The term “common area or areas”, and “Common open space”, “open area”, “common ground”, “parking” and “common area”.  The term “common area or areas”, and “Common , “open area”, “common ground”, “parking” and “common area”.  The term “common area or areas”, and “Common open area”, “common ground”, “parking” and “common area”.  The term “common area or areas”, and “Common , “common ground”, “parking” and “common area”.  The term “common area or areas”, and “Common common ground”, “parking” and “common area”.  The term “common area or areas”, and “Common , “parking” and “common area”.  The term “common area or areas”, and “Common parking” and “common area”.  The term “common area or areas”, and “Common  and “common area”.  The term “common area or areas”, and “Common common area”.  The term “common area or areas”, and “Common .  The term “common area or areas”, and “Common common area or areas”, and “Common , and “Common Common Elements” include real property surfaced with interior driveways and walkways, but excludes real property physically occupied by a building, Service Business District or  include real property surfaced with interior driveways and walkways, but excludes real property physically occupied by a building, Service Business District or structures such as a pool, retention pond or mechanical equipment. Relocation of facilities will be done by Grantees at cost of the Grantor/Lot Owner, upon written request.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project No.: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Field Date: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn By: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked By: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAEFEN DEVELOPMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
22774 CITATION ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, IL 60423

AutoCAD SHX Text
815-464-7090

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINAL PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOTS 10 & 21 FEY & GRAEFEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-0005

AutoCAD SHX Text
 1" = 30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
04/06/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
03/02/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
SJL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINAL PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.  05/21/2021            NONE THIS SHEET                   SJL

AutoCAD SHX Text
     SURFACE OVERLAND FLOW EASEMENT PROVISIONS All easements indicated as "SURFACE OVERLAND FLOW EASEMENT" on this plat are reserved for and granted to the Village of Frankfort. No buildings, other structures or landscaping shall be erected or maintained in the SURFACE OVERLAND FLOW EASEMENT areas that would adversely affect the free flow of storm water. Each owner or subsequent purchaser shall be equally responsible for maintaining the SURFACE OVERLAND FLOW EASEMENT areas and shall not destroy or modify grades or slopes without having first received prior written approval of the Village of Frankfort. In the event any owner or subsequent purchaser fails to properly maintain the SURFACE OVERLAND FLOW EASEMENT areas, the Village of Frankfort or any other unit of local government having jurisdiction over drainage, shall have the right to perform, or have performed on its behalf, any maintenance work to or upon the SURFACE OVERLAND FLOW EASEMENT area reasonably necessary to insure proper flow of storm water and charge the owner or subsequent purchaser for the maintenance work performed.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.  07/13/2021        PER VILLAGE COMMENTS                 SJL

AutoCAD SHX Text
State of Illinois)       ) SS  ) SS  County of Will )   )   i, ____________________, Village Clerk of the Village of Frankfort, Illinois, hereby certify that this plat was presented to and by resolution duly approved by the Board of Trustees of said Village at its meeting held on _______________, A.D., 20____, and the required bond or other guarantee has been posted for the completion of the improvements required by the regulations of said Village.  In witness whereof I have hereto set my hand and seal of the Village of Frankfort, Illinois, this ____ day of ____________, A.D., 20____.  ________________________ Village Clerk

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 10: 19-09-34-403-005-0000 LOT 11: 19-09-34-403-006-0000 LOT 21: 19-09-34-403-002-0000

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.  11/09/2021               ADDED LOT 11                   SJL



REC 3.10.21



FORMERLY APPROVED ON 5.3.21
TO BE APPROVED AGAIN

cgruba
Received



By Christopher Gruba at 8:43 am, Mar 15, 2021

FORMERLY APPROVED ON 5.3.21
TO BE APPROVED AGAIN



FORMERLY APPROVED ON 5.3.21

cgruba
Received



FORMERLY APPROVED ON 5.3.21
TO BE APPROVED AGAIN

cgruba
Received



From: Jeff Graefen
To: Chris Gruba
Subject: RE: 22791 Challenger - Millennium
Date: Tuesday, December 28, 2021 5:48:24 PM

Chris-
Pursuant our conversion relating to the accent bands today. we did order an accent color that was a
shade lighter than the main block color, when the block was delivered the block looked very close in
color and we notified the manufacturer prior to installing. The manufacturer rep (Crown Block) came
out for an inspection and stated the block was still “wet” and will lighten in color when the block
dries. That said we installed the block based on the manufacturers commitment. When the block did
not change in color we notified the manufacturer once again for a site visit. As a result of the visit
was not what we had hoped as the actual block did not match to the block samples and the
manufacturer is not standing by their product. Our decision is to stain the bands at our own cost and
will commence that when the weather is more accommodating when the temperature is a little
warmer and we have some dry weather.
 
Jeff Graefen
Graefen Development
22774 Citation Rd.
Frankfort, IL. 60423
Phone 815-464-7090
Fax 815-464-2498
Cell 815-405-9787
www.graefendevelopment.com
The information in this electronic mail message is the sender's business confidential and may be legally privileged. It is intended solely for
the addressee(s). Access to this internet electronic mail message by anyone else is unauthorized. If you are not the intended recipient,
any disclosure, copying, distribution or any action taken or omitted to be taken in reliance on it is prohibited and may be unlawful. 
 

From: Chris Gruba <cgruba@frankfortil.org> 
Sent: Monday, December 27, 2021 12:01 PM
To: Jeff Graefen <jeff@graefendevelopment.com>
Cc: Dana West <dwest@reltd.com>; Terry Kestel <TKestel@frankfortil.org>
Subject: RE: 22791 Challenger - Millennium
 
Hi, Jeff –
 
I’ve copied Dana and Terry on this email.  After discussing with Terry, I know that the Village would
not maintain the P.U. & D.E or the overland flow easement on this property.  I’ve attached the
recently approved final plat for Homestead Commercial as an example of a property with multiple
easements.
 
Dana, do you know how the wording goes for dedication of drainage easements?  Per the
Homestead plat, I thought it just says, “P.U. & D.E” and hatches the area with dimensions noted. 
The final plat is then recorded with the County Recorders Office and they assign a document
number.  For Homestead, R97-020276 was recorded in 1997 for the landscape, public utility and
drainage easement along the south border of the site.
 
Thanks
 

mailto:jeff@graefendevelopment.com
mailto:cgruba@frankfortil.org
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/5lEqCERBLlu03VEiwSUyV?domain=graefendevelopment.com/


  1 

                                          

Planning Commission / ZBA       January 13, 2022 

 
 
Project: Chelsea Intermediate – Building addition and site improvements     
Meeting Type:  Public Hearing 
Requests: Special Use (building addition), Variation (cyclone fencing), Final Plat of Subdivision (combine 

2 parcels) 
Location:   22265 S. 80th Ave  
Applicant:  Lindsay Taylor, Cotter Consulting 
Prop. Owner: Frankfort CC Schools (Kate Ambrosini, Director of Business & Operational Services)  
Representative: Applicant  
 

Site Details 
 

Lot Size: 18.27 ac. & 4.94 ac. (23.21 ac. total)                                       Figure 1. Location Map 
PIN(s): 19-09-25-300-005-0000, 19-09-25-300-007-0000 
Existing Zoning:  E-R, Estate Residential 
Buildings/Lots: 1 building  
Existing (used): 94,923 square feet  
Existing (closed):  30,766 square feet 
Proposed addition:  49,631 square feet 
Total building area:  175,320 square feet 
 
Adjacent Land Use Summary:  
 

 Land Use Comp. Plan Zoning 

Subject Property School Public 
Institutional 

E-R 

North Single-family 
Residential 

Single-family 
Detached Res. 

E-R 

South  Single-family 
Detached Res. 

Environmental 
Conservation 

R-2 

East (County) Church/Forest 
Preserve 

Environmental 
Conservation 

E-R 

West Park Parks E-R 

 
Project Summary  
 

The applicant is proposing an approximately 49,631 square foot building addition to Chelsea Intermediate School, 
added to the south side of the building and being two floors in height.  An older section of the north end of the 
building (also containing two floors) is intended to be closed off; the future plan for this area is undecided.  Schools 
are a permitted within the E-R zone district as a special use and the building addition will require a special use 
permit to expand the building.  In 2007, the school added an addition to the east side of the building, 128 new 
parking spaces and a detention pond at the northwest corner of the property, which also required a special use 
permit at the time.  As part of the proposed work, the existing running track will be shortened to make room for 
the building addition.  The applicant is proposing to remove and replace the existing chain-link fencing around the 
track, although not in the exact same area.  Chain-link (cyclone) fencing is not permitted in any residential zone 
district and would require a variation.  To accommodate all the proposed site improvements, the school has 
purchased the parcel to the south to be used mainly as a stormwater detention pond.  The use of the south parcel 
as part of the school property will require that the parcels be combined, requiring review and approval of a Final 
Plat of Subdivision.  The proposed Final Plat of Subdivision for Chelsea Intermediate School includes new 



  2 

easements, including a stormwater detention easement.  These requests were heard before the Plan Commission 
as a workshop on November 18, 2021.  
 

Attachments 
• Overall aerial map of the two school parcels and surrounding environs 
• Roof Plan (mechanical unit screening), received 8.5.21 
• Rooftop screening materials detail sheet, received January 5, 2022 
• Roof Screen Study (renderings illustrating view of rooftop units from various positions), received 8.5.21  
• Photographs of the site (2021) 
• Excerpt of Plan Commission minutes from November 18, 2021 
• Final Plat, illustrating the lot combination and easements, received December 22, 2021 
• Site Plan and Floor Plan, received on 3.15.21 
• Landscape Plan, received December 16, 2021 
• Plan submittal, received on 9.9.21  

o Survey 
o Site Plan 
o Demolition Plan 
o Overall Paving Plan 
o Grading Plan 
o Utility Plan 
o Tree Inventory Plan 
o Architectural Site Plans 
o Floorplans (1st floor, 2nd floor & roof plan) 
o Building Elevations 
o Axonometric (3-D) view of the school with the proposed addition 
o Photometric Plan 

 

Analysis 
 

Building Addition 

1. The proposed addition will measure 49,631 square feet (including both floors) and contain 17 classrooms 
on the 1st floor, 4 classrooms on the 2nd floor (total of 21 new classrooms), along with other rooms 
including a cafeteria, conference rooms, etc.  The school, including the existing classrooms, will have 37 
classrooms on the 1st floor and 20 classrooms on the 2nd floor (57 classrooms total).  

2. The building exterior materials are intended to match the existing portion of the school building as closely 
as possible.  The exterior materials will consist of two different types of brick with black and white metal 
panel accents.   

3. The required setbacks for non-residential uses in the E-R zone district are as follows: 

a. Front (Sauk Trail): 80’ required, 80’ existing  

b. Corner Side (S. 80th Ave): 80’ required, approximately 150’ existing 

c. Side (east): 50’ required, approximately 80’ existing 

d. From an arterial road (Laraway Road): 125’ from centerline, approximately 690’ proposed 

The proposed addition will extend directly south and therefore not be placed any closer to the side 
property line adjacent to St. Anthony Church to the east.    

4. The maximum height permitted in the E-R zone district is 40’.  The building addition will measure 31’ 4” in 
height, complying with this regulation.  

5. The maximum lot coverage for non-residential uses in the E-R zone district is 30%.  The proposed building 
addition and existing school cover 17.3% of the total area.  



  3 

6. The maximum impervious lot coverage for non-residential uses in the E-R zone district is 50%. The  
proposed impervious lot coverage will be 45% of the total area. 

7. The Zoning Ordinance regulations for rooftop mechanical units are as follows:  

a. Locating mechanical units out of view from public rights-of-way, adjoining properties and from 
residential areas. (Page 147) 

b. Rooftop mechanical units shall be screened from view using walls and parapet walls. (Pages 147, 
152) 

c. Mechanical units shall be integrated into the building architecture and color. (Page 152) 

d. Mechanical units shall be screened from view during both the winter and summer seasons. (Page 
152)  

Currently, some of the existing rooftop mechanical units are visible from rights-of-way and from 
residential areas (see pictures).  However, any new units or replacement units should be screened by one 
or several of the methods mentioned above.  As part of the building addition work, 8 new rooftop 
mechanical units are proposed.  Per the Roof Plan, 6 new units are proposed on the existing school and 2 
new units are proposed on the building addition.  The applicant is proposing to set the mechanical units 
near the center of the roof when possible, to minimize their visual impact.  The applicant is also proposing 
wrap-around parapet screen walls for the most visible rooftop units, as illustrated on Sheet A3.1.10.  The 
applicant has noted that the rooftop screens will be the same height as the unit they are intended to 
screen.  Depending on the unit size, the screen will be 65.9” tall or 76.2” tall (see details sheet).  

8. A northern portion of the building will be closed off (30,766 square feet) once the southern addition is 
completed.  This northern section is illustrated as “N.I.C” (Not In Contract) on Sheet A1.1.00.  This portion 
of the school will be closed to students and staff and mainly used for storage.  The school may demolish 
or repurpose this section of the building in the future.  Should the school decide to reopen this portion of 
the school for use as classrooms, the available on-site parking would have to be reevaluated.  However, 
the site will be overparked by 176 spaces per code after the building addition.  

Parking 

1. The Zoning Ordinance requires 1 parking space for each employee plus ½ space per classroom, plus 1 
space for each 5 students aged 16 years or older.  The number of teachers is unknown at this time, but it’s 
assumed that there will be at least 1 teacher per classroom.  After the building addition and closing of the 
north portion of the school, there will be 57 active classrooms.  Chelsea Intermediate School does not 
have any students over the age of 16.  As such, the school will require a total of 86 parking spaces.  The 
school currently provides 262 parking spaces, meeting this requirement.   

2. No parking spaces will be removed or added with the building addition, nor will any parking lot be altered 
(although portions will be resurfaced).  

3. The existing north part of the school will be closed off and used for storage.  If this section is reopened for 
uses other than storage, parking for the site would be reevaluated at the time of building permit review.  

Stormwater 

1. The proposed building addition will require significant engineering work to provide for adequate drainage 
and on-site water detention.  The school district acquired the 4.94-acre parcel to the south with the intent 
to use it mainly for on-site detention and it will be cleared of all trees and graded.  The other existing 
detention ponds on site will require some modifications to the infrastructure (pipes) to upgrade their 
capacity.  The plans were reviewed by Robinson and final engineering is nearly complete.  The location 
and size of the detention ponds, as well as the location of all other structures on site, including the 
building, track, parking lot, etc., should not change when final engineering is completed.  



  4 

 

Lighting 

1. The Photometric Plan illustrates three different types of proposed building-mounted lights.  Details of the 
light fixtures were not provided, although staff recommends that all proposed light fixtures be shielded 
and aimed down.  Lights attached to the building shall not be located higher than 18’ above-grade in the 
E-R zone district.  The elevation drawings illustrate wall pack lights 12’-13’ above-grade, complying with 
this requirement.  No light poles are illustrated on the photometric plan, although these are commonly 
placed within parking lots; no new parking areas are proposed.  

Fencing 

1. The applicant is proposing to remove and replace the existing chain-link fence surrounding the running 
track.  The running track itself will be shortened to provide room for the building addition.  The Zoning 
Ordinance prohibits chain-link (cyclone) fencing in any residential district and the existing fencing is 
considered existing, non-conforming.  Once a non-conforming structure is removed, it cannot be replaced, 
even with the same materials.  As such, the proposed 4’ tall chain-link fence, located in a slightly different 
location than the existing fence, will require a variation.  The proposed 4’ tall chain link fencing would be 
set back approximately 320’ from the west property line along 80th Avenue, approximately 200’ from the 
south property line along Laraway Road and approximately 30’ from the east property line adjacent to St. 
Anthony Church.  

2. Note SP-13 on sheet A0.0.03 incorrectly notes that the proposed chain link fence will be 5’ tall, when it 
should state 4’ tall.   

3. At the November 18th Plan Commission workshop, school representatives noted they would install a black 
vinyl-coated chain link fence.  

4. A 4’ tall black, decorative, faux wrought iron fence exists at the north end of the property along West Sauk 
Trail, separating the parking lot from the playground area.  The applicant is proposing to relocate sections 
of this fence and provide a new gate between the playground and the loading area.  Details of the gate 
have not been provided, but it is assumed to be of similar construction as the existing fence.  The Zoning 
Ordinance permits 4’ tall decorative fences within front yards of residential zone districts.  

5. No other fencing is proposed other than the two fences mentioned above.  

Tree Removal & Landscaping 

1. Existing Landscaping: The north parcel with the school building has many mature trees along street 
frontages, the detention ponds, within the parking lot and near the building, which will largely be 
unaffected by the proposed addition and will remain.  The vegetation surrounding the two on-site 
detention ponds is well-established.   

2. Preservation Trees: One (1) preservation tree will be removed to allow room for the building addition (a 
5” Freeman Maple).  Replacement trees for preservation trees are required at a 1:1 ratio for tree caliper.  
This preservation tree has been mitigated elsewhere on school property per the landscape plan.  Most of 
the wooded area on the southern parcel will be cleared to prepare the site for the detention pond and 
site grading.  A tree survey was completed by an arborist with Osage Group (Arborist ISA# IL-0094).  The 
arborist determined that the wooded area on the south parcel mostly contains invasive and non-
preservation trees.  Per the Tree Inventory South Plan, the arborist identified four (4) preservation trees in 
the wooded area, which are intended to be preserved.  The Landscape Ordinance states that any trees 
designated for protection shall have temporary barriers installed prior to construction to protect the 
trees.  If the four preservation trees were removed, they would need to be replaced on-site with 
overstory trees as mentioned above.   



  5 

3. Stormwater Retention Landscaping: A new detention pond is proposed at the southeast corner of the 
project adjacent to Laraway Road.  The landscape plan illustrates a mix of overstory and understory trees 
and complies with the planting requirements in the Landscape Ordinance.  The Landscape Ordinance also 
states that landscaping around detention ponds be “as naturalistic as possible”.  As such, staff 
recommends against the use of artificial turf around the perimeter of the detention pond as presently 
shown on the landscape plan.  The Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals may consider adding a 
condition that the edges of the detention pond be planted and maintained with native vegetation.  

4. Parkway Trees (Street Trees): The Landscape Ordinance requires one 2.5” caliper overstory tree for every 
35 lineal feet where no overhead power lines exist and one 2” caliper understory tree for every 25 lineal 
feet beneath powerlines.  High tension power lines cross over a portion of the property along Laraway 
Road and S. 80th Avenue.  The road frontage along Laraway Road not beneath power lines is 
approximately 625’, requiring a total of 18 overstory street trees.  The road frontage beneath powerlines 
along Laraway Road is approximately 150’, requiring 6 understory trees.  The road frontage along S. 80th 
Avenue is approximately 200’ and is entirely located beneath the power lines, requiring 8 understory 
trees.  Upon site inspection, staff has noticed that there are no trees at all beneath the ComEd high 
tension power lines in this location and that ComEd may object to any new trees, even understory trees, 
in this area.  The Landscape Ordinance does note that planting trees beneath power lines is discouraged.  
During the November 18th Plan Commission workshop, the Commission recommended that the trees 
required beneath the powerlines could be placed elsewhere on site to avoid any conflict with ComEd.  The 
proposed landscape plan complies with the parkway requirements in the Landscape Ordinance.  

Final Plat:  

1. The project will require that the two parcels be combined because they function as a whole and because 
the primary use of a parcel cannot be solely for on-site detention.  The applicant has submitted a Final 
Plat of Subdivision for Chelsea Intermediate School, which can be approved with the special use and 
variation requests.  The Final Plat also illustrates new required easements for utilities and drainage.  The 
plat has been reviewed by Robinson Engineering.  

Special Use and Variation Findings of Fact 
 
Special Use: 
 
The applicant is requesting a special use to permit a building addition to the existing school. Schools require a 
special use permit in any zone district (except for the I-2 zone district, where they are prohibited outright).   
 
No special use shall be recommended by the Plan Commission, unless such Commission shall find: 
 
a. That the establishment, maintenance or operation of the special use will not be detrimental to, or endanger, the 
public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare.  
 
It is staff’s professional opinion that the proposed use will not be detrimental to or endanger the public’s health, 
safety, comfort or general welfare.  Schools contribute to the general welfare of the public.  
 
b. That the special use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity 
for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair property values within the 
neighborhood.  
 
It is staff’s professional opinion that the proposed use will not substantially diminish or impair property values 
within the neighborhood. The proposed building addition will extend the existing building directly south and 
therefore will not be placed any closer to the side property line adjacent to St. Anthony Church.  No new parking 
areas are proposed.  The building addition will be illuminated by building-mounted lights only, which will not be 
adjacent to any nearby residential uses.  



  6 

 
c. That the establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and orderly development and 
improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the district.  
 
The immediate surrounding area is developed for parkland, institutional and residential uses. The proposed school 
addition would not impede normal and orderly development.   
 
d. That the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will not be so at variance 
with either the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of the structures already constructed, or in the 
course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or the character of the applicable district, as to cause a 
substantial depreciation in the property values within the neighborhood.  
 
The proposed building addition is designed to closely match the existing architecture of the building, utilizing brick 
with metal accent panels.  
 
e. That the adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and/or necessary facilities have been or are being provided.  
 
The site is currently served by existing water and sewer infrastructure, roads and access drives.  The project will 
require significant site engineering for drainage and on-site stormwater detention.  Robinson Engineering has 
reviewed the plans and has informed staff that final engineering is nearly complete.  
 
f. That adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to minimize 
traffic congestion in the public streets.  
 
The site is not anticipated to generate significant additional traffic, as the north section of the building will be 
closed to students, offsetting the building addition to the south.  There are currently two points of ingress/egress 
along Sauk Trail and four points of ingress/egress along S. 80th Ave.  Should the school decide to reactivate the 
“mothballed” north section of the school, a parking analysis will be required.  
 
g. That the special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the district in which it is 
located, except as such regulations may, in each instance, be modified by the Village Board, pursuant to the 
recommendations of the Plan Commission.  
 
The proposed use is anticipated to conform to all other regulations as specified in the Zoning Ordinance.  
 
Variation:  
 
The applicant is requesting a variation to permit the installation of a new, 4’ tall, vinyl-coated chain-link (cyclone) 
fence around the running track.  Cyclone fences are prohibited in any residential zone district.  
 
A variance may only be issued when the standards of variation are met.  The applicant should provide responses to 
each prior to the public hearing:   

 
1. That the property in question cannot yield a reasonable rate of return if permitted to be used only under 

the conditions allowed by the regulations in that zone.   
 
The school is not intended to generate profit.  
 

2. That the plight of the owner is due to unique circumstances.   
 
It is typical for schools and parks to be equipped with chain-link fencing for outdoor sports, which would 
not be applicable for most other residential uses within the E-R zone district. A chain-link fence already 
exists around the running track, although its removal as a non-conforming structure will require that a 
variation be obtained for the new chain-link fencing. 



  7 

3. That the variation, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.  
 
The site currently has a chain-link fence surrounding the existing track and will not alter the established 
character. The use of vinyl-coated cyclone fencing will better blend in with the surrounding environment 
and have a more residential appearance.  

 
For the purposes of evaluating the above standards, the following shall be considered by the Zoning Board 
of Appeals:  
 

1. That the particular physical surroundings, shape or topographical conditions of the specific property involved 
will bring a particular hardship upon the owner, as distinguished from a mere inconvenience, if the strict letter 
of the regulations was carried out.  

As noted, it is typical for schools to provide fencing around outdoor sports uses.  A decorative fence measuring 
approximately 1,500’ long may not be practical.  

2. That the conditions upon which the petition for variation is based would not be applicable, generally, to other 
property within the same zoning classification;  

The property is bordered by single-family residential uses to the north and south, where chain-link fencing 
would be less appropriate.  

3. That the purpose of the variation is not based exclusively upon a desire to make more money out of the 
property;  

The school is non-profit.  

4. That the alleged difficulty or hardship has not been created by any person presently having an interest in the 
property;  

There is no one individual who has an ownership interest in the subject property.  The subject property is public 
property that is controlled by Frankfort School District 157-C.  

5. That the granting of the variation will not be detrimental to the public welfare or unduly injurious to other 
property or improvements in the neighborhood in which the property is located;  

The proposed chain-link fence would not be highly visible from Sauk Trail or S. 80th Avenue.  The fence would be 
set back approximately 200’ from the Laraway Road right-of-way and further obscured by street tree 
landscaping.  

6. That the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will not be so at variance 
with either the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of the structures already constructed, or in 
the course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or the character of the applicable district, as to 
cause a substantial depreciation in the property values within the neighborhood;  

The proposed chain link fence is not anticipated to cause substantial depreciation of property values within the 
vicinity, nor be out of character for the primary use (school).  

7. That the proposed variation will not impair an adequate supply of air to adjacent property, substantially 
increase the danger of fire, otherwise endanger the public safety or substantially diminish or impair property 
values within the neighborhood.  

The proposed chain link fence is not anticipated to endanger the public health, safety or welfare.  



  8 

Affirmative Motions 
 

1. Recommend the Village Board approve a Special Use Permit for a school addition on the 
property located at 22265 S. 80th Ave, in accordance with the reviewed plans and public 
testimony, conditioned on final engineering approval, screening the rooftop mechanical units 
from view and replacing any preservation trees lost as part of the site work.  (Required per 
Article 5, Section B, Part 1, Table of Permitted and Special Uses) 
 

2. Recommend the Village Board approve a variation for 4’ tall cyclone (chain-link) fence around 
the perimeter of the athletic track, for the property located at 22265 S. 80th Ave, conditioned 
upon the fence being black, vinyl-coated, in accordance with the reviewed plans and public 
testimony. (Relief from Article 5, Section D, Part 6 (h)(2)) 

3. Recommend the Village Board approve a Final Plat of Subdivision for Chelsea Intermediate 
School, consolidating two existing parcels, in accordance with the reviewed plans and public 
testimony, conditioned on final engineering approval.   

 
 
 
 
 



Notes

Disclaimer of Warranties and Accuracy of Data: Although the data developed by Will County for its maps, websites, and Geographic Information System has been produced and processed 
from sources believed to be reliable, no warranty, expressed or implied, is made regarding accuracy, adequacy, completeness, legality, reliability or usefulness of any information. This 
disclaimer applies to both isolated and aggregate uses of the information. The County and elected officials provide this information on an "as is" basis. All warranties of any kind, express or 
implied, including but not limited to the implied warranties of merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose, freedom from contamination by computer viruses or hackers and non-infringement 
of proprietary rights are disclaimed. Changes may be periodically made to the information herein; these changes may or may not be incorporated in any new version of the publication. If you 
have obtained information from any of the County web pages from a source other than the County pages, be aware that electronic data can be altered subsequent to original distribution. Data 
can also quickly become out of date. It is recommended that careful attention be paid to the contents of any data, and that the originator of the data or information be contacted with any 
questions regarding appropriate use. Please direct any questions or issues via email to gis@willcountyillinois.com.

Miles0.1

Legend

1: 4,514WGS_1984_Web_Mercator_Auxiliary_Sphere
0 0.07

Roadways

Federal

State

County

Local and Private

Parcels LY

Townships



2
6
' 
- 

9
"

3
3
' 
- 

1
0
"

6
0
' 
- 

8
"

34' - 11"

3
' 
- 

1
1
"

3
' 
- 

1
1
"

UNIT LOCATION IS FIXED. UNIT LOCATION IS 

FLEXIBLE IN NORTH / 

SOUTH DIRECTION.

NEW UNIT REPLACING EXISTING 

ONE AT THIS LOCATION.

UNIT LOCATION IS FIXED.

7
' 
- 

7
"

80' - 7"

MAIN ENTRY

NEW 

ADDITION

NEW 

ADDITION

EXISTING 

BUILDING

EXISTING 

BUILDING

EXISTING 

BUILDING

EXISTING 

BUILDING

©2021 FGM Architects Inc.

ROOF PLAN - NEW MECHANICAL UNIT LOCATIONS

Published 07/30/21

Job No. 21-3102.01

Frankfort School District 157-C
Chelsea Intermediate School Addition & Reno
10482 West Nebraska Street,

Frankfort, IL 60423

RECEIVED 8.5.21

cgruba
Highlight



 

cgruba
Received



 



RECEIVED 8.5.21

michael.becker
Text Box
VIEW FROM SAUK TRAIL (EAST)



michael.becker
Text Box
VIEW FROM SAUK TRAIL (WEST)

michael.becker
Arrow

michael.becker
Arrow

michael.becker
Arrow

michael.becker
Arrow



michael.becker
Text Box
VIEW FROM 80TH AVE (NORTH)

michael.becker
Arrow

michael.becker
Arrow

michael.becker
Arrow



michael.becker
Text Box
VIEW FROM 80TH AVE (SOUTH)

michael.becker
Arrow

michael.becker
Arrow



michael.becker
Text Box
VIEW FROM CHURCH LOT

michael.becker
Arrow

michael.becker
Arrow

michael.becker
Arrow

michael.becker
Arrow

michael.becker
Arrow

michael.becker
Arrow













cgruba
Highlight





cgruba
Received





cgruba
Received







cgruba
Received

cgruba
Highlight

cgruba
Highlight

cgruba
Highlight



� 

� 

i 

R 

p 

0 

N 

M 

L 

K 

H 

G 

F 

E 

D 

C 

8 

� A 

1 

0 

A1 

• 

I 

t 

j ' ' 
'J 

'1 

0 

I 

1 

I 

) 

V 

' 
I I 

2 

l 

::r::
f-
0
� 

-en

/i 

T 

' 
,,r--

l 4 5 

�/ j' 

I ' - I -
- - 1- ;

_·f� -� ��-:-��--= . -':____ ·� -r;

IJ : --J,, - ) r--J__\._L, ,. , -t I -i'I / �,� -- -· •l.,l 1l -
_¥, - • -- � 

•... , 

\ :- j" 

' 

I 
--

I
I

\ 

LANDSCAPE PLAN - SOUTH 

6 

, 

{ .,_I 't

'
. !

( 

7 

if', 

I,/ 

\ 

' 
' ' 

\ 

! 
I 

I 
I 

8 

I 

I

I ,x,? 
-•

, __ --c -

l_____ ,. __ ,

I : 

I 
I 

'
------
' ' -' ,,_ 

' 

' I 

I 
' 
' 

� 

,l 

, 

g 

I-
--

I , wj
'ill Ct, -

' ' ' 

--------i I --------1 I 

l 

�

---1 

-

_I -

I 

---111 -� ,_ \ 
-� ,�

';,-I� 
I ', 

----------�-

, 

J 
' -..___ I - ,..,...,

' 

10 11 

I 

® EE tl---4-

·-
-

[
--

l 

I 

\ 

' 

W. 

' 

I 

' 

t 
I 

-, 

i 

"' 
I 

I 

12 

EE EE 

'' 
-+

' 
I 

( l 

/ 

I 
/ 

\ 

--
'----

ll 14 

J SIS • 

�-+---'-1-

' 

I 

- +
,_ 

I 

f \ 
\ 

I 

_----:- -�lfJC, 14� 

' 
' - ' 

' 
,,, ,, "' I 
�' 

' � -
' ' '' ' 

( 

C 

15 16 

I 

,, 
-f__; MATCH

LINE 

""' '''"''" - " 
Pl,CE PIA"""'-'"' 
S'ffn' '"'""'"' 
mo fl')' EOOIF>.<NT
REFER ro 
SPE\lf'IC\l'<l"' ''-" "'"""" ,., ''"'"''"' 
""'""'""-

I I 

\ \ 
\ 1-++1-'-l--

I 

I I 

I 
I-
I 

I 

' I 

I I 

it 

I 

I I 

I 
I C 

I 

I 
I I 

i 

ECONO�Y PR�RIE SEED� 
Ml� - SEE W::�NIDIL ,..,_

' 

SPEClf'OMIS ( 

l1,�-l�
0 

I � --

I I 

I 

I 

..• :S,----

J 

17 

N17 

G17 

1 8 

LEGEND 

Gl 

C2ZJ 

LEGEND 
N.T.S. 

19 20 

EXISTING DECIDUOUS TREE TO REMAIN 

EXISTING EVERGREEN TREE TO REMAIN 

PROPOSED SHADE TREE 

PROPOSED ORNAMENTAL TREE 

PROPOSED EVERGREEN SHRUB 

PROPOSED DECIDUOUS SHRUB 

PROPOSED ORNAMENTAL GRASSES 

PROPOSED PERENNIALS 

NATIVE PLANTING ARE.A 

PROPOSE.□ STEPPING STONE 

ARTIFICIAL TURF 

� .l.'l"'.,\, 
\ .. __ 

( \ ........ .,�, -......... 

PLAYGROUND ENLARGEMENT 
N.T.S. 

Rt.f\lifl!R SEED 

�•� />/'JD PLWGS - SiI 
.• IG'J. 5PECIF'U.�C-.S --

---

I 

; 

.>:.:½---- ----

-=-------=. '---- - -

--�- -----+-----+----/ 

J 

I 
I 

I 
I 
I 

! 
I/ 

21 

,_ --

21 " 

N 

N 

J 1 " 
-,- -,,-�,- -,,- -,- -,3- -, --,,- -,- -,5- -,- -,,- -,- -,,- -,- --8;;-- --,----cg;;--- -,--;-!O;;--- -,--;-l;--l- ---,-- --;cl2;----- -,---cllc---- --,- --c14c------,�-�15---,- -�l6---,- -�17- --,- --,-8- --,- --l-9- --,- --,-□- -- ---,-l- --- --,-,- --- --,-,- ---__J 

fgma 
FGM Architects Inc. 

1211 W 22nd St, Suite 700 

Oak Brook, lllinols 60523 

630.574.8300 OFFlCE 

630.574.7070 �AX 

ILUNQIS PRPFESSIONAI. CE5!CiN 
FlR!,11 •18<1,Q(IOJSO 

ARCHITECT 
FGM ARCHITECTS 
m, WEST ,mo.mu:.-, 
UAK a,c>ClK, IW"OM,O.m 
0,0,S7',Sl00 IOIS30�7' 92:'11 (Fl 

CIVIL 
WEBSTER, MCGARTH.& AHLBERG, LTD. 
ml S<lUTH NAa,AVlliE ,OAo 

WHe,JO!<. IWNO<>Wl'7 

'""�"-""' 10; '10 ... ,..,,., 111 

STRUCTURAL 
MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION 
l .. 'I HJO,< G_, LANe, IUflE -
l<<Pf.,,.ILLL 'LLIHM 605•0 
=.m,,,i,101 

M.E.P.
AMSCO ENGINEERING
5'l.S mMONO •OAO 
t>OWNee; llR<}'I<, IWNOIS ''"" 

"'°"\5.!SSS IOI '30515,lSIB (Fl 

LANDSCAPE 
FGM ARCHITECTS 
1>11 wm """ '""'
OAK 8"00� IC<IN0<>"1!'3 
Sl0$1Ul00 101 ,aos1, . .,., WI 

ISSUANCE 

NO DATE DESCRIPTION 

11/12/21 Issued for Bid 

1 11/19/21 Issued for Addendum #1 

;i 12/3/21 Issued for Addendum #3 

0 
C 
QI 
a: 

eel 
C 
0·-....·-

"C 
"C 

<t-
0 
0 
.s::. 
u 

VI 

QI.... 
ra·-

"C 
QI 

... 
QI.... 
C-
ra 
QI
Ill -
QI 
.s::. 

u 

SHEET NO. 

Landscape 
Plan 

South 

Ll.04 

JOB NO. 21-3102.01 

© 2021 FGM Architects Inc. 

m 

:;;
:,
Czw
C 
C 
" 
0: 

w
:,

cgruba
Highlight



GAS

GASGASGAS

GASGAS

GASGASGAS

GASGASGAS

GASGASGASGAS

GASGAS

GASGAS

GASGASGAS

GAS

GASGASGAS

GASGAS

GASGAS

GASGASGAS

GAS

GAS

GASGAS

GASGASGASGASGAS

GASGASGAS

GAS

ADDITION
NEW

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23
© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.Co

py
rig

ht
 2

02
1 

FG
M

 A
RC

HI
TE

CT
S 

IN
C.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET
OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523
630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS
ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD
WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187
630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.
CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200
NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540
630.717.5335 (O)

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION
STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD
DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515
630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING
M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE
1211 WEST 22ND STREET
OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523
630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

L1.05
21-3102.01

Enlarged
Landscape

Plan

ISSUANCE
NO DATE DESCRIPTION

1" = 20'
A1 ENLARGED LANDSCAPE PLAN

N

N.T.S.
N19 LEGEND

Ch
el

se
a 

In
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 S
ch

oo
l A

dd
iti

on
 &

 R
en

o

Fr
an

kf
or

t S
ch

oo
l D

ist
ric

t 1
57

-C
10

48
2 

W
es

t N
eb

ra
sk

a 
St

re
et

,
Fr

an
kf

or
t, 

IL
 6

04
23

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or
construction.

The information on this document is
preliminary or incomplete, not for
construction, recording purposes, or
implementation.

IS
SU

ED
 F

O
R 

50
%

 C
O

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

 D
O

CU
M

EN
TS

09/03/21 Issued for 50% Construction
Documents

AutoCAD SHX Text
736

AutoCAD SHX Text
736

AutoCAD SHX Text
735

AutoCAD SHX Text
735

AutoCAD SHX Text
735

AutoCAD SHX Text
735

AutoCAD SHX Text
735

AutoCAD SHX Text
735

AutoCAD SHX Text
735

AutoCAD SHX Text
735

AutoCAD SHX Text
735

AutoCAD SHX Text
735

AutoCAD SHX Text
734

AutoCAD SHX Text
734

AutoCAD SHX Text
733

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE  (COLOR #1) - SEE  GENERAL NOTE #11

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARTIFICIAL  TURF-SEE GENERAL NOTE #9

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" HIGH SEAT WALL- REFER TO  ARCHITECTURAL AND STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARTIFICIAL  TURF - SEE GENERAL NOTE #9

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE  (COLOR #1)- SEE GENERAL NOTE #11

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE  (COLOR #1)- SEE GENERAL  NOTE #11

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE  (COLOR #1)- SEE GENERAL NOTE #11

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE  (COLOR #2-TYP.) SEE GENERAL  NOTE #11

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE  (COLOR #3-TYP.)- SEE GENERAL NOTE  #11

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASB

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 GAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 GAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
TMD

AutoCAD SHX Text
#5

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
HHR

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 GAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 GAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
TMD

AutoCAD SHX Text
#5

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
HHR

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 GAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 GAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
TMD

AutoCAD SHX Text
#5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
AJR

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
JHP

AutoCAD SHX Text
#5

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 GAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
SBT

AutoCAD SHX Text
#5

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
RDK

AutoCAD SHX Text
#3

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSC

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 GAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 GAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE  SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLAGPOLE-SEE ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHITECTURAL  COLUMNS (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE  (COLOR #2)- SEE GENERAL NOTE #11

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHES (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW BENCHES (TYP.) SEE GENERAL NOTE #12

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASB

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 GAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASB

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 GAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
HHR

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 GAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARTIFICIAL  TURF - SEE GENERAL NOTE #9

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE  SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTDOOR TEACHING  BOARD - SEE GENERAL NOTE #13

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING DECIDUOUS TREE TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SHADE TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED DECIDUOUS SHRUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED EVERGREEN SHRUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED PERENNIALS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ORNAMENTAL GRASSES

AutoCAD SHX Text
NATIVE PLANTING AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED STEPPING STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING EVERGREEN TREE TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ORNAMENTAL TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARTIFICIAL TURF

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLORED CONCRETE

cgruba
Highlight



JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23

© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.

C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

2
0

2
1

 F
G

M
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

 I
N

C
.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS
ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD

WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187

630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.
CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200

NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540

630.717.5335 (O) 

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION
STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD

DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515

630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING
M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or 

construction.

The information on this document is 

preliminary or incomplete, not for 

construction, recording purposes, or 

implementation.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

9
/2

/2
0

2
1

 5
:0

1
:2

3
 P

M

C
:\

re
v

it

te
m

p
\2

0
2

0
\2

1
-3

1
0

2
.0

1
_

F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

D
1

5
7

-C
_

C
h

e
ls

e
a

S
ch

o
o

l_
2

0
2

0
_

C
D

_
a

sh
le

y
cN

9
Y

5
R

.r
v

t

G1.1.00
21-3102.01

IS
S

U
E

D
 F

O
R

 5
0

%
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

S

TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY

C
h

e
ls

e
a

 I
n

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 S
ch

o
o

l 
A

d
d

it
io

n
 &

 R
e

n
o

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
 S

ch
o

o
l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

1
5

7
-C

1
0

4
8

2
 W

e
st

 N
e

b
ra

sk
a

 S
tr

e
e

t,

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
, 

IL
 6

0
4

2
3

FOR REFERENCE ONLY

ISSUANCE

NO DATE DESCRIPTION

09/03/21 Issued for 50% Construction

Documents

SUBMITTAL 9.9.21

cgruba
Highlight



JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23

© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.

C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

2
0

2
1

 F
G

M
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

 I
N

C
.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS
ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD

WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187

630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.
CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200

NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540

630.717.5335 (O) 

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION
STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD

DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515

630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING
M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or 

construction.

The information on this document is 

preliminary or incomplete, not for 

construction, recording purposes, or 

implementation.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

9
/2

/2
0

2
1

 5
:0

1
:2

7
 P

M

C
:\

re
v

it

te
m

p
\2

0
2

0
\2

1
-3

1
0

2
.0

1
_

F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

D
1

5
7

-C
_

C
h

e
ls

e
a

S
ch

o
o

l_
2

0
2

0
_

C
D

_
a

sh
le

y
cN

9
Y

5
R

.r
v

t

G1.1.01
21-3102.01

IS
S

U
E

D
 F

O
R

 5
0

%
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

S

TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY

C
h

e
ls

e
a

 I
n

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 S
ch

o
o

l 
A

d
d

it
io

n
 &

 R
e

n
o

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
 S

ch
o

o
l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

1
5

7
-C

1
0

4
8

2
 W

e
st

 N
e

b
ra

sk
a

 S
tr

e
e

t,

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
, 

IL
 6

0
4

2
3

FOR REFERENCE ONLY

ISSUANCE

NO DATE DESCRIPTION

09/03/21 Issued for 50% Construction

Documents

cgruba
Highlight



JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23

© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.

C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

2
0

2
1

 F
G

M
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

 I
N

C
.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS
ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD

WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187

630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.
CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200

NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540

630.717.5335 (O) 

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION
STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD

DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515

630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING
M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or 

construction.

The information on this document is 

preliminary or incomplete, not for 

construction, recording purposes, or 

implementation.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

9
/2

/2
0

2
1

 5
:0

1
:3

5
 P

M

C
:\

re
v

it

te
m

p
\2

0
2

0
\2

1
-3

1
0

2
.0

1
_

F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

D
1

5
7

-C
_

C
h

e
ls

e
a

S
ch

o
o

l_
2

0
2

0
_

C
D

_
a

sh
le

y
cN

9
Y

5
R

.r
v

t

G1.1.03
21-3102.01

IS
S

U
E

D
 F

O
R

 5
0

%
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

S

TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY

C
h

e
ls

e
a

 I
n

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 S
ch

o
o

l 
A

d
d

it
io

n
 &

 R
e

n
o

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
 S

ch
o

o
l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

1
5

7
-C

1
0

4
8

2
 W

e
st

 N
e

b
ra

sk
a

 S
tr

e
e

t,

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
, 

IL
 6

0
4

2
3

FOR REFERENCE ONLY

ISSUANCE

NO DATE DESCRIPTION

09/03/21 Issued for 50% Construction

Documents

cgruba
Highlight



JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23

© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.

C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

2
0

2
1

 F
G

M
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

 I
N

C
.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS
ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD

WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187

630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.
CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200

NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540

630.717.5335 (O) 

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION
STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD

DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515

630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING
M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or 

construction.

The information on this document is 

preliminary or incomplete, not for 

construction, recording purposes, or 

implementation.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

9
/2

/2
0

2
1

 5
:0

1
:5

6
 P

M

C
:\

re
v

it

te
m

p
\2

0
2

0
\2

1
-3

1
0

2
.0

1
_

F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

D
1

5
7

-C
_

C
h

e
ls

e
a

S
ch

o
o

l_
2

0
2

0
_

C
D

_
a

sh
le

y
cN

9
Y

5
R

.r
v

t

G1.1.08
21-3102.01

IS
S

U
E

D
 F

O
R

 5
0

%
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

S

TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY

C
h

e
ls

e
a

 I
n

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 S
ch

o
o

l 
A

d
d

it
io

n
 &

 R
e

n
o

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
 S

ch
o

o
l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

1
5

7
-C

1
0

4
8

2
 W

e
st

 N
e

b
ra

sk
a

 S
tr

e
e

t,

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
, 

IL
 6

0
4

2
3

FOR REFERENCE ONLY

ISSUANCE

NO DATE DESCRIPTION

09/03/21 Issued for 50% Construction

Documents

cgruba
Highlight



752

752

751

7
5
1

7
5
1

751

751

751

751

7
5
1

750

75
0

750

750

7
5
0

75
0

7
5
0

750

7
5
0

7
5
0

7
4
9

749

7
4
9

749

7
4
9

749

7
4
9

74
9

749

749

7
4
9

7
4
9

748

748

7
4
8

748

748

748

74
8

7
4
8

7
4
8

748

748

748748

748

7
4
7

747

747

747

747

747

74
7

7
4
7

7
4
7

747

747

747747

746

746

746

746

746

746

7
4
6

7
4
6

7
4
6

746

746

746

7
4
6

7
4
5

745

745

7
4
5

7
4
5

7
4
5

745

745

745745

7
4
5

7
4
4

744

744

7
4
4

7
4

4

744

744

744

744

744

744

7
4
3

743

743

7
4
3

7
4
3

743

743

743
743

743

743

743

7
4
2

742

742

742

742

7
4
2

7
4
2

742

742

742

742

7
4
2

7
4
2

7
4
2

7
4
1

741

7
4
1

7
4
1

741

7
4
1

7
4
1

7
4
1

741

741

7
4
1

7
4
1

7
4
1

741

741

741

741

741

7
4
1

7
4
1

7
4
0

7
4
0

740

7
4
0

7
4
0

7
4
0

740

7
4
0

7
4
0

7
4
0

740

740

740

740

7
4
0

7
4
0

74
0

740

740

74
0

740

7
4
0

7
4
0

7
4
0

7
3
9

739

739

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

739

7
3
9

739

739

7
3
9

739

7
3
9

739

73
9

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

739

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

739

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

73
9

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3

9

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

739

7
3
9

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

73
8

738

7
3
8

738

738

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

738

73
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

738

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

738
738

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

738

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
7

737

737

737

7
3
7

7
3
7

737

737

7
3
7

7
3
7

737

73
7

7
3
7

7
3
7

737

7
3
7

7
3
7

7
3
7

7
3
7

7
3
7

73
7

737

73
7

7
3
7

737

7
3
7

7
3
7

7
3
7

737

7
3
7

7
3
7

737

7
3
7

7
3
7

7
3
7

7
3
7

736

736

7
3
6

7
3
6

736

7
3
6

7
3
6

736

736

7
3
6

736

7
3
6

736

7
3
6

73
6

736

7
3
6

736

73
6

736

736

7
3
6

736

7
3
6

7
3
6

736

7
3
6

73
6

736

736

736

736

7
3

6

7
3
6

7
3
6

736

7
3
6

7
3
6

736

736

7
3
6

7
3
6

7
3
6

736

7
3
6

7
3
6

7
3
6

73
6

736

7
3
6

7
3
6

7
3
6

7
3
6

7
3
6

7
3
6

736
736

7
3
6

7
3
6

7
3
6

736

73
5

735

7
3
5

735

7
3
5

735

735

735

7
3
5

735

7
3
5

735

7
3
5

735

7
3
5

7
3
5

73
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

735

735

735

7
3
5

7
3
5

735

7
3
5

735

735

735

7
3
5

7
3
5

735

7
3
5

735

7
3
5

73
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

735

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

735

735735

735

734

734

7
3
4

7
3
4

7
3
4

734

7
3
4

7
3
4

7
3
4

734

7
3
4

73
4

7
3
4

734

7
3
4

734

734

734

734

734

7
3
4

7
3
4

7
3
4

7
3
4

73
4

7
3
4

7
3
3

7
3
3

7
3
3

7
3
3

733

7
3
3

7
3
3

7
3
3

73
3

733

733

733

733

733

73
3

733

73
3

7
3
3

733

733

733

73
3

7
3
3

7
3
3

7
3
3

7
3
3

733

73
3

732

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

732

73
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

73
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

732

732

73
2

732

732

73
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
1

7
3
1

731

731

731

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

731

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

731

731

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

730

7
3
0

7
3
0

730

7
3
0

7
3
0

7
3
0

73
0

7
3
0

7
3
0

7
3
0

7
3
0

7
3
0

7
3
0

7
3
0

7
3
0

7
3
0

7
2
9

7
2
9

7
2
9

7
2
9

7
2
9

7
2
9

7
2
9

7
2
9

7
2
9

729

7
2
9

729

72
9

728

728

7
2
8

7
2
8

728

7
2
8

7
2
8

7
2
8

7
2
8

7
2
8

728

7
2
8

7
2
7

7
2
7

7
2
7

727

7
2
7

727

7
2
7

727

7
2
7

72
7

7
2
7

7
2
7

7
2
7

7
2
7

7
2
6

72
6

726

7
2
6

726

7
2
6

726

7
2
6

7
2
6

7
2
6

7
2
6

7
2
6

7
2
6

72
5

7
2
5

725

7
2
5

725

7
2
5

725

725

7
2
5

7
2
5

7
2
5

7
2
5

7
2
5

7
2
5

724

7
2
4

7
2
4

724

7
2
4

724

724

7
2
4

7
2
4

7
2
4

7
2
4

7
2
4

7
2
4

7
2
3

723

7
2
3

723

7
2
3

7
2
2

7
2
2

72
2

722

W.  SAUK                 TRAIL

S
. 
 
8
0

T
H
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
V

E
N

U
E

W.  LARAWAY         ROAD

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23

© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.

C
o
p
y
ri

g
h
t 

2
0
2
1
 F

G
M

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

S
 I

N
C

.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD

WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187

630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.

CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200

NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540

630.717.5335 (O) 

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION

STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD

DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515

630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING

M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or 

preliminary or incomplete, not for 

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

21-3102.01

F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

1
5

7
-C

1
0

4
8

2
 W

e
s
t 

N
e
b

ra
s
k

a
 S

tr
e
e
t,

 F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

, 
IL

 6
0

4
2

3

ISSUANCE

NO DATE DESCRIPTION

N

Documents

09/06/21

CD-1.0.1
Site Demolition Plan

Plan
Site Demolition 

CD-1.0.1

ALL CODE REQUIREMENTS.

OR AS NOTED ON PLAN. ALL UTILITIES SHALL BE CAPPED AND TERMINATED PER 

GAS, WATER, SANITARY PIPING FROM SITE AND CAPPED AT RESEPCTIVE MAINS, 

CONTRACTOR SHALL DISCONNECT AND HAVE REMOVED ALL UNDERGROUND 

DOWN AND REMOVAL OF UTILITY EQUIPMENT FROM SITE PRIOR TO DEMOLITION. 

SERVICE SHUT DOWN AND REMOVAL OF UTILITY COMPANIES FOR SERVICE SHUT 

INCLUDING GAS, WATER, SANITARY, ETC. CONTACT UTILITY COMPANIES FOR 

CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE SHUT DOWN OF ALL UTILITIES TO BUILDING 

MECHANICAL SCOPE:

BE CAPPED AND TERMINATED PER ALL CODE REQUIREMENTS.

PRIMARY FEEDERS, ALL UTILITY DMARK EQUIPMENT, ETC. ALL UTILITIES SHALL 

REMOVED THE EXISTING ELECTRICAL TRANSFORMER, ELECTRIC METER, 

FROM SITE PRIOR TO DEMOLITION. CONTRACTOR SHALL DISCONNECT AND HAVE 

COMPANIES FOR SERVICE SHUT DOWN AND REMOVAL OF UTILITY EQUIPMENT 

INCLUDING ELECTRIC, TELEPHONE, BROADBAND, CABLE, ETC. CONTACT UTILITY 

CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE SHUT DOWN OF ALL UTILITIES TO BUILDING 

ELECTRICAL SCOPE:

STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS SECTION 250 FOR SEEDING REQUIREMENTS.

CONSTRUCTION OF NEW SCHOOL ADDITION HAS COMMENCED.  SEE IDOT 

7 DAYS OF COMPLETION OF DEMOLITION DISTURBANCE, UNLESS 

ALL DISTURBED AREAS SHALL BE STABILIZED WITH TEMPORARY SEEDING WITHIN 14.

APPLICABLE CODE REQUIREMENTS.

FRANKFORT.  ALL SERVICES SHALL BE CAPPED AND TERMINATED PER 

ETC. WITH THE APPLICABLE UTILITY COMPANIES AND THE VILLAGE OF 

INCLUDING ELECTRIC, TELEPHONE, INTERNET, CABLE, GAS, WATER, SEWER, 

DEMOLITION CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE SHUT DOWN OF ALL UTILITIES 13.

ADVANCE OF PERFORMING ANY WORK.

NOTIFY THE OWNER AND THE VILLAGE OF FRANKFORT AT LEAST 48 HOURS IN 12.

DIFFERENCES ARE FOUND.

LOCATIONS THAN AS SHOWN HEREON.  CONTACT THE ENGINEER IMMEDIATELY IF 

EVENT THAT UNDERGROUND UTILITIES ARE ENCOUNTERED IN DIFFERENT 

THE OWNER AND THE ENGINEER DO NOT ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY IN THE 

HAS BEEN DETERMINED FROM THE BEST AVAILABLE INFORMATION.  HOWEVER, 

THE LOCATION OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN ON THESE PLANS 11.

PRECAUTIONS AND PROGRAMS IN CONNECTION WITH THE WORK.

ADVISE ON, ISSUE DIRECTIONS, OR ASSUME CONTROL OVER SAFETY 

PROPERTY DURING THE DEMOLITION PROCESS. THE ENGINEER SHALL NOT 

DEMOLITION AND SHALL ENSURE THAT THERE IS NO DAMAGE TO ADJACENT 

DEMOLITION CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL MEANS AND METHODS OF 10.

DURING THE ENTIRE DEMOLITION PROCESS.

DEMOLITION CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR WORKER AND PUBLIC SAFETY 9.

DEMOLITION PROCESS.

ANY APPROPRIATE TRAFFIC CONTROL MEASURES DURING THE ENTIRE 

DEMOLITION CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING AND MAINTAINING 8.

RELATED DEBRIS AT ALL TIMES.

PUBLIC STREETS SHALL BE KEPT FREE OF CONSTRUCTION / DEMOLITION 7.

THE PROJECT LIMITS

SEE LANDSCAPE PLAN FOR TREES TO BE REMOVED AND PRESERVED WITHIN 6.

OPENINGS, AND BACKFILL WITH FA-1 SAND.

HAVE THE BARREL SECTION REMOVED TO 3" BELOW GRADE, MORTAR PLUG 

ABANDONED IN PLACE. ABANDONED MANHOLES AND OR CATCH BASINS SHALL 

SEWER PIPING 8" DIAMETER AND SMALLER SHALL BE MORTAR PLUGGED 

OUTSIDE FUTURE BUILDING LIMITS, ONSITE ABANDONED SANITARY AND STORM 5.

PROPOSED BUILDING LIMITS .

SHALL BE  COMPLETELY REMOVED UNDER AND TO FIVE FEET OUTSIDE THE 

ALL UTILITIES, INCLUDING STORM SEWER, SANITARY SEWER, AND WATER PIPING 4.

MAINTAIN SITE DRAINAGE THROUGH THE COURSE OF DEMOLITION.3.

ONSITE FOR FUTURE USE.

CONTRACTOR MAY RECYCLE EXISTING ONSITE CLEAN AGGREGATE AND LEAVE 2.

STORM SEWERS SHALL REMAIN ACTIVE DURING DEMOLITION ACTIVITIES.1.

SITEWORK DEMOLITION NOTES:

LIMIT AREA
SITE DEMOLITION 

SANITARY, or WATER
UTILITY;  STORM, 
REMOVE UNDERGROUND 

    with at least 2-feet long non-shrink concrete or mortar plugs.

    All abandoned sewers shall be plugged at both ends

Main Easement

Existing Water

(Typical)

to Remain 

Existing Lighting

Protect 

to Remain (Typical)

Existing Lighting

Protect 

Curb

Remove Ex. 

Track

Remove Ex. 

Concrete Pad

Remove Ex. 

Sidewalk

Remove Ex. 

Sidewalk

Remove Ex. 

Hoops

and Basketball 

Pavement

Remove Ex. 

Pavement

Track 

Sawcut

Pavement

Track 

Sawcut

to Remain

Track Pavement 

Protect Existing

to Remain

Track Pavement 

Protect Existing

of Fence Poles

Including Removal 

to Be Removed

Around the Track 

Existing Fence

Pole Footings.

of Fence Poles and

Including Removal 

to Be Removed

Around the Track 

Existing Fence

(Alternate - 1)

Curb to Remain

Full Depth. Existing

Remove Ex. Pavement

(Alternate 1)

Full Depth

Remove Ex. Pavement

 1" = 60'-0"

Grades

for New Pavement 

Remove Ex. Curb

(Alternate 3)

Topsoil and Seed

and Restore with 

Play Surface

Remove Ex. Rubberized 

Including Gate Posts

Remove Existing Gate 

part of Building Addition

for Reinstallation as

Existing Benches 

Remove and Salvage 

in this Area

for Demolition Work 

Architectural Drawngs 

See Electrical and 

to be Removed

Signage, Flag Pole, etc. 

Existing Wall, Gate, Bollards

part of Building Addition

for Reinstallation as

Existing Benches 

Remove and Salvage 

Connection

Roof Drain 

Protect Existing

Hydrant

Remove Ex.

Foundation

Wall including Wall 

Remove Retaining 

Bench Footings

Benches and 

Remove Exising

and Pit

Long Jump Track 

Remove Existing

for Trees to be Preserved

See Landscape Plan

Site Clearing

to Remain (Typical)

Existing Lighting

Protect 

E:\ACTIVE-PROJECTS\44423-253512-Will\ENGR-BMB\44423-Civil Plans.dgn,  Model: CD-1.0.1,  Date: 8/27/2021

cgruba
Highlight

cgruba
Highlight

cgruba
Highlight



12345678

739

738

737

7
3
9

ADDITION

NEW 

CHELSEA 

INTERMEDIATE 

SCHOOL

736

735.5

735

W.  SAUK                 TRAIL

S
. 
 
8
0

T
H
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
V

E
N

U
E

W.  LARAWAY         ROAD

V

EXISTING 

DETENTION

BASIN

EXISTING 

DETENTION

BASIN

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23

© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.

C
o
p
y
ri

g
h
t 

2
0
2
1
 F

G
M

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

S
 I

N
C

.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD

WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187

630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.

CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200

NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540

630.717.5335 (O) 

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION

STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD

DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515

630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING

M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or 

preliminary or incomplete, not for 

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

21-3102.01

F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

1
5

7
-C

1
0
4
8
2
 W

e
s
t 

N
e
b
ra

s
k
a
 S

tr
e
e
t,

 F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
, 
IL

 6
0
4
2
3

ISSUANCE

NO DATE DESCRIPTION

N

Documents

09/06/21

C-1.0.1
Overall Paving  Plan

Plan
Overall Paving  

C-1.0.1

Sidewalk

Concrete

Sidewalk

Concrete
Sidewalk

Concrete

Sidewalk

Concrete

(Alternate 2)

and Replacement

Full HMA Removal 

(Base Bid)

Mill and Overlay

Hot Mix Asphalt
Match Existing

Pavement

Running Track 

Curb

B:6-12

Curb

B:6-12

Area

Landscape

Stripe

Parking Lot 

4" Yellow

Stripe

Parking Lot 

4" Yellow

Stripe

Parking Lot 

4" Yellow

Striping

ADA

Striping

ADA

PAVEMENT LEGEND:

2.5" HMA N-50 Binder Course
1.5" HMA N-50 Surface Course
Place 
Restore, Add, and Compact Stone Base as Needed.
Full Depth Remove Existing HMA
BID ALTERNATE - 2

1.5" HMA  N-50 Surface Course
HOT MIX ASPHALT MILL AND OVERLAY

Coordinate Joints with Architectural Plans
4" CA-6 Base
5" Concrete
CONCRETE SIDEWALK

1'=60'

Remain

Existing Asphalt to

Pole, and Striping

Hoops and Support 

Court, 2-Basketball 

New Basketball 

Surface

Equipment and 

New Playground

8" Aggregate Base
2.0" HMA Binder
1.5" HMA Surface Course
BASKETBALL COURT AND 4 SQUARE PAVING

(Match Existing)
Install per manufactures specfications
1" Surface modified I-II Mix 
Place new 1/2" Seal Flex
Remove existing Seal Flex and Surface Modified Mix
RUNNING TRACK PAVEMENT

Varied Depth  HMA N-50 Binder Base Course
1.5" HMA  N-50 Surface Course
HOT MIX ASPHALT MILL AND OVERLAY

TRENCH RESTORATION

6" CA-6 Base
8" Concrete. Class PV
BUS TURN AROUND CONCRETE PAVEMENT
BID ALTERNATE - 1

(Alternate 1)

Pavement

Concrete

Sidewalk

Existing

Restoration

Trench

Lights

Parking Lot 

Protect Ex.

Lights

Parking Lot 

Protect Ex.

Existing Fence

Remove and Replace 

Existing Fence

Remove and Replace 

Poured in Place Surface
PLAYGROUND SURFACE

Install per manufactures recomendaitopns
6" Aggregate Base
1.5" HMA Binder
1" Surface Modified I-II Mix over
1/2" Seal flex
RUNNING TRACK MILL AND OVERLAY

Mill and Overlay

Running Track 

PAVING AND CONCRETE PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS

 1. THE BITUMINOUS CONCRETE BINDER AND SURFACE COURSE SHALL COMPLY WITH THE STATE OF ILLINOIS CLASS I, AS SET FORTH IN SECTION 406 

 OF THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS. A PRIME COAT SHALL BE APPLIED TO THE BASE COURSE AT A RATE OF 0.40 GALLONS PER SQUARE YARD.

 2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR MAINTAINING THE BASE AND BINDER COURSE ON A SAFE AND PASSABLE CONDITION UNTIL THE 

 BASE IS SURFACED. SHOULD ANY CONDITION OCCUR WHICH WOULD CONSTITUTE A HAZARD TO VEHICULAR OR PEDESTRIAN TRAFFIC. 

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL DO WHATEVER IS REQUIRED TO RESTORE THE ROADWAY TO A SAFE CONDITION. 

 

 3. A PRIME COAT SHALL THEN BE APPLIED AT A RATE OF 0.15 GALLONS PER SQUARE YARD, AFTER WHICH BITUMINOUS SURFACE COURSE, CLASS I, 

 MODIFIED, SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED. 

PAVEMENT MIX SHALL BE:

BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT

BITUMINOUS SURFACE

HIGH ESAL IL 9.5, Mix D, N 50

BITUMINOUS BINDER

HIGH ESAL IL -19, N 50

CA-6 BASE AS NEEDED

4. CONCRETE PAVEMENT SHALL BE CONCRETE CLASS PV WITH FIBER REINFORCEMENT

CONSTRUCTED IN CONFORMANCE WITH SECTION 420 OF THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS AT THE 

LOCATIONS AND IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE DETAILS SHOWN ON THE PLANS. CONCRETE PAVMENT SHALL BE AT 4,000 PSI

AT 28 DAYS.  

5.  EXPANSION AND CONTRACTION JOINTS SHALL BE INSTALLED PER THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS AND 

PER THE LAYOUT SHOWN ON THE PLANS

6.  ALL SIDEWALKS SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM OF A 6 BAG MIX WITH A MINIMUM OF 28 DAY COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH OF 4000 PSI. 

THE SIDEWALKS WHEN CONSTRUCTED SHALL CONTAIN NOT LESS THAN FOUR (4) PERCENT, NO MORE THAN SEVEN (7) 

 PERCENT ENTRAINED AIR. THE SLUMP SHALL BE NOT LESS THAN TWO (2) INCHES, NOT MORE THAN FOUR (4) INCHES. ALL SIDEWALKS 

 CONSTRUCTED SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE IDOT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS.

7.  ALL EXPOSED CONCRETE WORK INCLUDING SIDEWALKS AND CURBS MUST HAVE CURING COMPOUND APPLIED IN ACCORDANCE 

WITH THE STATE  STANDARDS.

8.  PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTING THE BITUMINOUS SURFACE COURSE, THE BASE COURSE WILL BE REPAIRED TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE ENGINEER. 

 BASE AND BINDER REPAIR SHALL INCLUDE REMOVAL OF THE EXISTING BINDER, PREPARING AND PRIMING THE BASE COURSE AT THE SPECIFIED 

 RATE AND PLACING AND COMPACTING A MINIMUM OF TWO (2) INCHES OF CLASS I BINDER. PRIOR TO THE CONSTRUCTION THE SURFACE COURSE 

 THE BASE COURSE SHALL BE PREPARED TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE ENGINEER.

9.  THE CONSTRUCTION OF ALL PAVEMENT, CURBS AND GUTTERS, AND SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENTS, INCLUDING THE USE OF ALL MACHINERY, 

 EQUIPMENT AND TOOLS, AND THE FURNISHING OF ALL MATERIALS, AND THE CONSTRUCTION OF ALL OTHER WORK NECESSARY TO COMPLETE 

 THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS, SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED ACCORDING TO THE REQUIREMENTS AS OUTLINED IN THE STATE STANDARD 

 SPECIFICATIONS. THE MATERIAL FOR THOSE IMPROVEMENTS SHALL BE IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE APPROPRIATE SECTION OF THE STATE 

 STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS.

10.  ALL EXISTING MANHOLES AND BASINS SHALL BE ADJUSTED TO MEET FINISHED GRADE. THIS SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR.

11.  ALL PHASES OF IMPROVEMENTS WILL BE SUBJECT TO PERIODIC INSPECTION BY A REPRESENTATIVE OF THE ARCHITECT. NO PROJECTS WILL 

 BE ACCEPTED WITHOUT FINAL APPROVAL BY THE ARCHITECT.

12.  ALL PAVING IMPROVEMENTS INSTALLED WILL BE SUBJECT TO TESTING, AS PROVIDED FOR IN THESE SPECIFICATIONS AND IN THE STANDARD 

 SPECIFICATIONS. A COMPANY APPROVED BY THE  ENGINEER WILL PERFORM THE TESTING AT THE COST OF THE CONTRACTOR. IF ANY 

 IMPROVEMENTS ARE FOUND TO BE DEFECTIVE IN WORKMANSHIP OR MATERIALS, THAN THEY SHALL BE REMOVED AND REPLACED.

13.  THE SUBGRADE MATERIALS MUST BE PROOF-ROLLED AND TESTED PRIOR TO ANY PAVING IMPROVEMENTS. TESTING REPORTS MUST BE 

 SUBMITTED TO THE GEO TECHNICAL ENGINEER OR HIS DESIGNEE, FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL. BASE COURSE MATERIALS MUST ALSO BE INSPECTED AND 

 TESTED. DENSITY TESTING OF THE BASE COURSE MATERIALS IS REQUIRED. ALL TESTING REPORTS MUST BE SUBMITTED TO THE PROJECT MANAGER

 OR HIS DESIGNEE. TESTING WILL HAVE TO PASS A PROOF ROLL OF ONE QUARTER (¼) INCH DEFLECTION.

14. COLOR SIDEWALKS SHALL BE AS SPECIFIED ON THE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS

15. THE PAVEMENT AND ROAD/SIDEWALK CROSSING WORK SHALL BE COMPLETED  AS QUICKLY AS POSSIBLE 

TO MINIMIZE DISRUPTION TO TRAFFIC.

16. CONTRACTORS ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL UTILITY LOCATIONS DURING CONSTRUCTION.

replace with New Poured in Place Surface
Remove Existing Playground and
Alternate 3

and 2.5" HMA Binder Course
Place 1.5" HMA N-50 Surface Course
Restore, Add, and Compact Stone Base as Needed
Full Depth Remove Existing HMA
Alternate - 2

Remove and replace existing pavement with Concrete
Bus Turn Concrete Pavement
Alternate - 1

ALTERNATE SUMMARY

(Alternate 2)

and Replacement

Full HMA Removal 

(Base Bid)

Mill and Overlay

Hot Mix Asphalt

(Alternate 2)

and Replacement

Full HMA Removal 

(Base Bid)

Mill and Overlay

Hot Mix Asphalt

(Alternate 2)

and Replacement

Full HMA Removal 

(Base Bid)

Mill and Overlay

Hot Mix Asphalt

(Alternate 1)

Pavement

Concrete

(Alternate 2)

and Replacement

Full HMA Removal 

(Base Bid)

Mill and Overlay

Hot Mix Asphalt

Detention

for Added

Pavement Overlay

Basin

Proposed Detention

Patch Pavement as Needed

See Architectural Plans

New Gate

(Alternate 3)

Poured in Place Surface

Play Surface with 

Replace Existing 

FH

FH

FH

FH

FH

FH
FH

FH

1

000

Ref-3

1"=60'

FH

FH

FH

Playground

Pavement

4-Square

E:\ACTIVE-PROJECTS\44423-253512-Will\ENGR-BMB\44423-Civil Plans.dgn,  Model: C-1.0.1,  Date: 8/31/2021

cgruba
Highlight

cgruba
Highlight



CHELSEA 

INTERMEDIATE 

SCHOOL

W.  SAUK                 TRAIL

S
. 
 
8
0

T
H
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
V

E
N

U
E

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23

© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.

C
o
p
y
ri

g
h
t 

2
0
2
1
 F

G
M

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

S
 I

N
C

.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD

WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187

630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.

CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200

NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540

630.717.5335 (O) 

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION

STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD

DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515

630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING

M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or 

preliminary or incomplete, not for 

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

21-3102.01

F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

1
5

7
-C

1
0
4
8
2
 W

e
s
t 

N
e
b
ra

s
k
a
 S

tr
e
e
t,

 F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
, 
IL

 6
0
4
2
3

ISSUANCE

NO DATE DESCRIPTION

N

1'=20'

Documents

09/06/21

C-1.0.2
North Paving  Plan

Plan
North Paving  

C-1.0.2

Mill and Overlay

Hot Mix Asphalt

Stripe

Parking Lot 

4" Yellow

1
2
.5

0

34.00
30.00 39.5039.50

Mill and Overlay

Hot Mix Asphalt

2
0
.0

0

9.009.00

2
5
.0

0

9.00

9.00 9.00

24.00

24.00

1
8
.0

0

1
8
.0

0

2
7
.0

0

9.00

Striping

ADA

Alternate 1

Alternate 3

as Needed

Plans. Patch Pavement

Gate.  See Architectural

New Fence and

Easement

Existing

PAVEMENT LEGEND:

2.5" HMA N-50 Binder Course
1.5" HMA N-50 Surface Course
Place 
Restore, Add, and Compact Stone Base as Needed.
Full Depth Remove Existing HMA
BID ALTERNATE - 2

1.5" HMA  N-50 Surface Course
HOT MIX ASPHALT MILL AND OVERLAY

Coordinate Joints with Architectural Plans
4" CA-6 Base
5" Concrete
CONCRETE SIDEWALK

8" Aggregate Base
2.0" HMA Binder
1.5" HMA Surface Course
BASKETBALL COURT AND 4 SQUARE PAVING

(Match Existing)
Install per manufactures specfications
1" Surface modified I-II Mix 
Place new 1/2" Seal Flex
Remove existing Seal Flex and Surface Modified Mix
RUNNING TRACK PAVEMENT

Varied Depth  HMA N-50 Binder Base Course
1.5" HMA  N-50 Surface Course
HOT MIX ASPHALT MILL AND OVERLAY

TRENCH RESTORATION

6" CA-6 Base
8" Concrete. Class PV
BUS TURN AROUND CONCRETE PAVEMENT
BID ALTERNATE - 1

Poured in Place Surface
PLAYGROUND SURFACE

Install per manufactures recomendaitopns
6" Aggregate Base
1.5" HMA Binder
1" Surface Modified I-II Mix over
1/2" Seal flex
RUNNING TRACK MILL AND OVERLAY

replace with New Poured in Place Surface
Remove Existing Playground and
Alternate 3

and 2.5" HMA Binder Course
Place 1.5" HMA N-50 Surface Course
Restore, Add, and Compact Stone Base as Needed
Full Depth Remove Existing HMA
Alternate - 2

Remove and replace existing pavement with Concrete
Bus Turn Concrete Pavement
Alternate - 1

ALTERNATE SUMMARY

(Alternate 2)

and Replacement

Full HMA Removal 

(Base Bid)

Mill and Overlay

Hot Mix Asphalt

(Alternate 2)

and Replacement

Full HMA Removal 

(Base Bid)

Mill and Overlay

Hot Mix Asphalt

(Alternate 2)

and Replacement

Full HMA Removal 

(Base Bid)

Mill and Overlay

Hot Mix Asphalt

E:\ACTIVE-PROJECTS\44423-253512-Will\ENGR-BMB\44423-Civil Plans.dgn,  Model: C-1.0.2,  Date: 8/31/2021

cgruba
Highlight

cgruba
Highlight



ADDITION

NEW 

CHELSEA 

INTERMEDIATE 

SCHOOL

S
. 
 
8
0

T
H
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
V

E
N

U
E

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

C-1.0.2
North Paving  Plan

Plan
North Paving  

C-1.0.2

108.98

118.30
7
0
.0

0

8.00

1
2
.8

3

9
.1

9

1
5
.0

0

1
5
.0

0

12.19

1
9
.1

9

10.33

2
2
.1

8

9.57

1
2
.0

0

69.27

6
0
.9

9

7
0
.0

0

1
6
.6

3

2
.0

0

2
4
.0

0

1
3
.8

2

8.00 8.00

8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00

3
6
.0

0

9.00

2
4
.0

0

1
8
.0

0

2
4
.0

0

9.00

24.00

5.00

2.00

1
4
.5

4

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23

© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.

C
o
p
y
ri

g
h
t 

2
0
2
1
 F

G
M

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

S
 I

N
C

.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD

WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187

630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.

CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200

NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540

630.717.5335 (O) 

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION

STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD

DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515

630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING

M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or 

preliminary or incomplete, not for 

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

21-3102.01

F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

1
5

7
-C

1
0
4
8
2
 W

e
s
t 

N
e
b
ra

s
k
a
 S

tr
e
e
t,

 F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
, 
IL

 6
0
4
2
3

ISSUANCE

NO DATE DESCRIPTION

N

1'=20'

Documents

09/06/21

C-1.0.3
Addition Paving  Plan

Paving  Plan
Addition 

C-1.0.3

Sidewalk

Concrete

Sidewalk

Concrete

Sidewalk

Concrete

Sidewalk

Concrete

Sidewalk

ADA Textured

Mill and Overlay

Hot Mix Asphalt

Mill and Overlay

Hot Mix Asphalt

Curb

B:6-12

Curb

B:6-12

B:6-12 Curb

Depressed

Area

Landscape

B:6 Curb

Stripe

Parking Lot 

4" Yellow

Stripe

Parking Lot 

4" Yellow

Stripe

Parking Lot 

4" Yellow

Striping

ADA

and Structural Plans

See Architectural

Retaining Wall

Surface

Equipment and

New Playground

Court

New 4-Square

Plans

See Archectural 

Courtyard Paving

B:6 Curb

B:6-12 Curb

Depressed

B:6-12 Curb

Depressed

Binder

Overlay with 

Hot Mix Asphalt

Striping

Crosswalk

Bar

Stop

Area

Landscape

B:6 Curb

Area

Landscape

B:6 Curb

Area

Landscape

1
4

.3
2

1
2
.5

0

39.50

34.00
30.00

1
2
.5

0

34.00
30.00 39.5039.50

Pole

New Flag

Installation

from Sewer 

Repair Sidewalk

Restoration

Trench

Curb

Restore

Curb

Restore

Sidewalk

Restore

Color #1

Concrete

Color #2

Concrete

Color #3

Concrete

See Architectural Plans

Color Sidewalk

Front Entrance

Color #1

Concrete

Color #1

Concrete

Color #1

Concrete

B:6-12 Curb

Replace

Remove and 

B:6-12 Curb

Replace

Remove and 

Overlay

Mill and 

Pavement

20.00

2
6
.0

0
Turf

Artifical

Turf

Artifical

Sidewalk

Concrete

Sidewalk

Concrete

Wall

Seat

Alternate 1

Parking Lot

Offsite

Easement

(Typical)

Benches

Hydrant

Existing
PAVEMENT LEGEND:

2.5" HMA N-50 Binder Course
1.5" HMA N-50 Surface Course
Place 
Restore, Add, and Compact Stone Base as Needed.
Full Depth Remove Existing HMA
BID ALTERNATE - 2

1.5" HMA  N-50 Surface Course
HOT MIX ASPHALT MILL AND OVERLAY

Coordinate Joints with Architectural Plans
4" CA-6 Base
5" Concrete
CONCRETE SIDEWALK

8" Aggregate Base
2.0" HMA Binder
1.5" HMA Surface Course
BASKETBALL COURT AND 4 SQUARE PAVING

(Match Existing)
Install per manufactures specfications
1" Surface modified I-II Mix 
Place new 1/2" Seal Flex
Remove existing Seal Flex and Surface Modified Mix
RUNNING TRACK PAVEMENT

Varied Depth  HMA N-50 Binder Base Course
1.5" HMA  N-50 Surface Course
HOT MIX ASPHALT MILL AND OVERLAY

TRENCH RESTORATION

6" CA-6 Base
8" Concrete. Class PV
BUS TURN AROUND CONCRETE PAVEMENT
BID ALTERNATE - 1

Poured in Place Surface
PLAYGROUND SURFACE

Install per manufactures recomendaitopns
6" Aggregate Base
1.5" HMA Binder
1" Surface Modified I-II Mix over
1/2" Seal flex
RUNNING TRACK MILL AND OVERLAY

replace with New Poured in Place Surface
Remove Existing Playground and
Alternate 3

and 2.5" HMA Binder Course
Place 1.5" HMA N-50 Surface Course
Restore, Add, and Compact Stone Base as Needed
Full Depth Remove Existing HMA
Alternate - 2

Remove and replace existing pavement with Concrete
Bus Turn Concrete Pavement
Alternate - 1

ALTERNATE SUMMARY

(Alternate 2)

and Replacement

Full HMA Removal 

(Base Bid)

Mill and Overlay

Hot Mix Asphalt

(Alternate 2)

and Replacement

Full HMA Removal 

(Base Bid)

Mill and Overlay

Hot Mix Asphalt

E:\ACTIVE-PROJECTS\44423-253512-Will\ENGR-BMB\44423-Civil Plans.dgn,  Model: C-1.0.3,  Date: 8/31/2021

cgruba
Highlight

cgruba
Highlight



12345678

S
. 
 
8
0

T
H
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
V

E
N

U
E

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23

© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.

C
o
p
y
ri

g
h
t 

2
0
2
1
 F

G
M

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

S
 I

N
C

.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD

WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187

630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.

CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200

NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540

630.717.5335 (O) 

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION

STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD

DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515

630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING

M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or 

preliminary or incomplete, not for 

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

21-3102.01

F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

1
5

7
-C

1
0
4
8
2
 W

e
s
t 

N
e
b
ra

s
k
a
 S

tr
e
e
t,

 F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
, 
IL

 6
0
4
2
3

ISSUANCE

NO DATE DESCRIPTION

N

1'=20'

Documents

09/06/21

C-1.0.4
Track Paving  Plan

Plan
Track Paving  

C-1.0.4

Mill and Overlay

Hot Mix Asphalt

Mill and Overlay

Hot Mix Asphalt

per Owner Requirements

Pavement.  Provide Striping

Running Track 

Stripe

Parking Lot 

4" Yellow

Striping

ADA

Court

New Basketball

Curb

B:6

5
8
.0

0

94.00

22.18

28.90

2
2
.1

8

1
5
.5

7

1
6
.5

5

2
6

.9
0

Restoration

Trench

41.60

19.50

21.00

9
.0

0

40.28

21.00 19.50

and Replaced

to be Removed 

Existing Fence

and Replaced

to be Removed 

Existing Fence

Mill and Overlay

Running TrackMill and Overlay

Running Track

(Typical)

Benches

1

000

Ref-1

1"=20'

PAVEMENT LEGEND:

2.5" HMA N-50 Binder Course
1.5" HMA N-50 Surface Course
Place 
Restore, Add, and Compact Stone Base as Needed.
Full Depth Remove Existing HMA
BID ALTERNATE - 2

1.5" HMA  N-50 Surface Course
HOT MIX ASPHALT MILL AND OVERLAY

Coordinate Joints with Architectural Plans
4" CA-6 Base
5" Concrete
CONCRETE SIDEWALK

8" Aggregate Base
2.0" HMA Binder
1.5" HMA Surface Course
BASKETBALL COURT AND 4 SQUARE PAVING

(Match Existing)
Install per manufactures specfications
1" Surface modified I-II Mix 
Place new 1/2" Seal Flex
Remove existing Seal Flex and Surface Modified Mix
RUNNING TRACK PAVEMENT

Varied Depth  HMA N-50 Binder Base Course
1.5" HMA  N-50 Surface Course
HOT MIX ASPHALT MILL AND OVERLAY

TRENCH RESTORATION

6" CA-6 Base
8" Concrete. Class PV
BUS TURN AROUND CONCRETE PAVEMENT
BID ALTERNATE - 1

Poured in Place Surface
PLAYGROUND SURFACE

Install per manufactures recomendaitopns
6" Aggregate Base
1.5" HMA Binder
1" Surface Modified I-II Mix over
1/2" Seal flex
RUNNING TRACK MILL AND OVERLAY

replace with New Poured in Place Surface
Remove Existing Playground and
Alternate 3

and 2.5" HMA Binder Course
Place 1.5" HMA N-50 Surface Course
Restore, Add, and Compact Stone Base as Needed
Full Depth Remove Existing HMA
Alternate - 2

Remove and replace existing pavement with Concrete
Bus Turn Concrete Pavement
Alternate - 1

ALTERNATE SUMMARY

(Alternate 2)

and Replacement

Full HMA Removal 

(Base Bid)

Mill and Overlay

Hot Mix Asphalt

E:\ACTIVE-PROJECTS\44423-253512-Will\ENGR-BMB\44423-Civil Plans.dgn,  Model: C-1.0.4,  Date: 8/31/2021

cgruba
Highlight

cgruba
Highlight



7
4
2

7
4
1

741

7
4
1

7
4
1

7
4
0

7
4
0

7
4
0

7
4
0

7
4
0

7
4
0

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
7

7
3
7

7
3
7

7
3
7

7
3
7

7
3
7

737

7
3
7

7367
3
6

736

7
3
6

736

7
3
6

73
6

736

7
3
6

73
6

736

736

7
3
6

736

736

736

736

7
3
6

7
3
6

7
3
6

736

7
3
6

7
3
6

736

736

7
3
6

7
3
6

7
3
6

7
3
6

7
3
6

736

735

7
3
5

735

7
3
5

7
3
5

735

7
3
5

7
3
5

73
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

735

7
3
5

735

735

735

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

73
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

735

735735

735

734

7
3
4

734

7
3
4

734

7
3
4

7
3
4

7
3
4

7
3
4

73
4

7
3
4

7
3
3

7
3
3

73
3

73
3

7
3
3

7
3
3

7
3
3

7
3
3

733

73
3

732

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

73
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
1

731

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

730

7
3
0

7
3
0

7
3
0

7
3
0

7
3
0

7
2
9

7
2
9

7
2
9

7
2
9

7
2
9

7
2
9

7
2
8

7
2
8

728

7
2
7

7
2
7

7
2
6

7
2
6

+
7
3
6
.0
8

+
7
3
6
.0
2

7
3
6
.0
8
+

7
3
6
.0
8
+

7
3
5
.7
5
+

7
3
5
.7
5
+

7
3
5
.7
5
+

7
3
5
.7
5
+

7
3
5
.7
5
+

7
3
5
.6
0
+

7
3
6
.0
0
+

736.08+

7
3
6
.0
8
++

7
3
6
.0
0

7
3
5
.9
0
+

7
3
5
.8
5
+

7
3
6
.0

+

7
3
5
.7
0
+

7
3
5
.6
5
+

7
3
5
.5
0
+

7
3
5
.7
0
+

7
3
5
.7
0
+

7
3
5
.5
0
+

7
3
5
.2
0
+

+
7
3
6
.0
8+

7
3
6
.0

+
7
3
6
.0
0

+
7
3
9
.1
0

+
7
3
9
.1
0

7
3
9
.1
0
+

7
3
9
.1
0
+

7
3
8
.9

+

7
3
9
.2

+

+
7
3
6
.5
0

+
7
3
5
.1
0

+
7
3
5
.3
5

+
7
3
5
.5

+
7
3
6
.5
0

+
7
3
6
.5
0 +

7
3
8
.0
 T
/W

+
7
3
8
.0
 T
/W

+
7
3
8
.0
 T
/W

+
7
3
5
.2

+
7
3
5
.2

+
7
3
5
.2

+
7
3
5
.0

+
7
3
5
.0

+
7
3
5
.4

+
7
3
5
.7

7
3
5
.9
6
+

7
3
5
.1
8
+

7
3
6
.0
8
+

7
3
5
.7

+

7
3
4
.7

+

+
7
3
9
.0

+
7
3
9
.0

+
7
3
7
.6

+
7
3
6
.2
2

+
7
3
5
.0

+
7
3
5
.4

+
7
3
7
.0

+
7
3
7
.8

+
7
3
6
.2
5

+
7
3
6
.2
5

7
3
5
.7
4
+

7
3
5
.7
0
+

7
3
5
.9
6
+

7
3
6
.1
0
+

7
3
6
.2
7
+

T
/C
 7
3
6
.1
2
+

T
/C
 7
3
5
.9
8
+

T
/C
 7
3
6
.2
4
+

+
7
3
6
.0
5

+
7
3
6
.0
3

+
7
3
6
.1
0

7
3
5
.9
0
+

7
3
5
.9
0
+

7
3
5
.5
9
+

734.75+734.30+

7
3
5
.1
0
+

+
7
3
4
.5
0

7
3
4
.5
0
+

T
/C
 7
3
5
.2
5
+

T/C 735.00+

T/C 735.68+

T/C 736.09+

T/C 735.98+

+
7
3
5
.5

+
7
3
5
.3

+
7
3
5
.5
0

+
7
3
5
.5
0

+
7
3
4
.1
7

+
7
3
5
.6
57

3
5
.9

+
7
3
5
.7

+

7
3
5
.5

+

7
3
5
.1

+

+
7
3
5
.6
5

+
7
3
5
.3
5

+
7
3
5
.1
4

7
3
5
.3
1
+ +

7
3
5
.6
1

7
3
5
.6
1
+

734.84+

+
7
3
4
.6
2

+
7
3
5
.5

+735.80

+736.21

+
7
3
6
.1
0

+
7
3
6
.0

+
7
3
5
.8

+
7
3
5
.7
5

7
3
8
.5
7
+

7
3
8
.5
7
+

+
7
3
7
.8

+
7
3
7
.5

+
7
3
5
.1
0

+
7
3
5
.1
0

+
7
3
5
.6
0
 T
/C

+
7
3
5
.6
0
 T
/C

+
7
3
5
.3
0

FFE 736.10

ADDITION

NEW 

CHELSEA 

INTERMEDIATE 

SCHOOL

+
7
3
4
.3
0

+
7
3
5
.6
0

+
7
3
5
.4
7

+
7
3
5
.7

+
7
3
5
.7

+
7
3
5
.7

+
7
3
5
.7

+
7
3
5
.7

+
7
3
5
.7

+
7
3
5
.8
5

+
7
3
5
.8
0

+
7
3
4
.6
1

+
7
3
5
.2
1

+
7
3
5
.7
0

+
7
3
5
.7
0

7
3
5

7
3
5

+
7
3
4
.4
0

+
7
3
5
.8

+
7
3
5
.8

+
7
3
5
.7

+
7
3
5
.7

+
7
3
5
.5

+
7
3
5
.5

+
7
3
4
.4
0

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

+
7
3
5
.5

+
7
3
5
.6

7
4
1

7
4
07

3
97
3
8

7
3
7

7
3
6

735

736

73
67

3
6

737 737

738

739

739

738

7
3
8

7
3
9

7
3
7

7
3
7

7
3
6

7
3
8

7
3
9

7
3
6
.1
5
+

+
7
3
6
.0
8

+
7
3
6
.0
8

7
3
5
.9

+

7
3
5
.0

+

+
7
3
5
.7

7
3
5
.7

+

S
. 
 
8
0

T
H
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
V

E
N

U
E

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

1.5%

1.5%

1.5%

7
3
5
.7

+

7
3
5
.4

+

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23

© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.

C
o
p
y
ri

g
h
t 

2
0
2
1
 F

G
M

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

S
 I

N
C

.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD

WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187

630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.

CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200

NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540

630.717.5335 (O) 

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION

STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD

DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515

630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING

M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or 

preliminary or incomplete, not for 

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

21-3102.01

F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

1
5

7
-C

1
0
4
8
2
 W

e
s
t 

N
e
b
ra

s
k
a
 S

tr
e
e
t,

 F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
, 
IL

 6
0
4
2
3

ISSUANCE

NO DATE DESCRIPTION

N

1'=20'

Documents

09/06/21

C-1.0.6
Addition Grading Plan

Grading Plan
Addition 

C-1.0.6

Contours

Proposed

Contours

Proposed

Typical

Protection

Inlet 

Wall

Retaining 

Storm Sewer

Relocated 36"

of the Addition
Proposed North 
No Grading 

Elevation

High Water

Overflow

Pavement for Basin 

Raise Curb and 

E:\ACTIVE-PROJECTS\44423-253512-Will\ENGR-BMB\44423-Civil Plans.dgn,  Model: C-1.0.6,  Date: 8/31/2021

cgruba
Highlight

cgruba
Highlight



750

7
5
0

750

74
9

749

749

7
4
9

7
4
9

748

748

748748

748

7
4
7

747

747

747747

746

746

746

746

746

746

7
4
6

7
4
5

745

745

745745

7
4
5

744

744

744

744

744

744

743

743

743
743

743

743

743

7
4
2

742

742

742

742

7
4
2

7
4
2

741

7
4
1

741

741

741

741

741

7
4
1

7
4
1

7
4
0

7
4
0

74
0

740

740

74
0

740

7
4
0

7
4
0

7
4
0

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

739

7
3
9

739

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

73
9

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

739

7
3
9

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

738

7
3

8
7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

738

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
7

737

7
3
7

737

7
3
7

7
3
7

737

7
3
7

737

7
3
7

7
3
7

7
3
7

737

7
3
7

7
3
7

737

7
3
7

7
3
7

7
3
7

736

7
3
6

7
3
6

7
3
6

73
6

736

7
3
6

736

736

736

7
3
6

7
3
6

7
3
6

7
3
6

7
3
6

736
736

7
3
6

7
3
6

7
3
6

736

735

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

735

735

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

735

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

735

735735

735

7
3
4

7
3
4

7
3
4

734

7
3
4

7
3
4

7
3
4

734

73
4

7
3
4

7
3
3

7
3
3

7
3
3

733

7
3
3

7
3
3

7
3
3

73
3

733

73
3

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

731

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

730

7
3
0

7
3
0

730

7
3
0

7
3
0

7
3
0

7
2
9

7
2
9

736.08+

7
3
6
.0
8
++

7
3
6
.0
0

7
3
5
.9
0
+

7
3
5
.8
5
+

7
3
6
.0

+

7
3
5
.7
0
+

7
3
5
.6
5
+

7
3
5
.5
0
+

7
3
5
.7
0
+

7
3
5
.7
0
+

7
3
5
.5
0
+

7
3
5
.2
0
+

+
7
3
6
.0
8

+
7
3
6
.0
0

+
7
3
9
.1
0

+
7
3
9
.1
0

+
7
3
9
.1
0

7
3
9
.1
0
+

7
3
9
.1
0
+

7
3
8
.9

+

748

749

750

7
3
9
.2

+

+
7
3
6
.5
0

+
7
3
5
.1
0

+
7
3
5
.3
5

+
7
3
5
.5

+
7
3
6
.5
0

+
7
3
6
.5
0 +

7
3
8
.0
 T
/W

+
7
3
8
.0
 T
/W

+
7
3
8
.0
 T
/W

+
7
3
5
.4

+
7
3
5
.7

7
3
5
.9
6
+

7
3
5
.7

+

7
3
4
.7

+

+
7
3
9
.0

+
7
3
9
.0

+
7
3
7
.6

+
7
3
6
.2
2

+
7
3
5
.0

+
7
3
5
.4

+
7
3
7
.0

+
7
3
7
.8

+
7
3
6
.2
5

+
7
3
6
.2
5

7
3
5
.7
4
+

7
3
5
.7
0
+

7
3
5
.9
6
+

7
3
6
.1
0
+

7
3
6
.2
7
+

T
/C
 7
3
6
.1
2
+

T
/C
 7
3
5
.9
8
+

T
/C
 7
3
6
.2
4
+

+
7
3
6
.0
5

+
7
3
6
.0
3

+
7
3
6
.1
0

7
3
5
.9
0
+

T/C 735.98+

+
7
3
6
.1
0

+
7
3
5
.8

+
7
3
5
.7
5

7
3
8
.5
7
+

7
3
8
.5
7
+

7
3
8
.5
7
+

7
3
8
.5
7
+

+
7
3
8
.5
7

+
7
3
8
.5
7

+
7
3
9
.5

+
7
3
9
.5

+
7
3
9
.5

+
7
3
9
.5

7
3
9
.9

+

7
3
9
.9

+

7
3
9
.9

+

7
3
9
.2

+
+
7
3
8
.9

+
7
3
8
.9

+
7
3
9
.2

+
7
3
9
.1
0

+
7
3
7
.8

+
7
3
7
.5

+
7
3
5
.1
0

+
7
3
5
.1
0

+
7
3
5
.6
0
 T
/C

+
7
3
5
.6
0
 T
/C

+
7
3
5
.3
0

12345678

+
7
3
8
.7

+
7
3
8
.2

+
7
3
5
.8

+
7
3
5
.7

+
7
3
4
.4
0

7
3
5

735

736

73
67

3
6

737 737

738

739

739

738

7
3
8

7
3
9

7
3
7

7
3
7

7
3
6

7
3
8

7
3
9

S
. 
 
8
0

T
H
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
V

E
N

U
E

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23

© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.

C
o
p
y
ri

g
h
t 

2
0
2
1
 F

G
M

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

S
 I

N
C

.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD

WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187

630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.

CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200

NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540

630.717.5335 (O) 

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION

STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD

DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515

630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING

M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or 

preliminary or incomplete, not for 

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

21-3102.01

F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

1
5

7
-C

1
0
4
8
2
 W

e
s
t 

N
e
b
ra

s
k
a
 S

tr
e
e
t,

 F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
, 
IL

 6
0
4
2
3

ISSUANCE

NO DATE DESCRIPTION

N

1'=20'

Documents

09/06/21

C-1.0.7
Track Grading Plan

Grading Plan
Track 

C-1.0.7

Contours

Proposed

withing project area = 0.25 ac. ft

for added CN and and rainfall

Additional Volume Required 

Proposed CN Within Disturbed Area = 91.3

Existing CN within Disturbed Area= 84.1

Disturbed Area = 3.04 ac.

Watershed = 5.71 ac.

South Basin Additional Detention Required

Volume Provided = 4.05 ac. ft.

Original Volume Required = 3.40 ac. ft.

NWL = 729.0

HWL = 735.32

Existing Detention Summary

E:\ACTIVE-PROJECTS\44423-253512-Will\ENGR-BMB\44423-Civil Plans.dgn,  Model: C-1.0.7,  Date: 8/31/2021

cgruba
Highlight

cgruba
Highlight



751

751

75
0

750

7
4
9

749

7
4
9

7
4
9

7
4
9

74
9

749

749

748

748

7
4
8

748

748

748

74
8

7
4
8

7
4
8

748

748

748

7
4
7

747

747

747

747

747

74
7

7
4
7

7
4
7

747

747

746

746

746

746

7
4
6

7
4
6

7
4
6

746

746

746

7
4
6

7
4
5

745

745

7
4
5

7
4
5

7
4
5

745

745

745

7
4
4

744

744

7
4
4

7
4

4

744

744

744

744

7
4
3

743

743

7
4
3

7
4
3

743

743

743
743

742

742

742

742

7
4
2

7
4
2

742

742

742

741

7
4
1

741

741

7
4
1

7
4
1

7
4
1

741

741

741

741

740

740

740

740
7
4
0

7
4
0

74
0

740

740

74
0

740

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

739

7
3
9

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

739

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

739

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

73
9

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

739

738

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

738

73
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

738

7
3

8

7
3
8

7
3
8

738

7
3
7

737

737

737

737

7
3
7

7
3
7

737

73
7

7
3
7

7
3
7

737

7
3
7

7
3
7

737

7
3
7

7
3
7

736

7
3
6

7
3
6

736

7
3
6

7
3
6

736

7
3
6

736

73
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

734

7
3
4

7
3
3

7
3
2

7
3
1

7
3
0

736

737

738

7
4
0

7
4
1

7
4
2

7
4
3

7
4
4

7
4
5

7
4
6

7
4
7

748

749

749

748

747

747

750

750

+
7
3
8
.7

Basin Outlet = 735.5

HWL = 739.0

Detention Provided = 0.96 ac. ft.

Detention Required = 0.78 ac. ft.

CN = 78.0

Disturbed Area = 2.29 ac.

South Parcel Detention Summary

739

739

738

737

7
3
9

736

735.5

735

Inv = 735.5

w/ Trash Rack

12" RCP FES

2
0
-ft
 1

2
"
 R

C
P
 

@
 0
.5

0
%

Inv = 735.25

w/ Trash Rack

12" RCP FES

1
8
-ft
 1

2
"
 R

C
P
 

@
 0
.5

0
%

Type I O.L.

4' Dia. CH

2.5" dia. Restrictor

Inv = 735.34

Rim = 739.2

ST-20

W.  LARAWAY         ROAD

MATCHLINEMATCHLINE

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23

© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.

C
o
p
y
ri

g
h
t 

2
0
2
1
 F

G
M

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

S
 I

N
C

.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD

WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187

630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.

CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200

NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540

630.717.5335 (O) 

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION

STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD

DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515

630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING

M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or 

preliminary or incomplete, not for 

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

21-3102.01

F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

1
5

7
-C

1
0
4
8
2
 W

e
s
t 

N
e
b
ra

s
k
a
 S

tr
e
e
t,

 F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
, 
IL

 6
0
4
2
3

ISSUANCE

NO DATE DESCRIPTION

N

1'=20'

Documents

09/06/21

C-1.0.8
South Lot Grading Plan

Grading Plan
South Lot 

C-1.0.8

Swale

Bypass

Swale

Bypass

School Addition

Excavated Material from

Estimated Soil Fill Area. 

all Disturbed Areas

Control Blanket on

Provide Erosion

all Disturbed Areas

Control Blanket on

Provide Erosion

Contour

Proposed

E:\ACTIVE-PROJECTS\44423-253512-Will\ENGR-BMB\44423-Civil Plans.dgn,  Model: C-1.0.8,  Date: 8/27/2021

cgruba
Highlight

cgruba
Highlight



752

752

751

7
5
1

7
5
1

751

751

751

751

7
5
1

750

75
0

750

750

7
5
0

75
0

7
5
0

750

7
5
0

7
5
0

7
4
9

749

7
4
9

749

7
4
9

749

7
4
9

74
9

749

749

7
4
9

7
4
9

748

748

7
4
8

748

748

748

74
8

7
4
8

7
4
8

748

748

748748

748

7
4
7

747

747

747

747

747

74
7

7
4
7

7
4
7

747

747

747747

746

746

746

746

746

746

7
4
6

7
4
6

7
4
6

746

746

746

7
4
6

7
4
5

745

745

7
4
5

7
4
5

7
4
5

745

745

745745

7
4
5

7
4
4

744

744

7
4
4

7
4
4

744

744

744

744

744

744

7
4
3

743

743

7
4
3

7
4
3

743

743

743
743

743

743

743

7
4
2

742

742

742

742

7
4
2

7
4
2

742

742

742

742

7
4
2

7
4
2

7
4
2

7
4
1

741

7
4
1

7
4
1

741

7
4
1

7
4
1

7
4
1

741

741

7
4
1

7
4
1

7
4
1

741

741

741

741

741

7
4
1

7
4
1

7
4
0

7
4
0

740

7
4
0

7
4
0

7
4
0

740

7
4
0

7
4
0

7
4
0

740

740

740

740

7
4
0

7
4
0

74
0

740

740

74
0

740

7
4
0

7
4
0

7
4
0

7
3
9

739

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

739

7
3
9

739

739

7
3
9

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

739

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

739

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

73
9

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3

9

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

739

7
3
9

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

738

738

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

738

73
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

738

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

738

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
7

737

737

737

7
3
7

7
3
7

737

737

7
3
7

7
3
7

737

73
7

7
3
7

7
3
7

737

7
3
7

7
3
7

7
3
7

7
3
7

7
3
7

737

7
3
7

7
3
7

7
3
7

737

7
3
7

7
3
7

737

7
3
7

7
3
7

7
3
7

7
3
7

736

736

7
3
6

7
3
6

736

7
3
6

7
3
6

736

736

7
3
6

736

7
3
6

736

7
3
6

73
6

736

7
3
6

736

73
6

736

736

7
3
6

736

7
3
6

736

736

736

736

736

7
3
6

7
3
6

7
3
6

736

7
3
6

7
3
6

736

736

7
3
6

7
3
6

7
3
6

736

7
3
6

7
3
6

7
3
6

7
3
6

7
3
6

7
3
6

7
3
6

7
3
6

736
736

7
3
6

7
3
6

7
3
6

736

73
5

735

7
3
5

735

7
3
5

7
3
5

735

7
3
5

7
3
5

73
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

735

7
3
5

7
3
5

735

7
3
5

735

735

735

7
3
5

7
3
5

735

7
3
5

7
3
5

73
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

735

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

735

735735

735

734

7
3
4

7
3
4

7
3
4

734

7
3
4

7
3
4

7
3
4

734

7
3
4

734

734

734

7
3
4

7
3
4

7
3
4

7
3
4

73
4

7
3
4

7
3
3

7
3
3

7
3
3

7
3
3

733

7
3
3

7
3
3

7
3
3

73
3

733

73
3

7
3
3

7
3
3

7
3
3

7
3
3

733

73
3

732

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

73
2

7
3
2

732

73
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

731

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

730

7
3
0

7
3
0

730

7
3
0

7
3
0

7
3
0

7
3
0

7
3
0

7
3
0

7
3
0

7
3
0

7
3
0

7
3
0

7
2
9

7
2
9

7
2
9

7
2
9

7
2
9

7
2
9

7
2
9

7
2
9

7
2
9

7
2
8

7
2
8

7
2
8

7
2
8

7
2
8

728

7
2
8

7
2
7

7
2
7

72
7

7
2
7

7
2
7

7
2
7

7
2
7

7
2
6

7
2
6

7
2
6

7
2
5

7
2
5

7
2
5

736
737

738

7
4
0

7
4
1

7
4
2

7
4
3

7
4
4

7
4
5

7
4
6

7
4
7

748

749

749

748

747

747

750

750

12345678

739
739

738
737

7
3
9

ADDITION

NEW 

CHELSEA 

INTERMEDIATE 

SCHOOL

+
7
3
4
.6
1

+
7
3
5
.2
1

+
7
3
5
.7
0

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
4
1

7
4
0

7
3
9

7
3
8

7
3
77
3
6

736

735.5

735

735

736

73
67

3
6

737 737
738

739

739

738

7
3
8

7
3
9

7
3
7

7
3
7

7
3
6

7
3
8

7
3
9

S
. 
 

8
0

T
H
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
V

E
N

U
E

W.  LARAWAY         ROAD

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23

© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.

C
o
p
y
ri

g
h
t 

2
0
2
1
 F

G
M

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

S
 I

N
C

.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD

WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187

630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.

CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200

NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540

630.717.5335 (O) 

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION

STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD

DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515

630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING

M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or 

preliminary or incomplete, not for 

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

21-3102.01

F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

1
5

7
-C

1
0

4
8

2
 W

e
s
t 

N
e
b

ra
s
k

a
 S

tr
e
e
t,

 F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

, 
IL

 6
0

4
2

3

ISSUANCE

NO DATE DESCRIPTION

N

Documents

09/06/21

C-1.0.9
Overall Utility Plan

Plan
Overall Utility 

C-1.0.9

V

V

X X

Legend

SANITARY CLEANOUT

FLARED END SECTION

GAS VALVE

TRANSFORMER

ELECTRICAL BOX

CABLE T.V. BOX

TELEPHONE BOX

TELEPHONE MANHOLE

B-BOX

WATER VALVE

SIGN

FLAG POLE

MAILBOX

POST INDICATOR VALVE

GAS METER

ELECTRIC METER

PROPOSED WATER VALVE VLT

PROPOSED SANITARY MANHOLE

EXISTING SANITARY MANHOLE

EXISTING WATER VALVE VAULT

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT

PROPOSED STORM MANHOLE

EXISTING STORM MANHOLE

EXISTING STORM CATCH BASIN

PROPOSED STORM CATCH BASIN

EXISTING STORM INLET

PROPOSED STORM INLET

TRAFFIC SIGNAL VAULT

RAILROAD SIGNAL VAULT

UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC

UNDERGROUND GAS

UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE

WATER MAIN

UNDERGROUND CABLE T.V.

UTILITY POLE

OVERHEAD WIRES

OVERHEAD LIGHT POLE

TRAFFIC SIGNAL POLE

RAILROAD SIGNAL POLE

SANITARY SEWER

EXISTING STORM SEWER

FENCE LINE

ELECTRIC MANHOLE

GUARD RAIL

PINE TREE

DECIDUOUS TREE

DROVE IRON PIPE

FOUND IRON PIPE

OVERFLOW ARROW

PROPOSED LIGHT POLE

EXISTING LIGHT POLE

PROPOSED WATER MAIN

PROPOSED STORM SEWER

RECORD DIMENSION

MEASURED DIMENSION

OH

E

G

T

C T

W

R

E

G

B

M

R

DOWNSPOUT

EXISTING COMBINED SEWER

FE

TW

FLOOR ELEVATION

TOP OF WALL

TC TOP OF CURB

FL CURB FLOW LINE

CO

W

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER

COMBINED SEWER

E:\ACTIVE-PROJECTS\44423-253512-Will\ENGR-BMB\44423-Civil Plans.dgn,  Model: C-1.0.9,  Date: 8/31/2021

cgruba
Highlight

cgruba
Highlight

cgruba
Highlight



7
4
2

7
4
1

741

7
4
1

7
4
1

7
4
0

7
4
0

7
4
0

7
4
0

7
4
0

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3

9

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
7

7
3
7

7
3
7

7
3
7

7
3
7

7
3
7

737

7
3
7

7367
3
6

736

7
3
6

736

7
3
6

73
6

736

7
3
6

73
6

736

736

7
3
6

736

736

736

736

7
3

6

7
3
6

7
3
6

736

7
3
6

7
3
6

736

736

7
3
6

7
3
6

7
3
6

7
3
6

7
3
6

7
3
6

736

735

7
3
5

735

7
3
5

7
3
5

735

7
3
5

7
3
5

73
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

735

7
3
5

735

735

735

7
3
5

7
3
5

73
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

735

735735

735

734

7
3
4

734

7
3
4

734

7
3
4

7
3
4

7
3
4

7
3
4

73
4

7
3
4

7
3
3

7
3
3

73
3

73
3

7
3
3

7
3
3

7
3
3

7
3
3

733

73
3

732

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

73
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
1

731

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

730

7
3
0

7
3
0

7
3
0

7
3
0

7
3
0

7
2
9

7
2
9

7
2
9

7
2
9

7
2
9

7
2
9

7
2
8

7
2
8

728

7
2
7

7
2
7

7
2
6

7
2
6

+
7
3
6
.0
8

+
7
3
6
.0
2

7
3
6
.0
8
+

7
3
6
.0
8
+

7
3
5
.7
5
+

7
3
5
.7
5
+

7
3
5
.7
5
+

7
3
5
.7
5
+

7
3
5
.7
5
+

7
3
5
.6
0
+

7
3
6
.0
0
+

736.08+

7
3
6
.0
8
++

7
3
6
.0
0

7
3
5
.9
0
+

7
3
5
.8
5
+

7
3
6
.0

+

7
3
5
.7
0
+

7
3
5
.6
5
+

7
3
5
.5
0
+

7
3
5
.7
0
+

7
3
5
.7
0
+

7
3
5
.5
0
+

7
3
5
.2
0
+

+
7
3
6
.0
8+

7
3
6
.0

+
7
3
6
.0
0

+
7
3
9
.1
0

+
7
3
9
.1
0

7
3
9
.1
0
+

7
3
9
.1
0
+

7
3
8
.9

+

7
3
9
.2

+

+
7
3
6
.5
0

+
7
3
5
.1
0

+
7
3
5
.3
5

+
7
3
5
.5

+
7
3
6
.5
0

+
7
3
6
.5
0 +

7
3
8
.0
 T
/W

+
7
3
8
.0
 T
/W

+
7
3
8
.0
 T
/W

+
7
3
5
.2

+
7
3
5
.2

+
7
3
5
.2

+
7
3
5
.0

+
7
3
5
.0

+
7
3
5
.4

+
7
3
5
.7

7
3
5
.9
6
+

7
3
5
.1
8
+

7
3
6
.0
8
+

7
3
5
.7

+

7
3
4
.7

+

+
7
3
9
.0

+
7
3
9
.0

+
7
3
7
.6

+
7
3
6
.2
2

+
7
3
5
.0

+
7
3
5
.4

+
7
3
7
.0

+
7
3
7
.8

+
7
3
6
.2
5

+
7
3
6
.2
5

7
3
5
.7
4
+

7
3
5
.7
0
+

7
3
5
.9
6
+

7
3
6
.1
0
+

7
3
6
.2
7
+

T
/C
 7
3
6
.1
2
+

T
/C
 7
3
5
.9
8
+

T
/C
 7
3
6
.2
4
+

+
7
3
6
.0
5

+
7
3
6
.0
3

+
7
3
6
.1
0

7
3
5
.9
0
+

7
3
5
.9
0
+

7
3
5
.5
9
+

734.75+734.30+

7
3
5
.1
0
+

+
7
3
4
.5
0

7
3
4
.5
0
+

T
/C
 7
3
5
.2
5
+

T/C 735.00+

T/C 735.68+

T/C 736.09+

T/C 735.98+

+
7
3
5
.5

+
7
3
5
.3

+
7
3
5
.5
0

+
7
3
5
.5
0

+
7
3
4
.1
7

+
7
3
5
.6
57

3
5
.9

+
7
3
5
.7

+

7
3
5
.5

+

7
3
5
.1

+

+
7
3
5
.6
5

+
7
3
5
.3
5

+
7
3
5
.1
4

7
3
5
.3
1
+ +

7
3
5
.6
1

7
3
5
.6
1
+

734.84+

+
7
3
4
.6
2

+
7
3
5
.5

+735.80

+736.21

+
7
3
6
.1
0

+
7
3
6
.0

+
7
3
5
.8

+
7
3
5
.7
5

7
3
8
.5
7
+

7
3
8
.5
7
+

+
7
3
7
.8

+
7
3
7
.5

+
7
3
5
.1
0

+
7
3
5
.1
0

+
7
3
5
.6
0
 T
/C

+
7
3
5
.6
0
 T
/C

+
7
3
5
.3
0

FFE 736.10

+
7
3
4
.3
0

+
7
3
5
.6
0

+
7
3
5
.4
7

+
7
3
5
.7

+
7
3
5
.7

+
7
3
5
.7

+
7
3
5
.7

+
7
3
5
.7

+
7
3
5
.7

+
7
3
5
.8
5

+
7
3
5
.8
0

+
7
3
5
.7
0

+
7
3
4
.4
0

+
7
3
5
.8

+
7
3
5
.8

+
7
3
5
.7

+
7
3
5
.7

+
7
3
5
.5

+
7
3
5
.5

+
7
3
4
.4
0

+
7
3
5
.5

+
7
3
5
.6

Inv = 727.2

Connection

8
7
-f
t
 6

"
 P

V
C
 S

D
R
 2

6
 @
 1
.0

%

1
2
6
-f
t
 6

"
 P

V
C
 S

D
R
 2

6
 @
 1
.0

%

26 @ 2.0%

5-ft 6" PVC SDR 

Inv = 728.02

Rim = 735.2

SA-1

Inv = 729.28

Rim = 735.7

SA-2

Inv = 729.38

Top of Sanitary = 727.8

Bottom of Storm = 730.15

Rim = 738.0

VV-1

8
"
 D

IW
M

8
"
 D

IW
M

8" DIWM

8
" D

IW
M

8
" D

IW
M

8" DIWM

Connect to Ex.

8" DIWM

Connect to Ex.

Rim = 734.8

VV-2

G.R.= 736.5

FH-1

7
3
6
.1
5
+

+
7
3
6
.0
8

+
7
3
6
.0
8

7
3
5
.9

+

7
3
5
.0

+

+
7
3
5
.7

7
3
5
.7

+

Inv = 

ex. 30" RCP

Connect to

to 735.4

Adjust Rim

Type I O.L.

3' Dia. CB

NW Inv = 731.0

E-W Inv = 734.0

Rim = 738.0

ST-16

5
0
-ft 1

2
"
 R

C
P
 @
 0
.5

0
%

50-ft 12" RCP @ 0.50%

6
1
-ft 1

2
"
 R

C
P
 @
 0
.5

0
%

Type I O.L.

2' Dia. INL

Inv = 730.3

Rim = 736.25

ST-17

Type I O.L.

3' INL

Inv = 732.0

Rim = 735.0

ST-20

730.75

Inv = 

S
. 
 
8
0

T
H
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
V

E
N

U
E

Type I O.L.

4' dia. CB

Inv = 730.85

Rim = 735.8

ST-21

@ 1.0%

19-ft 10" PVC

@ 1.0%

27-ft 12" PVC Perforated

@ 1.0%

9-ft 12" PVC
@ 1.0%

21-ft 12" PVC

@ 0.67%

15-ft 18" PVC

Inv = 730.94

731.06

Inv = 

732.8

Inv = 

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

1.5%

1.5%

1.5%

Tile

Perforated Drain 

75-ft 4" PVC

Out

Clean

Out

Clean

Drain Tile

Perforated 

23-ft 4" PVC

Perforated

135-ft 4"  PVC

Drain Tile

Perforated

78-ft 4"  PVC

Drain Tile

Perforated 

66-ft 4"  PVC

Drain Tile

Perforated

50-ft 4"  PVC

C.O.

C.O.

C.O.

C.O.

7
3
5
.7

+

Drain Tile

Perforated 

22-ft 4" PVC

Drain Tile

Perforated 

46-ft 4" PVC

Out

Clean

Drain

Ex. Roof 

Connect to

Existing MH

 N (match)729.49'INV= 

 S (connection)729.49'INV= 

734.30'Lower RIM to 

Ext-5355

Type 1 Open Lid

5-ft CB Type A

 NE729.03'INV= 

 W729.03'INV= 

737.00'RIM= 

ST-2.1

Type 1 Open Lid

5-ft CB Type A

 E729.08'INV= 

 SW729.08'INV= 

735.00'RIM= 

ST-2.2

Type 1 Open Lid

4-ft CB Type A

 N731.50'INV= 

735.50'RIM= 

ST-1.3

7
3
5
.4

+

G.R.= 735.8

FH-2

Sewer Route

and Roof Drain

Courtyard

Bottom of Storm = 731.0

Top of Water = 729.5

Bottom of Storm = 730.4

Top of Water = 729.9

= 727.7

Top of Water 

Storm = 729.2

Bottom of 

61-ft 12" RCP @ 0.50%

Type 1 Open Lid

4-ft CB Type A

 E730.50'INV= 

 N730.80'INV= 

 SW729.32'INV= 

735.20'RIM= 

ST-1.1

Type 1 Open Lid

4-ft CB Type A

 SE731.00'INV= 

 S731.00'INV= 

 W730.70'INV= 

735.30'RIM= 

ST-1.2

Type 1 Open Lid

4-ft CB Type A

 N731.50'INV= 

735.50'RIM= 

ST-1.3

Type 1 Open Lid

4-ft CB Type A

 E731.50'INV= 

 NW731.50'INV= 

735.50'RIM= 

ST-1.4

728.84'INV= 

w/ Trash Rack

36" FES

Type 1 Open Lid

5-ft CB Type A

 NE729.03'INV= 

 W729.03'INV= 

737.00'RIM= 

ST-2.1

Type 1 Open Lid

5-ft CB Type A

 E729.08'INV= 

 SW729.08'INV= 

735.00'RIM= 

ST-2.2

Type 1 Open Lid

5-ft CB Type A

 NE729.20'INV= 

 W729.20'INV= 

734.70'RIM= 

ST-2.3

Type 1 Open Lid

5-ft CB Type A

 N729.26'INV= 

 SW729.26'INV= 

734.40'RIM= 

ST-2.4

Type 1 Open Lid

5-ft CB Type A

 W730.30'INV= 

 N729.38'INV= 

 S729.38'INV= 

734.40'RIM= 

ST-2.5

Existing MH

 N (match)729.49'INV= 

 S (connection)729.49'INV= 

734.30'Lower RIM to 

Ext-5355

%0.50" RCP @ 15  40 ft

%
1
.0

6
"
 R

C
P
 @
 

1
2

  
4
7
 f
t

%

1
.8

6

@
 

" R
C
P

1
2

  

2
7
 ft

731.60'Inv= 

Roof Drain

%0.99" PVC @ 12  10 ft

730.60'Inv= 

Roof Drain

%0.97" PVC @ 12  31 ft

731.60'Inv= 

Roof Drain

%1.03" PVC @ 15  78 ft

%0.10
" RCP @ 

36  189 ft

%

0.
08

" 
R

C
P
 @
 

36  

59
 f
t

%0.10" RCP @ 36  125 ft

%

0
.1

0

" 
R

C
P
 @
 

3
6

  

5
8
 f
t

%
0
.1

0
"
 R

C
P
 @
 

3
6

  
1
2
0
 ft

%
0
.1

0
"
 R

C
P
 @
 

3
6

  
1
0
7
 ft

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23

© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.

C
o
p
y
ri

g
h
t 

2
0
2
1
 F

G
M

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

S
 I

N
C

.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD

WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187

630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.

CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200

NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540

630.717.5335 (O) 

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION

STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD

DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515

630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING

M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or 

preliminary or incomplete, not for 

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

21-3102.01

F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

1
5

7
-C

1
0
4
8
2
 W

e
s
t 

N
e
b
ra

s
k
a
 S

tr
e
e
t,

 F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
, 
IL

 6
0
4
2
3

ISSUANCE

NO DATE DESCRIPTION

N

1'=20'

Documents

09/06/21

C-1.0.10
Addition Utility Plan

Utility Plan
Addition 

C-1.0.10

Contours

Proposed

C-900 PVC

O-Ring Joints

RCP w/ 

Joints

Use O-Ring

E:\ACTIVE-PROJECTS\44423-253512-Will\ENGR-BMB\44423-Civil Plans.dgn,  Model: C-1.0.10,  Date: 8/31/2021

cgruba
Highlight

cgruba
Highlight



750

7
5
0

750

74
9

749

749

7
4
9

7
4
9

748

748

748748

748

7
4
7

747

747

747747

746

746

746

746

746

746

7
4
6

7
4
5

745

745

745745

7
4
5

744

744

744

744

744

744

743

743

743
743

743

743

743

7
4
2

742

742

742

742

7
4
2

7
4
2

741

7
4
1

741

741

741

741

741

7
4
1

7
4
1

7
4
0

7
4
0

7
4
0

7
4
0

74
0

740

740

74
0

740

7
4
0

7
4
0

7
4
0

7
3
9

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

739

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

73
9

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3

9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3

9

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

739

7
3
9

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

738

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

738

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
7

737

7
3
7

737

7
3
7

7
3
7

737

7
3
7

7
3
7

737

7
3
7

7
3
7

7
3
7

737

7
3
7

7
3
7

737

7
3
7

7
3
7

7
3
7

736

7
3
6

7
3
6

7
3
6

73
6

736

7
3
6

736

736

736

7
3
6

7
3
6

7
3
6

7
3
6

7
3
6

736
736

7
3
6

7
3
6

7
3
6

736

735

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

735

735

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

735

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

735

735735

735

7
3
4

7
3
4

7
3
4

734

7
3
4

7
3
4

7
3
4

734

73
4

7
3
4

7
3
3

7
3
3

7
3
3

733

7
3
3

7
3
3

7
3
3

73
3

733

73
3

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
2

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

731

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

730

7
3
0

7
3
0

730

7
3
0

7
3
0

7
3
0

7
2
9

7
2
9

736.08+

7
3
6
.0
8
++

7
3
6
.0
0

7
3
5
.9
0
+

7
3
5
.8
5
+

7
3
6
.0

+

7
3
5
.7
0
+

7
3
5
.6
5
+

7
3
5
.5
0
+

7
3
5
.7
0
+

7
3
5
.7
0
+

7
3
5
.5
0
+

7
3
5
.2
0
+

+
7
3
6
.0
8

+
7
3
6
.0
0

+
7
3
9
.1
0

+
7
3
9
.1
0

+
7
3
9
.1
0

7
3
9
.1
0
+

7
3
9
.1
0
+

7
3
8
.9

+

748

749

750

7
3
9
.2

+

+
7
3
6
.5
0

+
7
3
5
.1
0

+
7
3
5
.3
5

+
7
3
5
.5

+
7
3
6
.5
0

+
7
3
6
.5
0 +

7
3
8
.0
 T
/W

+
7
3
8
.0
 T
/W

+
7
3
8
.0
 T
/W

+
7
3
5
.4

+
7
3
5
.7

7
3
5
.9
6
+

7
3
5
.7

+

7
3
4
.7

+

+
7
3
9
.0

+
7
3
9
.0

+
7
3
7
.6

+
7
3
6
.2
2

+
7
3
5
.0

+
7
3
5
.4

+
7
3
7
.0

+
7
3
7
.8

+
7
3
6
.2
5

+
7
3
6
.2
5

7
3
5
.7
4
+

7
3
5
.7
0
+

7
3
5
.9
6
+

7
3
6
.1
0
+

7
3
6
.2
7
+

T
/C
 7
3
6
.1
2
+

T
/C
 7
3
5
.9
8
+

T
/C
 7
3
6
.2
4
+

+
7
3
6
.0
5

+
7
3
6
.0
3

+
7
3
6
.1
0

7
3
5
.9
0
+

T/C 735.98+

+
7
3
6
.1
0

+
7
3
5
.8

+
7
3
5
.7
5

7
3
8
.5
7
+

7
3
8
.5
7
+

7
3
8
.5
7
+

7
3
8
.5
7
+

+
7
3
8
.5
7

+
7
3
8
.5
7

+
7
3
9
.5

+
7
3
9
.5

+
7
3
9
.5

+
7
3
9
.5

7
3
9
.9

+

7
3
9
.9

+

7
3
9
.9

+

7
3
9
.2

+
+
7
3
8
.9

+
7
3
8
.9

+
7
3
9
.2

+
7
3
9
.1
0

+
7
3
7
.8

+
7
3
7
.5

+
7
3
5
.1
0

+
7
3
5
.1
0

+
7
3
5
.6
0
 T
/C

+
7
3
5
.6
0
 T
/C

+
7
3
5
.3
0

12345678

+
7
3
8
.7

+
7
3
8
.2

+
7
3
5
.8

+
7
3
5
.7

+
7
3
4
.4
0

7
3
5

735

736

73
67

3
6

737 737

738

739

739

738

7
3
8

7
3
9

7
3
7

7
3
7

7
3
6

7
3
8

7
3
9

8
"
 D

IW
M

8" DIWM

8
" D

IW
M

G.R.= 736.5

FH-1

to 735.4

Adjust Rim

Type I O.L.

3' Dia. CB

NW Inv = 731.0

E-W Inv = 734.0

Rim = 738.0

ST-16

2
0
-ft
 1

2
"
 R

C
P
 

@
 0
.5

0
%

1
8
-ft
 1

2
"
 R

C
P
 

@
 0
.5

0
%

1
0
7
-f
t 
6
" 

P
e
rf
o
ra
te

d 
P

V
C

210-ft 6
" P

e
rfo

ra
te

d
 P

V
C

5
0
-ft 1

2
"
 R

C
P
 @
 0
.5

0
%

50-ft 12" RCP @ 0.50%

6
1
-ft 1

2
"
 R

C
P
 @
 0
.5

0
%

Type I O.L.

2' Dia. INL

Inv = 730.3

Rim = 736.25

ST-17

Ex. Drain Tile

Connect to

Ex. Drain Tile

Connect to

Within Athletic Field

Reconnect Drain Tile

S
. 
 
8
0

T
H
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
V

E
N

U
E

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

Perforated

135-ft 4"  PVC

Drain Tile

Perforated

78-ft 4"  PVC

Drain Tile

Perforated 

66-ft 4"  PVC

Drain Tile

Perforated

50-ft 4"  PVC

C.O.

C.O.

C.O.

C.O.

Type 1 Open Lid

5-ft CB Type A

 NE729.03'INV= 

 W729.03'INV= 

737.00'RIM= 

ST-2.1

Type 1 Open Lid

5-ft CB Type A

 E729.08'INV= 

 SW729.08'INV= 

735.00'RIM= 

ST-2.2

Type 1 Open Lid

4-ft CB Type A

 N731.50'INV= 

735.50'RIM= 

ST-1.3

61-ft 12" RCP @ 0.50%

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE
728.84'INV= 

w/ Trash Rack

36" FES

Type 1 Open Lid

5-ft CB Type A

 NE729.03'INV= 

 W729.03'INV= 

737.00'RIM= 

ST-2.1

Type 1 Open Lid

5-ft CB Type A

 E729.08'INV= 

 SW729.08'INV= 

735.00'RIM= 

ST-2.2

Type 1 Open Lid

5-ft CB Type A

 NE729.20'INV= 

 W729.20'INV= 

734.70'RIM= 

ST-2.3

%0.10
" RCP @ 

36  189 ft

%

0.
08

" 
R

C
P
 @
 

36  

59
 f
t

%0.10" RCP @ 36  125 ft

%

0
.1

0

" 
R

C
P
 @
 

3
6

  

5
8
 f
t

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23

© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.

C
o
p
y
ri

g
h
t 

2
0
2
1
 F

G
M

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

S
 I

N
C

.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD

WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187

630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.

CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200

NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540

630.717.5335 (O) 

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION

STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD

DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515

630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING

M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or 

preliminary or incomplete, not for 

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

21-3102.01

F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

1
5

7
-C

1
0

4
8

2
 W

e
s
t 

N
e
b

ra
s
k

a
 S

tr
e
e
t,

 F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

, 
IL

 6
0

4
2

3

ISSUANCE

NO DATE DESCRIPTION

N

1'=20'

Documents

09/06/21

C-1.0.11
Track  Utility Plan

Plan
Track  Utility 

C-1.0.11

E:\ACTIVE-PROJECTS\44423-253512-Will\ENGR-BMB\44423-Civil Plans.dgn,  Model: C-1.0.11,  Date: 8/31/2021

cgruba
Highlight

cgruba
Highlight



751

751

75
0

750

7
4
9

749

7
4
9

7
4
9

7
4
9

74
9

749

749

748

748

7
4
8

748

748

748

74
8

7
4
8

7
4
8

748

748

748

7
4
7

747

747

747

747

747

74
7

7
4
7

7
4
7

747

747

746

746

746

746

7
4
6

7
4
6

7
4
6

746

746

746

7
4
6

7
4
5

745

745

7
4
5

7
4
5

7
4
5

745

745

745

7
4
4

744

744

7
4
4

7
4

4

744

744

744

744

7
4
3

743

743

7
4
3

7
4
3

743

743

743
743

742

742

742

742

7
4
2

7
4
2

742

742

742

741

7
4
1

741

741

7
4
1

7
4
1

7
4
1

741

741

741

741

740

740

740

740
7
4
0

7
4
0

74
0

740

740

74
0

740

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

739

7
3
9

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

739

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

739

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

73
9

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

7
3
9

739

738

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

738

73
8

7
3
8

7
3
8

738

7
3

8

7
3
8

7
3
8

738

7
3
7

737

737

737

737

7
3
7

7
3
7

737

73
7

7
3
7

7
3
7

737

7
3
7

7
3
7

737

7
3
7

7
3
7

736

7
3
6

7
3
6

736

7
3
6

7
3
6

736

7
3
6

736

73
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

734

7
3
4

7
3
3

7
3
2

7
3
1

7
3
0

+
7
3
8
.7

739

738

737

7
3
9

736

735.5

735

Inv = 735.5

w/ Trash Rack

12" RCP FES

2
0
-ft
 1

2
"
 R

C
P
 

@
 0
.5

0
%

Inv = 735.25

w/ Trash Rack

12" RCP FES

1
8
-ft
 1

2
"
 R

C
P
 

@
 0
.5

0
%

Type I O.L.

4' Dia. CH

2.5" dia. Restrictor

Inv = 735.34

Rim = 739.2

ST-20

W.  LARAWAY         ROAD

MATCHLINEMATCHLINE

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23

© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.

C
o
p
y
ri

g
h
t 

2
0
2
1
 F

G
M

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

S
 I

N
C

.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD

WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187

630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.

CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200

NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540

630.717.5335 (O) 

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION

STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD

DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515

630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING

M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or 

preliminary or incomplete, not for 

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

21-3102.01

F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

1
5

7
-C

1
0
4
8
2
 W

e
s
t 

N
e
b
ra

s
k
a
 S

tr
e
e
t,

 F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
, 
IL

 6
0
4
2
3

ISSUANCE

NO DATE DESCRIPTION

N

1'=20'

Documents

09/06/21

C-1.0.12
South Lot Utility Plan

Utility Plan
South Lot 

C-1.0.12

Swale

Bypass

Swale

Bypass

all Disturbed Areas

Control Blanket on

Provide Erosion

Pipe

Outlet

E:\ACTIVE-PROJECTS\44423-253512-Will\ENGR-BMB\44423-Civil Plans.dgn,  Model: C-1.0.12,  Date: 8/27/2021

cgruba
Highlight

cgruba
Highlight



JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23
© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.Co

py
rig

ht
 2

02
1 

FG
M

 A
RC

HI
TE

CT
S 

IN
C.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET
OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523
630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS
ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD
WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187
630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.
CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200
NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540
630.717.5335 (O)

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION
STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD
DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515
630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING
M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE
1211 WEST 22ND STREET
OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523
630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

L1.01
21-3102.01

Tree Inventory  Plan
North

ISSUANCE
NO DATE DESCRIPTION

1" = 30'
A1 TREE INVENTORY PLAN - NORTH

N

N.T.S.
A17 TREE INVENTORY LIST

N.T.S.
K17 TREE INVENTORY LEGEND AND NOTES

Ch
el

se
a 

In
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 S
ch

oo
l A

dd
iti

on
 &

 R
en

o

Fr
an

kf
or

t S
ch

oo
l D

ist
ric

t 1
57

-C
10

48
2 

W
es

t N
eb

ra
sk

a 
St

re
et

,
Fr

an
kf

or
t, 

IL
 6

04
23

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or
construction.

The information on this document is
preliminary or incomplete, not for
construction, recording purposes, or
implementation.

IS
SU

ED
 F

O
R 

50
%

 C
O

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

 D
O

CU
M

EN
TS

09/03/21 Issued for 50% Construction
Documents

AutoCAD SHX Text
"CHELSEA INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL"

AutoCAD SHX Text
376.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
1165.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
1317.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
W.  SAUK                 TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.  80TH  AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
AL

AutoCAD SHX Text
Basketball Court

AutoCAD SHX Text
Asphalt Paved

AutoCAD SHX Text
Asphalt Paved

AutoCAD SHX Text
Asphalt Paved

AutoCAD SHX Text
Asphalt Paved

AutoCAD SHX Text
Concrete Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text
Asphalt Paved

AutoCAD SHX Text
Asphalt Paved

AutoCAD SHX Text
Asphalt Paved

AutoCAD SHX Text
Asphalt Paved

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.0 FT. WATER MAIN EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
Asphalt Paved

AutoCAD SHX Text
Asphalt Paved

AutoCAD SHX Text
Asphalt Paved

AutoCAD SHX Text
Asphalt Paved

AutoCAD SHX Text
Playground

AutoCAD SHX Text
Playground

AutoCAD SHX Text
Storage Trailer

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
Utility Unit

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bench

AutoCAD SHX Text
Table

AutoCAD SHX Text
Basketball Hoop

AutoCAD SHX Text
Flag Pole

AutoCAD SHX Text
244.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
54

AutoCAD SHX Text
55

AutoCAD SHX Text
56

AutoCAD SHX Text
57

AutoCAD SHX Text
58

AutoCAD SHX Text
61

AutoCAD SHX Text
62

AutoCAD SHX Text
63

AutoCAD SHX Text
64

AutoCAD SHX Text
65

AutoCAD SHX Text
66

AutoCAD SHX Text
67

AutoCAD SHX Text
68

AutoCAD SHX Text
69

AutoCAD SHX Text
70

AutoCAD SHX Text
71

AutoCAD SHX Text
72

AutoCAD SHX Text
73

AutoCAD SHX Text
74

AutoCAD SHX Text
75

AutoCAD SHX Text
76

AutoCAD SHX Text
77

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH  LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH  LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING DECIDUOUS TREE TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
4. CONDITION RATING IS BASED ON THE FOLLOWING CRITERIA:

AutoCAD SHX Text
     1-EXCELLENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
     2-VERY GOOD CONDITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
     3-GOOD CONDITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
     4-BELOW AVERAGE CONDITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
     5-POOR CONDITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
     6-DEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. LOCATIONS OF EXISTING TREES ARE APPROXIMATE.  CONTRACTOR TO CONFIRM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACTUAL LOCATIONS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2. REFER TO CIVIL DOCUMENTS FOR ADDITIONAL TREE PRESERVATION INFORMATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3. REFER TO LANDSCAPE PLAN FOR EXISTING PLANTINGS TO REMAIN.  CONFIRM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL REMOVALS WITH OWNER PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE INVENTORY NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING EVERGREEN TREE TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING TREE AND VEGETATION TO BE REMOVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
5. TREE INVENTORY PREPARED IN CONJUNCTION WITH OSAGE, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(WWW.OSAGEGROUP.COM) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
6. EXISTING VEGETATION CONSISTS OF LOW-QUALITY AND INVASIVE SPECIES, 

AutoCAD SHX Text
INCLUDING MULBERRY, BLACK CHERRY, SILVER MAPLE, COTTONWOOD,

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORN, HONEYSUCKLE, BUCKTHORN, ELM AND RUSSIAN OLIVE. MANY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEAD TREES ARE PRESENT THROUGHOUT. TREES #1-#4 ARE THE ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRESERVATION TREES IN THE SOUTHERN PARCEL AND WILL REMAIN.  ALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
OTHER EXISTING VEGETATION WILL BE REMOVED, INCLUDING THE APPROXIMATE  

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING PRESERVATION TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
NUMBER OF NON-PRESERVATION TREE SPECIES OUTLINED BELOW:

AutoCAD SHX Text
     167  3"-6"  CALIPER TREES

AutoCAD SHX Text
      95  7"-10" CALIPER TREES

AutoCAD SHX Text
      33 11"-15" CALIPER TREES

AutoCAD SHX Text
       9 15" +  CALIPER TREES

AutoCAD SHX Text
7. PRESERVATION TREE #63 WILL BE REMOVED. TWO NEW 2 1/2" CALIPER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHADE TREES (5" TOTAL CALIPER) WILL BE PROVIDED AS MITIGATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ID #	  SPECIES			   SIZE	  CONDITION		STATUS	PRESERVATION TREE  SPECIES			   SIZE	  CONDITION		STATUS	PRESERVATION TREE   SIZE	  CONDITION		STATUS	PRESERVATION TREE  CONDITION		STATUS	PRESERVATION TREESTATUS	PRESERVATION TREEPRESERVATION TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
  1	  WHITE ASH		   13" 		 3		REMAIN		  X  WHITE ASH		   13" 		 3		REMAIN		  X   13" 		 3		REMAIN		  X 3		REMAIN		  XREMAIN		  X  X

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE INVENTORY LIST

AutoCAD SHX Text
  2	  BUR OAK			    6" 		 1		REMAIN		  X  BUR OAK			    6" 		 1		REMAIN		  X    6" 		 1		REMAIN		  X 1		REMAIN		  XREMAIN		  X  X

AutoCAD SHX Text
  3	  HACKBERRY		   11" 		 4		REMAIN	       X  HACKBERRY		   11" 		 4		REMAIN	       X   11" 		 4		REMAIN	       X 4		REMAIN	       XREMAIN	       X       X

AutoCAD SHX Text
  4	  HACKBERRY		   15" 		 2		REMAIN	       X  HACKBERRY		   15" 		 2		REMAIN	       X   15" 		 2		REMAIN	       X 2		REMAIN	       XREMAIN	       X       X

AutoCAD SHX Text
  5	  HONEYLOCUST		    6" 		 1		REMAIN	  HONEYLOCUST		    6" 		 1		REMAIN	    6" 		 1		REMAIN	 1		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  6	  ELM	   	   		    7" 		 1		REMAIN	  ELM	   	   		    7" 		 1		REMAIN	   	   		    7" 		 1		REMAIN	   		    7" 		 1		REMAIN	    7" 		 1		REMAIN	 1		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  7	  ELM				    7"		 1		REMAIN	  ELM				    7"		 1		REMAIN	    7"		 1		REMAIN	 1		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  8	  ELM			 	    7" 		 1		REMAIN	  ELM			 	    7" 		 1		REMAIN	 	    7" 		 1		REMAIN	    7" 		 1		REMAIN	 1		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  9	  ELM			         7" 		 1		REMAIN  ELM			         7" 		 1		REMAIN         7" 		 1		REMAIN 1		REMAINREMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
  10	  HONEYLOCUST		    8" 		 2		REMAIN	  HONEYLOCUST		    8" 		 2		REMAIN	    8" 		 2		REMAIN	 2		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  11	  HONEYLOCUST		    5" 		 2		REMAIN	  HONEYLOCUST		    5" 		 2		REMAIN	    5" 		 2		REMAIN	 2		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  12	  HONEYLOCUST		    6" 		 1		REMAIN  HONEYLOCUST		    6" 		 1		REMAIN    6" 		 1		REMAIN 1		REMAINREMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
  13	  HONEYLOCUST	         6" 		 1		REMAIN	  HONEYLOCUST	         6" 		 1		REMAIN	         6" 		 1		REMAIN	 1		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  14	  HONEYLOCUST   	    6" 		 2		REMAIN	  HONEYLOCUST   	    6" 		 2		REMAIN	    6" 		 2		REMAIN	 2		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  15	  HONEYLOCUST	         6" 		 1		REMAIN	  HONEYLOCUST	         6" 		 1		REMAIN	         6" 		 1		REMAIN	 1		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  16	  HONEYLOCUST	         6"		 2		REMAIN	  HONEYLOCUST	         6"		 2		REMAIN	         6"		 2		REMAIN	 2		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  17	  SERVICEBERRY		    5" 		 4		REMAIN	  SERVICEBERRY		    5" 		 4		REMAIN	    5" 		 4		REMAIN	 4		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  18	  SERVICEBERRY	    MULTI-STEM 	 	 2		REMAIN	  SERVICEBERRY	    MULTI-STEM 	 	 2		REMAIN	    MULTI-STEM 	 	 2		REMAIN	 	 2		REMAIN	 2		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  19	  KENTUCKY COFFEETREE	    3" 		 3		REMAIN	  KENTUCKY COFFEETREE	    3" 		 3		REMAIN	    3" 		 3		REMAIN	 3		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  20	  KENTUCKY COFFEETREE	    3"		 2		REMAIN  KENTUCKY COFFEETREE	    3"		 2		REMAIN    3"		 2		REMAIN 2		REMAINREMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
  21	  REDMOND LINDEN	    5" 		 4		REMAIN		  X  REDMOND LINDEN	    5" 		 4		REMAIN		  X    5" 		 4		REMAIN		  X 4		REMAIN		  XREMAIN		  X  X

AutoCAD SHX Text
  22	  REDMOND LINDEN	    5" 		 2		REMAIN		  X  REDMOND LINDEN	    5" 		 2		REMAIN		  X    5" 		 2		REMAIN		  X 2		REMAIN		  XREMAIN		  X  X

AutoCAD SHX Text
  23	  REDMOND LINDEN	    7" 		 1		REMAIN		  X  REDMOND LINDEN	    7" 		 1		REMAIN		  X    7" 		 1		REMAIN		  X 1		REMAIN		  XREMAIN		  X  X

AutoCAD SHX Text
  24	  COCKSPUR HAWTHORN  MULTI-STEM 	 5		REMAIN	  COCKSPUR HAWTHORN  MULTI-STEM 	 5		REMAIN	 5		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  25	  SWAMP WHITE OAK	    9" 		 2		REMAIN		  X	  SWAMP WHITE OAK	    9" 		 2		REMAIN		  X	    9" 		 2		REMAIN		  X	 2		REMAIN		  X	REMAIN		  X	  X	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  26	  SWAMP WHITE OAK	    7" 		 2		REMAIN	    	  X  SWAMP WHITE OAK	    7" 		 2		REMAIN	    	  X    7" 		 2		REMAIN	    	  X 2		REMAIN	    	  XREMAIN	    	  X    	  X  X

AutoCAD SHX Text
  27	  COCKSPUR HAWTHORN	 MULTI-STEM	 3		REMAIN	  COCKSPUR HAWTHORN	 MULTI-STEM	 3		REMAIN	 MULTI-STEM	 3		REMAIN	 3		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  28	  SWAMP WHITE OAK	    8" 		 1		REMAIN		  X	  SWAMP WHITE OAK	    8" 		 1		REMAIN		  X	    8" 		 1		REMAIN		  X	 1		REMAIN		  X	REMAIN		  X	  X	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  29	  COLORADO SPRUCE	    7" 	 	 2		REMAIN	  COLORADO SPRUCE	    7" 	 	 2		REMAIN	    7" 	 	 2		REMAIN	 	 2		REMAIN	 2		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  30	  COLORADO SPRUCE	    6" 		 2		REMAIN	  COLORADO SPRUCE	    6" 		 2		REMAIN	    6" 		 2		REMAIN	 2		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  31	  COLORADO SPRUCE	    6"		 2		REMAIN  COLORADO SPRUCE	    6"		 2		REMAIN    6"		 2		REMAIN 2		REMAINREMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
  32	  HACKBERRY		    6" 		 2		REMAIN	       X  HACKBERRY		    6" 		 2		REMAIN	       X    6" 		 2		REMAIN	       X 2		REMAIN	       XREMAIN	       X       X

AutoCAD SHX Text
  33	  COLORADO SPRUCE	    5" 		 2		REMAIN  COLORADO SPRUCE	    5" 		 2		REMAIN    5" 		 2		REMAIN 2		REMAINREMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
  34	  COLORADO SPRUCE	    6" 		 2		REMAIN	  COLORADO SPRUCE	    6" 		 2		REMAIN	    6" 		 2		REMAIN	 2		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  35	  SERVICEBERRY		 MULTI-STEM 	 3		REMAIN	  SERVICEBERRY		 MULTI-STEM 	 3		REMAIN	 MULTI-STEM 	 3		REMAIN	 3		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  36	  SERVICEBERRY	      MULTI-STEM      2		REMAIN	  SERVICEBERRY	      MULTI-STEM      2		REMAIN	      MULTI-STEM      2		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  37	  HACKBERRY		    5" 		 1		REMAIN         	  X	  HACKBERRY		    5" 		 1		REMAIN         	  X	    5" 		 1		REMAIN         	  X	 1		REMAIN         	  X	REMAIN         	  X	  X	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  38	  BLACK HILLS SPRUCE	    8" 		 1		REMAIN	  BLACK HILLS SPRUCE	    8" 		 1		REMAIN	    8" 		 1		REMAIN	 1		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  39	  HACKBERRY		    5"	 	 1		REMAIN	       X  HACKBERRY		    5"	 	 1		REMAIN	       X    5"	 	 1		REMAIN	       X 	 1		REMAIN	       X 1		REMAIN	       XREMAIN	       X       X

AutoCAD SHX Text
  40	  BLACK HILLS SPRUCE	    7" 		 1		REMAIN	  BLACK HILLS SPRUCE	    7" 		 1		REMAIN	    7" 		 1		REMAIN	 1		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  41	  BLACK HILLS SPRUCE	    7" 	 	 1		REMAIN	  BLACK HILLS SPRUCE	    7" 	 	 1		REMAIN	    7" 	 	 1		REMAIN	 	 1		REMAIN	 1		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  42	  REDMOND LINDEN	    8" 		 1		REMAIN		  X  REDMOND LINDEN	    8" 		 1		REMAIN		  X    8" 		 1		REMAIN		  X 1		REMAIN		  XREMAIN		  X  X

AutoCAD SHX Text
  43	  REDMOND LINDEN	    8"		 1		REMAIN		  X  REDMOND LINDEN	    8"		 1		REMAIN		  X    8"		 1		REMAIN		  X 1		REMAIN		  XREMAIN		  X  X

AutoCAD SHX Text
  44	  SERVICEBERRY		 MULTI-STEM      2		REMAIN  SERVICEBERRY		 MULTI-STEM      2		REMAIN MULTI-STEM      2		REMAINREMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
  45	  HONEYLOCUST		    6" 		 1		REMAIN	  HONEYLOCUST		    6" 		 1		REMAIN	    6" 		 1		REMAIN	 1		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  46	  BUR OAK			    4" 	 	 2		REMAIN	  BUR OAK			    4" 	 	 2		REMAIN	    4" 	 	 2		REMAIN	 	 2		REMAIN	 2		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  47	  BUR OAK			    7" 		 1		REMAIN	       X  BUR OAK			    7" 		 1		REMAIN	       X    7" 		 1		REMAIN	       X 1		REMAIN	       XREMAIN	       X       X

AutoCAD SHX Text
  48	  BUR OAK			    5"		 1		REMAIN  	       X  BUR OAK			    5"		 1		REMAIN  	       X    5"		 1		REMAIN  	       X 1		REMAIN  	       XREMAIN  	       X       X

AutoCAD SHX Text
  49	  HACKBERRY		    5" 		 1		REMAIN	       X  HACKBERRY		    5" 		 1		REMAIN	       X    5" 		 1		REMAIN	       X 1		REMAIN	       XREMAIN	       X       X

AutoCAD SHX Text
  50	  HACKBERRY		    5" 		 2		REMAIN            X  HACKBERRY		    5" 		 2		REMAIN            X    5" 		 2		REMAIN            X 2		REMAIN            XREMAIN            X

AutoCAD SHX Text
  51	  HACKBERRY		    3" 		 2		REMAIN            X	  HACKBERRY		    3" 		 2		REMAIN            X	    3" 		 2		REMAIN            X	 2		REMAIN            X	REMAIN            X	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  52	  REDMOND LINDEN	   11" 	 	 1		REMAIN		  X	  REDMOND LINDEN	   11" 	 	 1		REMAIN		  X	   11" 	 	 1		REMAIN		  X	 	 1		REMAIN		  X	 1		REMAIN		  X	REMAIN		  X	  X	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  53	  REDMOND LINDEN	    9"      	 1		REMAIN		  X  REDMOND LINDEN	    9"      	 1		REMAIN		  X    9"      	 1		REMAIN		  X 1		REMAIN		  XREMAIN		  X  X

AutoCAD SHX Text
  54	  REDMOND	LINDEN	    9" 		 1		REMAIN		  X  REDMOND	LINDEN	    9" 		 1		REMAIN		  XLINDEN	    9" 		 1		REMAIN		  X    9" 		 1		REMAIN		  X 1		REMAIN		  XREMAIN		  X  X

AutoCAD SHX Text
  55	  HONEYLOCUST		    5" 		 1		REMAIN	  HONEYLOCUST		    5" 		 1		REMAIN	    5" 		 1		REMAIN	 1		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  56   HONEYLOCUST		    5"	 	 2		REMAIN	    5"	 	 2		REMAIN	 	 2		REMAIN	 2		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  57	  HONEYLOCUST		    7" 		 1		REMAIN	  HONEYLOCUST		    7" 		 1		REMAIN	    7" 		 1		REMAIN	 1		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  58	  HONEYLOCUST   	    6" 	 	 1		REMAIN	  HONEYLOCUST   	    6" 	 	 1		REMAIN	    6" 	 	 1		REMAIN	 	 1		REMAIN	 1		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  59	  ELM				   11" 		 1		REMAIN	  ELM				   11" 		 1		REMAIN	   11" 		 1		REMAIN	 1		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  60	  ELM				   10"		 1		REMAIN  ELM				   10"		 1		REMAIN   10"		 1		REMAIN 1		REMAINREMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
  61	  HONEYLOCUST		    7"	      1		REMAIN  HONEYLOCUST		    7"	      1		REMAIN    7"	      1		REMAIN      1		REMAINREMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
  62	  HONEYLOCUST		    7"	      1		REMAIN  HONEYLOCUST		    7"	      1		REMAIN    7"	      1		REMAIN      1		REMAINREMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
  63	  FREEMAN MAPLE		    5" 		 3		REMOVE		  X  FREEMAN MAPLE		    5" 		 3		REMOVE		  X    5" 		 3		REMOVE		  X 3		REMOVE		  XREMOVE		  X  X

AutoCAD SHX Text
  64	  PLUM			    8" 		 3		REMAIN  PLUM			    8" 		 3		REMAIN    8" 		 3		REMAIN 3		REMAINREMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
  65	  PLUM			    9" 		 4		REMAIN	  PLUM			    9" 		 4		REMAIN	    9" 		 4		REMAIN	 4		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  66	  PLUM			    8" 	 	 5		REMAIN	  PLUM			    8" 	 	 5		REMAIN	    8" 	 	 5		REMAIN	 	 5		REMAIN	 5		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  67	  PLUM		         8"      	 4		REMAIN	  PLUM		         8"      	 4		REMAIN	         8"      	 4		REMAIN	 4		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  68	  LINDEN			    6" 		 4		REMAIN	  LINDEN			    6" 		 4		REMAIN	    6" 		 4		REMAIN	 4		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  69	  EASTERN RED CEDAR  MULTI-STEM 	 2		REMAIN	  EASTERN RED CEDAR  MULTI-STEM 	 2		REMAIN	 2		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  70   EASTERN RED CEDAR  MULTI-STEM	 	 3		REMAIN	 	 3		REMAIN	 3		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  71	  CRABAPPLE		   11" 		 5		REMAIN	  CRABAPPLE		   11" 		 5		REMAIN	   11" 		 5		REMAIN	 5		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  72	  HONEYLOCUST   	   20" 	 	 2		REMAIN	  HONEYLOCUST   	   20" 	 	 2		REMAIN	   20" 	 	 2		REMAIN	 	 2		REMAIN	 2		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  73	  HONEYLOCUST		    6" 		 1		REMAIN	  HONEYLOCUST		    6" 		 1		REMAIN	    6" 		 1		REMAIN	 1		REMAIN	REMAIN	

AutoCAD SHX Text
  74	  HONEYLOCUST		    5"		 1		REMAIN  HONEYLOCUST		    5"		 1		REMAIN    5"		 1		REMAIN 1		REMAINREMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
  75	  HONEYLOCUST		    5"	      1		REMAIN  HONEYLOCUST		    5"	      1		REMAIN    5"	      1		REMAIN      1		REMAINREMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
  76	  HONEYLOCUST		   13"	      3		REMAIN  HONEYLOCUST		   13"	      3		REMAIN   13"	      3		REMAIN      3		REMAINREMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
  77	  HONEYLOCUST		   13"	      2		REMAIN  HONEYLOCUST		   13"	      2		REMAIN   13"	      2		REMAIN      2		REMAINREMAIN

cgruba
Highlight



JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23
© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.Co

py
rig

ht
 2

02
1 

FG
M

 A
RC

HI
TE

CT
S 

IN
C.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET
OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523
630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS
ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD
WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187
630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.
CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200
NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540
630.717.5335 (O)

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION
STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD
DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515
630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING
M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE
1211 WEST 22ND STREET
OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523
630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

L1.02
21-3102.01

Tree Inventory
Plan South

ISSUANCE
NO DATE DESCRIPTION

1" = 30'
A1 TREE INVENTORY PLAN - SOUTH

N

N.T.S.
N18 TREE INVENTORY LEGEND

Ch
el

se
a 

In
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 S
ch

oo
l A

dd
iti

on
 &

 R
en

o

Fr
an

kf
or

t S
ch

oo
l D

ist
ric

t 1
57

-C
10

48
2 

W
es

t N
eb

ra
sk

a 
St

re
et

,
Fr

an
kf

or
t, 

IL
 6

04
23

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or
construction.

The information on this document is
preliminary or incomplete, not for
construction, recording purposes, or
implementation.

IS
SU

ED
 F

O
R 

50
%

 C
O

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

 D
O

CU
M

EN
TS

09/03/21 Issued for 50% Construction
Documents

AutoCAD SHX Text
1165.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
1317.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
W.  LARAWAY   ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CD

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sign

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sign

AutoCAD SHX Text
Basketball Court

AutoCAD SHX Text
Asphalt Paved

AutoCAD SHX Text
Asphalt Paved

AutoCAD SHX Text
Asphalt Paved

AutoCAD SHX Text
Asphalt Paved

AutoCAD SHX Text
Rubber/Asphalt Track

AutoCAD SHX Text
Rubber/Asphalt Track

AutoCAD SHX Text
Asphalt Paved

AutoCAD SHX Text
Utility Unit

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bench

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bench

AutoCAD SHX Text
650.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
192.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
214.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
92.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
781.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
864.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
111.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.  80TH  AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE TREE INVENTORY NOTE #6 / L1.01 FOR OVERALL ASSESSMENT OF EXISTING VEGETATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE TREE INVENTORY NOTE #6 / L1.01 FOR OVERALL ASSESSMENT OF EXISTING VEGETATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING OFF-SITE TREES TO REMAIN (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING OFF-SITE TREES TO REMAIN (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING VEGETATION BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING VEGETATION BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING VEGETATION  BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  VEGETATION  BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING VEGETATION BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING VEGETATION BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING VEGETATION  BOUNDARY TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
36

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
37

AutoCAD SHX Text
38

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
41

AutoCAD SHX Text
39

AutoCAD SHX Text
42

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
45

AutoCAD SHX Text
47

AutoCAD SHX Text
48

AutoCAD SHX Text
49

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
51

AutoCAD SHX Text
46

AutoCAD SHX Text
52

AutoCAD SHX Text
53

AutoCAD SHX Text
54

AutoCAD SHX Text
55

AutoCAD SHX Text
58

AutoCAD SHX Text
59

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
61

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH  LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH  LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING DECIDUOUS TREE TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING EVERGREEN TREE TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING TREE AND VEGETATION TO BE REMOVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING PRESERVATION TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

cgruba
Highlight



W

NEW ADDITION

FENCE - SEE PLAN FOR TYPE

BASKETBALL HOOP

PROPERTY LINE

SETBACK LINE

BIKE RACK

EXISTING TREE

EXISTING BUILDING

NEW TREE

ASPHALT

CONCRETE

GRAVEL STRIP

SOD/SEED

PLAYGROUND SURFACE

RUNNING TRACK PAVEMENT

ARTIFICIAL TURF

(SC-1) - COLORED CONCRETE 1 

(SC-2) - COLORED CONCRETE 2

(SC-3) - COLORED CONCRETE 3

SEE CIVIL AND LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

EXISTING PLAYGROUND SURFACE

EXISTING RUNNING TRACK PAVEMENT

EXISTING ASPHALT

W SAUK TRAIL

S
 8

0
T

H
 A

V
E

EXISTING 

DETENTION 

EXISTING 

DETENTION 

W LARAWAY RD

SP1 SP2

SP1

SP2

SP1 SP2

A0.0.03

A7

A0.0.02

A1

A0.0.03

A1

CHELSEA 

INTERMEDIATE 

SCHOOL

NEW 

ADDITION

NEW DETENTION 

AREA, SEE CIVIL 

DRAWINGS

NEW BASKETBALL 

COURT

NEW 

PLAYGROUND

SP23

SP29

PROPERTY LINE

SETBACK LINE

PROPERTY LINE

SETBACK LINE

PROPERTY LINE

SETBACK LINE

PROPERTY LINE

SETBACK LINE

SP3

SAINT ANTHONY 

CHURCH PAVING

SAINT ANTHONY 

CHURCH 

SP30

SP15

SP15

SP15

SP15

SP15

SP15

SP31

SP1

SP2

ALTERNATE #3: INSTALL NEW POURED IN 

PLACE PLAY SURFACE. SEE CIVIL AND 

LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL 

INFORMATION.

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23

© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.

C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

2
0

2
1

 F
G

M
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

 I
N

C
.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS
ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD

WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187

630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.
CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200

NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540

630.717.5335 (O) 

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION
STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD

DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515

630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING
M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or 

construction.

The information on this document is 

preliminary or incomplete, not for 

construction, recording purposes, or 

implementation.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

9
/2

/2
0

2
1

 4
:1

6
:0

1
 P

M

C
:\

re
v

it

te
m

p
\2

0
2

0
\2

1
-3

1
0

2
.0

1
_

F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

D
1

5
7

-C
_

C
h

e
ls

e
a

S
ch

o
o

l_
2

0
2

0
_

C
D

_
a

sh
le

y
cN

9
Y

5
R

.r
v

t

A0.0.01
21-3102.01

IS
S

U
E

D
 F

O
R

 5
0

%
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

S

OVERALL ARCHITECTURAL

SITE PLAN

C
h

e
ls

e
a

 I
n

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 S
ch

o
o

l 
A

d
d

it
io

n
 &

 R
e

n
o

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
 S

ch
o

o
l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

1
5

7
-C

1
0

4
8

2
 W

e
st

 N
e

b
ra

sk
a

 S
tr

e
e

t,

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
, 

IL
 6

0
4

2
3

N

A21
1/16" = 1'-0"

SITE LEGEND
1" = 60'-0"

A10 OVERALL ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN

ISSUANCE

NO DATE DESCRIPTION

09/03/21 Issued for 50% Construction

Documents

NOTATIONSJ21

SITE PLAN KEYED NOTES

TAG DESCRIPTION

SP1 NEW ASPHALT PAVING REPLACEMENT AT ENTIRE PARKING LOT AND DRIVE. SEE CIVIL
DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP2 NEW PARKING LOT AND DRIVE LANE STRIPING AT NEWLY PAVED PARKING LOT AND
DRIVE. SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP3 AREA OF NEW SITE WORK, INCLUDING REGRADING AROUND NEW SITE ELEMENTS AND
BUILDING. SEED AND REPAIR DAMAGED TURF AREA AROUND NEW CONSTRUCTION
UPON COMPLETION OF NEW WORK. SEE CIVIL AND LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS FOR
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP4 NEW CONCRETE SIDEWALK. SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP5 NEW CONCRETE CURB. SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP6 NEW ADA TEXTURED SIDEWALK. SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMAION.

SP7 RESURFACE RUNNING TRACK, EXISTING BASE TO REMAIN. SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS FOR
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP8 NEW RUNNING TRACK SURFACE SYSTEM. SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION.

SP9 NEW POURED IN PLACE PLAYGROUND SURFACE, SEE CIVIL AND LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS
FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION. PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT TO BE PROVIDED BY
OWNER. CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE WITH CM AND OWNER FOR INSTALLATION OF
PLAYGROUND SURFACE AND EQUIPMENT, INCLUDING FOOTINGS AND SUPPORTS.

SP10 NEW ASPHALT PAVING, SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP11 NEW STRIPING. COORDINATE STRIPING LAYOUT WITH OWNER. SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS
FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP12 PROVIDE AND INSTALL NEW FREE-STANDING BASKETBALL BACKSTOP AND ASSOCIATED
CONCRETE FOOTING.

SP13 NEW 5'-0" HIGH CHAINLINK FENCE AROUND THE ENTIRE TRACK, ALL SIDES. POWDER
COATED GREEN TO MATCH EXISTING. SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION.

SP14 EXISTING SIDEWALK TO REMAIN, PROTECT DURING CONSTRUCTION. PATCH AS
REQUIRED. SEE CIVIL AND LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP15 EXISTING LIGHT POLE TO REMAIN, TYP.

SP16 EXISTING HANDICAP PARKING SIGN TO REMAIN, TYP.

SP17 NEW BENCH, ANCHORED TO CONCRETE SIDEWALK.

SP18 NEW FLAG POLE WITH CONCRETE FOUNDATION. PROVIDE NEW POLE MOUNTED
LIGHTING, SEE SPECIFICATIONS ANDN MEP DOCUMENTS FOR ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION.

SP19 PROVIDE NEW ORNAMENTAL FENCE SYSTEM, WITH MANUALLY DOUBLE SWING GATE.
GATE TO BE LOCKABLE. FENCE SYSTEM TO MATCH ADJACENT ORNAMENTAL FENCE
SYSTEM, INCLUDING STYLE, HEIGHT, FINISH / COLOR, ETC. EQUALLY SPACE VERTICAL
SUPPORT POSTS AND PROVIDE CONCRETE FOOTINGS FOR ALL SUPPORT POSTS. SEE
SITE DETAILS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION. COORDINATE FINAL LOCATION AND
EXTENTS OF FENCE IN FIELD.

SP20 NEW COURTYARD, WITH COLORED CONCRETE HARDSCAPE, SURROUNDING ARTIFICAL
TURF, AND MASONRY SEAT WALL. SEE SITE DETAILS, CIVIL AND LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS
FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP21 NEW 5'-0" HIGH CHAINLINK FENCE GATE. POWDER COATED GREEN TO MATCH EXISTING.
SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP22 EXISTING RETAIING WALL TO REMAIN.

SP23 EXISTING BUILDING SIGNAGE TO REMAIN.

SP24 6" HIGH CURBED LANDSCAPE BEDS, SEE LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION.

SP25 EXISTING PAVED WALKING PATH TO REMAIN, PROTECT DURING CONSTRUCTION. PATCH
AS REQUIRED. SEE CIVIL AND LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP26 NEW CONCRETE WALKING PATH. SEE CIVIL AND LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS FOR
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP27 NEW MASONRY RETAINING WALL/SEAT WALL. 18" HIGH BRICK WALL TO MATCH EXISTING
BUILDING, WITH STONE CAP. PROVIDE CONCRETE FOUNDATION WALL AND FOOTING.
SEE CIVIL, LANDSCAPE  AND STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP28 NEW MASONRY SEAT WALL. 18" HIGH BRICK WALL TO MATCH EXISTING BUILDING, WITH
STONE CAP. PROVIDE CONCRETE FOUNDATION WALL AND FOOTING. SEE CIVIL,
LANDSCAPE  AND STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP29 EXISTING CONCRETE PAVING TO REMAIN.

SP30 EXISTING ELECTRICAL TRANSFORMER AND GENERATOR, SEE ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS
FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP31 REINSTALL SALVAGED METAL BENCH. PROVIDE NEW CONCRETE FOOTINGS IN ORDER
TO INSTALL BENCH. SEE CIVIL AND LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO BENCH TYPE AND REINSTALLATION
LOCATION. VERIFY FINAL INSTALL LOCATION WITH OWNER.

SP32 REINSTALL SALVAGED CONCRETE BENCH. PROVIDE NEW CONCRETE FOOTINGS / SLAB
IN ORDER TO SET BENCH. SEE CIVIL AND LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO BENCH TYPE AND REINSTALLATION
LOCATION. VERIFY FINAL INSTALL LOCATION WITH OWNER.

SP33 NEW METAL BENCH. PROVIDE NEW CONCRETE FOOTINGS IN ORDER TO INSTALL BENCH.
SEE CIVIL AND LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION, INCLUDING BUT
NOT LIMITED TO BENCH TYPE AND REINSTALLATION LOCATION. VERIFY FINAL INSTALL
LOCATION WITH OWNER.

SEE SHEET G1.0.03 FOR GENERAL NOTES PERTAINING TO THIS SHEET

cgruba
Highlight



NEW ADDITION

FENCE - SEE PLAN FOR TYPE

BASKETBALL HOOP

PROPERTY LINE

SETBACK LINE

BIKE RACK

EXISTING TREE

EXISTING BUILDING

NEW TREE

ASPHALT

CONCRETE

GRAVEL STRIP

SOD/SEED

PLAYGROUND SURFACE

RUNNING TRACK PAVEMENT

ARTIFICIAL TURF

(SC-1) - COLORED CONCRETE 1 

(SC-2) - COLORED CONCRETE 2

(SC-3) - COLORED CONCRETE 3

SEE CIVIL AND LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

EXISTING PLAYGROUND SURFACE

EXISTING RUNNING TRACK PAVEMENT

EXISTING ASPHALT

SP3

SP4

SP5

SP5

SP6

SP8

SP9

SP10 SP11

NEW 

ADDITION

SP1 SP2

SP1 SP2

SP15

SP16

SP17

SP18

ALIGN

SP20

A16

A0.0.04

A11

A0.0.04

SP17

SP17

SP23

SP24

SP24

SP14

SP14

SP14

SP15

SP15

SP15 SP15

SP25

SP26

SP27

SP28

SP32

SP31

SP31

SP31

SC-1

SC-2

SC-3

SC-1

SC-1

SC-1

SEE OVERALL PLAN FOR 

LOCATION OF ONE ADDITIONAL 

REINSTALLED BENCH NORTH OF 

EXISTING SIDEWALK.

SP14

BUILDING 

COLUMN, TYP.

SP3

SP3

SP13

SP3 SP3

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23

© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.

C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

2
0

2
1

 F
G

M
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

 I
N

C
.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS
ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD

WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187

630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.
CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200

NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540

630.717.5335 (O) 

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION
STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD

DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515

630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING
M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or 

construction.

The information on this document is 

preliminary or incomplete, not for 

construction, recording purposes, or 

implementation.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

9
/2

/2
0

2
1

 4
:1

6
:1

8
 P

M

C
:\

re
v

it

te
m

p
\2

0
2

0
\2

1
-3

1
0

2
.0

1
_

F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

D
1

5
7

-C
_

C
h

e
ls

e
a

S
ch

o
o

l_
2

0
2

0
_

C
D

_
a

sh
le

y
cN

9
Y

5
R

.r
v

t

A0.0.02
21-3102.01

IS
S

U
E

D
 F

O
R

 5
0

%
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

S

ENLARGED ARCHITECTURAL

SITE PLANS

C
h

e
ls

e
a

 I
n

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 S
ch

o
o

l 
A

d
d

it
io

n
 &

 R
e

n
o

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
 S

ch
o

o
l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

1
5

7
-C

1
0

4
8

2
 W

e
st

 N
e

b
ra

sk
a

 S
tr

e
e

t,

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
, 

IL
 6

0
4

2
3

A21
1/16" = 1'-0"

SITE LEGEND

N

1/16" = 1'-0"
A1 ENLARGED ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN

ISSUANCE

NO DATE DESCRIPTION

09/03/21 Issued for 50% Construction

Documents

NOTATIONSJ21

SITE PLAN KEYED NOTES

TAG DESCRIPTION

SP1 NEW ASPHALT PAVING REPLACEMENT AT ENTIRE PARKING LOT AND DRIVE. SEE CIVIL

DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP2 NEW PARKING LOT AND DRIVE LANE STRIPING AT NEWLY PAVED PARKING LOT AND

DRIVE. SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP3 AREA OF NEW SITE WORK, INCLUDING REGRADING AROUND NEW SITE ELEMENTS AND

BUILDING. SEED AND REPAIR DAMAGED TURF AREA AROUND NEW CONSTRUCTION

UPON COMPLETION OF NEW WORK. SEE CIVIL AND LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS FOR

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP4 NEW CONCRETE SIDEWALK. SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP5 NEW CONCRETE CURB. SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP6 NEW ADA TEXTURED SIDEWALK. SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMAION.

SP7 RESURFACE RUNNING TRACK, EXISTING BASE TO REMAIN. SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS FOR

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP8 NEW RUNNING TRACK SURFACE SYSTEM. SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL

INFORMATION.

SP9 NEW POURED IN PLACE PLAYGROUND SURFACE, SEE CIVIL AND LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS

FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION. PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT TO BE PROVIDED BY

OWNER. CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE WITH CM AND OWNER FOR INSTALLATION OF

PLAYGROUND SURFACE AND EQUIPMENT, INCLUDING FOOTINGS AND SUPPORTS.

SP10 NEW ASPHALT PAVING, SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP11 NEW STRIPING. COORDINATE STRIPING LAYOUT WITH OWNER. SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS

FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP12 PROVIDE AND INSTALL NEW FREE-STANDING BASKETBALL BACKSTOP AND ASSOCIATED

CONCRETE FOOTING.

SP13 NEW 5'-0" HIGH CHAINLINK FENCE AROUND THE ENTIRE TRACK, ALL SIDES. POWDER

COATED GREEN TO MATCH EXISTING. SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL

INFORMATION.

SP14 EXISTING SIDEWALK TO REMAIN, PROTECT DURING CONSTRUCTION. PATCH AS

REQUIRED. SEE CIVIL AND LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP15 EXISTING LIGHT POLE TO REMAIN, TYP.

SP16 EXISTING HANDICAP PARKING SIGN TO REMAIN, TYP.

SP17 NEW BENCH, ANCHORED TO CONCRETE SIDEWALK.

SP18 NEW FLAG POLE WITH CONCRETE FOUNDATION. PROVIDE NEW POLE MOUNTED

LIGHTING, SEE SPECIFICATIONS ANDN MEP DOCUMENTS FOR ADDITIONAL

INFORMATION.

SP19 PROVIDE NEW ORNAMENTAL FENCE SYSTEM, WITH MANUALLY DOUBLE SWING GATE.

GATE TO BE LOCKABLE. FENCE SYSTEM TO MATCH ADJACENT ORNAMENTAL FENCE

SYSTEM, INCLUDING STYLE, HEIGHT, FINISH / COLOR, ETC. EQUALLY SPACE VERTICAL

SUPPORT POSTS AND PROVIDE CONCRETE FOOTINGS FOR ALL SUPPORT POSTS. SEE

SITE DETAILS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION. COORDINATE FINAL LOCATION AND

EXTENTS OF FENCE IN FIELD.

SP20 NEW COURTYARD, WITH COLORED CONCRETE HARDSCAPE, SURROUNDING ARTIFICAL

TURF, AND MASONRY SEAT WALL. SEE SITE DETAILS, CIVIL AND LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS

FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP21 NEW 5'-0" HIGH CHAINLINK FENCE GATE. POWDER COATED GREEN TO MATCH EXISTING.

SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP22 EXISTING RETAIING WALL TO REMAIN.

SP23 EXISTING BUILDING SIGNAGE TO REMAIN.

SP24 6" HIGH CURBED LANDSCAPE BEDS, SEE LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL

INFORMATION.

SP25 EXISTING PAVED WALKING PATH TO REMAIN, PROTECT DURING CONSTRUCTION. PATCH

AS REQUIRED. SEE CIVIL AND LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP26 NEW CONCRETE WALKING PATH. SEE CIVIL AND LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS FOR

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP27 NEW MASONRY RETAINING WALL/SEAT WALL. 18" HIGH BRICK WALL TO MATCH EXISTING

BUILDING, WITH STONE CAP. PROVIDE CONCRETE FOUNDATION WALL AND FOOTING.

SEE CIVIL, LANDSCAPE  AND STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP28 NEW MASONRY SEAT WALL. 18" HIGH BRICK WALL TO MATCH EXISTING BUILDING, WITH

STONE CAP. PROVIDE CONCRETE FOUNDATION WALL AND FOOTING. SEE CIVIL,

LANDSCAPE  AND STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP29 EXISTING CONCRETE PAVING TO REMAIN.

SP30 EXISTING ELECTRICAL TRANSFORMER AND GENERATOR, SEE ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS

FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP31 REINSTALL SALVAGED METAL BENCH. PROVIDE NEW CONCRETE FOOTINGS IN ORDER

TO INSTALL BENCH. SEE CIVIL AND LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL

INFORMATION, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO BENCH TYPE AND REINSTALLATION

LOCATION. VERIFY FINAL INSTALL LOCATION WITH OWNER.

SP32 REINSTALL SALVAGED CONCRETE BENCH. PROVIDE NEW CONCRETE FOOTINGS / SLAB

IN ORDER TO SET BENCH. SEE CIVIL AND LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL

INFORMATION, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO BENCH TYPE AND REINSTALLATION

LOCATION. VERIFY FINAL INSTALL LOCATION WITH OWNER.

SP33 NEW METAL BENCH. PROVIDE NEW CONCRETE FOOTINGS IN ORDER TO INSTALL BENCH.

SEE CIVIL AND LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION, INCLUDING BUT

NOT LIMITED TO BENCH TYPE AND REINSTALLATION LOCATION. VERIFY FINAL INSTALL

LOCATION WITH OWNER.

SEE SHEET G1.0.03 FOR GENERAL NOTES PERTAINING TO THIS SHEET

cgruba
Highlight



NEW ADDITION

FENCE - SEE PLAN FOR TYPE

BASKETBALL HOOP

PROPERTY LINE

SETBACK LINE

BIKE RACK

EXISTING TREE

EXISTING BUILDING

NEW TREE

ASPHALT

CONCRETE

GRAVEL STRIP

SOD/SEED

PLAYGROUND SURFACE

RUNNING TRACK PAVEMENT

ARTIFICIAL TURF

(SC-1) - COLORED CONCRETE 1 

(SC-2) - COLORED CONCRETE 2

(SC-3) - COLORED CONCRETE 3

SEE CIVIL AND LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

EXISTING PLAYGROUND SURFACE

EXISTING RUNNING TRACK PAVEMENT

EXISTING ASPHALT

SP3

SP8

SP9

SP10 SP11

SP12

SP3

SP12

SP10 SP11

SP13

SP13

SP3

SP14

A11

A0.0.04

SP33

SP33

SP27

SP7

SP7

SP8SP8

SP7

SP14

SP14

SP4

SP13

SP13

SP13

SP21

SP21

SP21

SP21

SP22

SP19

E
Q

1
0
' -

 0
"

E
Q

EXISTING 

ORNAMENTAL FENCE. 

10" V.I.F.

COORDINATE 

LOCATION OF NEW 

FENCE SYSTEM WITH 

BOLLARD LOCATION. 

GAP BETWEEN FENCE 

AND BOLLARD TO BE 

NO LARGER THAN 6".

REPAIR DAMAGED 

FENCE PICKET USING 

SALVAGED PIECES 

FROM REMOVED 

PORTION OF FENCE 

SYSTEM.

3
2

' -
 0

" 
V

.I
.F

.

REPAIR DAMAGED FENCE PICKET USING 

SALVAGED PIECES FROM REMOVED 

PORTION OF FENCE SYSTEM.

2 SECTIONS OF FENCE SYSTEM TO BE 

REMOVED AND SALAVAGED FOR PARTS 

TO BE USED TO REPAIR EXISTING 

FENCE TO REMAIN.

EXTENTS OF FENCE TO REMAIN ENDS AT THIS 

POINT. COORDINATE INSTALLATION OF NEW 

FENCE SYSTEM WITH EXISTING FENCE SYSTEM 

AND EXISTING MASONRY RECEIVING WALL.

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23

© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.

C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

2
0

2
1

 F
G

M
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

 I
N

C
.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS
ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD

WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187

630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.
CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200

NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540

630.717.5335 (O) 

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION
STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD

DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515

630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING
M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or 

construction.

The information on this document is 

preliminary or incomplete, not for 

construction, recording purposes, or 

implementation.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

9
/2

/2
0

2
1

 4
:1

6
:3

1
 P

M

C
:\

re
v

it

te
m

p
\2

0
2

0
\2

1
-3

1
0

2
.0

1
_

F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

D
1

5
7

-C
_

C
h

e
ls

e
a

S
ch

o
o

l_
2

0
2

0
_

C
D

_
a

sh
le

y
cN

9
Y

5
R

.r
v

t

A0.0.03
21-3102.01

IS
S

U
E

D
 F

O
R

 5
0

%
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

S

ENLARGED ARCHITECTURAL

SITE PLANS

C
h

e
ls

e
a

 I
n

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 S
ch

o
o

l 
A

d
d

it
io

n
 &

 R
e

n
o

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
 S

ch
o

o
l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

1
5

7
-C

1
0

4
8

2
 W

e
st

 N
e

b
ra

sk
a

 S
tr

e
e

t,

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
, 

IL
 6

0
4

2
3

NOTATIONSJ21

N

A21
1/16" = 1'-0"

SITE LEGEND
1/16" = 1'-0"

A7 ENLARGED ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN
1/16" = 1'-0"

A1 ENLARGED ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN

N

ISSUANCE

NO DATE DESCRIPTION

09/03/21 Issued for 50% Construction

Documents

SITE PLAN KEYED NOTES

TAG DESCRIPTION

SP1 NEW ASPHALT PAVING REPLACEMENT AT ENTIRE PARKING LOT AND DRIVE. SEE CIVIL

DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP2 NEW PARKING LOT AND DRIVE LANE STRIPING AT NEWLY PAVED PARKING LOT AND

DRIVE. SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP3 AREA OF NEW SITE WORK, INCLUDING REGRADING AROUND NEW SITE ELEMENTS AND

BUILDING. SEED AND REPAIR DAMAGED TURF AREA AROUND NEW CONSTRUCTION

UPON COMPLETION OF NEW WORK. SEE CIVIL AND LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS FOR

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP4 NEW CONCRETE SIDEWALK. SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP5 NEW CONCRETE CURB. SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP6 NEW ADA TEXTURED SIDEWALK. SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMAION.

SP7 RESURFACE RUNNING TRACK, EXISTING BASE TO REMAIN. SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS FOR

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP8 NEW RUNNING TRACK SURFACE SYSTEM. SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL

INFORMATION.

SP9 NEW POURED IN PLACE PLAYGROUND SURFACE, SEE CIVIL AND LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS

FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION. PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT TO BE PROVIDED BY

OWNER. CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE WITH CM AND OWNER FOR INSTALLATION OF

PLAYGROUND SURFACE AND EQUIPMENT, INCLUDING FOOTINGS AND SUPPORTS.

SP10 NEW ASPHALT PAVING, SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP11 NEW STRIPING. COORDINATE STRIPING LAYOUT WITH OWNER. SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS

FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP12 PROVIDE AND INSTALL NEW FREE-STANDING BASKETBALL BACKSTOP AND ASSOCIATED

CONCRETE FOOTING.

SP13 NEW 5'-0" HIGH CHAINLINK FENCE AROUND THE ENTIRE TRACK, ALL SIDES. POWDER

COATED GREEN TO MATCH EXISTING. SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL

INFORMATION.

SP14 EXISTING SIDEWALK TO REMAIN, PROTECT DURING CONSTRUCTION. PATCH AS

REQUIRED. SEE CIVIL AND LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP15 EXISTING LIGHT POLE TO REMAIN, TYP.

SP16 EXISTING HANDICAP PARKING SIGN TO REMAIN, TYP.

SP17 NEW BENCH, ANCHORED TO CONCRETE SIDEWALK.

SP18 NEW FLAG POLE WITH CONCRETE FOUNDATION. PROVIDE NEW POLE MOUNTED

LIGHTING, SEE SPECIFICATIONS ANDN MEP DOCUMENTS FOR ADDITIONAL

INFORMATION.

SP19 PROVIDE NEW ORNAMENTAL FENCE SYSTEM, WITH MANUALLY DOUBLE SWING GATE.

GATE TO BE LOCKABLE. FENCE SYSTEM TO MATCH ADJACENT ORNAMENTAL FENCE

SYSTEM, INCLUDING STYLE, HEIGHT, FINISH / COLOR, ETC. EQUALLY SPACE VERTICAL

SUPPORT POSTS AND PROVIDE CONCRETE FOOTINGS FOR ALL SUPPORT POSTS. SEE

SITE DETAILS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION. COORDINATE FINAL LOCATION AND

EXTENTS OF FENCE IN FIELD.

SP20 NEW COURTYARD, WITH COLORED CONCRETE HARDSCAPE, SURROUNDING ARTIFICAL

TURF, AND MASONRY SEAT WALL. SEE SITE DETAILS, CIVIL AND LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS

FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP21 NEW 5'-0" HIGH CHAINLINK FENCE GATE. POWDER COATED GREEN TO MATCH EXISTING.

SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP22 EXISTING RETAIING WALL TO REMAIN.

SP23 EXISTING BUILDING SIGNAGE TO REMAIN.

SP24 6" HIGH CURBED LANDSCAPE BEDS, SEE LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL

INFORMATION.

SP25 EXISTING PAVED WALKING PATH TO REMAIN, PROTECT DURING CONSTRUCTION. PATCH

AS REQUIRED. SEE CIVIL AND LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP26 NEW CONCRETE WALKING PATH. SEE CIVIL AND LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS FOR

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP27 NEW MASONRY RETAINING WALL/SEAT WALL. 18" HIGH BRICK WALL TO MATCH EXISTING

BUILDING, WITH STONE CAP. PROVIDE CONCRETE FOUNDATION WALL AND FOOTING.

SEE CIVIL, LANDSCAPE  AND STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP28 NEW MASONRY SEAT WALL. 18" HIGH BRICK WALL TO MATCH EXISTING BUILDING, WITH

STONE CAP. PROVIDE CONCRETE FOUNDATION WALL AND FOOTING. SEE CIVIL,

LANDSCAPE  AND STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP29 EXISTING CONCRETE PAVING TO REMAIN.

SP30 EXISTING ELECTRICAL TRANSFORMER AND GENERATOR, SEE ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS

FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SP31 REINSTALL SALVAGED METAL BENCH. PROVIDE NEW CONCRETE FOOTINGS IN ORDER

TO INSTALL BENCH. SEE CIVIL AND LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL

INFORMATION, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO BENCH TYPE AND REINSTALLATION

LOCATION. VERIFY FINAL INSTALL LOCATION WITH OWNER.

SP32 REINSTALL SALVAGED CONCRETE BENCH. PROVIDE NEW CONCRETE FOOTINGS / SLAB

IN ORDER TO SET BENCH. SEE CIVIL AND LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL

INFORMATION, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO BENCH TYPE AND REINSTALLATION

LOCATION. VERIFY FINAL INSTALL LOCATION WITH OWNER.

SP33 NEW METAL BENCH. PROVIDE NEW CONCRETE FOOTINGS IN ORDER TO INSTALL BENCH.

SEE CIVIL AND LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION, INCLUDING BUT

NOT LIMITED TO BENCH TYPE AND REINSTALLATION LOCATION. VERIFY FINAL INSTALL

LOCATION WITH OWNER.

SEE SHEET G1.0.03 FOR GENERAL NOTES PERTAINING TO THIS SHEET

12" = 1'-0"
F1 EXISTING IMAGE - ORNAMENTAL FENCE

cgruba
Highlight



DN

UP

UP

FD

FD FD

UP

UP

UP

UP

W

UP

A3.1.00E1

A3.1.00

A3.1.00

A3.1.00

J1

N1

A1

AREA 'A'

AREA 'B'

AREA 'B'

AREA 'D'

AREA 'B'

AREA 'C'

AREA 'A'

AREA 'B'

AREA 'D'

AREA 'F'

A
R

E
A

 'C
'

A
R

E
A

 'D
'

A
R

E
A

 '
E

'

A
R

E
A

 '
F

'

A
R

E
A

 '
C

'

A
R

E
A

 '
D

'

E1

A3.2.00

A1

A3.2.00

CLASSROOM

S161

CLASSROOM

S162

RECEPTION

S101B

WAITING

S101A

ENTRY

VESTIBULE

V100

EXTENDED

LEARNING AREA

S152

CLASSROOM

S159

CLASSROOM

S160

CLASSROOM

S158

CLASSROOM

S156

CLASSROOM

S154

CLASSROOM

S153

CLASSROOM

S155

CLASSROOM

S157

CONFERENCE

ROOM

S102

ASSISTANT

PRINCIPAL

S113

PRINCIPAL

S112
NURSE

S105

NURSE TLT

S104

WORK / BREAK

ROOM

S108

PSYCH

S106

COOL DOWN

S142A

SPED TLT

S142B

SPED

CLASSROOM

S142

OT/PT / SENSORY

S189

INSTRUCTIONAL

COACHES

S187

SOUTH GYM

S120

CLASSROOM

S149

CLASSROOM

S151

NORTH GYM

S130
STAGE

S130G

STAGE STORAGE

S130H

DRESSING ROOM

S130J

DRESSING ROOM

S130K

BOYS

S135

GIRLS

S134

JC

S136

MECHANICAL

S114A

GIRLS

S192

S GYM STORAGE

S120B

LAUNDRY/ BREAK

N102A

DEAN

S111

SMALL

CONFERENCE

S110

COAT CLOSET

S103

ART CLASSROOM

S119 STEM

CLASSROOM

S117

MEDIA CENTER

S115

BOYS

S190

JC

S191

WORK ROOM

S115D

INTERVENTIONIST

S116C

INTERVENTIONIST

S116B

INTERVENTIONIST

S116A

SPED STORAGE

S142C

PARA

S188

TEACHER'S

WORK

S121

TEACHERS

LOUNGE

S123

STEM / ART

STORAGE

S118

BAND

S138

MUSIC

CLASSROOM

S140

STORAGE

S131

N GYM STORAGE

S130B

BAND STORAGE

S137

IT

S150A

STORAGE

S129

GYM OFFICE

S131A

ELECTRICAL

S150

COPY ROOM

S143

N.I.C.

TECH

S115B

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

N
E

W
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 A

D
D

IT
IO

NE
X

IS
T

IN
G

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

N
E

W
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N

A
R

E
A

 '
E

'

A
R

E
A

 '
F

'

AREA 'C'

AREA 'E'

ADMIN TLT

S107

FILES

S109

STAFF TLT

S124

ALL GENDER TLT

S125

GIRLS

S126 BOYS

S128

JC

S127

SPANISH

S141

ORCHESTRA

S139

STAFF TLT

S147

ALL GENDER TLT

S148

BOYS

S144

GIRLS

S146

JC

S145

STAIR

ST03

COMMUNICATING

STAIR

ST01

STAIR

ST02

VESTIBULE

V101

COURTYARD

CAFETERIA

S100

H

G

F

E

D

C

A

1817161514
13121110

9

R9

R7*

R6*

R5*

R4*

1

EXISTING 

PLAYGROUND TO 

REMAIN

GROUP ROOM

S115A

GREEN SCREEN

S115C

A3.1.05

A1

A3.1.01

E5

A3.1.01

A1

A3.1.02 E1

A3.1.02 A1

A3.1.01J1

A3.1.01N1

A3.1.04 A1

CLASSROOM

S170
CLASSROOM

S171

CLASSROOM

S173

EXTENDED

LEARNING

S172

CLASSROOM

S174

CLASSROOM

S175

CLASSROOM

S176

CLASSROOM

S177

CLASSROOM

S167

CLASSROOM

S168

CLASSROOM

S169

GIRLS

S185

BOYS

S183

JC

S184

COPY

S180

IT

S179

STAFF TLT

S181

ALL GENDER TLT

S182

RESOURCE

S178

RESOURCE

S164

CLASSROOM

S166

CLASSROOM

S165

RESOURCE

S163WARMING

KITCHEN

S100A

TABLE STORAGE

S100B

STAIR

ST04

CORRIDOR

SCR16

CORRIDOR

SCR13

CORRIDOR

SCR17

CORRIDOR

SCR11

CORRIDOR

SCR12

CORRIDOR

SCR18

CORRIDOR

SCR20

CORRIDOR

SCR14

CORRIDOR

SCR15

FLEX ROOM

S186

B

K

H.9

L

MM

N

2.2

R8.1

8765

R10

CL

CK

CJ

CC

CA

C1 C2

B10

C11

D2 D3 D9 D12

DG

DF

DE

DD

DC

DB

DA

J1

A3.2.00

J1

A3.2.01

M.1

K.5

CORRIDOR

SCR01

CORRIDOR

SCR03

CORRIDOR

SCR04

CORRIDOR

SCR05

BREEZEWAY

SCR08

CORRIDOR

SCR09 CORRIDOR

SCR10

2
"

2
2
' -

 2
 2

0
1

/2
5
6
"

1' - 8 3/4"

34' - 0 1/8"

2
8
' -

 0
 8

9
/2

5
6
"

2
2
5
' -

 1
1

 1
1
9
/2

5
6
"

R 2
20

' -
 0

"

10.8

J.1

J.0

Q

P

H.5

C.2

J.8

J.3

R8*

GYM OFFICE

S131B

ADMIN

CORRIDOR

SCR02

LIFT

38

GIRLS VEST.

126A

BOYS VEST.

S128A

GIRLS VEST

160A

BOYS VEST

158A

IT

S122

BOYS VEST

S123B

GIRLS VEST

S123C

GYM STORAGE

S130A

GIRLS VESTIBULE

CR045

BOYS VESTIBULE

CR048

STAFF TLT

S194

ALL GENDER TLT

S193

SERVER

N001

COURT YARD

S241

GYM OFFICE

S129A

COLLABORATION

AREA

SCR13A

CORRIDOR

SCR19

CORRIDOR

SCR13B

CORRIDOR

SCR05A

MECHANICAL

S114

EXISTING 

PLAYGROUND TO 

REMAIN

A3.1.03

A6

A3.1.03

A1

A3.1.01
E1

A3.1.03N8 J8

J1

E1

A3.1.03

A11

A3.1.03

A16

A3.1.05

J6

A3.1.04

J7

N7

A3.1.05E1

1.5

R2

A3.1.02

J10

A3.1.04 E7

NOTATIONSD21

N

A

B

C D

E

F
N

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23

© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.

C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

2
0

2
1

 F
G

M
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

 I
N

C
.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS
ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD

WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187

630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.
CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200

NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540

630.717.5335 (O) 

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION
STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD

DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515

630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING
M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or 

construction.

The information on this document is 

preliminary or incomplete, not for 

construction, recording purposes, or 

implementation.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

9
/2

/2
0

2
1

 4
:1

6
:5

3
 P

M

C
:\

re
v

it

te
m

p
\2

0
2

0
\2

1
-3

1
0

2
.0

1
_

F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

D
1

5
7

-C
_

C
h

e
ls

e
a

S
ch

o
o

l_
2

0
2

0
_

C
D

_
a

sh
le

y
cN

9
Y

5
R

.r
v

t

A1.1.00
21-3102.01

IS
S

U
E

D
 F

O
R

 5
0

%
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

S

OVERALL FIRST FLOOR PLAN

C
h

e
ls

e
a

 I
n

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 S
ch

o
o

l 
A

d
d

it
io

n
 &

 R
e

n
o

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
 S

ch
o

o
l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

1
5

7
-C

1
0

4
8

2
 W

e
st

 N
e

b
ra

sk
a

 S
tr

e
e

t,

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
, 

IL
 6

0
4

2
3

KEY PLANA21
1 : 300

A1 OVERALL FIRST FLOOR PLAN

ISSUANCE

NO DATE DESCRIPTION

09/03/21 Issued for 50% Construction

Documents

SEE SHEET G1.0.03 FOR GENERAL NOTES PERTAINING TO THIS SHEET

cgruba
Highlight



FD

FD FDUP

UP

W

UP

UP

E1

A3.2.00

A1

A3.2.00

AREA 'A'

AREA 'B'

AREA 'B'

AREA 'D'

AREA 'B'

AREA 'C'

AREA 'A'

AREA 'B'

AREA 'D'

AREA 'F'

A
R

E
A

 'C
'

A
R

E
A

 'D
'

A
R

E
A

 '
E

'

A
R

E
A

 '
F

'

A
R

E
A

 '
C

'

A
R

E
A

 '
D

'

CLASSROOM

S209

CLASSROOM

S208

CLASSROOM

S207

CLASSROOM

S206

CLASSROOM

S205

CLASSROOM

S203

CLASSROOM

S202

CLASSROOM

S201

RESOURCE

ROOM

S217

CONFERENCE

ROOM

S213
?

?

SOCIAL

S224

STAFF TLT

S214

ALL GENDER

TLT

S215

SOCIAL

S222

SOCIAL

S223

LITERACY

LIBRARY /

COPY ROOM

S219

CLASSROOM

S225

CLASSROOM

S226

CLASSROOM

S227

IT

S216

CLASSROOM

S228

A
R

E
A

 '
E

'

A
R

E
A

 '
F

'

AREA 'C'

AREA 'E'

SPEECH

S220

SPEECH

S221

GIRLS

S210

BOYS

S212

JC

S211

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

N
E

W
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 A

D
D

IT
IO

NE
X

IS
T

IN
G

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

N
E

W
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N

STAIR

ST02

STAIR

ST03

OPEN TO BELOW

OPEN TO BELOW

COURTYARD

OPEN TO BELOW

ROOF BELOW

EXISTING ROOF BELOW

ROOF BELOW

NEW ROOF BELOW

H

G

F

E

D

C

C

A A

1817161514131211109

9.9

R9

R7*

R6*

R5*

R4*

1

STAIR

ST04

NIC

JC

S231

MECHANICAL

PENTHOUSE

S229

STAFF TLT

S233

ALL GENDER

TLT

S232

CORRIDOR

SCR26

FLEX ROOM

S204

B

B

K

H.9

L

M

M

N

2.2

R8.1

876

5

5

R10

CL

CK

CJ

CH

CG

CF

CE

CD

CC

CB

CA

C1 C2

C3 C4 C5 C6 C7 C8 C9

B1

C12 C14

C15
B10

C13

B2

C11

C16
B7

C17

C18 D1

D2 D3

D4 D5 D6 D7 D8

D9

D10 D11

D12

DG

DF

DE

DD

DC

DB

DA

BD

BC

BB

AR

AN

AM'

AM

AL

AJ

AG

AE

AC

AA

A13 A12 A11 A10 A9 A8 A7 A6 A5 A4 A3 A2 A1

AB

AD

AF

AH

AKB9B8B6.2B6B4.5B4 B5B3

BE

BF

BG
BH

J1

A3.2.00

J1

A3.2.01

8.2
M.1

K.5

A1

A3.2.02

E1

A3.2.02

2
2
' -

 2
 2

0
1

/2
5
6
"

1' - 8 3/4"

CORRIDOR

SCR24

CORRIDOR

SCR23

CORRIDOR

SCR22

CORRIDOR

SCR21

EXTENDED

LEARNING

S200

10.8

J.1

J.0

Q

P

H.5

C.2

J.8

J.3

R8*

COLLABORATION

AREA

SCR26A

CORRIDOR

SCR25

1.5

R2

1 HOUR

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23

© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.

C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

2
0

2
1

 F
G

M
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

 I
N

C
.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS
ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD

WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187

630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.
CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200

NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540

630.717.5335 (O) 

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION
STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD

DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515

630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING
M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or 

construction.

The information on this document is 

preliminary or incomplete, not for 

construction, recording purposes, or 

implementation.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

9
/2

/2
0

2
1

 4
:1

9
:1

4
 P

M

C
:\

re
v

it

te
m

p
\2

0
2

0
\2

1
-3

1
0

2
.0

1
_

F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

D
1

5
7

-C
_

C
h

e
ls

e
a

S
ch

o
o

l_
2

0
2

0
_

C
D

_
a

sh
le

y
cN

9
Y

5
R

.r
v

t

A1.2.00
21-3102.01

IS
S

U
E

D
 F

O
R

 5
0

%
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

S

OVERALL SECOND FLOOR

PLAN

C
h

e
ls

e
a

 I
n

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 S
ch

o
o

l 
A

d
d

it
io

n
 &

 R
e

n
o

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
 S

ch
o

o
l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

1
5

7
-C

1
0

4
8

2
 W

e
st

 N
e

b
ra

sk
a

 S
tr

e
e

t,

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
, 

IL
 6

0
4

2
3

NOTATIONSL21

NN

A

B

C D

E

F

KEY PLANA21
1 : 300

A1 OVERALL SECOND FLOOR PLAN

ISSUANCE

NO DATE DESCRIPTION

09/03/21 Issued for 50% Construction

Documents

ADDITION 2ND FLOOR = 11,156 SF

ALL EXISTING DOOR FRAMES TO 

REMAIN, REPLACE ALL EXISTING 

DOOR LEAFS

SEE SHEET G1.0.03 FOR GENERAL NOTES PERTAINING TO THIS SHEET

cgruba
Highlight

cgruba
Highlight



FD

FD FD

W

E1

A3.2.00

A1

A3.2.00

H

G

F

E

D

C

A

1817161514131211109

R9

R7*

R6*

R5*
R4*

1

B

K

H.9

L

MM

N

2.2

R8.1

8

765

R10

CL

CK

CJ

CC

CA

C1 C2 C11 D2 D3 D9 D12

DG

DF

DE

DD

DC

DB

DA

J1

A3.2.00

J1

A3.2.01

R1

A

B

C

D
E

F

G

I

R1
R1

R1
R1

R1

M.1

K.5

M

K

R-1

R-1

H J

N
R-1

10.8

J.1

J.0

Q

P

H.5

C.2

J.8

J.3

R8*

R3

L
R-1

O
R-1

R3

R3

33
' -

 8
"

9'
 -

 2
 1

/4
"

84
' -

 1
0 

47
/6

4"
8'

 -
 7

 1
/6

4"
57

' -
 3

 3
3/

12
8"

29
' -

 4
"

12
' -

 1
0"

141' - 8"

33
' -

 8
"

9'
 -

 3
"

82
' -

 1
1 

63
/6

4"

1.5

R2

P
R-1

Q
R-1

R
R-1

S
R-1

R1

R1

R1

2' - 0"

INDICATES ROOF CRICKETS, MIN 1/2" : 1'-0" SLOPE

# ROOF ASSEMBLY

ROOF HATCH.  REFER TO 
DETAIL A9/A1.3.07

RH

VENT THRU ROOF.  REFER TO DETAIL 
A17/A1.3.07 AND MEP DRAWINGSVTR

ROOF AREAS NOT IN SCOPE

DESIGNATES ROOF AREA'A'

ROOF DRAIN WITH OVERFLOW

PATCH AND REPAIR OF EXISTING ROOF

- HOT-APPLIED APP ROOF SYSTEM
- 1/2" COVERBOARD
- POLYISOCYANURATE INSULATION, 5.2" CONSTANT THICKNESS
- HOT-APPLIED VAPOR BARRIER
- ROOF DECK
- SLOPED STRUCTURE (SEE STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS)

INDICATED TAPERED INSULATION: 1/4" / 12" SLOPE

ROOF ASSEMBLY "R-1"
R-VALUE: MIN. R-30

ROOF ASSEMBLY LEGEND

ADDITIONAL ROOF PLAN NOTES:

1. COORDINATE WITH STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS FOR BEARING POINTS OF ALL STRUCTURAL 
STEEL MEMBERS. ROOF STRUCTURE IS SLOPED THROUGHOUT BUILDING ADDITION. 
COORDINATE ROOF SLOPES AND INSTALLATION OF TAPERED INSULATION WITH SLOPING 
STRUCTURE TO ENSURE THAT ALL WATER IS SHED AND DRAINED OFF ROOF PROPERLY, 
TYPICAL.
2. AT ALL AREAS OF NEW WORK AND ROOF PATCHING AND REPAIR AT EXISTING ROOFS, 
CONTRACTOR TO ENSURE PROPER SLOPING IS PROVIDE FOR PROPER DRAINAGE TO 
EXISTING ROOF DRAINS. VERIFY EXISTING CONDITIONS IN FIELD.

ROOF DRAIN

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23

© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.

C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

2
0

2
1

 F
G

M
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

 I
N

C
.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS
ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD

WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187

630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.
CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200

NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540

630.717.5335 (O) 

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION
STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD

DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515

630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING
M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or 

construction.

The information on this document is 

preliminary or incomplete, not for 

construction, recording purposes, or 

implementation.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

9
/2

/2
0

2
1

 4
:2

0
:2

3
 P

M

C
:\

re
v

it

te
m

p
\2

0
2

0
\2

1
-3

1
0

2
.0

1
_

F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

D
1

5
7

-C
_

C
h

e
ls

e
a

S
ch

o
o

l_
2

0
2

0
_

C
D

_
a

sh
le

y
cN

9
Y

5
R

.r
v

t

A1.3.00
21-3102.01

IS
S

U
E

D
 F

O
R

 5
0

%
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

S

OVERALL ROOF PLAN

C
h

e
ls

e
a

 I
n

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 S
ch

o
o

l 
A

d
d

it
io

n
 &

 R
e

n
o

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
 S

ch
o

o
l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

1
5

7
-C

1
0

4
8

2
 W

e
st

 N
e

b
ra

sk
a

 S
tr

e
e

t,

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
, 

IL
 6

0
4

2
3

N N

1 : 300
A1 OVERALL ROOF PLAN

A

B

C D

E

F

ISSUANCE

NO DATE DESCRIPTION

09/03/21 Issued for 50% Construction

Documents

1/8" = 1'-0"

ROOF PLAN LEGENDD21

NOTATIONSK21

ROOF PLAN KEYED NOTES

TAG NOTE

R1 AREA OF EXISTING ROOF TO REMAIN. EXISTING ROOF TYPE IS MODIFED BITUMEN,
VERIFY TYPE AND ASSEMBLY IN FIELD. FOR INSTALLATION OF ALL NEW ROOF
PENETRATIONS IN EXISTING ROOF, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO NEW ROOF SCREEN
SUPPORTS, NEW MEP EQUIPMENT – MECHANICAL UNITS, EXHAUST FANS, ETC. AND
PIPING, PULL BACK EXISTING ROOFING MEMBRANE IN ORDER TO COMPLETE NEW
WORK. ALL EQUIPMENT SHALL BE INSTALLED ON NEW CURBS, AND ALL PIPES SHALL BE
INSTALLED WITH FLASHING BOOTS. UPON COMPLETION OF INSTALLATION, REINSTALL,
PATCH AND REPAIR EXISTING ROOF, AND PROPERLY FLASH AROUND ALL NEW
PENETRATIONS AND INTO CURBS AND BOOTS ACCORDING TO ROOFING
MANUFACTURER’S RECOMMENDATION AND DETAILS. CONTRACTOR TO ENSURE
PROPER WATER SHED AND DRAINAGE AROUND ALL NEW INSTALLATIONS, AND NEW
WORK SHALL BE PERFORMED TO MAINTAIN EXISTING ROOF WARRANTY. FOR
LOCATIONS OF ALL NEW PENETRATIONS, SEE ENLARGED ARCHITECTURAL ROOF PLANS,
AND MEPFP PLANS.

R2 NEW ROOF HATCH, WITH CURB MOUNTED GUARDRAILS. COORDINATE ROOF HATCH
LOCATION WITH STRUCTURAL LAYOUT. SEE STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS AND
SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

R3 EXPANSION JOINT. SEE G-SERIES SHEETS AND STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS FOR FURTHER
INFORMATION

R4 PATCH AND REPAIR EXISTING ROOFING SYSTEM, INLCUDING INSULATION,
COVERBOARD, AND MOD BIT MEMBRANE SYSTEM AROUND AT AREA OF ROOF WHERE
EXISTING MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT AND ASSOCIATED COMPONENTS WERE REMOVED.
SEE MEP DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION. PATCH AND REPAIR EXISTING
COPING AND TREATED WOOD BLOCKING ALONG BUILDING EDGE WHERE IMPACTED BY
DEMO WORK. COORDINATE EXACT EXTENTS OF PATCHING, AND CONDITIONS IN FIELD.

R5 AREA DIVIDER

R6 EQUIPMENT CURB MOUNTED EQUIPMENT SCREEN BY MECHANICAL CONTRACTOR. SEE
MECHANICAL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

R7 GUTTER AND DOWNSPOUT

R8 STRUCTURE SLOPES IN MULTIPLE DIRECTIONS, CREATING MULTIPLE HIGH AND LOW
POINTS ALONG ROOF, SEE STRUCTURAL DOCUMENTS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

R9 PRIMARY ROOF DRAIN WITH OVERFLOW DRAIN.

R10 PATCH AND REPAIR EXISTING ROOFING SYSTEM, INCLUDING INSULATION,
COVERBOARD, AND MOD BIT MEMBRANE SYSTEM AS REQUIRED AROUND NEW SCOPE
OF WORK. PATCH AND REPAIR EXISTING COPING AND TREATED WOOD BLOCKING
ALONG BUILDING EDGE WHERE IT WAS REMOVED IN ORDER TO COMPLETE NEW WORK,
OR WHERE IT WAS DAMAGED DUE TO NEW WORK. PROVIDE NEW BLOCKING AS
REQUIRED. UPON COMPLETION OF NEW WORK, EXISTING ROOFING SYSTEM, AND ALL
FLASHING AND COPINGS SHOULD BE RESTORED TO MEET ROOFING MANUFACTURER'S
RECOMMENDATIONS AND REQUIREMENTS, IN ORDER FOR THE EXISTING WARRANTY TO
REMAIN EFFECTIVE.

R12 SINGLE ROOF DRAIN. REFER TO MEP DRAWINGS FOR MORE INFORMATION.

R13 NEW MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT SCREENING,ETC. SEE MEP AND STRUCTURAL
DOCUMENTS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

R14 STAIR SYSTEM. SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR MORE INFORMATION

R15 PATCH AND REPAIR EXISTING ROOFING SYSTEM, INLCUDING INSULATION,
COVERBOARD, AND MOD BIT MEMBRANE SYSTEM AROUND INSTALLATION OF NEW
MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT AND CURB. SEE MEP DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION. PROPERLY FLASH EXISTING ROOFING SYSTEM INTO NEW EQUIPMENT
CURB PER ROOFING MANUFACTURER'S STANDARD DETAILS. UPON COMPLETION OF
NEW WORK, EXISTING ROOFING SYSTEM, AND ALL FLASHING SHOULD BE RESTORED TO
MEET ROOFING MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS AND REQUIREMENTS, IN ORDER
FOR THE EXISTING WARRANTY TO REMAIN EFFECTIVE.

SEE SHEET G1.0.03 FOR GENERAL NOTES PERTAINING TO THIS SHEET

KEY PLANA21

cgruba
Highlight



1ST FLOOR EXISTING AND ADDITION

100' - 0"

2ND FLOOR EXISTING

112' - 0"

T/MASONRY 2ND FLOOR EXISTING

125' - 4"

CAFETERIA FLOOR ADDITION

98' - 0"

2ND FLOOR ADDITION

114' - 0"

T/STEEL 2ND FLOOR ADDITION

129' - 0"

HGFEDCA

A3.1.01

J1

A3.1.01

N1

T/MASONRY 1ST FLOOR ADDITION

116' - 8"

B KH.9 L M N DGDFDEDDDCDBDA AM AAABADAFAHAKBE

J1

A3.2.00

J1

A3.2.01

A1

A3.2.02

E1

A3.2.02

QPH.5C.2

NEW BUILDING ADDITION EXISTING BUILDING

T/MASONRY 2ND FLOOR ADDITION

131' - 4"

A3.1.05

E1

33' - 8" 9' - 2 1/4"

3' - 4"

5' - 4" 12' - 4" 5' - 4"

4' - 7 3/8"

5' - 4" 12' - 4" 5' - 4"

4' - 7 3/8"

5' - 4" 12' - 4" 5' - 4"

3' - 4"

8' - 7"

3' - 4"

5' - 4" 12' - 4" 5' - 4"

4' - 7 1/4"

5' - 4" 12' - 4" 5' - 4"

3' - 4"

12' - 10"

3' - 4"

5' - 4" 12' - 4" 5' - 4" 3' - 0"

1ST FLOOR EXISTING AND ADDITION

100' - 0"

2ND FLOOR EXISTING

112' - 0"

T/MASONRY 2ND FLOOR EXISTING

125' - 4"

CAFETERIA FLOOR ADDITION

98' - 0"

E1

A3.2.00

A1

A3.2.00

2ND FLOOR ADDITION

114' - 0"

T/STEEL 2ND FLOOR ADDITION

129' - 0"

T/MASONRY 1ST FLOOR ADDITION

116' - 8"

C1C2C3C4C5D1D2D3D4D5D6D7D8D9D10D11D12 A13A12A11A10A9A8A7A6A5A4A3A2A1
T/MASONRY 2ND FLOOR ADDITION

131' - 4"

A3.1.05

J6

A3.1.05

A1

A3.1.04

J7

1.5

1ST FLOOR EXISTING AND ADDITION

100' - 0"

2ND FLOOR EXISTING

112' - 0"

T/MASONRY 2ND FLOOR EXISTING

125' - 4"

CAFETERIA FLOOR ADDITION

98' - 0"

E1

A3.2.00
A1

A3.2.00

2ND FLOOR ADDITION

114' - 0"

T/STEEL 2ND FLOOR ADDITION

129' - 0"

18171615141312111091

A3.1.01

A1 A3.1.01

E5

T/MASONRY 1ST FLOOR ADDITION

116' - 8"

2.2 8765C1 C2 C4 C5 C7 C8 D11 D12

NEW BUILDING ADDITIONEXISTING BUILDING NEW BUILDING ADDITION EXISTING BUILDING

T/MASONRY 2ND FLOOR ADDITION

131' - 4"

1.5

1ST FLOOR EXISTING AND ADDITION

100' - 0"

2ND FLOOR EXISTING

112' - 0"

T/MASONRY 2ND FLOOR EXISTING

125' - 4"

CAFETERIA FLOOR ADDITION

98' - 0"

2ND FLOOR ADDITION

114' - 0"

T/STEEL 2ND FLOOR ADDITION

129' - 0"

F E D C A

T/MASONRY 1ST FLOOR ADDITION

116' - 8"

BM

CLCKCJCHCGCFCECD

CCCBCABDBCBBARANAM'AMALAJAGAEACAA AK BE BF BG BH

J1

A3.2.00

J1

A3.2.01

M.1 K.5

A3.1.02

A1

A3.1.02

E1

NEW BUILDING ADDITIONEXISTING BUILDING

A1

A3.2.02

E1

A3.2.02

C.2
T/MASONRY 2ND FLOOR ADDITION

131' - 4"

A3.1.04

A1

A3.1.04

E7

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23

© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.

C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

2
0

2
1

 F
G

M
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

 I
N

C
.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS
ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD

WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187

630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.
CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200

NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540

630.717.5335 (O) 

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION
STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD

DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515

630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING
M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or 

construction.

The information on this document is 

preliminary or incomplete, not for 

construction, recording purposes, or 

implementation.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

9
/2

/2
0

2
1

 4
:2

2
:4

7
 P

M

C
:\

re
v

it

te
m

p
\2

0
2

0
\2

1
-3

1
0

2
.0

1
_

F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

D
1

5
7

-C
_

C
h

e
ls

e
a

S
ch

o
o

l_
2

0
2

0
_

C
D

_
a

sh
le

y
cN

9
Y

5
R

.r
v

t

A3.1.00
21-3102.01

IS
S

U
E

D
 F

O
R

 5
0

%
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

S

EXTERIOR BUILDING

ELEVATIONS

C
h

e
ls

e
a

 I
n

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 S
ch

o
o

l 
A

d
d

it
io

n
 &

 R
e

n
o

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
 S

ch
o

o
l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

1
5

7
-C

1
0

4
8

2
 W

e
st

 N
e

b
ra

sk
a

 S
tr

e
e

t,

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
, 

IL
 6

0
4

2
3

1" = 20'-0"

E1 OVERALL BUILDING ELEVATION - EAST

1" = 20'-0"

J1 OVERALL BUILDING ELEVATION - NORTH

1" = 20'-0"

A1 OVERALL BUILDING ELEVATION - SOUTH

1" = 20'-0"

N1 OVERALL BUILDING ELEVATION - WEST

ISSUANCE

NO DATE DESCRIPTION

09/03/21 Issued for 50% Construction

Documents

cgruba
Highlight



(FB-2A) - ENDICOTT MANGENESE VELOUR - UTILITY SIZE
RUNNING BOND COURSING

EXTERIOR WALL MATERIALS

CASEMENT OPERABLE WINDOW

ZURN WALL MOUNTED OVERFLOW DRAIN COVER.

WALL PACK

WALL FINISHXX

WINDOW TAG1i

NOTE: FINAL LOCATIONS OF ALL EXTERIOR LIGHTING FIXTURES, AND SECURITY 

EQUIPMENT TO BE APPROVED BY OWNER / ARCHITECT PRIOR TO INSTALLATION / ROUGH 

IN. INSTALLATION CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE DRAWINGS OF ELEVATIONS DESIGNATING 

LOCATION OF ALL EXTERIOR LIGHTING FIXTURES AND SECURITY EQUIPMENT, INCLUDING 

BY NOT LIMITED TO HEIGHT ABOVE LEVEL 1, PRIOR TO INSTALLATION / ROUGH IN.

(MTL-1) - METAL PANEL - COLOR 1
- PAC-CLAD (ARCONIC COLORWELD 500 - SERIES 2) 
- DEEP BLACK*

(FB-E) - EXISTING FACE BRICK

(MTL-2) - METAL PANEL - COLOR 1
- PAC-CLAD (ARCONIC COLORWELD 500 - SERIES 2) 
- BONE WHITE*

AWNING OPERABLE WINDOW

(FB-1) - OLDE CHEYENNE (WITH DARK) - UTILITY SIZE
RUNNING BOND COURSING

(FB-2B) - ENDICOTT MANGENESE VELOUR - UTILITY SIZE
STACKED SOLDIER COURSING

*OR EQUAL PRODUCT / MANUFACTURER AS INDICATED IN 
SPECIFICATIONS, SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL 
INFORMATION.

METAL COPING COLOR #2 - KEYNOTE E18 ON ELEVATIONS
- COLOR TO MATCH MTL-1 - DEEP BLACK*

METAL COPING COLOR #1 - KEYNOTE E5 ON ELEVATIONS
- COLOR TO MATCH EXISTING COPING - DARK BRONZE 
(VERIFY IN FIELD)*

1ST FLOOR EXISTING AND ADDITION
100' - 0"

2ND FLOOR EXISTING
112' - 0"

T/MASONRY 2ND FLOOR EXISTING
125' - 4"

CAFETERIA FLOOR ADDITION
98' - 0"

2ND FLOOR ADDITION
114' - 0"

T/STEEL 2ND FLOOR ADDITION
129' - 0"

1817161514131211109 9.9

T/MASONRY 1ST FLOOR ADDITION
116' - 8"

D11 D12

FB-2A

FB-1

MTL-2

10.8

SF-7SF-7SF-7SF-7
SF-9

SF-7SF-7SF-7SF-7

SF-11

FB-1 FB-1FB-1 FB-1 FB-1FB-1FB-1FB-1FB-1

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-E

T/MASONRY 2ND FLOOR ADDITION
131' - 4"

E18

E5E6
BEYOND

E5 E6 E5

E2

E22

E101
2
' -

 0
"

1
2
' -

 0
"

E17

CJ

1' - 4"

CJ

1' - 4" 1' - 4" 1' - 4"

CJCJ

1
2
' -

 0
"

E17

EQEQ
CJ

ELEVATOR PIT DEPTH
95' - 0"

1ST FLOOR EXISTING AND ADDITION
100' - 0"

2ND FLOOR EXISTING
112' - 0"

T/MASONRY 2ND FLOOR EXISTING
125' - 4"

CAFETERIA FLOOR ADDITION
98' - 0"

2ND FLOOR ADDITION
114' - 0"

T/STEEL 2ND FLOOR ADDITION
129' - 0"

91

T/MASONRY 1ST FLOOR ADDITION
116' - 8"

2.2 8765C1 C2 C3 C4 C5 C6 C7 C8 C9 8.2

E1

FB-2A

MTL-1

FB-2A

FB-2B

FB-2A

MTL-1MTL-1MTL-1

MTL-2

CW-2

SF-2 SF-2 SF-2

SF-6 SF-6 SF-6 SF-6 SF-6 SF-6 SF-6
FB-2AFB-2AFB-2A FB-2A FB-2A FB-2A FB-2A

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2A

FB-2A

MTL-1

FB-EFB-E FB-E

FB-E

E3

E4

MTL-2 MTL-2

T/MASONRY 2ND FLOOR ADDITION
131' - 4"

E18

E7 E7 E7 E7

E8

E8 E8 E8 E8 E8

E18

E18

FB-E

E2

1.5

E9

CW-3

E12 E12
BEYOND ON EXISTING 

EXTERIOR BRICK WALL

BEYOND ON EXISTING 

EXTERIOR BRICK WALL

SF-4

SF-6

SF-5

FB-2A

1' - 4".1' - 4".1' - 4".1' - 4".

CJ CJ CJ CJ

CJ

1' - 4".

E3

E3

E3

E3

E3 E3 E3 E3

E20

E20

E20

E20

E20

E20
E20 E20

ELEVATOR PIT DEPTH
95' - 0"

E6 E6

ALTERNATE #5: REPLACE MECHANICAL 
EQUIPMENT  AT SOUTH AND NORTH GYM. 

SEE MEP AND STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS 
FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

EXISTING GAS LINE CONNECTION.  COORDINATE 

WITH NEW LANDSCAPE.  REFER TO LANDSCAPE 

DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

1ST FLOOR EXISTING AND ADDITION
100' - 0"

2ND FLOOR EXISTING
112' - 0"

T/MASONRY 2ND FLOOR EXISTING
125' - 4"

CAFETERIA FLOOR ADDITION
98' - 0"

2ND FLOOR ADDITION
114' - 0"

T/STEEL 2ND FLOOR ADDITION
129' - 0"

HGFEDCA

T/MASONRY 1ST FLOOR ADDITION
116' - 8"

B KH.9 LK.5

MTL-2

MTL-1

MTL-1

FB-1FB-1FB-1

FB-2AFB-2A

H.5C.2

SF-7 SF-7 SF-7 SF-7 SF-7 SF-7

SF-8

SF-11

SF-10
SF-7 SF-7 SF-7 SF-7

FB-2A FB-2A

FB-1FB-1FB-1FB-1 FB-1 FB-1 FB-1 FB-1FB-1 FB-1

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

SF-12

MTL-1

MTL-1MTL-1

T/MASONRY 2ND FLOOR ADDITION
131' - 4"

E5 E5

E18

E6

E6

12' - 0"

E5 E17
CJ

1
2
' -

 0
"

1
2
' -

 0
"

E17

1' - 4"

CJ
E17

CJ

1' - 4"

CJ

1' - 4"

1
2
' -

 0
"

1
2
' -

 0
"

1
2
' -

 0
"

E17

CJ

1' - 4"

CJ

1' - 4"

E18

20' - 0" CJCJ
EQ EQ

E6

E22

STAIR AND RAILING SYSTEM 

FROM MECHANICAL ROOM. 

SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR 

MORE INFORMATION.

1ST FLOOR EXISTING AND ADDITION
100' - 0"

2ND FLOOR EXISTING
112' - 0"

T/MASONRY 2ND FLOOR EXISTING
125' - 4"

CAFETERIA FLOOR ADDITION
98' - 0"

2ND FLOOR ADDITION
114' - 0"

T/STEEL 2ND FLOOR ADDITION
129' - 0"

T/MASONRY 1ST FLOOR ADDITION
116' - 8"

L M N CE DGDFDEDDDCDBDA BHQP

SF-7 SF-7
FB-1 FB-1

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

T/MASONRY 2ND FLOOR ADDITION
131' - 4"

E3

E6

E5

E18

E2 E2 E2 E2 E2 E2 E2 E2 E2

E9
E9

E22

E10

EXPANSION JOINT

E2 E2

E10E10

FB-2A

FB-E

FB-E

BEYOND

FB-E

BEYOND
FB-E

BEYOND

FB-EFB-E

1
2
' -

 0
"

1' - 4"

CJ

BEYOND AT EXISTING 2 

STORY BUILDING

E19 E19 E19 E19 E19 E19 E19

E3 E3 E3 E3 E3 E3

E10

FB-1

E23

BEYOND AT EXISTING 2 

STORY BUILDING

ALTERNATE #5: REPLACE MECHANICAL 
EQUIPMENT  AT SOUTH AND NORTH GYM. 
SEE MEP AND STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS 
FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

1ST FLOOR EXISTING AND ADDITION
100' - 0"

T/MASONRY 1ST FLOOR ADDITION
116' - 8"

FB-2A

FB-2A

E18

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23

© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.

C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

2
0

2
1

 F
G

M
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

 I
N

C
.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS
ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD

WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187

630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.
CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200

NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540

630.717.5335 (O) 

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION
STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD

DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515

630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING
M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or 

construction.

The information on this document is 

preliminary or incomplete, not for 

construction, recording purposes, or 

implementation.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

9
/2

/2
0

2
1

 4
:2

3
:0

0
 P

M

C
:\

re
v

it

te
m

p
\2

0
2

0
\2

1
-3

1
0

2
.0

1
_

F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

D
1

5
7

-C
_

C
h

e
ls

e
a

S
ch

o
o

l_
2

0
2

0
_

C
D

_
a

sh
le

y
cN

9
Y

5
R

.r
v

t

A3.1.01
21-3102.01

IS
S

U
E

D
 F

O
R

 5
0

%
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

S

ENLARGED BUILDING

ELEVATIONS

C
h

e
ls

e
a

 I
n

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 S
ch

o
o

l 
A

d
d

it
io

n
 &

 R
e

n
o

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
 S

ch
o

o
l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

1
5

7
-C

1
0

4
8

2
 W

e
st

 N
e

b
ra

sk
a

 S
tr

e
e

t,

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
, 

IL
 6

0
4

2
3

1/8" = 1'-0"

EXTERIOR WALL LEGENDA21

1/8" = 1'-0"
E5 ENLARGED BUILDING ELEVATION - NEW ADDITION SOUTH

1/8" = 1'-0"
A1 ENLARGED BUILDING ELEVATION - NEW ADDITION SOUTH

1/8" = 1'-0"
J1 ENLARGED BUILDING ELEVATION - NEW ADDITION EAST

1/8" = 1'-0"
N1 ENLARGED BUILDING ELEVATION - NEW ADDITION EAST

ISSUANCE

NO DATE DESCRIPTION

09/03/21 Issued for 50% Construction

Documents

ELEVATION KEYED NOTES

TAG NOTE

E1 INSTALL NEW BACKLIT BUILDING SIGNAGE. SEE DETAILS AND ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS

FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E2 CLEAN AND PREP EXISTING METAL STANDING SEAM FASCIA AND SOFFIT PANELS TO

RECEIVE NEW FINISH COATING. ALL SOFFIT PANELS, SIDE PANELS, AND ADJACENT METAL

PANELS OF SIMIALR EXISTING FINISH TO RECEIVE NEW FINISH COATING. SEE RCP’S FOR

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION, AND COORDINATE IN FIELD FOR EXACT EXTENTS. PROVIDE

NEW TNEMEC PRIMER, AND FINISH COATING, MIN 3 COATS, ON ENTIRE METAL PANEL

SURFACES. PROTECT ALL SURROUNDING SURFACES BEFORE APPLYING NEW PRIMER

AND FINISH COATING. COORDINATE FINISH COATING COLOR SELECTION WITH CM AND

ARCHITECT, COLOR TO MATCH COLOR APPLIED TO FIELD MOCKUP OF APPLIED COATING.

SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E3 EXISTING WINDOW, TYPICAL.

E4 NEW MECHANICAL LOUVER WHERE EXISTING WAS REMOVED. LOUVER FINISH TO MATCH

NEW FASCIA PANEL COLOR. SEE MECHANICAL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL

INFORMATION.

E5 METAL COPING, COLOR #1. SEE ROOF AND WALL DETAILS, AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E6 ROOF DRAIN OVERFLOW. SEE PLUMBING DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

CENTER ON WALL.

E7 METAL COLUMN WRAPS, SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E8 EXTEND CONCRETE FOOTING 6" ABOVE FINISHED SIDEWALK, BE 1" GREATER IN

DIAMETER THAN COLUMN WRAP, WITH 1/2" CHAMFERED EDGES. SEE STRUCTURAL

DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E9 NEW ROOFTOP MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT AND SCREENING. SEE ROOF PLANS AND

MECHANICAL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E10 EXISTING STOREFRONT SYSTEM, TYPICAL.

E11 REPLACE EXISTING FAILING BRICK, REFERENCE PHOTO FOR EXTENTS OF REPAIR.

PROVIDE SHELF ANGLES, FLASHING, AND ROOF REPAIR AS REQUIRED. SEE STRUCTURAL

DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E12 INFILL MASONRY WALL WHERE EXISTING LOUVER WAS REMOVED. WALL INFILL TO MATCH

EXISTING, FULL WALL CONSTRUCTION, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO INTERIOR

SUBSTRATE, THERMAL AND MOISTURE BARRIERS, AND EXTERIOR MASONRY BRICK.

TOOTH IN ALL NEW MASONRY, EXTERIOR BRICK TO MATCH EIXSTING. VERIFY EXISTING

WALL CONSTRUCTION AND COORDINATE IN FIELD.

E13 INFILL MASONRY WALL WHERE EXISTING DOOR WAS REMOVED. WALL INFILL TO MATCH

EXISTING, FULL WALL CONSTRUCTION, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO INTERIOR

SUBSTRATE, THERMAL AND MOISTURE BARRIERS, AND EXTERIOR MASONRY BRICK.

TOOTH IN ALL NEW MASONRY, EXTERIOR BRICK TO MATCH EIXSTING. VERIFY EXISTING

WALL CONSTRUCTION AND COORDINATE IN FIELD.

E14 PATCH AND SKIM COAT TO REPAIR SURFACE OF EXISTING EXPOSED CONCRETE

FOUNDATION WALL ALONG EXTERIOR MASONRY WALL AT COURTYARD.

E15 PROVIDE SKIM COAT FINISH TO ALL EXPOSED CONCRETE FOUNDATION WALLS AROUND

COURTYARD.

E16 PATCH AND INFILLPORTION OF MASONRY WALL TO MATCH EXISTING AROUND NEW

LINTEL AFTER LINTEL IS INSTALLED. COORDINATE SCOPE OF WORK IN FIELD.

E17 WALL PACK LIGHT FIXTURE. SEE ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

CENTER ON WALL.

E18 METAL COPING, COLOR #2. SEE ROOF AND WALL DETAILS, AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E19 POWER WASH / CLEAN EXISTING STONE WINDOW SILL.

E20 POWER WASH / CLEAN EXISTING BRICK WINDOW SILL.

E21 OUTDOOR TEACHING BOARD SECURED TO EXISTING MASONRY WALL. SEE LANDSCAPE

DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E22 NEW ROOFTOP MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT. SEE ROOF PLANS, STRUCTURAL AND

MECHANICAL DRAWINGS FOR MORE INFORMATION.

E23 NEW ROOF HATCH WITH GUARDRAIL. SEE ROOF PLANS AND DETAILS FOR MORE

INFORMATION.

1/8" = 1'-0"
E1 ENLARGED ELEVATION - WEST

cgruba
Highlight



(FB-2A) - ENDICOTT MANGENESE VELOUR - UTILITY SIZE
RUNNING BOND COURSING

EXTERIOR WALL MATERIALS

CASEMENT OPERABLE WINDOW

ZURN WALL MOUNTED OVERFLOW DRAIN COVER.

WALL PACK

WALL FINISHXX

WINDOW TAG1i

NOTE: FINAL LOCATIONS OF ALL EXTERIOR LIGHTING FIXTURES, AND SECURITY 

EQUIPMENT TO BE APPROVED BY OWNER / ARCHITECT PRIOR TO INSTALLATION / ROUGH 

IN. INSTALLATION CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE DRAWINGS OF ELEVATIONS DESIGNATING 

LOCATION OF ALL EXTERIOR LIGHTING FIXTURES AND SECURITY EQUIPMENT, INCLUDING 

BY NOT LIMITED TO HEIGHT ABOVE LEVEL 1, PRIOR TO INSTALLATION / ROUGH IN.

(MTL-1) - METAL PANEL - COLOR 1
- PAC-CLAD (ARCONIC COLORWELD 500 - SERIES 2) 
- DEEP BLACK*

(FB-E) - EXISTING FACE BRICK

(MTL-2) - METAL PANEL - COLOR 1
- PAC-CLAD (ARCONIC COLORWELD 500 - SERIES 2) 
- BONE WHITE*

AWNING OPERABLE WINDOW

(FB-1) - OLDE CHEYENNE (WITH DARK) - UTILITY SIZE
RUNNING BOND COURSING

(FB-2B) - ENDICOTT MANGENESE VELOUR - UTILITY SIZE
STACKED SOLDIER COURSING

*OR EQUAL PRODUCT / MANUFACTURER AS INDICATED IN 
SPECIFICATIONS, SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL 
INFORMATION.

METAL COPING COLOR #2 - KEYNOTE E18 ON ELEVATIONS
- COLOR TO MATCH MTL-1 - DEEP BLACK*

METAL COPING COLOR #1 - KEYNOTE E5 ON ELEVATIONS
- COLOR TO MATCH EXISTING COPING - DARK BRONZE 
(VERIFY IN FIELD)*

1ST FLOOR EXISTING AND ADDITION
100' - 0"

2ND FLOOR EXISTING
112' - 0"

CAFETERIA FLOOR ADDITION
98' - 0"

2ND FLOOR ADDITION
114' - 0"

F E D C A

T/MASONRY 1ST FLOOR ADDITION
116' - 8"

B

FB-1

MTL-1

C.2

SF-7 SF-7 SF-7 SF-7 SF-7
SF-8

MTL-1 MTL-2

FB-1 FB-1FB-1FB-1 FB-1
FB-1

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2B

T/MASONRY 2ND FLOOR ADDITION
131' - 4"

E5E6 E5
FB-1

SF-7

ELEVATION 

PARTIALLY HIDDEN 

FOR CLARITY

FB-2B

FB-2B

CJ

12' - 0"1' - 4" 1' - 4" 1' - 4"

CJCJ
E17E17

CJ

1
2
' -

 0
"

1
2
' -

 0
"

1
2
' -

 0
"

1ST FLOOR EXISTING AND ADDITION
100' - 0"

2ND FLOOR EXISTING
112' - 0"

T/MASONRY 2ND FLOOR EXISTING
125' - 4"

CAFETERIA FLOOR ADDITION
98' - 0"

2ND FLOOR ADDITION
114' - 0"

T/STEEL 2ND FLOOR ADDITION
129' - 0"

H G F

T/MASONRY 1ST FLOOR ADDITION
116' - 8"

K H.9LMCLCKCJ M.1 K.5

E2

H.5

CW-1

SF-1

SF-3
FB-2A

FB-E

MTL-2

FB-2A

FB-2B

FB-2B

FB-2A
SF-16

T/MASONRY 2ND FLOOR ADDITION
131' - 4"

SF-16

E10

E10

E9

E18

E18

MTL-2

E18

EXPANSION JOINT

FB-2B

FB-2B

EQ EQ
E16 E16

1' - 4"CJ

1
2
' -

 0
"

E2

E3

E3

E20

E20

ELEVATOR PIT DEPTH
95' - 0"

SF-6 SF-6 SF-6 SF-6 SF-6 SF-6 SF-6 SF-6

SF-5 SF-5 SF-5 SF-5

1ST FLOOR EXISTING AND ADDITION
100' - 0"

2ND FLOOR EXISTING
112' - 0"

T/MASONRY 2ND FLOOR EXISTING
125' - 4"

C14

E11
FB-E

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23

© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.

C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

2
0

2
1

 F
G

M
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

 I
N

C
.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS
ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD

WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187

630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.
CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200

NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540

630.717.5335 (O) 

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION
STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD

DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515

630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING
M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or 

construction.

The information on this document is 

preliminary or incomplete, not for 

construction, recording purposes, or 

implementation.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

9
/2

/2
0

2
1

 4
:2

3
:1

3
 P

M

C
:\

re
v

it

te
m

p
\2

0
2

0
\2

1
-3

1
0

2
.0

1
_

F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

D
1

5
7

-C
_

C
h

e
ls

e
a

S
ch

o
o

l_
2

0
2

0
_

C
D

_
a

sh
le

y
cN

9
Y

5
R

.r
v

t

A3.1.02
21-3102.01

IS
S

U
E

D
 F

O
R

 5
0

%
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

S

ENLARGED BUILDING

ELEVATIONS

C
h

e
ls

e
a

 I
n

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 S
ch

o
o

l 
A

d
d

it
io

n
 &

 R
e

n
o

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
 S

ch
o

o
l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

1
5

7
-C

1
0

4
8

2
 W

e
st

 N
e

b
ra

sk
a

 S
tr

e
e

t,

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
, 

IL
 6

0
4

2
3

1/8" = 1'-0"

EXTERIOR WALL LEGENDA21
1/8" = 1'-0"

A1 ENLARGED BUILDING ELEVATION - NEW ADDITION WEST

1/8" = 1'-0"
E1 ENLARGED BUILDING ELEVATION - NEW ADDITION WEST

ISSUANCE

NO DATE DESCRIPTION

09/03/21 Issued for 50% Construction

Documents

1/8" = 1'-0"
J10 ENLARGED BUILDING ELEVATION - EXISTING BUILDING SOUTH - GYM

ELEVATION KEYED NOTES

TAG NOTE

E1 INSTALL NEW BACKLIT BUILDING SIGNAGE. SEE DETAILS AND ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS

FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E2 CLEAN AND PREP EXISTING METAL STANDING SEAM FASCIA AND SOFFIT PANELS TO

RECEIVE NEW FINISH COATING. ALL SOFFIT PANELS, SIDE PANELS, AND ADJACENT METAL

PANELS OF SIMIALR EXISTING FINISH TO RECEIVE NEW FINISH COATING. SEE RCP’S FOR

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION, AND COORDINATE IN FIELD FOR EXACT EXTENTS. PROVIDE

NEW TNEMEC PRIMER, AND FINISH COATING, MIN 3 COATS, ON ENTIRE METAL PANEL

SURFACES. PROTECT ALL SURROUNDING SURFACES BEFORE APPLYING NEW PRIMER

AND FINISH COATING. COORDINATE FINISH COATING COLOR SELECTION WITH CM AND

ARCHITECT, COLOR TO MATCH COLOR APPLIED TO FIELD MOCKUP OF APPLIED COATING.

SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E3 EXISTING WINDOW, TYPICAL.

E4 NEW MECHANICAL LOUVER WHERE EXISTING WAS REMOVED. LOUVER FINISH TO MATCH

NEW FASCIA PANEL COLOR. SEE MECHANICAL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL

INFORMATION.

E5 METAL COPING, COLOR #1. SEE ROOF AND WALL DETAILS, AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E6 ROOF DRAIN OVERFLOW. SEE PLUMBING DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

CENTER ON WALL.

E7 METAL COLUMN WRAPS, SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E8 EXTEND CONCRETE FOOTING 6" ABOVE FINISHED SIDEWALK, BE 1" GREATER IN

DIAMETER THAN COLUMN WRAP, WITH 1/2" CHAMFERED EDGES. SEE STRUCTURAL

DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E9 NEW ROOFTOP MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT AND SCREENING. SEE ROOF PLANS AND

MECHANICAL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E10 EXISTING STOREFRONT SYSTEM, TYPICAL.

E11 REPLACE EXISTING FAILING BRICK, REFERENCE PHOTO FOR EXTENTS OF REPAIR.

PROVIDE SHELF ANGLES, FLASHING, AND ROOF REPAIR AS REQUIRED. SEE STRUCTURAL

DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E12 INFILL MASONRY WALL WHERE EXISTING LOUVER WAS REMOVED. WALL INFILL TO MATCH

EXISTING, FULL WALL CONSTRUCTION, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO INTERIOR

SUBSTRATE, THERMAL AND MOISTURE BARRIERS, AND EXTERIOR MASONRY BRICK.

TOOTH IN ALL NEW MASONRY, EXTERIOR BRICK TO MATCH EIXSTING. VERIFY EXISTING

WALL CONSTRUCTION AND COORDINATE IN FIELD.

E13 INFILL MASONRY WALL WHERE EXISTING DOOR WAS REMOVED. WALL INFILL TO MATCH

EXISTING, FULL WALL CONSTRUCTION, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO INTERIOR

SUBSTRATE, THERMAL AND MOISTURE BARRIERS, AND EXTERIOR MASONRY BRICK.

TOOTH IN ALL NEW MASONRY, EXTERIOR BRICK TO MATCH EIXSTING. VERIFY EXISTING

WALL CONSTRUCTION AND COORDINATE IN FIELD.

E14 PATCH AND SKIM COAT TO REPAIR SURFACE OF EXISTING EXPOSED CONCRETE

FOUNDATION WALL ALONG EXTERIOR MASONRY WALL AT COURTYARD.

E15 PROVIDE SKIM COAT FINISH TO ALL EXPOSED CONCRETE FOUNDATION WALLS AROUND

COURTYARD.

E16 PATCH AND INFILLPORTION OF MASONRY WALL TO MATCH EXISTING AROUND NEW

LINTEL AFTER LINTEL IS INSTALLED. COORDINATE SCOPE OF WORK IN FIELD.

E17 WALL PACK LIGHT FIXTURE. SEE ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

CENTER ON WALL.

E18 METAL COPING, COLOR #2. SEE ROOF AND WALL DETAILS, AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E19 POWER WASH / CLEAN EXISTING STONE WINDOW SILL.

E20 POWER WASH / CLEAN EXISTING BRICK WINDOW SILL.

E21 OUTDOOR TEACHING BOARD SECURED TO EXISTING MASONRY WALL. SEE LANDSCAPE

DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E22 NEW ROOFTOP MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT. SEE ROOF PLANS, STRUCTURAL AND

MECHANICAL DRAWINGS FOR MORE INFORMATION.

E23 NEW ROOF HATCH WITH GUARDRAIL. SEE ROOF PLANS AND DETAILS FOR MORE

INFORMATION.

ELEVATION PHOTO - SOUTH @ EXISTING BUILDING SOUTH GYMJ1

EXISTING BRICK 

CONTROL JOINT

EXISTING BRICK 

CONTROL JOINT

SCOPE OF WORK

20' - 4" +/-
20' - 4" +/-

cgruba
Highlight



(FB-2A) - ENDICOTT MANGENESE VELOUR - UTILITY SIZE
RUNNING BOND COURSING

EXTERIOR WALL MATERIALS

CASEMENT OPERABLE WINDOW

ZURN WALL MOUNTED OVERFLOW DRAIN COVER.

WALL PACK

WALL FINISHXX

WINDOW TAG1i

NOTE: FINAL LOCATIONS OF ALL EXTERIOR LIGHTING FIXTURES, AND SECURITY 

EQUIPMENT TO BE APPROVED BY OWNER / ARCHITECT PRIOR TO INSTALLATION / ROUGH 

IN. INSTALLATION CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE DRAWINGS OF ELEVATIONS DESIGNATING 

LOCATION OF ALL EXTERIOR LIGHTING FIXTURES AND SECURITY EQUIPMENT, INCLUDING 

BY NOT LIMITED TO HEIGHT ABOVE LEVEL 1, PRIOR TO INSTALLATION / ROUGH IN.

(MTL-1) - METAL PANEL - COLOR 1
- PAC-CLAD (ARCONIC COLORWELD 500 - SERIES 2) 
- DEEP BLACK*

(FB-E) - EXISTING FACE BRICK

(MTL-2) - METAL PANEL - COLOR 1
- PAC-CLAD (ARCONIC COLORWELD 500 - SERIES 2) 
- BONE WHITE*

AWNING OPERABLE WINDOW

(FB-1) - OLDE CHEYENNE (WITH DARK) - UTILITY SIZE
RUNNING BOND COURSING

(FB-2B) - ENDICOTT MANGENESE VELOUR - UTILITY SIZE
STACKED SOLDIER COURSING

*OR EQUAL PRODUCT / MANUFACTURER AS INDICATED IN 
SPECIFICATIONS, SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL 
INFORMATION.

METAL COPING COLOR #2 - KEYNOTE E18 ON ELEVATIONS
- COLOR TO MATCH MTL-1 - DEEP BLACK*

METAL COPING COLOR #1 - KEYNOTE E5 ON ELEVATIONS
- COLOR TO MATCH EXISTING COPING - DARK BRONZE 
(VERIFY IN FIELD)*

1ST FLOOR EXISTING AND ADDITION
100' - 0"

10 9

T/MASONRY 1ST FLOOR ADDITION
116' - 8"

FB-1MTL-1

E5

1ST FLOOR EXISTING AND ADDITION
100' - 0"

18 17

T/MASONRY 1ST FLOOR ADDITION
116' - 8"

FB-1 MTL-1

E5

1ST FLOOR EXISTING AND ADDITION
100' - 0"

2ND FLOOR ADDITION
114' - 0"

CL CK CJ CH CG CF CE CDQP

SF-7 SF-7 SF-7 SF-7 SF-7

FB-E
FB-1

E5E6

EXPANSION JOINT

E12E12

E13
NEW DOOR AT EXISTING 

DOOR OPENING
E14E15

0" EQ EQ

SF-15

E16 E16

E16

6
" 

V
.I
.F

.
7

' -
 2

" 
V

.I
.F

.

1
1
' -

 0
"

E21

5
' -

 0
"

2
' -

 0
"

8' - 0"

1ST FLOOR EXISTING AND ADDITION
100' - 0"

T/MASONRY 1ST FLOOR ADDITION
116' - 8"

NDD DC DB DAQ P

SF-13

E5

E2

FB-E FB-1

FB-2B

FB-2B

E2 E2 E2 E2 E2 E2 E2

EXPANSION JOINTE14

E19 E19 E19 E19 E19 E19 E19 E19

E3 E3 E3 E3 E3 E3 E3 E3

1ST FLOOR EXISTING AND ADDITION
100' - 0"

T/MASONRY 2ND FLOOR EXISTING
125' - 4"

T/STEEL 2ND FLOOR ADDITION
129' - 0"

13 12 11 9.9

T/MASONRY 1ST FLOOR ADDITION
116' - 8"

8 7 6 58.210.8

SF-14

FB-2A

FB-2A

FB-2A

E18

E18

CJ

ALIGN, COORDINATE 

WITH STRUCTURAL AT 

THIS LOCATION.

CJ

ALIGN, COORDINATE 

WITH STRUCTURAL AT 

THIS LOCATION.

24' - 8"24' - 8"24' - 8"24' - 8"26' - 7"22' - 0" CJ CJ CJ CJ CJ

E15E15

CUT THROUGH EXISTING BUILDING

1ST FLOOR EXISTING AND ADDITION
100' - 0"

T/MASONRY 1ST FLOOR ADDITION
116' - 8"

D1 D2

E10

FB-E

E2

E14

1ST FLOOR EXISTING AND ADDITION
100' - 0"

17

T/MASONRY 1ST FLOOR ADDITION
116' - 8"

FB-1

E5

1ST FLOOR EXISTING AND ADDITION
100' - 0"

17

T/MASONRY 1ST FLOOR ADDITION
116' - 8"

FB-1

MTL-1

E5

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23

© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.

C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

2
0

2
1

 F
G

M
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

 I
N

C
.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS
ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD

WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187

630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.
CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200

NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540

630.717.5335 (O) 

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION
STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD

DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515

630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING
M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or 

construction.

The information on this document is 

preliminary or incomplete, not for 

construction, recording purposes, or 

implementation.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

9
/2

/2
0

2
1

 4
:2

3
:2

5
 P

M

C
:\

re
v

it

te
m

p
\2

0
2

0
\2

1
-3

1
0

2
.0

1
_

F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

D
1

5
7

-C
_

C
h

e
ls

e
a

S
ch

o
o

l_
2

0
2

0
_

C
D

_
a

sh
le

y
cN

9
Y

5
R

.r
v

t

A3.1.03
21-3102.01

IS
S

U
E

D
 F

O
R

 5
0

%
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

S

ENLARGED BUILDING

ELEVATIONS

C
h

e
ls

e
a

 I
n

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 S
ch

o
o

l 
A

d
d

it
io

n
 &

 R
e

n
o

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
 S

ch
o

o
l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

1
5

7
-C

1
0

4
8

2
 W

e
st

 N
e

b
ra

sk
a

 S
tr

e
e

t,

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
, 

IL
 6

0
4

2
3

ISSUANCE

NO DATE DESCRIPTION

09/03/21 Issued for 50% Construction

Documents

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23

© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.

C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

2
0

2
1

 F
G

M
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

 I
N

C
.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS
ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD

WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187

630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.
CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200

NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540

630.717.5335 (O) 

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION
STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD

DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515

630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING
M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or 

construction.

The information on this document is 

preliminary or incomplete, not for 

construction, recording purposes, or 

implementation.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

9
/2

/2
0

2
1

 4
:2

3
:2

5
 P

M

C
:\

re
v

it

te
m

p
\2

0
2

0
\2

1
-3

1
0

2
.0

1
_

F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

D
1

5
7

-C
_

C
h

e
ls

e
a

S
ch

o
o

l_
2

0
2

0
_

C
D

_
a

sh
le

y
cN

9
Y

5
R

.r
v

t

A3.1.03
21-3102.01

IS
S

U
E

D
 F

O
R

 5
0

%
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

S

ENLARGED BUILDING

ELEVATIONS

C
h

e
ls

e
a

 I
n

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 S
ch

o
o

l 
A

d
d

it
io

n
 &

 R
e

n
o

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
 S

ch
o

o
l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

1
5

7
-C

1
0

4
8

2
 W

e
st

 N
e

b
ra

sk
a

 S
tr

e
e

t,

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
, 

IL
 6

0
4

2
3

1/8" = 1'-0"

EXTERIOR WALL LEGEND

ISSUANCE

NO DATE DESCRIPTION

09/03/21 Issued for 50% Construction

Documents

A21
1/8" = 1'-0"

A6 PARTIAL ELEVATION - NORTH @ ADDITION
1/8" = 1'-0"

A1 PARTIAL ELEVATION - NORTH @ ADDITION

1/8" = 1'-0"
N8 ENLARGED BUILDING ELEVATION - NEW ADDITION COURTYARD WEST

1/8" = 1'-0"
J8 ENLARGED BUILDING ELEVATION - EXISTING BUILDING COURTYARD EAST

1/8" = 1'-0"
E1 ENLARGED BUILDING ELEVATION - NEW ADDITION NORTH

1/8" = 1'-0"
J1 ENLARGED BUILDING ELEVATION - COURTYARD SOUTH

1/8" = 1'-0"
A11 PARTIAL ELEVATION - SOUTH @ ADDITION

1/8" = 1'-0"
A16 PARTIAL ELEVATION - SOUTH @ ADDITION

ELEVATION KEYED NOTES

TAG NOTE

E1 INSTALL NEW BACKLIT BUILDING SIGNAGE. SEE DETAILS AND ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS

FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E2 CLEAN AND PREP EXISTING METAL STANDING SEAM FASCIA AND SOFFIT PANELS TO

RECEIVE NEW FINISH COATING. ALL SOFFIT PANELS, SIDE PANELS, AND ADJACENT METAL

PANELS OF SIMIALR EXISTING FINISH TO RECEIVE NEW FINISH COATING. SEE RCP’S FOR

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION, AND COORDINATE IN FIELD FOR EXACT EXTENTS. PROVIDE

NEW TNEMEC PRIMER, AND FINISH COATING, MIN 3 COATS, ON ENTIRE METAL PANEL

SURFACES. PROTECT ALL SURROUNDING SURFACES BEFORE APPLYING NEW PRIMER

AND FINISH COATING. COORDINATE FINISH COATING COLOR SELECTION WITH CM AND

ARCHITECT, COLOR TO MATCH COLOR APPLIED TO FIELD MOCKUP OF APPLIED COATING.

SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E3 EXISTING WINDOW, TYPICAL.

E4 NEW MECHANICAL LOUVER WHERE EXISTING WAS REMOVED. LOUVER FINISH TO MATCH

NEW FASCIA PANEL COLOR. SEE MECHANICAL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL

INFORMATION.

E5 METAL COPING, COLOR #1. SEE ROOF AND WALL DETAILS, AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E6 ROOF DRAIN OVERFLOW. SEE PLUMBING DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

CENTER ON WALL.

E7 METAL COLUMN WRAPS, SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E8 EXTEND CONCRETE FOOTING 6" ABOVE FINISHED SIDEWALK, BE 1" GREATER IN

DIAMETER THAN COLUMN WRAP, WITH 1/2" CHAMFERED EDGES. SEE STRUCTURAL

DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E9 NEW ROOFTOP MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT AND SCREENING. SEE ROOF PLANS AND

MECHANICAL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E10 EXISTING STOREFRONT SYSTEM, TYPICAL.

E11 REPLACE EXISTING FAILING BRICK, REFERENCE PHOTO FOR EXTENTS OF REPAIR.

PROVIDE SHELF ANGLES, FLASHING, AND ROOF REPAIR AS REQUIRED. SEE STRUCTURAL

DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E12 INFILL MASONRY WALL WHERE EXISTING LOUVER WAS REMOVED. WALL INFILL TO MATCH

EXISTING, FULL WALL CONSTRUCTION, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO INTERIOR

SUBSTRATE, THERMAL AND MOISTURE BARRIERS, AND EXTERIOR MASONRY BRICK.

TOOTH IN ALL NEW MASONRY, EXTERIOR BRICK TO MATCH EIXSTING. VERIFY EXISTING

WALL CONSTRUCTION AND COORDINATE IN FIELD.

E13 INFILL MASONRY WALL WHERE EXISTING DOOR WAS REMOVED. WALL INFILL TO MATCH

EXISTING, FULL WALL CONSTRUCTION, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO INTERIOR

SUBSTRATE, THERMAL AND MOISTURE BARRIERS, AND EXTERIOR MASONRY BRICK.

TOOTH IN ALL NEW MASONRY, EXTERIOR BRICK TO MATCH EIXSTING. VERIFY EXISTING

WALL CONSTRUCTION AND COORDINATE IN FIELD.

E14 PATCH AND SKIM COAT TO REPAIR SURFACE OF EXISTING EXPOSED CONCRETE

FOUNDATION WALL ALONG EXTERIOR MASONRY WALL AT COURTYARD.

E15 PROVIDE SKIM COAT FINISH TO ALL EXPOSED CONCRETE FOUNDATION WALLS AROUND

COURTYARD.

E16 PATCH AND INFILLPORTION OF MASONRY WALL TO MATCH EXISTING AROUND NEW

LINTEL AFTER LINTEL IS INSTALLED. COORDINATE SCOPE OF WORK IN FIELD.

E17 WALL PACK LIGHT FIXTURE. SEE ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

CENTER ON WALL.

E18 METAL COPING, COLOR #2. SEE ROOF AND WALL DETAILS, AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E19 POWER WASH / CLEAN EXISTING STONE WINDOW SILL.

E20 POWER WASH / CLEAN EXISTING BRICK WINDOW SILL.

E21 OUTDOOR TEACHING BOARD SECURED TO EXISTING MASONRY WALL. SEE LANDSCAPE

DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E22 NEW ROOFTOP MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT. SEE ROOF PLANS, STRUCTURAL AND

MECHANICAL DRAWINGS FOR MORE INFORMATION.

E23 NEW ROOF HATCH WITH GUARDRAIL. SEE ROOF PLANS AND DETAILS FOR MORE

INFORMATION.

cgruba
Highlight



(FB-2A) - ENDICOTT MANGENESE VELOUR - UTILITY SIZE
RUNNING BOND COURSING

EXTERIOR WALL MATERIALS

CASEMENT OPERABLE WINDOW

ZURN WALL MOUNTED OVERFLOW DRAIN COVER.

WALL PACK

WALL FINISHXX

WINDOW TAG1i

NOTE: FINAL LOCATIONS OF ALL EXTERIOR LIGHTING FIXTURES, AND SECURITY 

EQUIPMENT TO BE APPROVED BY OWNER / ARCHITECT PRIOR TO INSTALLATION / ROUGH 

IN. INSTALLATION CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE DRAWINGS OF ELEVATIONS DESIGNATING 

LOCATION OF ALL EXTERIOR LIGHTING FIXTURES AND SECURITY EQUIPMENT, INCLUDING 

BY NOT LIMITED TO HEIGHT ABOVE LEVEL 1, PRIOR TO INSTALLATION / ROUGH IN.

(MTL-1) - METAL PANEL - COLOR 1
- PAC-CLAD (ARCONIC COLORWELD 500 - SERIES 2) 
- DEEP BLACK*

(FB-E) - EXISTING FACE BRICK

(MTL-2) - METAL PANEL - COLOR 1
- PAC-CLAD (ARCONIC COLORWELD 500 - SERIES 2) 
- BONE WHITE*

AWNING OPERABLE WINDOW

(FB-1) - OLDE CHEYENNE (WITH DARK) - UTILITY SIZE
RUNNING BOND COURSING

(FB-2B) - ENDICOTT MANGENESE VELOUR - UTILITY SIZE
STACKED SOLDIER COURSING

*OR EQUAL PRODUCT / MANUFACTURER AS INDICATED IN 
SPECIFICATIONS, SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL 
INFORMATION.

METAL COPING COLOR #2 - KEYNOTE E18 ON ELEVATIONS
- COLOR TO MATCH MTL-1 - DEEP BLACK*

METAL COPING COLOR #1 - KEYNOTE E5 ON ELEVATIONS
- COLOR TO MATCH EXISTING COPING - DARK BRONZE 
(VERIFY IN FIELD)*

1ST FLOOR EXISTING AND ADDITION
100' - 0"

2ND FLOOR EXISTING
112' - 0"

T/MASONRY 2ND FLOOR EXISTING
125' - 4"

C2C3C4C5C6C7C8C9C12C14 C13 C11

E3

E2 E2

E2
E4E4

E10

E2

E2

E10

E10

E12E12

FB-E

E3E3 E3

E20E20E20 E20

E3E3E3 E3

E20E20E20 E20

E10

EXISTING BOLLARD

1ST FLOOR EXISTING AND ADDITION
100' - 0"

A13 A12 A11 A10 A9 A8 A7 A6

FB-E

E2

E2

E2

E2

E2

E2

CUT THROUGH EXISTING BUILDING

FB-E

E3 E3 E3

E3 E3

1ST FLOOR EXISTING AND ADDITION
100' - 0"

2ND FLOOR EXISTING
112' - 0"

T/MASONRY 2ND FLOOR EXISTING
125' - 4"

CJCHCGCFCECDCCCBCABDBCBBAR BE BF BG BH Q

FB-E

E9

FB-E
E4 E4 E4

E3
E10E10

E2 E2

E2 E2E2

E12 E12

FB-E

BEYOND

E2
E2

E3

E3E3

E3

E3

E3

E3

E3

E3

E3

E3

E20E20

E20E20

E20

E20

E20

E20

E20

E20

E20

E20

E20

ALTERNATE #5: REPLACE MECHANICAL 
EQUIPMENT  AT SOUTH AND NORTH GYM. 

SEE MEP AND STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS 
FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

1ST FLOOR EXISTING AND ADDITION
100' - 0"

ARANAM'AMALAJAGAEACAA AB AD AF AH AK

E2

E2

E2

E2

E2

E2

E2

E2

FB-EFB-E FB-E FB-E

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23

© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.

C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

2
0

2
1

 F
G

M
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

 I
N

C
.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS
ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD

WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187

630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.
CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200

NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540

630.717.5335 (O) 

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION
STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD

DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515

630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING
M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or 

construction.

The information on this document is 

preliminary or incomplete, not for 

construction, recording purposes, or 

implementation.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

9
/2

/2
0

2
1

 4
:2

3
:3

7
 P

M

C
:\

re
v

it

te
m

p
\2

0
2

0
\2

1
-3

1
0

2
.0

1
_

F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

D
1

5
7

-C
_

C
h

e
ls

e
a

S
ch

o
o

l_
2

0
2

0
_

C
D

_
a

sh
le

y
cN

9
Y

5
R

.r
v

t

A3.1.04
21-3102.01

IS
S

U
E

D
 F

O
R

 5
0

%
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

S

ENLARGED BUILDING

ELEVATIONS

C
h

e
ls

e
a

 I
n

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 S
ch

o
o

l 
A

d
d

it
io

n
 &

 R
e

n
o

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
 S

ch
o

o
l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

1
5

7
-C

1
0

4
8

2
 W

e
st

 N
e

b
ra

sk
a

 S
tr

e
e

t,

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
, 

IL
 6

0
4

2
3

ISSUANCE

NO DATE DESCRIPTION

09/03/21 Issued for 50% Construction

Documents

1/8" = 1'-0"

EXTERIOR WALL LEGENDA21

1/8" = 1'-0"
J7 ENLARGED BUILDING ELEVATION - EXISTING BUILDING NORTH

1/8" = 1'-0"
N7 ENLARGED BUILDING ELEVATION - EXISTING BUILDING SOUTH

ELEVATION KEYED NOTES

TAG NOTE

E1 INSTALL NEW BACKLIT BUILDING SIGNAGE. SEE DETAILS AND ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS

FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E2 CLEAN AND PREP EXISTING METAL STANDING SEAM FASCIA AND SOFFIT PANELS TO

RECEIVE NEW FINISH COATING. ALL SOFFIT PANELS, SIDE PANELS, AND ADJACENT METAL

PANELS OF SIMIALR EXISTING FINISH TO RECEIVE NEW FINISH COATING. SEE RCP’S FOR

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION, AND COORDINATE IN FIELD FOR EXACT EXTENTS. PROVIDE

NEW TNEMEC PRIMER, AND FINISH COATING, MIN 3 COATS, ON ENTIRE METAL PANEL

SURFACES. PROTECT ALL SURROUNDING SURFACES BEFORE APPLYING NEW PRIMER

AND FINISH COATING. COORDINATE FINISH COATING COLOR SELECTION WITH CM AND

ARCHITECT, COLOR TO MATCH COLOR APPLIED TO FIELD MOCKUP OF APPLIED COATING.

SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E3 EXISTING WINDOW, TYPICAL.

E4 NEW MECHANICAL LOUVER WHERE EXISTING WAS REMOVED. LOUVER FINISH TO MATCH

NEW FASCIA PANEL COLOR. SEE MECHANICAL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL

INFORMATION.

E5 METAL COPING, COLOR #1. SEE ROOF AND WALL DETAILS, AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E6 ROOF DRAIN OVERFLOW. SEE PLUMBING DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

CENTER ON WALL.

E7 METAL COLUMN WRAPS, SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E8 EXTEND CONCRETE FOOTING 6" ABOVE FINISHED SIDEWALK, BE 1" GREATER IN

DIAMETER THAN COLUMN WRAP, WITH 1/2" CHAMFERED EDGES. SEE STRUCTURAL

DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E9 NEW ROOFTOP MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT AND SCREENING. SEE ROOF PLANS AND

MECHANICAL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E10 EXISTING STOREFRONT SYSTEM, TYPICAL.

E11 REPLACE EXISTING FAILING BRICK, REFERENCE PHOTO FOR EXTENTS OF REPAIR.

PROVIDE SHELF ANGLES, FLASHING, AND ROOF REPAIR AS REQUIRED. SEE STRUCTURAL

DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E12 INFILL MASONRY WALL WHERE EXISTING LOUVER WAS REMOVED. WALL INFILL TO MATCH

EXISTING, FULL WALL CONSTRUCTION, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO INTERIOR

SUBSTRATE, THERMAL AND MOISTURE BARRIERS, AND EXTERIOR MASONRY BRICK.

TOOTH IN ALL NEW MASONRY, EXTERIOR BRICK TO MATCH EIXSTING. VERIFY EXISTING

WALL CONSTRUCTION AND COORDINATE IN FIELD.

E13 INFILL MASONRY WALL WHERE EXISTING DOOR WAS REMOVED. WALL INFILL TO MATCH

EXISTING, FULL WALL CONSTRUCTION, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO INTERIOR

SUBSTRATE, THERMAL AND MOISTURE BARRIERS, AND EXTERIOR MASONRY BRICK.

TOOTH IN ALL NEW MASONRY, EXTERIOR BRICK TO MATCH EIXSTING. VERIFY EXISTING

WALL CONSTRUCTION AND COORDINATE IN FIELD.

E14 PATCH AND SKIM COAT TO REPAIR SURFACE OF EXISTING EXPOSED CONCRETE

FOUNDATION WALL ALONG EXTERIOR MASONRY WALL AT COURTYARD.

E15 PROVIDE SKIM COAT FINISH TO ALL EXPOSED CONCRETE FOUNDATION WALLS AROUND

COURTYARD.

E16 PATCH AND INFILLPORTION OF MASONRY WALL TO MATCH EXISTING AROUND NEW

LINTEL AFTER LINTEL IS INSTALLED. COORDINATE SCOPE OF WORK IN FIELD.

E17 WALL PACK LIGHT FIXTURE. SEE ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

CENTER ON WALL.

E18 METAL COPING, COLOR #2. SEE ROOF AND WALL DETAILS, AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E19 POWER WASH / CLEAN EXISTING STONE WINDOW SILL.

E20 POWER WASH / CLEAN EXISTING BRICK WINDOW SILL.

E21 OUTDOOR TEACHING BOARD SECURED TO EXISTING MASONRY WALL. SEE LANDSCAPE

DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E22 NEW ROOFTOP MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT. SEE ROOF PLANS, STRUCTURAL AND

MECHANICAL DRAWINGS FOR MORE INFORMATION.

E23 NEW ROOF HATCH WITH GUARDRAIL. SEE ROOF PLANS AND DETAILS FOR MORE

INFORMATION.

1/8" = 1'-0"
A1 ENLARGED BUILDING ELEVATION - EXISTING BUILDING WEST

1/8" = 1'-0"
E7 PARTIAL ELEVATION - NORTH EXISTING BUILDING - WEST

cgruba
Highlight



(FB-2A) - ENDICOTT MANGENESE VELOUR - UTILITY SIZE
RUNNING BOND COURSING

EXTERIOR WALL MATERIALS

CASEMENT OPERABLE WINDOW

ZURN WALL MOUNTED OVERFLOW DRAIN COVER.

WALL PACK

WALL FINISHXX

WINDOW TAG1i

NOTE: FINAL LOCATIONS OF ALL EXTERIOR LIGHTING FIXTURES, AND SECURITY 

EQUIPMENT TO BE APPROVED BY OWNER / ARCHITECT PRIOR TO INSTALLATION / ROUGH 

IN. INSTALLATION CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE DRAWINGS OF ELEVATIONS DESIGNATING 

LOCATION OF ALL EXTERIOR LIGHTING FIXTURES AND SECURITY EQUIPMENT, INCLUDING 

BY NOT LIMITED TO HEIGHT ABOVE LEVEL 1, PRIOR TO INSTALLATION / ROUGH IN.

(MTL-1) - METAL PANEL - COLOR 1
- PAC-CLAD (ARCONIC COLORWELD 500 - SERIES 2) 
- DEEP BLACK*

(FB-E) - EXISTING FACE BRICK

(MTL-2) - METAL PANEL - COLOR 1
- PAC-CLAD (ARCONIC COLORWELD 500 - SERIES 2) 
- BONE WHITE*

AWNING OPERABLE WINDOW

(FB-1) - OLDE CHEYENNE (WITH DARK) - UTILITY SIZE
RUNNING BOND COURSING

(FB-2B) - ENDICOTT MANGENESE VELOUR - UTILITY SIZE
STACKED SOLDIER COURSING

*OR EQUAL PRODUCT / MANUFACTURER AS INDICATED IN 
SPECIFICATIONS, SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL 
INFORMATION.

METAL COPING COLOR #2 - KEYNOTE E18 ON ELEVATIONS
- COLOR TO MATCH MTL-1 - DEEP BLACK*

METAL COPING COLOR #1 - KEYNOTE E5 ON ELEVATIONS
- COLOR TO MATCH EXISTING COPING - DARK BRONZE 
(VERIFY IN FIELD)*

1ST FLOOR EXISTING AND ADDITION
100' - 0"

T/MASONRY 1ST FLOOR ADDITION
116' - 8"

D1D2D3D4D5D6D7D8D9D10D11D12

E2 E2 E2 E2 E2 E2 E2 E2

FB-E

E3 E3 E3 E3 E3 E3 E3 E3

E19 E19 E19 E19 E19 E19 E19 E19

1ST FLOOR EXISTING AND ADDITION
100' - 0"

2ND FLOOR EXISTING
112' - 0"

T/MASONRY 2ND FLOOR EXISTING
125' - 4"

C6C7C8C9B1C12C14C15 B10C13B2 C11C18D1 A12A11A10A9A8A7A6A5A4A3A2A1B9 B4 B3

E2

E3 E10

FB-E

BEYOND

FB-E

E2 E2

E2 E2

E2

FB-E FB-E

E9

BEYOND

E9

BEYOND

1ST FLOOR EXISTING AND ADDITION
100' - 0"

2ND FLOOR EXISTING
112' - 0"

T/MASONRY 2ND FLOOR EXISTING
125' - 4"

BD BC BB AR AN AM' AM AL AJ AG AE AC AAABADAFAHAK

E2

FB-E

BEYOND

FB-E

FB-EFB-E

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23

© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.

C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

2
0

2
1

 F
G

M
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

 I
N

C
.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS
ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD

WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187

630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.
CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200

NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540

630.717.5335 (O) 

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION
STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD

DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515

630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING
M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or 

construction.

The information on this document is 

preliminary or incomplete, not for 

construction, recording purposes, or 

implementation.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

9
/2

/2
0

2
1

 4
:2

3
:5

0
 P

M

C
:\

re
v

it

te
m

p
\2

0
2

0
\2

1
-3

1
0

2
.0

1
_

F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

D
1

5
7

-C
_

C
h

e
ls

e
a

S
ch

o
o

l_
2

0
2

0
_

C
D

_
a

sh
le

y
cN

9
Y

5
R

.r
v

t

A3.1.05
21-3102.01

IS
S

U
E

D
 F

O
R

 5
0

%
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

S

ENLARGED BUILDING

ELEVATIONS

C
h

e
ls

e
a

 I
n

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 S
ch

o
o

l 
A

d
d

it
io

n
 &

 R
e

n
o

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
 S

ch
o

o
l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

1
5

7
-C

1
0

4
8

2
 W

e
st

 N
e

b
ra

sk
a

 S
tr

e
e

t,

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
, 

IL
 6

0
4

2
3

ISSUANCE

NO DATE DESCRIPTION

1/8" = 1'-0"

EXTERIOR WALL LEGENDA21

ELEVATION KEYED NOTES

TAG NOTE

E1 INSTALL NEW BACKLIT BUILDING SIGNAGE. SEE DETAILS AND ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS

FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E2 CLEAN AND PREP EXISTING METAL STANDING SEAM FASCIA AND SOFFIT PANELS TO

RECEIVE NEW FINISH COATING. ALL SOFFIT PANELS, SIDE PANELS, AND ADJACENT METAL

PANELS OF SIMIALR EXISTING FINISH TO RECEIVE NEW FINISH COATING. SEE RCP’S FOR

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION, AND COORDINATE IN FIELD FOR EXACT EXTENTS. PROVIDE

NEW TNEMEC PRIMER, AND FINISH COATING, MIN 3 COATS, ON ENTIRE METAL PANEL

SURFACES. PROTECT ALL SURROUNDING SURFACES BEFORE APPLYING NEW PRIMER

AND FINISH COATING. COORDINATE FINISH COATING COLOR SELECTION WITH CM AND

ARCHITECT, COLOR TO MATCH COLOR APPLIED TO FIELD MOCKUP OF APPLIED COATING.

SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E3 EXISTING WINDOW, TYPICAL.

E4 NEW MECHANICAL LOUVER WHERE EXISTING WAS REMOVED. LOUVER FINISH TO MATCH

NEW FASCIA PANEL COLOR. SEE MECHANICAL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL

INFORMATION.

E5 METAL COPING, COLOR #1. SEE ROOF AND WALL DETAILS, AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E6 ROOF DRAIN OVERFLOW. SEE PLUMBING DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

CENTER ON WALL.

E7 METAL COLUMN WRAPS, SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E8 EXTEND CONCRETE FOOTING 6" ABOVE FINISHED SIDEWALK, BE 1" GREATER IN

DIAMETER THAN COLUMN WRAP, WITH 1/2" CHAMFERED EDGES. SEE STRUCTURAL

DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E9 NEW ROOFTOP MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT AND SCREENING. SEE ROOF PLANS AND

MECHANICAL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E10 EXISTING STOREFRONT SYSTEM, TYPICAL.

E11 REPLACE EXISTING FAILING BRICK, REFERENCE PHOTO FOR EXTENTS OF REPAIR.

PROVIDE SHELF ANGLES, FLASHING, AND ROOF REPAIR AS REQUIRED. SEE STRUCTURAL

DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E12 INFILL MASONRY WALL WHERE EXISTING LOUVER WAS REMOVED. WALL INFILL TO MATCH

EXISTING, FULL WALL CONSTRUCTION, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO INTERIOR

SUBSTRATE, THERMAL AND MOISTURE BARRIERS, AND EXTERIOR MASONRY BRICK.

TOOTH IN ALL NEW MASONRY, EXTERIOR BRICK TO MATCH EIXSTING. VERIFY EXISTING

WALL CONSTRUCTION AND COORDINATE IN FIELD.

E13 INFILL MASONRY WALL WHERE EXISTING DOOR WAS REMOVED. WALL INFILL TO MATCH

EXISTING, FULL WALL CONSTRUCTION, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO INTERIOR

SUBSTRATE, THERMAL AND MOISTURE BARRIERS, AND EXTERIOR MASONRY BRICK.

TOOTH IN ALL NEW MASONRY, EXTERIOR BRICK TO MATCH EIXSTING. VERIFY EXISTING

WALL CONSTRUCTION AND COORDINATE IN FIELD.

E14 PATCH AND SKIM COAT TO REPAIR SURFACE OF EXISTING EXPOSED CONCRETE

FOUNDATION WALL ALONG EXTERIOR MASONRY WALL AT COURTYARD.

E15 PROVIDE SKIM COAT FINISH TO ALL EXPOSED CONCRETE FOUNDATION WALLS AROUND

COURTYARD.

E16 PATCH AND INFILLPORTION OF MASONRY WALL TO MATCH EXISTING AROUND NEW

LINTEL AFTER LINTEL IS INSTALLED. COORDINATE SCOPE OF WORK IN FIELD.

E17 WALL PACK LIGHT FIXTURE. SEE ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

CENTER ON WALL.

E18 METAL COPING, COLOR #2. SEE ROOF AND WALL DETAILS, AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E19 POWER WASH / CLEAN EXISTING STONE WINDOW SILL.

E20 POWER WASH / CLEAN EXISTING BRICK WINDOW SILL.

E21 OUTDOOR TEACHING BOARD SECURED TO EXISTING MASONRY WALL. SEE LANDSCAPE

DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

E22 NEW ROOFTOP MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT. SEE ROOF PLANS, STRUCTURAL AND

MECHANICAL DRAWINGS FOR MORE INFORMATION.

E23 NEW ROOF HATCH WITH GUARDRAIL. SEE ROOF PLANS AND DETAILS FOR MORE

INFORMATION.

1/8" = 1'-0"
J6 PARTIAL ELEVATION - NORTH @ EXISTING BUILDING

1/8" = 1'-0"
A1 PARTIAL ELEVATION - NORTH @ EXISTING BUILDING

1/8" = 1'-0"
E1 PARTIAL ELEVATION - EAST @ EXISTING BUILDING

cgruba
Highlight



1ST FLOOR EXISTING AND ADDITION

100' - 0"

2ND FLOOR EXISTING

112' - 0"

2ND FLOOR ADDITION

114' - 0"

A3.2.01

E1

NEW BUILDING ADDITION EXISTING BUILDING

HGFEDCA B K L M NCL DGDFDEDDDCDBDA BE

J1

A3.2.00

J1

A3.2.01

E1

A3.2.02

C.2

T/MASONRY 2ND FLOOR ADDITION

131' - 4"

1ST FLOOR EXISTING AND ADDITION

100' - 0"

2ND FLOOR EXISTING

112' - 0"

2ND FLOOR ADDITION

114' - 0"

A3.2.01

A1

M

CL CJ

CC CA AR

J1

A3.2.00

A1

A3.2.02

T/MASONRY 2ND FLOOR ADDITION

131' - 4"

NEW BUILDING ADDITION EXISTING BUILDING

1ST FLOOR EXISTING AND ADDITION

100' - 0"

2ND FLOOR EXISTING

112' - 0"

E1

A3.2.00

2ND FLOOR ADDITION

114' - 0"

171514139.91 876
C1

C2 C12 C15 C18 D3 D5 D6 D7 D9A10 B6B4.5

A3.2.02

A1

A3.2.02

E1

10.8

T/MASONRY 2ND FLOOR ADDITION

131' - 4"

1.5

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23

© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.

C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

2
0

2
1

 F
G

M
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

 I
N

C
.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS
ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD

WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187

630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.
CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200

NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540

630.717.5335 (O) 

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION
STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD

DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515

630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING
M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or 

construction.

The information on this document is 

preliminary or incomplete, not for 

construction, recording purposes, or 

implementation.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

9
/2

/2
0

2
1

 4
:2

4
:3

2
 P

M

C
:\

re
v

it

te
m

p
\2

0
2

0
\2

1
-3

1
0

2
.0

1
_

F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

D
1

5
7

-C
_

C
h

e
ls

e
a

S
ch

o
o

l_
2

0
2

0
_

C
D

_
a

sh
le

y
cN

9
Y

5
R

.r
v

t

A3.2.00
21-3102.01

IS
S

U
E

D
 F

O
R

 5
0

%
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

S

OVERALL BUILDING

SECTIONS

C
h

e
ls

e
a

 I
n

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 S
ch

o
o

l 
A

d
d

it
io

n
 &

 R
e

n
o

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
 S

ch
o

o
l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

1
5

7
-C

1
0

4
8

2
 W

e
st

 N
e

b
ra

sk
a

 S
tr

e
e

t,

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
, 

IL
 6

0
4

2
3

1/16" = 1'-0"

E1 OVERALL BUILDING SECTION

1/16" = 1'-0"

A1 OVERALL BUILDING SECTION

ISSUANCE

NO DATE DESCRIPTION

09/03/21 Issued for 50% Construction

Documents

1/16" = 1'-0"

J1 OVERALL BUILDING SECTION

cgruba
Highlight



1ST FLOOR EXISTING AND ADDITION

100' - 0"

2ND FLOOR EXISTING

112' - 0"

T/MASONRY 2ND FLOOR EXISTING

125' - 4"

CAFETERIA FLOOR ADDITION

98' - 0"

2ND FLOOR ADDITION

114' - 0"

T/MASONRY 1ST FLOOR ADDITION

116' - 8"

M CL CJ CC CB CA BGBH

T/MASONRY 2ND FLOOR ADDITION

131' - 4"

NEW BUILDING ADDITION EXISTING BUILDING

ELEVATOR PIT DEPTH

95' - 0"

BAND

S138

CORRIDOR

SCR05A

SOUTH

GYM

S120MECHANICAL

S114

CORRIDOR

SCR19

CAFETERIA

S100

CLASSROOM

S225

CORRIDOR

SCR26

1ST FLOOR EXISTING AND ADDITION

100' - 0"

HGFEDA

T/MASONRY 1ST FLOOR ADDITION

116' - 8"

B K L N DAC.2

NEW BUILDING ADDITION EXISTING BUILDING

ELEVATOR PIT DEPTH

95' - 0"

CLASSROOM

S171

CORRIDOR

SCR14

CORRIDOR

SCR13

CORRIDOR

SCR13B

CORRIDOR

SCR12

CORRIDOR

SCR11

1ST FLOOR EXISTING AND ADDITION

100' - 0"

18 17 16 15 14 13 12 11 10 9

T/MASONRY 1ST FLOOR ADDITION

116' - 8"

10.8

CLASSROOM

S170

CLASSROOM

S171

EXTENDED

LEARNING

S172

CLASSROOM

S173

CLASSROOM

S174

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23

© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.

C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

2
0

2
1

 F
G

M
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

 I
N

C
.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS
ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD

WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187

630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.
CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200

NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540

630.717.5335 (O) 

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION
STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD

DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515

630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING
M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or 

construction.

The information on this document is 

preliminary or incomplete, not for 

construction, recording purposes, or 

implementation.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

9
/2

/2
0

2
1

 4
:2

4
:4

3
 P

M

C
:\

re
v

it

te
m

p
\2

0
2

0
\2

1
-3

1
0

2
.0

1
_

F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

D
1

5
7

-C
_

C
h

e
ls

e
a

S
ch

o
o

l_
2

0
2

0
_

C
D

_
a

sh
le

y
cN

9
Y

5
R

.r
v

t

A3.2.01
21-3102.01

IS
S

U
E

D
 F

O
R

 5
0

%
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

S

ENLARGED BUILDING

SECTIONS

C
h

e
ls

e
a

 I
n

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 S
ch

o
o

l 
A

d
d

it
io

n
 &

 R
e

n
o

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
 S

ch
o

o
l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

1
5

7
-C

1
0

4
8

2
 W

e
st

 N
e

b
ra

sk
a

 S
tr

e
e

t,

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
, 

IL
 6

0
4

2
3

1/8" = 1'-0"

A1 ENLARGED BUILDING SECTION

1/8" = 1'-0"

E1 ENLARGED BUILDING SECTION

ISSUANCE

NO DATE DESCRIPTION

09/03/21 Issued for 50% Construction

Documents

1/8" = 1'-0"

J1 ENLARGED BUILDING SECTION

cgruba
Highlight



1ST FLOOR EXISTING AND ADDITION

100' - 0"

2ND FLOOR EXISTING

112' - 0"

T/MASONRY 2ND FLOOR EXISTING

125' - 4"

CAFETERIA FLOOR ADDITION

98' - 0"

2ND FLOOR ADDITION

114' - 0"

1 876C1 C2 C12 C15A10 B4.5

T/MASONRY 2ND FLOOR ADDITION

131' - 4"

1.5

CONFERENCE

ROOM

S102

RECEPTION

S101B

WAITING

S101A

CORRIDOR

SCR01

CORRIDOR

SCR26

CORRIDOR

SCR19

MECHANICAL

PENTHOUSE

S229

ALL

GENDER

TLT

S232

STAFF TLT

S233

JC

S231

SUPPORT /

IT

S234

CORRIDOR

SCR19

1ST FLOOR EXISTING AND ADDITION

100' - 0"

2ND FLOOR EXISTING

112' - 0"

T/MASONRY 2ND FLOOR EXISTING

125' - 4"

CAFETERIA FLOOR ADDITION

98' - 0"

2ND FLOOR ADDITION

114' - 0"

171514139.98 C18 D3 D6 D7 D910.8

T/MASONRY 2ND FLOOR ADDITION

131' - 4"

MECHANICAL

PENTHOUSE

S229

CLASSROOM

S161

CORRIDOR

SCR12

CLASSROOM

S162

CORRIDOR

SCR17

CORRIDOR

SCR19

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23

© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.

C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

2
0

2
1

 F
G

M
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

 I
N

C
.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS
ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD

WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187

630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.
CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200

NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540

630.717.5335 (O) 

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION
STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD

DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515

630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING
M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or 

construction.

The information on this document is 

preliminary or incomplete, not for 

construction, recording purposes, or 

implementation.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

9
/2

/2
0

2
1

 4
:2

4
:5

5
 P

M

C
:\

re
v

it

te
m

p
\2

0
2

0
\2

1
-3

1
0

2
.0

1
_

F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

D
1

5
7

-C
_

C
h

e
ls

e
a

S
ch

o
o

l_
2

0
2

0
_

C
D

_
a

sh
le

y
cN

9
Y

5
R

.r
v

t

A3.2.02
21-3102.01

IS
S

U
E

D
 F

O
R

 5
0

%
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

S

ENLARGED BUILDING

SECTIONS

C
h

e
ls

e
a

 I
n

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 S
ch

o
o

l 
A

d
d

it
io

n
 &

 R
e

n
o

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
 S

ch
o

o
l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

1
5

7
-C

1
0

4
8

2
 W

e
st

 N
e

b
ra

sk
a

 S
tr

e
e

t,

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
, 

IL
 6

0
4

2
3

ISSUANCE

NO DATE DESCRIPTION

09/03/21 Issued for 50% Construction

Documents

1/8" = 1'-0"

A1 ENLARGED BUILDING SECTION

1/8" = 1'-0"

E1 ENLARGED BUILDING SECTION

cgruba
Highlight



JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23

© 2021 FGM Architects Inc.

C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

2
0

2
1

 F
G

M
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

 I
N

C
.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS
ARCHITECT

207 SOUTH NAPERVILLE ROAD

WHEATON, ILLINOIS 60187

630.668.7603 (O) 630.682.1760 (F)

WEBSTER, MCGARTH & AHLBERG, LTD.
CIVIL

1887 HIGH GROVE LANE, SUITE 200

NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60540

630.717.5335 (O) 

MCCLUSKEY ENGINEERING CORPORATION
STRUCTURAL

5115 BELMOND ROAD

DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 60515

630.515.1555 (O) 630.515.1583 (F)

AMSCO ENGINEERING
M.E.P.

LANDSCAPE

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Not for regualatory approval, permit or 

construction.

The information on this document is 

preliminary or incomplete, not for 

construction, recording purposes, or 

implementation.

1211 WEST 22ND STREET

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

630.574.8300 (O) 630.574.9292 (F)

FGM ARCHITECTS

9
/2

/2
0

2
1

 4
:2

4
:1

1
 P

M

C
:\

re
v

it

te
m

p
\2

0
2

0
\2

1
-3

1
0

2
.0

1
_

F
ra

n
k

fo
rt

D
1

5
7

-C
_

C
h

e
ls

e
a

S
ch

o
o

l_
2

0
2

0
_

C
D

_
a

sh
le

y
cN

9
Y

5
R

.r
v

t

A3.1.10
21-3102.01

IS
S

U
E

D
 F

O
R

 5
0

%
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

S

BUILDING AXON VIEWS

C
h

e
ls

e
a

 I
n

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 S
ch

o
o

l 
A

d
d

it
io

n
 &

 R
e

n
o

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
 S

ch
o

o
l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

1
5

7
-C

1
0

4
8

2
 W

e
st

 N
e

b
ra

sk
a

 S
tr

e
e

t,

F
ra

n
k
fo

rt
, 

IL
 6

0
4

2
3

ISSUANCE

NO DATE DESCRIPTION

09/03/21 Issued for 50% Construction

Documents

A1 BUILDING AXONOMETRIC VIEW - FOR REFERENCE ONLY - NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION USE

J1 BUILDING AXONOMETRIC VIEW - FOR REFERENCE ONLY - NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION USE

cgruba
Highlight



 

DN

FX3

FX3

FX3

FX3

FX3FX3

FX3

FX3

FX4

FX4 FX4

FX4 FX4

FX4

FX4

FX4
FX4

FX4

FX2FX2
FX2

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.0

0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.0

0.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0

0.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.0

0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0

0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0

0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.0

0.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.0

0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.10.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.1

0.0 0.3 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.10.0 0.20.0 0.30.30.20.20.20.30.30.30.20.0 0.1

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0

0.1 0.30.60.70.50.30.20.30.50.7

0.0

0.2 0.10.10.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.5 0.0

0.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.1 0.00.1 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.10.10.10.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.1

0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.1

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.10.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.1 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0 0.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.1

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.1 0.00.1 0.00.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.00.0

0.0

0.1 0.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.1 0.00.00.00.00.10.10.20.51.53.50.0 0.10.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.10.10.20.40.81.40.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.0

1.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.10.1

0.0

0.5 0.01.80.00.10.10.10.00.00.00.00.0 0.2

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.1 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.10.1

0.0

0.1 0.00.10.20.71.83.11.10.40.30.61.6 0.1

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.4

0.0

0.0 3.20.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.0

0.10.10.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 1.30.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.1

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 8.9

0.0

0.10.20.30.40.00.10.64.28.20.0 2.9 0.12.00.40.10.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 1.9

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.0

0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.5 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.10.1

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

1.8

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.20.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 3.73.83.02.11.40.70.50.30.10.10.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 3.83.50.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.60.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0

0.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.02.4 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.10.10.10.20.40.0 0.0

4.1

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.10.10.20.41.2 0.03.8 0.02.12.01.20.40.10.00.00.00.0

0.0

2.1

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.2 0.00.10.10.10.20.20.23.92.51.20.0 0.30.0 0.10.10.10.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.5

0.0 0.20.10.10.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.60.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.1 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.2 0.00.4 0.10.20.41.01.43.02.52.51.20.0 0.0

3.8

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.10.10.20.2 0.00.4 0.03.31.40.70.40.20.20.10.10.1

0.0

0.4

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.1

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.10.0 0.00.10.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.10.10.10.20.00.10.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.0

0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.2 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.1 0.1 0.00.30.51.11.61.92.60.70.40.2

0.0

0.1

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.10.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.10.10.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.10.0 0.10.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.10.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.1 0.00.10.20.30.50.60.40.70.40.30.2 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.9 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.10.10.10.20.0 0.60.0 0.50.00.00.40.30.20.10.10.0

0.0

0.4

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.10.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.3 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.10.0 0.20.0 0.61.93.84.44.31.00.40.20.10.0 0.1

0.6

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.10.1 0.00.3 0.01.11.61.42.00.60.30.20.10.1

0.2

0.2

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.1

0.0 0.0 1.01.00.50.20.10.10.10.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.50.30.20.10.10.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 4.30.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.01.1 0.03.8 0.00.00.10.10.10.20.51.42.6

0.3

0.0

0.0 0.20.30.33.62.21.00.50.20.1

0.9

0.1 0.10.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.1 0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.1 0.00.1 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.10.10.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.6

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.10.10.10.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.50.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.2 0.00.3 0.10.10.10.20.40.71.10.81.00.0 0.0

0.1

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.10.10.20.30.40.40.20.50.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

0.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.10.10.10.30.51.52.83.7 0.0

0.0

0.2

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.4

0.0

0.0 3.80.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 0.0

0.0

0.20.10.10.10.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0 1.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 0.0

8 WGH-30-5K_18_01343

Luminaire Schedule

Symbol Qty Label Arrangement Total Lamp Lumens LLF Description
SINGLE N.A. 0.910 WP01-30W50-FO-C

10 12NCDLR6DIM 940 277V EXT SINGLE 1068.9 0.910 LED Downlight
3 ltv81ff-sp-36l4k SINGLE N.A. 0.910 LTV81FF-SP-36L4K

Calculation Summary
Label CalcType Units Avg Max Min Avg/Min Max/Min
Site Photometrics Illuminance Fc 0.02 8.9 0.0 N.A. N.A.



  1 

                                          

Planning Commission / ZBA January 13, 2022 

 

 

Project: Massage Establishment     

Meeting Type:  Public Hearing 

Request: Special Use for massage establishment 

Location: 20499 S. La Grange 

Subdivision:  Vineyards of Frankfort  

Applicant:  Yuchao (Nancy) Tong 

Prop. Owner: TW, LLC 

Representative: Applicant 

Report By:  Christopher Gruba, Senior Planner 

 

Site Details 
 

Lot Size: 3.91 acres                       Figure 1. Location Map 

PIN: 19-09-15-301-017-0000 

Existing Zoning:  B-2, Community Business  

Proposed Zoning: N/A  

Buildings / Lots: 1 building / 1 lot 

Total Sq. Ft.: 1,200 square feet (tenant space) 

  

Adjacent Land Use Summary:  
 

 Land Use Comp. Plan Zoning 

Subject Property Retail Plaza General 
Commercial 

B-2 

North Undeveloped General 
Commercial 

B-2 

South  Plant Nursery  General 
Commercial 

B-2 

East Plant Nursery/ 
Undeveloped 

General 
Commercial 

B-2 

West  Restaurant/ 
Retail 

General 
Commercial 

B-2 

 

Project Summary  
 

The applicant, Yuchao (Nancy) Tong, is proposing to operate a massage establishment within a tenant space at the 

Vineyards of Frankfort Plaza located at 20499 S. La Grange Road.  Massage establishments require a special use 

permit within the B-2 zone district.  No exterior changes to the building or site are proposed with this use.  The Use 

Regulations pertaining to Massage Establishments have been provided as an attachment.  
 

Attachments 

• Aerial photograph of site and vicinity 

• Site survey of the PUD development 

• Parking analysis for the Vineyards of Frankfort property prepared by staff 

• List of all uses and their square footage within the main building, provided by the owner 

• Interior floorplan of the tenant space, provided by applicant 

• Cross access easement exhibit (Easement Agreement R90-049837) 

• Zoning Ordinance Article 5, Section C, Part 11.1, Use Regulations for Massage Establishments   

• Special Use Permit Findings of Fact responses provided by applicant 



  2 

• Special Use Permit Findings of Fact form for use by the Plan Commission to evaluate the request 

• Photograph of the tenant space taken by staff on December 27, 2021 
 

Analysis 
 

In consideration of the request, staff offers the following points of discussion: 

• The business plan states that one or two “chiropractors” would work at the massage establishment.  
However, the applicant, Yuchao Tong, is a licensed massage therapist and has provided a copy of her 
license.  

• The applicant is proposing a maximum of two employees (chiropractors) to be present at one time.  

• The floorplan illustrates two massage rooms (suites).  However, the business plan mentions 3-4 rooms.  
Parking is calculated based upon the gross floor area of the tenant space and the number of employees 
during the largest working shift.  

• The business would operate from 10 am – 8 pm.  Normal business hours in Frankfort are 7 am – 11 pm.  

• A parking analysis was prepared for the proposed use and existing uses within the shopping plaza (chart 
attached).  The proposed massage establishment within 20499 La Grange Road measures 1,200 square 
feet with up to 4 employees at a time.  Parking for massage establishments is required at a rate of 1:200 
gross floor area plus 1 space for each employee; in this instance 11 spaces would be required.  The 
Vineyards of Frankfort currently provides exactly 167 parking spaces.  Currently, all uses within the 
Vineyards of Frankfort, not including the proposed massage establishment, require 224 spaces, meaning 
that the plaza is currently deficient in parking.  When accounting for the proposed massage 
establishment, this number rises to 235 required spaces.  However, there is a shared parking and cross-
access agreement between the Vineyards of Frankfort and Alsip Nursery.  The gate between the two 
properties is closed when Alsip closes, which is 5 pm on Sundays and 6 pm on all other days.  There are 
approximately 286 spaces within Alsip’s parking lot.  

• From a practical standpoint, the existing parking lot in Vineyards of Frankfort shopping plaza is typically 
under-utilized during normal business hours.  The parking lot is busiest on Friday and Saturday evenings, 
due to demand for Enrico’s restaurant.  

• More parking spaces may be provided if Lot 3 is ever developed (the formerly approved plan for Abri 
Credit Union illustrated 8 additional parking spaces).  

• Zoning Ordinance Article 5, Section C, Part 11.1 details regulations for Massage Establishments. This 
excerpt has been included as an attachment. The majority of these requirements will be inspected for 
compliance under ‘c’, once the interior of the space has been built-out and prior to business license 
issuance.  
 

Staff’s Review 

 
Staff offers the following comments regarding the findings of fact used to determine the merits of the special use 
request, per the Zoning Ordinance. Staff’s responses are in italics. The applicant also provided responses to the 
findings of fact which are included as an attachment. The Commission may wish to adopt these findings or amend 
them before making a motion.    
 
Findings of Fact: 
 
No special use shall be recommended by the Plan Commission, unless such Commission shall find: 
 
a. That the establishment, maintenance or operation of the special use will not be detrimental to, or endanger, the 
public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare.  
 
It is staff’s professional opinion that the proposed use will not be detrimental to or endanger the public’s health, 
safety, comfort or general welfare. The massage use will be fully contained indoors and operating within regular 
business hours (7 am – 11 pm, per Code).   
 



  3 

b. That the special use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity 
for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair property values within the 
neighborhood.  
 
It is staff’s professional opinion that the proposed use will not substantially diminish or impair property values 
within the neighborhood. The subject property contains typical retail uses.   
 
c. That the establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and orderly development and 
improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the district.  
 
The immediate surrounding area is developed for or planned for retails uses. The proposed massage establishment 
would not impede the future development of Lot 3.  
 
d. That the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will not be so at variance 
with either the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of the structures already constructed, or in the 
course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or the character of the applicable district, as to cause a 
substantial depreciation in the property values within the neighborhood.  
 
There are no exterior changes or alterations proposed. A concept floorplan has been submitted by the applicant.  
 
e. That the adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and/or necessary facilities have been or are being provided.  
 
The site is adequately served by existing utilities, roads and access drives.   
 
f. That adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to minimize 
traffic congestion in the public streets.  
 
The site has been developed as a PUD and the original plan from 1995 illustrates cross-access between the parcels 
within the development and to La Grange Road.  
 
g. That the special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the district in which it is 
located, except as such regulations may, in each instance, be modified by the Village Board, pursuant to the 
recommendations of the Plan Commission.  
 
The proposed use is anticipated to conform to all other regulations as specified in the Zoning Ordinance.  

  

Affirmative Motion 
 

For the Commission’s consideration, staff is providing the following proposed affirmative motion language for the 

special use requests.  

1. Recommend the Village Board approve a special use for a massage establishment at 20499 S. La Grange 

Road, in accordance with the reviewed plans, public testimony, and Findings of Fact.   

 
 

 



Notes

Map Title

Disclaimer of Warranties and Accuracy of Data: Although the data developed by Will County for its maps, websites, and Geographic Information System has been produced and processed 
from sources believed to be reliable, no warranty, expressed or implied, is made regarding accuracy, adequacy, completeness, legality, reliability or usefulness of any information. This 
disclaimer applies to both isolated and aggregate uses of the information. The County and elected officials provide this information on an "as is" basis. All warranties of any kind, express or 
implied, including but not limited to the implied warranties of merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose, freedom from contamination by computer viruses or hackers and non-infringement 
of proprietary rights are disclaimed. Changes may be periodically made to the information herein; these changes may or may not be incorporated in any new version of the publication. If you 
have obtained information from any of the County web pages from a source other than the County pages, be aware that electronic data can be altered subsequent to original distribution. Data 
can also quickly become out of date. It is recommended that careful attention be paid to the contents of any data, and that the originator of the data or information be contacted with any 
questions regarding appropriate use. Please direct any questions or issues via email to gis@willcountyillinois.com.

Miles0.1

Legend

1: 2,257WGS_1984_Web_Mercator_Auxiliary_Sphere
0 0.04

Roadways

Federal

State

County

Local and Private

Parcels LY

Townships





The Vineyards Shopping Center
20491‐20535 S. LaGrange Road
Frankfort, Illinois 60423

Suite Tenant Name
Tenant Space 

Size
Approximate number 

of employees
Parking required per 

Zoning Ordinance Calculation

A Aura Bella Salon 1800 6 15 1:200 plus 1 each employee
B Abri Credit Union 1200 3 9 1:200 plus 1 each employee
C Ambrosinos Italian Market 1800 3 5 1:1,000 plus 1 ea. employee
D Nail House 1200 4 10 1:200 plus 1 each employee
E Vacant (proposed massage) 1200 5 11 1:200 plus 1 each employee
F Crescent Jewlers 2400 3 13 1:250 plus 1 ea. employee
G&H Amazing Fantasy Comics 4200 4 21 1:250 plus 1 ea. employee
I Vacant 1800 0 0 NA

J Willow Street Dance 5633 5 43
1:ea. 3 people max occupancy 
(113), plus 1 ea. employee

L Law Office of Joseph Kostek 2400 2 12 1:200
M Remax 1200 3 6 1:200
N&O Enricho's Italian Restaurant 3600 6 42 1:100 plus 1 ea. employee
Lot 2 Dunkin Donuts 2993 8 48 1:75 plus 1 ea. employee

Total parking spaces provided: 167 Total Parking Req'd 235



The Vineyards Shopping Center
20491-20535 S. LaGrange Road
Frankfort, Illinois 60423

Space Size Approximate number of
Suite Tenant Name Square Feet Employees During Largest Shift

A Aura Bella Salon 1800 6
B Abri Credit Union 1200 3
C Ambrosinos Italian Market 1800 3
D Nail House 1200 4
E Vacant 1200 0
F Crescent Jewlers 2400 3

G&H Amazing Fantasy Comics 4200 4
I Vacant 1800 0
J Willow Street Dance 5633 5
L Law Office of Joseph Kostek 2400 2
M Remax 1200 3

N&O Enricho's Italian Restaurant 3600 6

RECEIVED 12.20.21



cgruba
Received







Village of Frankfort 
Article 5: Use Regulations 

 

September 17, 2001 83 

3. There will be no private streets. 
 
4. All residential parking will be off-street.  No on-street parking is allowed. 
 
5. Off-street parking shall be provided in front and side yards only.  Two (2) off-street 

parking spaces shall be provided per dwelling unit.  The off-street parking surface 
shall be covered with a concrete surface.  Each space shall be no less than ten (10) 
feet wide and twenty (20) feet deep.  Enclosed garage space shall not count toward 
the required off-street parking requirements. 

 
6. All sidewalks and driveways shall be concrete and meet Village standards. 

 
o. Manufactured Home Sales:  Manufactured home sales are permitted on a limited basis.  

One home may be used for a model, and one model is allowed for each park.  This 
model must follow all structural and aesthetic guidelines as outlined for a manufactured 
residence. 

 
p. Landscaping:  Landscaping shall be provided as part of site plan and subdivision design.  

It shall be provided comprehensively throughout the site; integrating the various 
elements of site design, preserving and enhancing the particular identity of the site, and 
creating a pleasing site character.  Landscaping shall include plant materials such as 
trees, shrubs, ground covers, perennials, and annuals, and other materials such as rocks, 
water, sculpture, art, walls, fences, paving materials, and street furniture.  All 
landscaping shall meet all standards and guidelines established in the Village of 
Frankfort Landscape Regulations. 

 
q. Landscape Plan:  A landscape plan prepared by a certified landscape architect shall be 

submitted with each subdivision development request.  The plan shall identify existing 
and proposed trees, shrubs, and ground covers; natural features such as rock 
outcroppings; and other landscaping elements.  The plan shall show where they are or 
will be located and planting and/or construction details.  Special attention shall be paid 
so as to substantially screen the development from all adjoining zoning districts and 
land uses.  The landscaping plan must meet all standards and guidelines established in 
the Village of Frankfort Landscape Regulations, and sections 150.75 and 150.76 of the 
Village Code. 

 
Part 11.1: Massage Establishments  
(Am. Ord. 2174, passed 07.05.05) 
 
 a. Facilities 
   

1. Cabinets.  Closed cabinets shall be provided and used for the storage of clean 
linens, towels, and other materials used in connection with administering massages.  
All soiled linens, towels, and other materials shall be kept in properly covered 
containers or cabinets, which containers or cabinets shall be kept separate from the 
clean storage areas. 

 

cgruba
Highlight



Village of Frankfort 
Article 5: Use Regulations 

 

September 17, 2001 84 

2. Dressing rooms.  Provision of a separate dressing room for each sex must be 
available on the premises.  Doors to such dressing rooms shall open inward and 
shall be self-closing. 

 
3. Electrical equipment.  All electrical equipment shall be installed in accordance with 

the building codes adopted by the Village of Frankfort. 
 

4. Lavatories or wash basins.  Lavatories or wash basins provided with both hot and 
cold running water shall be installed in either the toilet room or the vestibule.  
Lavatories or wash basins shall be provided with soap in a dispenser and with 
sanitary towels. 

 
5. Light and ventilation.  All portions of massage establishments shall be provided with 

adequate light and ventilation by means of windows or skylights with an area of not 
less than one-eighth (1/8) of the total floor area, or shall be provided with approved 
artificial light and a mechanical operating ventilating system.  When windows or 
skylights are used for ventilation, at least one-half (1/2) of the total required window 
area shall be operable.  To allow for adequate ventilation, cubicles, rooms, and 
areas provided for patrons’ use not served directly by a required window, skylight, 
or mechanical system of ventilation shall be constructed so that the height of 
partitions does not exceed seventy five percent (75%) of the floor-to-ceiling height 
of the area in which they are located.   

 
6. Locks.  No massage service may be carried on within any cubicle, room, booth, or 

any area within a massage establishment that is fitted with a door capable of being 
locked.   

 
7. Plumbing.  All plumbing fixtures shall be installed in accordance with the building 

codes adopted by the Village of Frankfort. 
 

8. Service sink.  The premises shall be equipped with a service sink for a custodial 
services.   

 
9. Toilet facilities.  Toilet facilities shall be provided in convenient locations.  When 

five (5) or more employees and patrons of different sexes are on the premises at the 
same time, separate toilet facilities shall be provided.  A single water closet per sex 
shall be provided for each twenty (20) or more employees or patrons of that sex on 
the premises at any one time.  Urinals may be substituted for water closets after one 
water closet has been provided.  All toilet rooms shall be equipped with self-closing 
doors opening in the direction of ingress to the toilet rooms.  Toilets shall be 
designated as to the sex accommodated therein. 

 
10. Waterproofing.  Construction of rooms used for toilets, tubs, steam baths, and 

showers shall be made waterproof with approved waterproofed materials and shall 
be installed in accordance with the building codes adopted by the Village of 
Frankfort.  For toilet rooms, toilet room vestibules, and rooms containing bathtubs, 
there shall be a waterproof floor covering, which will be carried up all walls to a 
height of at least six inches (6”), and floors shall be covered up on base with at least 



Village of Frankfort 
Article 5: Use Regulations 

 

September 17, 2001 85 

three-fourths inch (3/4”) cover.  The walls of all toilet rooms and rooms containing 
bathtubs shall be finished to a height of six feet (6’) with a smooth, nonabsorbent 
finish surface of Keene cement, tile, or similar material.  Steam rooms and shower 
compartments shall have waterproof ceilings, floors, and walls approved by the 
Building and Zoning Department.   

 
11. Wet and dry heat rooms.  Floors of wet and dry heat rooms shall be adequately 

pitched to one or more floor drains properly connected to the sewer.  (Exception: 
dry heat rooms with wooden floors need not be provided with pitched floors and 
floor drains.)  A source of hot water must be available within the immediate vicinity 
of dry and wet heat rooms to facilitate cleaning. 

 
b. Operating conditions 

 
1. Cleanliness.  Every portion of a massage establishment, including appliances, 

apparatus, and personnel shall be kept clean and operated in a sanitary condition.  
The premises shall have adequate equipment for disinfecting and sterilizing 
nondisposable instruments and materials used in administering massages, and such 
nondisposable instruments and materials shall disinfected after use on each patron.  
Oils, creams, lotions, or other preparations used in administering massages shall be 
kept in clean, closed containers or cabinets.  Wet and dry heat rooms, shower 
compartments, and toilet rooms shall be thoroughly cleaned each day the business 
is in operation.  Bathtubs shall be thoroughly cleaned after each use.  Eating in the 
massage work areas shall not be permitted.  Animals, except service animals for 
persons with disabilities, shall not be permitted in the massage work areas.  

 
2. Employees.  All employees and operators shall be clean and shall wear suitable 

clean, nontransparent outer garments, covering the sexual and genital areas, whose 
use is restricted to the massage establishment.  It shall be unlawful for any person, 
knowingly or recklessly, in a massage establishment, to touch with any part of the 
body, to fondle in any manner, or to massage the genitals, pubic area, anus, or 
perineum of any person, or the vulva or breasts of a female.  No employee or 
operator shall perform, offer, or agree to perform any act that would require the 
touching of these areas.  Patrons must cover these areas with towels, cloths, or 
undergarments when in the presence of an employee or operator. 

 
3. Licenses.  Persons administering massage for compensation must be licensed by the 

Illinois Department of Professional Regulation as massage therapists.  A massage 
establishment must maintain a register of all persons employed as massage 
therapists and their license numbers.  Such register shall be available for inspection 
at all times during regular business hours.   

 
4. Price rates.  Price rates for all services shall be prominently posted in the reception 

area in a location available to all prospective customers.   
 
 
 
 



Village of Frankfort 
Article 5: Use Regulations 

 

September 17, 2001 86 

c. Inspections 
 
1. Following application.  The Village Clerk, upon receiving an application from a 

massage establishment seeking a general business license, shall refer the 
application to a Code Official, who shall inspect the proposed premises and shall 
make written recommendations to the Village Clerk.  A general business license 
application for a massage establishment may be rejected if the operation as 
proposed by the applicant will not comply with all building codes adopted by the 
Village of Frankfort or regulations adopted by the Village Clerk or the Director of 
Building and Zoning.   

 
2. On-going.  A Code Official shall from time to time and at least twice a year, make 

an inspection of the public areas of each massage establishment in the Village of 
Frankfort for the purposes of determining that the provisions of this Part are 
complied with.   

 
 

Part 12: Mining 
Mining, and/or the extraction of minerals, sand, gravel, topsoil or other aggregates, including 
equipment, buildings or structures for screening, crushing, mixing, washing or storage shall be subject to 
the following: 
 

a. No open pit or shaft shall be less than 200 feet from any public road or less than 500 
feet from any adjacent residential district. 

 
b. All buildings or structures shall be located not less than 200 feet from any property line.  

All grinding, or processing machinery shall be located at the farthest point on the 
property from residential use as feasible. 

 
c. The borders of the property adjacent to or across the street from any district other than 

an industrial district shall be fenced with a solid fence, wall, or landscape material at 
least six (6) feet in height. 

 
Part 13: Office and Professional Service 
A permitted business office may not display or sell chattels or goods, wares or merchandise on the 
premises without special use approval, with the exception of limited sales of product in connection with 
professional services rendered on site. (Am. Ord. 2495, passed 08.04.08) 
 
Part 14: Outdoor Seating Associated with a Permitted Restaurant 
Outdoor seating, when associated with a permitted restaurant, shall only be permitted in accordance 
with the following: 
 

a. All seating areas must be enclosed by a fence or wall of at least 3 feet in height. 
 

b. Where seating is permitted adjacent to a public sidewalk, at least 5 feet in width of said 
sidewalk must remain unobstructed.  

 
 



 
 

Application for Plan Commission / Zoning Board of Appeals Review 
Special Use Permit Findings of Fact 

 
Article 3, Section E, Part 6 of the Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance lists “findings” or “standards” that 
the Plan Commission must use to evaluate every special use permit request. The Plan Commission must 
make the following seven findings based upon the evidence provided. To assist the Plan Commission in 
their review of the special use permit request(s), please provide responses to the following “Findings of 
Fact.” Please attach additional pages as necessary.  
 
1. That the establishment, maintenance or operation of the special use will not be detrimental to, or 

endanger, the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare. 
 
 
 
 
 
2. That the special use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the 

immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair 
property values within the neighborhood. 

 
 
 
 
 
3. That the establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and orderly development and 

improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the district. 
  
 
 
 
 
4. That the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will not be so at 

variance with either the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of the structures already 
constructed, or in the course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or the character of the 
applicable district, as to cause a substantial depreciation in the property values within the 
neighborhood. 

 
 
 
 
 



5. That the adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and/or necessary facilities have been or are being 
provided. 

 
 
 
 
 
6. That adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so 

designed as to minimize traffic congestion in the public streets. 
 

 

 

 

7. That the special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the district 
in which it is located, except as such regulations may, in each instance, be modified by the Village 
Board, pursuant to the recommendations of the Plan Commission. 

 
 

Y



 
 

Application for Plan Commission / Zoning Board of Appeals Review 
Special Use Permit Findings of Fact 

 
Article 3, Section E, Part 6 of the Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance lists “findings” or “standards” that 
the Plan Commission must use to evaluate every special use permit request. The Plan Commission must 
make the following seven findings based upon the evidence provided. To assist the Plan Commission in 
their review of the special use permit request(s), please provide responses to the following “Findings of 
Fact.” Please attach additional pages as necessary.  
 
1. That the establishment, maintenance or operation of the special use will not be detrimental to, or 

endanger, the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare. 
 
 
 
 
 
2. That the special use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the 

immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair 
property values within the neighborhood. 

 
 
 
 
 
3. That the establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and orderly development and 

improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the district. 
  
 
 
 
 
4. That the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will not be so at 

variance with either the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of the structures already 
constructed, or in the course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or the character of the 
applicable district, as to cause a substantial depreciation in the property values within the 
neighborhood. 

 
 
 
 
 



5. That the adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and/or necessary facilities have been or are being 
provided. 

 
 
 
 
 
6. That adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so 

designed as to minimize traffic congestion in the public streets. 
 

 

 

 

7. That the special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the district 
in which it is located, except as such regulations may, in each instance, be modified by the Village 
Board, pursuant to the recommendations of the Plan Commission. 

 
 





     

   Memo 
To: Plan Commission 

From: Christopher Gruba, Senior Planner 

Date: January 5, 2022 

Re:  Text Amendment - Accessory Structures 

At the Committee of the Whole meeting on September 20, 2021, members discussed the topic of 
accessory structures, including sports courts.  At that time, members voiced support for staff to 
proceed with additional research pertaining to the regulation of accessory structures.  Staff has 
since conducted research by examining how other nearby communities regulate accessory 
structures and reviewed the current regulations in the Village’s Zoning Ordinance.  Through this 
research, it was discovered that many of the Village’s accessory structure regulations are 
conflicting, vague or silent.  Staff has prepared a draft text amendment that would largely “clean-
up” or clarify the existing regulations.  The draft text amendment also contains some new 
language for the regulation of accessory structures, specifically sports courts and structures such 
as pool houses, pergolas and sheds.   
 
A Plan Commission workshop was held on December 9, 2021 in which the Commission only 
discussed the topic of sports courts.  Recommendations from that meeting have been 
incorporated in the latest draft.  The proposed changes are largely intended to maintain the same 
general rules but make them clearer and easier to understand.  The changes are also intended to 
reflect how accessory structures have actually been regulated by staff in the past, codifying past 
practice.  
 
Briefly summarized, sports courts would no longer be categorized an accessory structure, but 
rather as an accessory use.  As such, residential sports courts would require a special use permit, 
as opposed to variation(s).  The draft text amendment includes multiple regulations for sports 
courts to ensure appropriate size, location, screening, etc.  The Plan Commission and Village 
Board still maintain the ability to deny a special use permit, based upon the 7 findings of fact, 
which may be more pertinent than the standards used for evaluating a variation request.  
 
Other structures, typically with a roof and/or walls, would be considered accessory structures.  
The accessory structure maximum size would be increased from 144 square feet to 250 square 
feet, to reflect the past history of variations granted by the Village.  Many other regulations will 
remain in-place or be clarified regarding lot coverage, impervious lot coverage, setbacks, height, 
spacing between structures, etc.  
 
Attachments:  
1. Basic Summary of Changes 
2. Overall Logic 
3. Accessory Structure Variance History 2021 
4. Accessory Structure Regulations Research 
5. Sports Court Variance History 2015-2021 
6. Sports Court Research 
7. Impervious Surface Examples: 22960 Hankins Court & 7403 Mayfield 
8. Sports Courts – Existing and Proposed Regulations 
9. Changes to Definitions section, before and after 
10. Proposed changes to the Zoning Ordinance (illustrating strikeouts and highlighting text that 

is deleted, amended or relocated.  
11. Proposed changes to the Zoning Ordinance (clean version, no strikeouts, although the 

affected sections will still be highlighted in yellow).  

001



Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (Accessory Structures) 

Basic Summary of Changes 

• Article 1, Section I (Table of Permitted Obstructions in Required Yards):  

o This chart contains many conflicting or redundant regulations.  All redundant or 

conflicting regulations were deleted or moved to more appropriate sections of the 

Code.  The chart format (which is confusing to read) was changed to an itemized list for 

readability.   

 

• Article 5, Sections B & C (Table of Permitted and Special Uses & Use Standards):  

o Added two (2) line items in the Table (Section B) for “Residential Sports Courts” and 

“Home Occupations”, which are better categorized as uses and not structures.  Sports 

courts usually only involve pavement and perhaps goal posts; as such, they don’t appear 

or act like other accessory structures (there’s no walls or roof).  Home occupations are 

also more of a use than a structure and would now be placed alongside other accessory 

uses such as outdoor seating and drive-throughs.  The regulations for home occupations 

are not changing.  

 

o Staff recommends that residential sports courts be treated as a use and require a 

Special Use Permit.  The SUP process for sports courts would be more suitable than the 

current variation process because it is extremely difficult to demonstrate the 3 required 

variation standards (hardships) and the 7 findings of fact.  Sports courts would be listed 

within the “Use Standards” (Section C) and contain regulations for size, setbacks, 

fencing, etc.  Conditions of approval could also be placed on a sports court during the 

SUP review for an added layer of scrutiny.  Staff recommends the following regulations 

for sports courts:  

 

▪ One (1) sports court is permitted per residential lot.  

▪ Sports courts shall be located in the rear yard only.  

▪ Sports courts shall be set back at least ten (10) feet from any side or rear 

property line.  

▪ The size of the sports court shall not exceed 3% of the area of the lot, but in no 

instance shall a sports court exceed 1,000 square feet.  

▪ Sports courts shall count toward the maximum total impervious coverage of the 

lot, further restricting size; 

▪ Sports courts shall be screened in same manner as pools: “screened from view 

outside the lot, with densely planted trees or hedges providing 50% opacity”.  

▪ Sports courts shall not be illuminated. 

▪ No more than 1 goal, basketball or otherwise, is permitted per sports court.  

▪ No appurtenances shall be over 15’ tall.  

 

• Article 5, Section D (Accessory Uses): 

o This section contains the most changes, since it most directly relates to Accessory Uses 

& Structures.  The changes are summarized as:  

002



▪ Retitled the Section “Accessory Uses & Structures”.  This section currently 

regulates structures as well as uses, so this clarifies the title.  

▪ The existing regulations were mostly reorganized, without a lot of substantive 

changes.  Some language was added to codify how the Ordinance has been 

interpreted and enforced in the past.  Currently, the Ordinance as it relates to 

accessory structures is often enforced on vague pretext that requires many 

assumptions and leaps of logic.  Much of the current regulations have stayed 

the same, including location, setbacks and separation distances from other 

structures.  

▪ Clarified how accessory structure area is measured to reflect how it’s been 

practiced by the Village.  

▪ Changed the maximum accessory structure area from 144 SF to 250 SF.  The 

average request of an accessory structure size variation within the last year has 

been 306 SF.  The average approved variation within the last year is 237; this 

number has been rounded up to 250 SF.  Surrounding communities permit a 

range of sizes from 3,000 to 144, with many ordinances being completely silent 

regarding maximum size.  Typical accessory structures include pool cabanas, 

pergolas and sheds.  

▪ The Zoning Ordinance regulations are largely silent for detached garages (for 

vehicles).  These regulations have been clarified and a maximum size has been 

listed that a detached garage may not exceed the size of the footprint of the 

house.   

▪ The ordinance is very silent regarding accessory structures on A-G (agricultural) 

zoned land.  Regulations have been added that reflect how these accessory 

structures have been treated in the past.   

▪ The regulations for swimming pools have stayed the same: they do not count 

toward lot coverage but they do count toward impervious lot coverage.  

▪ Accessory structure location, size and height regulations have been reworded to 

be clear, without substantial changes.   

▪ The section regarding Fences and Walls (Article 5, Section D, Part 6) has been 

relocated to a new Article 7, Section G.  In nearly every zoning ordinance, fences 

and walls are not considered “accessory structures” and as such have their own 

section in the Code since they don’t abide by lot coverage, impervious coverage, 

setbacks and height associated with other common accessory structures.  The 

regulations for fencing have stayed the same.  

 

• Article 12, Rules & Definitions:   

o Definitions for “Accessory structures”, “Lot coverage”, “Impervious lot coverage”, 

“Impervious surface” and “Building height” were changed to be clearer without 

substantive changes.  A new definition for “Sports Court, Residential” was created.   

003



Overall Logic: 

• Accessory structures that have rooves (e.g. gazebo, pergola, shed, cabana):  

o Count toward lot coverage.   

o Count toward impervious lot coverage.  

o If attached to the primary structure (a house), they become part of the primary 

structure and must abide by the setbacks for the primary structure.  

• Accessory structures that do not have rooves (e.g. pools, open decks, patios, sports courts):  

o Do not count toward lot coverage. 

o Do count toward impervious lot coverage  

• Accessory structures attached to the primary structure: 

o If they have a roof (porch, awning, covered deck) 

 They are considered part of the primary structure and would have to meet the 

setbacks for primary structures.  

o If they do not have a roof (deck, patio, terrace): 

 Have special provisions within the Zoning Ordinance (such as under “General 

Exceptions”, Article 1, Section I, Part 1) 

• Sports courts: 

o Are more of a use than a structure (usually no roof, with a goal post) and will require a 

special use permit always.  

 SUP requires review by PC and final action by VB.  Both parties can still deny an 

SUP based on one or several of the 7 findings of fact.  

 Additional conditions of approval can be placed on the SUP if granted: 

• Additional landscaping 

• Additional setbacks 

• Berm 

• Other conditions as warranted   

o Do not count toward lot coverage. (like a pool) 

o Count toward impervious lot coverage. (like a pool) 

 

 

004



PC Date Address Structure Size Requested Size Approved

6/24/21 11258 York Drive Pool Cabana 360 240

6/24/21 10650 Yankee Ridge Pool Cabana 288 255

10/14/21 11195 Siena Drive Pergola 215 215

10/28/21 7403 Mayfield Sports Court (proposed) 1363

11/18/21 22960 Hankins Court Sports Court (existing) 625

Future 10677 Yankee Ridge Pool Cabana 360
288 237Average (non‐sports courts only)

Accessory Structure Variance History 2021

005



Accessory Structure Regulations

(for detached garages sheds in residential districts)

Municipality

Dependent on 

Zoning 

District/Lot Size

Number Permitted Maximum Area
Maximum 

Height

Minimum Side 

Yard Setback 

Minimum 

Rear Yard 

Setback

Frankfort No Not specified; lot coverage 144 sq. ft. 15 ft. 10 ft.  10 ft. 

Mokena Yes SUP req. for more than 1

Not specified; lot 

coverage 15‐20 ft. 5‐20 ft. 5‐40 ft.

Tinley Park No

1, but 2 on large lots (over 

15,000 sq. ft. & 90 ft. 

width) 720 sq. ft. 18 ft. 5 ft. 5 ft.

New Lenox  No Not specified; lot coverage 180 sq. ft. 15 ft. 5 ft. 5 ft.

Monee No Not specified; lot coverage

Not specified; lot 

coverage Not specified Not specified Not specified

University Park  No Not specified; lot coverage

Not specified; lot 

coverage 13 ft. 5 ft. 5 ft.

Richton Park  Yes Not specified; lot coverage

Not specified; lot 

coverage 12‐14 ft. 4‐5 ft. 5 ft.

Matteson Yes Not specified; lot coverage

Not specified; lot 

coverage 14 ft. 10 ft.  5 ft.

Will County Yes Not specified; lot coverage 1200‐3000 sq. ft. 25 ft.  5‐20 ft. 5 ft.

006



Sports Court research: 

Basketball Court, NBA: 94’x50’ = 4,700 SF 

• The distance from the hoop to a 3-point line is 23’9”.   

• The width of a basketball court is 49.21’ 

• This 3-point line end of court area is 1,168.7 square feet.  

Tennis Court: 2,807 SF (International Tennis Foundation) 

Volleyball Court: 29.5’ x 59’ = 1704.5 SF  

Shuffleboard: 6’x39’ = 234 SF (Wikipedia) 

Size: 

The size of a sports court could be based on a sliding scale as a percentage of lot area.  Staff 

recommends 3%.  However, in no instance shall a sports court exceed 1,000 SF because:  

• That’s the average of the requests received for sports courts since 2015 

• It’s a round number that is just under the 1,168.7 square feet needed to have a full-width court 

at the 3-point line.  

Examples of maximum sports court sizes based on 3% of lot area:  

15,000 SF lot (Minimum size of R-2 zone lot) x 3% = 450 SF.  

20,000 SF lot (Minimum size of R-1 zone lot) x 3% = 600 SF.   

40,000 SF lot (Minimum size of E-R zone lot) x 3% = 1,200 SF.  But can only be 1,000 because of the 

1,000 SF max.  

Setbacks: 

Sports court setbacks would be the same as a typical accessory structure: 10’ from side and rear 

property lines and not located in the front yard.  

Materials: 

At the December 9th Plan Commission meeting, there was a consensus that the sports court surface 

material should not be regulated.  

Landscaping: 

Sports courts shall be screened from view in the same manner as pools: an opaque fence OR trees and 

shrubs screening to 50% opacity.  

007



Year Address Permitted SF Requested SF PC Date PC Decision VB Date VB Decision Final Action Conditions

2015

7949 Big Buck 

(Amos) 144 625 ? ? 9/21/15 4‐0 Approved No illumination

2017

22080 Chamomile 

(Westerberg) 144 1,700

7/13/17 & 

10/12/2017 4‐3 10/16/17 3‐4 Denied No illumination

2017

8266 Karli Jean 

(Novak) 144 1,344 10/12/17 2‐4 NA Not reviewed None

No illumination & 

staff approval of 

landscape plan

2020

22604 Blarney 

(Lockhart) 144 480 8/13/20 4‐0 8/17/20 1‐5 Denied

No illumination & 

staff approval of 

landscape plan

2021

7403 Mayfield 

(Mays) 144 1,363 10/28/21 5‐0

11/15/21 & 

1/18/2022 ?

2021

22960 Hankins 

(McCarthy) 144 625 11/18/21 6‐0 1/18/22 ?

Avg. 1,023

Sports Court Request History

008



Impervious Estimate Examples

Address: 22960 Hankins Court

Zoning: R‐2

Lot Area (SF): 26,023 Square Feet Percentage 3% sports court

Maximum Lot Coverage (R‐2) 5,205 20.0%

Lot Coverage (22960 Hankins)

House (1st floor) 1,651

Attached Garage 852

Total 2,503 9.6%

Maximum Impervious Coverage (R‐2) 10,409 40.0%

Impervious Coverage (22960 Hankins)

House (1st floor) 1,651

Attached Garage 852

Front Porch 168

Side Stoop (estimate) 9

Rear Porch (estimate) 257

Rear Deck (estimate) 171

Driveway & Sidewalk (estimate) 1,287

Sports Court (existing) 625 780.1

Total 5,020 19.3% 19.9%

Address: 7403 Mayfield

Zoning: R‐2

Lot Area (SF): 24,524 Square Feet Percentage 3% sports court

Maximum Lot Coverage (R‐2) 20.0%

Lot Coverage (7403 Mayfield)

House (1st floor) 2,260

Attached Garage 1,199

Total 3,459 14.1%

Maximum Impervious Coverage (R‐2) 9,810 40.0%

Impervious Coverage (7403 Mayfield)

House (1st floor) 2,260

Attached Garage 1,199

Front Porch 29

Rear Deck (estimate) 280

Driveway & Sidewalk (estimate) 1,586

Sports Court (proposed) 1,363 735.7

Total 6,717 27.4% 24.8%

009



Sports Courts: EXISTING REGULATIONS 

 
Outdoor recreation areas or equipment (including, but not limited to tennis courts, basketball courts, 
playhouses, batting cages, etc.), provided they meet the requirements outlined below:  
 
1. Total impervious coverage of the lot, including the accessory structure or playing area, shall not 
exceed the limitations of the zoning district as defined in Article 6;  
 
2. The recreational facility or equipment does not exceed 15’ in height as measured from the ground or 
144 square feet in area, unless a variation is specifically approved according to the provisions of Article 
3, Section B. (Am. Ord. 1887, passed 04.15.02)  
 
3. Appropriate screening is provided;  
 
4. Surfacing conforms to all established Village regulations, standards and ordinances; and  
 
5. Lighting of the area conforms to all established Village regulations, standards and ordinances.  
 

Sports Courts – PROPOSED REGULATIONS 

1. Requires a SUP in the residential zone districts only, which are clearly defined in the ZO as E-R, 

R-1, R-2, R-3, R-4, A-G and H-R.  H-1 is not a residential zone district, although many H-1 zoned 

properties are constructed for single-family residential.  

2. One (1) sports court is permitted per residential lot. 

3. The size of the sports court shall not exceed 3% of the area of the lot, but in no instance shall a 

sports court exceed 1,000 square feet. 

4. Sports courts shall be located in the rear yard only. 

5. Sports courts shall be set back at least 10’ from any side or rear property line.  

6. Sports courts shall count toward the maximum total impervious coverage of the lot, further 

restricting size; 

7. Sports courts shall be screened from view using the same methods as required for pool 

screening.  

8. Sports courts shall not be illuminated.  

9. No more than 1 goal, basketball or otherwise, is permitted per sports court. 

10. No appurtenances shall exceed 15’ tall.  

010



 

Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (Accessory Structures) 

Definitions – Before and After 

CURRENT DEFINITION 

Accessory Structure or Use: An “accessory structure or use” is one which: 

a. Is subordinate to and serves a principal structure or principal use; 

b. Is subordinate in area, extent, or purpose to the principal structure or principal use served; 

c. Contributes to the comfort, convenience, or necessity of occupants of the principal structure or 

principal use served; and 

d. Is on the same zoning lot as the principal structure or principal use served. 

PROPOSED DEFINITION 

Accessory Structure or Use: An “accessory structure or use” is one which: 

a. Is subordinate to and serves a principal structure or principal use; 

b. Is on the same zoning lot as the principal structure or principal use served. 

c. Accessory Structures shall include:  

1. Garages, detached 

2. Storage sheds 

3. Child’s playhouses 

4. Arbors/Trellises/Pergolas/Gazebos 

5. Decks, terraces and patios 

6. Swimming pools 

7. Permanently affixed outdoor fireplaces 

8. Permanently affixed outdoor stoves 

9. Air-conditioning units, generators, pool mechanical equipment and similar equipment 

(ground-mounted) 

10. Pole barns, silos and other accessory farm structures  

11. Laundry drying equipment 

12. Trash dumpster enclosures 

13. Television or radio towers for residential use (ground-mounted) 

14. And similar accessory structures 

d. Accessory Structures shall NOT include: (Regulations for these will be in other sections of the ZO)  

1. Sports Courts 

2. Fences or walls 

3. Statuary 

4. Flagpoles 

5. Any rooved structure attached to the primary structure 

6. Ramps for use by persons with disabilities 

011



 

CURRENT DEFINITION 

Impervious Lot Coverage: A ratio determined by dividing that area of a lot which is occupied or covered 

by all impervious surfaces, by the gross area of that lot. For purposes of calculating residential 

impervious lot coverage, impervious surfaces shall include accessory structures such as swimming pools, 

tennis and basketball courts, but shall not include residential sidewalks or a residential driveway as 

defined above. 

Impervious Surface: A surface which does not absorb water. Impervious surfaces consist of all buildings, 

parking areas, driveways, roads, sidewalks, and any areas of concrete or asphalt. For lumberyards or 

similar uses, areas of stored lumber constitute impervious surfaces. 

PROPOSED DEFINITION 

Impervious Lot Coverage: A ratio determined by dividing that area of a lot which is occupied or covered 

by all impervious surfaces, by the net area of that lot.  

Impervious Surface: A surface which does not absorb water.  

Impervious surfaces shall include:  

1. Primary buildings 

2. Accessory structures (except laundry drying equipment) 

3. Driveways (paved or gravel, but not including permeable pavers?) 

4. Sidewalks 

5. Sports courts 

6. Swimming pools (including decking) 

7. Porches (enclosed or unenclosed) 

8. Decks (attached or detached) 

9. Carports 

10. Parking lots (including parking spaces and drive aisles) 

11. Any areas of concrete or asphalt  

12. For lumber yards or similar uses, areas of stored lumber 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

012



 

CURRENT DEFINITION 

Building Height: The vertical distance measured from the sidewalk level or the established grade at the 

curb, opposite the middle of the front of the building, to the highest elevation of the roof. However, 

where buildings are set back from the street lines, the height of the building may be measured from the 

average elevation of the finished lot grade at the front of the building. 

The following appurtenances shall not be included in the calculation of building height: 

a. Chimneys, flues, stacks, fire escapes, gas holders, elevator enclosures, ventilators, skylights, water 

tanks and similar roof structures needed to operate and maintain the building on which they are located. 

b. Flag poles, television aerials mounted on rooftops, and water towers and tanks. 

c. Decorative rooftop finials or spires up to four feet in height. (Am. Ord. 3229, passed 10.07.19) 

 

PROPOSED DEFINITION 

Building Height: The vertical distance measured from the established grade to the highest elevation of 

the roof.  

The following appurtenances shall not be included in the calculation of building height: 

a. Chimneys, flues, stacks, fire escapes, gas holders, elevator enclosures, ventilators, skylights, water 

tanks and similar roof structures needed to operate and maintain the building on which they are located. 

b. Flag poles, television aerials mounted on rooftops, and water towers and tanks. 

c. Decorative rooftop finials or spires up to four feet in height. (Am. Ord. 3229, passed 10.07.19) 

 

 

 

PROPOSED DEFINTION 

Sports Court, residential: An outdoor court located in a residential zone district designed for athletic 

purposes. Temporary or permanent goals located adjacent to a hard surface shall constitute a sports 

court, except as noted in Article 1, Section I, Part 1, (d). 

a. Residential sports courts shall include, but not be limited to:  

1. Tennis Courts 

2. Basketball Courts 

3. Volleyball Courts 

4. Shuffleboard Courts 

5. Outdoor Hockey rinks 

6. And similar courts 

 

013



014



015



016



017



018



019



020



021



022



023



024



025



026



027



028



029



030



031



032



033



034



035



036



037



038



039



040



041



042



043



044



045



046



047



048



049



050



Village of Frankfort 
Article 1: Introductory Provisions 

September 17, 2001 5 

 
Section I: Permitted Obstructions in Required Yards 
 
Part 1: 
 

a. Air-conditioning units, window-mounted: Permitted within any required yard, not to 
exceed more than two (2) feet into the yard. (unchanged) 

b. Balconies, open: Permitted within any required yard, not project more than six (6) feet 
from the primary structure. (added the 6’ projection to limit how far they can project, 
because right now there is no limit at all. Alternatively, it could state “balconies shall not be 
closer than 5’ to any property line”, but usually a balcony doesn’t need to be deeper than 6’ 
and have seen this dimension in other ordinances.) 

c. Basketball goal in residential districts only: Permitted within any required yard.  Limited 
to one pole-mounted or garage-mounted goal.  Shall be set back at least five (5) feet 
from any property line. If pole-mounted, goal shall be located within the driveway 
pavement area. (added “in residential districts only”) 

d. Cantilevered elements: Permitted within any required yard, not to exceed more than two 
(2) feet into the yard. (Am. Ord 2360, passed 1.25.07) (unchanged) 

e. Chimneys: Permitted within any required yard, not to exceed more than two (2) feet into 
the yard. (Am. Ord. 2839, passed 4.29.13) (unchanged) 

f. Decks, Terraces and Patios (unenclosed, no roof) in residential districts only: Permitted 
within any required yard but shall be set back at least ten (10) feet from any property line. 
(changed wording from “open” to “unenclosed, no roof” for clarity) 

g. Decks, Terraces, and Patios (unenclosed, no roof) in non-residential districts only: 
Permitted within any required yard but shall be set back at least twenty-five (25) feet 
from any front or corner side property line and at least ten (10) feet from any other 
property line. (changed wording from “open” to “unenclosed, no roof” for clarity) 

h. Enclosed dog runs, in residential districts only: Permitted within the required rear yard 
only and shall be set back at least ten (10) feet from any property line. (added “in 
residential districts only”) 

i. Fences: Permitted within any required yard, subject to the regulations set forth in Article 
7, Section G, Part 1. (unchanged) 

j. Flagpoles: Permitted within any required yard but shall be set back at least five (5) feet 
from any property line. (added the 5’ min setback requirement, because as written it could 
be set back 0’) 

k. Ramps for use by persons with disabilities: Permitted within any required yard, subject to 
the design requirements set forth by the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. 
(unchanged) 

l. Residential wing walls: Permitted within any required yard, not to project more than two 
(2) feet into the yard. (Am. Ord. 2495, passed 8.4.08) (unchanged) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

051



Vi
lla

ge
 o

f F
ra

nk
fo

rt
 

Ar
tic

le
 5

: U
se

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

  

Se
pt

em
be

r 1
7,

 2
00

1 
72

 

 
E-

R
 

R
-1

 
R

-2
 

R
-3

 
R

-4
 

A
G

 
H

-R
 

B
-1

 
B

-2
 

B
-3

 
B

-4
 

O
R

 
I-1

 
I-2

 
H

-1
 

U
se

 
St

an
da

rd
s 

O
u

td
o

o
r 

st
o

ra
ge

 
e

xc
e

p
t 

u
n

co
n

ta
in

e
d

 
m

a
te

ria
ls

 (
A

m
. 

O
rd

. 
2

4
9

5
, 

p
a

ss
ed

 
0

8
.0

4
.0

8
) 

 
 

 
 

 
S

 
 

 
 

 S
 

 
 

 S
 

 P
 

 
 

O
u

td
o

o
r 

st
o

ra
g

e 
of

 
u

n
-c

on
ta

in
e

d
 

bu
lk

 
m

a
te

ria
ls

 (
A

m
. 

O
rd

. 
2

4
9

5
, 

p
a

ss
ed

 
0

8
.0

4
.0

8
) 

 
 

 
 

 
S

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 S
 

 
 

P
la

n
n

ed
 

u
n

it 
d

e
ve

lo
pm

e
nt

 
S

 
S

 
S

 
S

 
S

 
 

S
 

S
 

S
 

S
 

S
 

S
 

S
 

S
 

S
 

 

H
o

m
e

 
O

cc
u

pa
tio

n
s,

 
a

ss
o

ci
a

te
d 

w
ith

 
p

e
rm

itt
e

d 
u

se
s 

P
 

P
 

P
 

P
 

P
 

P
 

P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

5
.C

.3
9 

S
p

o
rt

s 
co

u
rt

, 
re

si
de

n
tia

l, 
a

ss
o

ci
a

te
d 

w
ith

 
p

e
rm

itt
e

d 
u

se
s 

S
 

S
 

S
 

S
 

S
 

S
 

S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

5
.C

.4
0 

 

052



Village of Frankfort 
Article 5: Use Regulations 

 

September 17, 2001 97 

Part 38: Vacation Rental  
(Am. Ord. 3229, passed 09.20.21) 
 
A Vacation Rental shall be operated in accordance with the following: 

a. Maximum occupancy shall be reviewed on a case-by-case basis but in no instance shall 
exceed ten (10) guests per Vacation Rental. 

b. There must be at least 100 square feet of gross interior floor area for each guestroom. 
Kitchens, bathrooms, hallways, closets and other areas not defined as a bedroom under the 
International Property Maintenance Code, or other applicable code adopted by the Village, 
are not considered habitable rooms for sleeping purposes.  

c. No Vacation Rental shall be located on a lot closer than 250 feet from any other lot 
containing a Vacation Rental. 

d. New construction, additions, or remodeling must be in keeping with a residential character 
and is subject to review by the Village of Frankfort Historic Preservation Commission.  

e. In addition to any other requirements posed by the Village of Frankfort Fire Department, or 
other applicable code adopted by the Village, each guestroom must contain at least one 
hard wire smoke detector and carbon monoxide detector. 

f. A Vacation Rental may only be operated with a properly issued vacation rental license as 
provided for in the Code. 

Part 39: Home Occupations 
It is the intent of this section to allow as home occupations only those uses that conform to the standards 
of this Section.  In general, a home occupation is an incidental and secondary accessory use in the AG, E-R, 
R-1, R-2, R-3, or R-4 Districts, so located and conducted as to not change the character thereof or 
adversely affect the uses permitted in the residential district of which it is a part.  The standards for home 
occupations are intended to ensure compatibility with other permitted uses and the residential character 
of the neighborhood, and to maintain the subordinate and incidental status of the home occupation. 
 

a. Permitted Home Occupations.  Any home occupation, as defined in Article 12, that is 
incidental and subordinate to the principal residential use of a building, shall be permitted 
in any dwelling unit, except those which are specifically prohibited under this Ordinance, 
and meets the regulations outlined in paragraph (c) below. 

 
b. Limitations.  Home occupations shall be operated in conformance with the following: 

 
1. All employed persons must be related, with the total number of employees not to 

exceed three (3). 
 

2. The use of the dwelling unit for the home occupation or home office shall be clearly 
incidental and secondary to its use for residential purposes. 

 
3. No more than twenty-five (25) percent of the livable floor area of the dwelling unit 

shall be used in the conduct of the home occupation or home office. 

053



Village of Frankfort 
Article 5: Use Regulations 

 

September 17, 2001 98 

 
4. No outside display, storage, or use of land is permitted. 

 
5. No signage shall advertise the presence or operation of home occupation.  

 
6. There shall be no manufacturing or processing of any sort. 

 
7. No wholesale, jobbing or retail business shall be permitted unless it is conducted 

entirely by mail or telephone and does not involve the receipt, sale, shipment, 
delivery or storage of merchandise on or from the premises, provided, however, that 
articles produced by members of the immediate family residing on the premises may 
be sold from and stored upon the premises. 

 
8. There shall be no interior or exterior alteration of the principal residential building 

which changes the residential character thereof as a dwelling. 
 

9. The home occupation shall be conducted entirely within the principal residential 
building and shall not be visible from any existing dwelling on any adjacent lot. 

 
10. No equipment or process shall be used in such home occupation that creates noise, 

vibration, glare, fumes, odors or electrical interference detectable to normal senses 
off the lot.  In the case of electrical interference, no equipment or process shall be 
used which creates visual or audible interference in any radio or television receivers 
off the premises, or causes fluctuations in line voltage off the premises. 

 
11. No traffic shall be generated by such home occupation in greater volumes than 

would normally be expected in a residential neighborhood, and in no case shall traffic 
volume be created by the home occupation greater than ten (10) trips per day in any 
one day, including deliveries. 

 
12. Deliveries are limited to a maximum of two (2) per day, and are not to be conducted 

by a vehicle that exceeds a useful load of one ton.  (Am. Ord. 1887, passed 04.15.02) 
 

13. Parking generated by the conduct of such home occupation shall be met by the off-
street parking regulations, and be located in areas other than a required yard. 

 
14. No home occupation shall cause an increase of more than ten percent (10%) in the 

use of any one or more utilities (water, sewer, electrical, telephone, garbage, etc.) so 
that the combined total use for dwelling and home occupation purposes exceeds the 
average for residences in the neighborhood. 

 
c. Particular Home Occupations Permitted.  Customary home occupations include, but are 

not limited to, the following list of occupations, provided, however, that each listed 
occupation shall be subject to the requirements of this Part 5. 

 
1. Dressmakers, seamstresses and tailors 

 

054



Village of Frankfort 
Article 5: Use Regulations 

 

September 17, 2001 99 

2. Music teachers, with regular instruction, limited to one pupil at a time, except for 
occasional groups 

 
3. Artists, sculptors and authors or composers 

 
4. Office facilities for architects, brokers, engineers, lawyers, insurance agents and 

members of similar professions 
 

5. Offices of duly ordained leaders of a religious or spiritual community 
 

6. Office facilities for real estate and other sales representatives and manufacturers’ 
representatives, when no retail or wholesale transactions are conducted on the 
premises 

 
7. Home crafts, such as model-making, rug-weaving, lapidary work, handcraft-

woodworking, provided however, that no machinery or equipment shall be used or 
employed, other than that which would customarily be incidental to residential 
occupancy.  Such machinery or equipment shall include that which would customarily 
be employed in connection with a hobby or a vocation not conducted for gain or 
profit 

 
8. Telecommuting for an outside employer, company or organization. 

 
d. Particular Home Occupations Prohibited.  The following uses, by the nature of the 

investment or operation, have a pronounced tendency, once started, to rapidly increase 
beyond the limits permitted for home occupations, and thereby substantially impair the 
use and value of a residentially zoned property for residential purposes.  Therefore, the 
uses specified below are prohibited in residential zones: 

 
1. Barber shops, beauty shops and nail salons performing any personal service related 

to the betterment of physical appearance with more than 2 service stations 
(including but not limited to chairs, sinks, dryers, etc), unless specifically permitted by 
the district regulations 

 
2. Dancing schools with more than five pupils in attendance at any given time 

 
3. Funeral homes and mortuaries 

 
4. Restaurants 

 
5. Tourist homes and lodging houses, unless specifically permitted by the district 

regulations 
 

6. Private clubs 
 

7. Repair shops or service establishments, except the repair of electrical appliances, 
typewriters, cameras or other similar small items 

055



Village of Frankfort 
Article 5: Use Regulations 

 

September 17, 2001 100 

 
8. Photo developing 

 
9. Renting of trailers 

 
10. Medical or dental offices, clinics or hospitals 

 
11. Animal kennels, animal grooming, or hospitals 

 
12. Auto repair and tune-up facilities 

 
13. Catering or other food preparation businesses 

 
14. Rooming houses 

 
15. Sale of firearms and ammunition 

 
16. Stables or kennels 

 
17. Antique shops or sales 

 
18. Home day care centers or preschools. 

 
Part 40: Sports Courts, residential (New part) 
In general, a sports court is an incidental and secondary accessory use in the E-R, R-1, R-2, R-3, R-4, A-G and 
H-R Districts, so located and conducted as to not change the character thereof or adversely affect the 
uses permitted in the residential district of which it is a part.  The standards for sports courts are intended 
to ensure compatibility with other permitted uses and the residential character of the neighborhood, and 
to maintain the subordinate and incidental status of the sports court. 
 

a. Limitations.  Sports courts shall be operated in conformance with the following: 
 

1. One (1) sports court is permitted per lot.  
 

2. Sports courts shall be located in the rear yard only.  
 

3. Sports courts shall be set back at least 10’ from any side or rear property line.  
 

4. The size of the sports court shall not exceed 3% of the area of the lot, but in no 
instance shall a sports court exceed 1,000 square feet.  

 
5. Total impervious coverage of the lot shall not exceed the limitations of the zoning 

district as defined in Article 6; 
 

6. Screening: If the fencing provided is anything other than solid fencing, the sports 
court shall be effectively screened from view from outside the lot by densely-planted 

056



Village of Frankfort 
Article 5: Use Regulations 

 

September 17, 2001 101 

compact trees or hedges, providing at least fifty percenty opacity when viewed 
between two (2) feet and five (5) feet above the ground.  

 
7. Sports courts shall not be illuminated. 

 
8. No more than 1 goal, basketball or otherwise, are permitted per sports court.  

 
9. No appurtenances shall exceed fifteen (15) feet in height.  

 
 

057



Village of Frankfort 
Article 5: Use Regulations 

 

September 17, 2001 102 

 
Section D: Accessory Uses and Structures 
 
Part 1: General Requirements 
 

a. Accessory uses and structures, as defined in Article 12, are permitted in the E-R, R-1, R-2, 
R-3, R-4, H-R and A-G districts.  Accessory uses and structures, as defined in Article 12, are 
permitted in the H-1 zone district when the property is used for single-family residential.   
 

b. Residential accessory uses and structures shall not involve the conduct of any business, 
trade, or industry. 

 
c. Accessory uses and structures, as defined in Article 12, in the B-1, B-2, B-3, B-4, O-R, I-1, I-2 

and H-1 when the property is not used for single-family residential, must be approved 
during the site plan review process (as described in Article 3, Section H).  

 
d. Accessory uses and structures must be in connection with a principal use which is 

permitted within such district. 
 

e. Each accessory structure and use shall comply with the use limitations applicable in the 
zoning district in which it is located. 

 
f. No accessory structure shall be constructed or occupied on any lot prior to the 

completion of the principal structure to which it is an accessory. 
 
g. Pole barns, silos and other accessory farm structures shall be permitted only within the A-

G zone district.  
 
h. Any structure with a roof and attached to the primary structure shall be considered part 

of the primary structure and shall abide by the required front, corner side, side and rear 
yard setbacks for that zone district.   

 
Part 2: Bulk Regulations 
 

a. Location:  
 
1. Accessory structures shall only be permitted within side and rear yards only, except 

within the A-G zone district.  
 

2. Accessory structures shall be located behind the front façade of the primary 
structure, except within the A-G zone district.  
 

3. Accessory structures shall be set back at least ten (10) feet from any lot line, except 
for the A-G zone district, in which they must meet the required front, side and rear 
setbacks for the primary structure.  

 

058



Village of Frankfort 
Article 5: Use Regulations 

 

September 17, 2001 103 

4. Accessory structures shall maintain a separation minimum distance of ten (10) feet 
between other accessory structures and from the primary structure.  

b. Size:  
 

1. Accessory structures, except for detached garages and farm structures including 
pole barns, silos and similar farm structures, shall not exceed two hundred fifty (250) 
square feet in size.  Such accessory structures within manufactured home parks shall 
not exceed two hundred twenty-five (225) square feet in size.  
 

2. Detached garages in manufactured home parks shall not exceed six hundred (600) 
square feet.  

 
3. Any detached accessory structure footprint shall not exceed the size of the primary 

structure footprint, except within the A-G zone district.  
 

4. The combined square footage of all accessory structures shall not exceed the 1st floor 
area of the primary structure, except within the A-G zone district.  

 
5. Each accessory structure and use shall otherwise comply with the bulk regulations 

applicable in the district in which it is located, including maximum lot coverage, 
maximum impervious coverage and maximum rear yard coverage (Article 6, Section 
B, Part 1).  

 
c. Height: 

 
1. All accessory structures, except farm structures including pole barns, silos and similar 

structures, shall not exceed fifteen (15) feet in height.  
 

2. Accessory farming structures, except for silos, shall not exceed thirty-five (35) feet in 
height.   

 
3. Farm silos shall not exceed one hundred (100) feet in height.  

 
d. Measurement of area:  

 
1. For structures that have walls, measurement shall be made from the exterior walls.  

 
2. For structures that have posts but no walls, measurement shall be made from the 

exterior edges of the posts.  
 

3. For air conditioning units, generators, pool mechanical equipment and similar 
equipment, measurement shall be made from the outside edges of the mechanical 
pad or from the unit itself, whichever is greater.  
 

 

059



Village of Frankfort 
Article 5: Use Regulations 

 

September 17, 2001 104 

Part 3: Garage Provisions 
 

a. A maximum of one (1) detached garage per zoning lot is permitted.  
 

b. All garages greater than three-cars in size must be side-loaded in orientation and 
driveways shall have a minimum 26’ turning radius.  
 

c. Architecture of garages shall be similar and compatible to the primary structure, 
including building materials and the roof pitch. 

 
d. All garages must be constructed as enclosed buildings.  

 
e. All garages must be constructed on a concrete pad.  

 
 
Part 4: Recreational Equipment/Vehicle and/or Construction/Commercial Equipment Provisions 
 

a. Outdoor parking of recreational equipment/vehicle and/or construction/commercial 
related vehicles, provided that: 

 
1. If the owner is actively involved in maintenance, loading or unloading the equipment, 

it may be parked on a residential driveway, however duration does not exceed forty-
eight (48) hours; 

 
2. The Code Official may issue a Special Permit for out-of-town visitor parking for 

Recreational Vehicles parked on a driveway for a period not to exceed fifteen (15) 
days.  Not more than six (6) such permits may be issued in any calendar year; 

 
3. Equipment/vehicle is parked on an approved paved surface; 
 
4. No part of storage area for vehicles is located in any required front, side, or rear 

setback, as defined by the provisions of this Code; 
 

5. The front of the vehicle does not extend in front of the front façade of the primary 
structure; 

 
6. Construction or commercial vehicles or equipment are not loaded or containing 

product or material, unless wholly enclosed or actively involved in a project within 
the lot;  

 
7. Vehicle does not exceed an empty weight of four (4) tons or height in excess of 

ninety (90) inches; 
 

8. Equipment/vehicle is screened from view from the public street by a fence or 
landscaping. 

 
Part 5: Swimming Pool Provisions 

060



Village of Frankfort 
Article 5: Use Regulations 

 

September 17, 2001 105 

 
a. Fencing.  Every outdoor swimming pool, whether above ground or level with the ground, 

having a maximum depth of over two (2) feet, shall be completely surrounded by a fence 
not less than four (4) feet, nor more than five (5) feet in height.  A building, existing wall, 
or pool wall may be used as part of such enclosure as long as the barrier requirements are 
met as required by the building code.  Such required fence shall comply with all 
requirements of other Village ordinances pertaining to fences, and the provisions of this 
Section shall not be construed to require or permit any fence heights greater than 
permitted by such other ordinances.  (Am. Ord. 1887, passed 04.15.02) (Am. Ord. 2230, 
passed 10.17.05) 

 
b. Gates or Doors.  All gates or doors opening through the required fence shall be designed 

for security, in accordance with the Building Code of the Village of Frankfort. 
 

c. Screening.  If the fencing provided is anything other than solid fencing, the pool shall be 
effectively screened from view from outside the lot by densely-planted compact trees or 
hedges, providing at least fifty percent opacity when viewed between two (2) feet and 
five (5) feet above ground. 

 
d. Setback Requirements.  All outdoor swimming pools are considered accessory structures, 

and shall meet minimum setback requirements, in addition thereto, shall be set back an 
additional two (2) feet for each one (1) foot of structure height exceeding five (5) feet.  
For the purpose of this section, the words “structure height” shall include any railings or 
other projections above the pool surface. 

 
e. Water Discharge.  The water discharged from a swimming pool shall be drained into the 

sanitary sewer or storm water system, as approved by the Village. 
 

Part 6: Other Provisions 
 

a. One parabolic satellite dish-type antenna per zoning lot, which is not more than two (2) 
feet in diameter.  All roof-mounted antenna shall not exceed the maximum building 
height permitted in that zoning district.  All satellite antenna facilities shall be located 
away from the street right-of-way, or otherwise screened from view from any street by 
an opaque fence, wall, or hedge of a minimum of 6 feet in height.  (Am. Ord. 1887, passed 
04.15.02) All ground-mounted antenna shall abide by the regulations for a typical 
accessory structure.  

 
b. Storage of wood or any other combustible material which could be used in fireplaces, 

stoves or any other equipment for heating are not to exceed five (5) cords per zoning lot, 
one (1) cord being a cubic area of 128 cubic feet (4' x 4' x 8').  Firewood shall be used 
exclusively by dwelling occupants and stored in the rear yard.  Material must be stacked 
in rear yard in cord measurements and must be a minimum of four (4) inches off the 
ground.  No storage is permitted within the 100-year flood zone as defined by FEMA 
Maps. 

 

061



Village of Frankfort 
Article 5: Use Regulations 

 

September 17, 2001 106 

c. Any accessory uses or structures not specifically listed in this Section D may be 
considered a typical accessory structure by the Village Administrator or their designee.  
Otherwise, such accessory structures are considered prohibited.  

 
Part 7: Prohibited Accessory Uses or Structures (Am Ord #2312, passed 8.21.06) 
None of the following shall be permitted accessory uses or structures: 
 

a. Outdoor storage or overnight parking of trucks with an empty weight in excess of four 
(4) tons, or height in excess of ninety (90) inches in residential district; construction or 
commercial vehicles or equipment, loaded or containing product or material, unless 
wholly enclosed, unless actively involved in a project within the lot; or buses designed for 
more than eleven (11) passengers during normal school year vacation periods in a 
residence district; 

 
b. Any other outdoor storage, except as specifically permitted elsewhere in this Ordinance; 

 
c. Manufactured homes; 

 
d. Windmill towers, in excess of twelve (12) feet in height;  
 
e. Cargo Containers, as defined by Article 12 of this ordinance shall be considered a form of 

outdoor storage that is strictly prohibited in all zones, except whereas: 
 

1. Existing cargo containers located on properties with an approved special use for 
outdoor storage are a legal non-conforming use during an amortization period of one 
(1) year, after which the containers are considered illegal non-conforming and must 
be removed.  No additional containers shall be added to the property during the 
amortization period, or; 

 
2.  A temporary permit is issued by the Village for the purpose of moving or relocating, 

either permanently or temporarily, personal or business property, subject to the 
following conditions: 
 
 a.    In the E-R, R-1, R-2, R-3, R-4 and HR Districts, there shall be a fifteen dollar ($15) 

temporary permit fee.  No more than one (1) temporary cargo container shall be 
permitted, and said container must be removed from the premises within thirty 
(30) days; 

 
  b.   In the B-2, B-3, B-4, H-1, O-R, I-1, and I-2 Districts, there shall be a ninety dollar 

($90) temporary permit fee.  No more than three (3) temporary cargo containers 
shall be permitted, and said containers(s) must be removed from the premises 
within ninety (90) days; 

 
  c. One (1) extension period equal to the corresponding time restriction in 2.a)  or 

2.b)  may be permitted if extenuating circumstances are determined by the Code 
Official. 

 

062



Village of Frankfort 
Article 6: Density, Dimensional, and Other Standards 

 

September 17, 2001 114 

Table of Density, Dimensions, and Other Standards for Residential Districts 
 

 E-R R-1 R-2 R-3 R-4 AG H-R 

Maximum Net Density (dwelling units per net buildable acre) 
 1 2 2.25 4 5 .05 - 

Minimum Lot Size (square feet) 
General - - - - 28,500 

(5,000 per 
dwelling 

unit) 

20 acres - 

Single Family Dwelling 40,000 20,000 15,000 15,000 - - 6,250 

Two-Family Dwelling - - - 15,000 - - - 

Planned Unit Dev. Article 3 F Article 3 F Article 3 F Article 3 F Article 3 F - Article 3 F 

Non-Residential Use 80,000 40,000 30,000 30,000   12,500 

Minimum Lot Width (feet) 
General - - - - 120 - - 
Single Family Dwelling 150 100 100 100 - - 50 
Two-Family Dwelling - - - 100 - - - 
Planned Unit Dev. - Article 3 F Article 3 F Article 3 F - - Article 3 F 
Non-Residential Use 300 250 200 200 240 - 100 
Lot Width of Corner Lot 165 120 120 120 145 - - 
Minimum Lot Depth (feet) 
Single Family Dwelling 267 200 150 150 -- -- -- 
Minimum Required Yards (feet) 
Front Yard 
All Uses - - - - 40 75 - 
Single Family (and Two 
Family in R-3) Dwelling 

40 35 30 30 - - 15 

Non-Residential Use 80 60 60 60   30 
Landscaped Front Yard for 
non-residential uses (see 
Article 6.B.2.e) 

25 25 25 25 - - 25 

Front Yard Setback from 
Centerline of Arterial (see 
Article 6.B.2.e) 

125 125 125 125 - - - 

Front Yard Setback from 
Centerline of Route 30 
(see Article 6.B.2.e) 

150 150 150 150 - - - 

Corner Lot Side Yard 
All Uses - - - - 40 75 - 
Single Family (and Two 
Family in R-3) Dwellings 

40 35 30 30 - - 15 

Non-Residential Use 80 70 60 60 - - 30 
Side Yard 
All Uses - - - - 15 100 - 
Single Family (and Two 
Family in R-3) Dwelling 

25 15 Total of 25 
(not less 

than 10 on 
any side) 

15 - - 10 

Non-Residential Use 50 30 20 30 - - 20 
Rear Yard 
All Uses - - - - 40 100 - 

063



Village of Frankfort 
Article 7: Site Development Regulations 

 

September 17, 2001 169 

 
Section F: Signs 
All signs shall be subject to the regulations contained in Chapter 151, the Village of Frankfort Sign 
Regulations. 
 
Section G: Fences and Walls 
 
Part 1: Fences and Walls 
 

a. Building Permit Required.  No fence shall be erected, or substantially altered, without a 
building permit issued by the Code Official and payment of applicable fees.  Any fence 
which shall be erected, or shall be in the process of erection, or maintained contrary to 
the provisions of this Code, is deemed a nuisance and it shall be the duty of the Building 
Inspector and Chief of Police to abate the same. 

 
b. Definitions.  A fence is defined as any structure, partition or enclosure, of wood, iron, 

metal, or other material, enclosing or dividing a piece of land.  A fence shall not include 
naturally growing shrubs, bushes and other foliage.  The following are common types of 
fences: 

 
1. Decorative Fence.  A fence used mostly for aesthetics, which adds to the visual 

beauty of the property.  This fence may not exceed forty-eight (48) inches with its 
upper-most rail or fifty-four (54) inches to the top of its upper-most post when 
installed in a front yard.  Fifty percent of the square footage of the overall dimensions 
of the fence shall be open.  A woven or cyclone type fence is not a decorative fence. 

 
2. Hazard Enclosure.  This fence is intended to enclose swimming pools, pets, 

excavations and similar uses.  This fence must be a minimum of forty-eight (48) 
inches high, with the mesh material spaced close enough to prevent children and 
animals from entering.  All gates are to be equipped with child-proof latches. 

 
3. Security or Protection Fence (Business and Industrial).  A fence used for enclosing the 

lot, or part of the lot, for security and protection of property. 
 

4. Retention Fence (Residential and Historical).  A fence to retain children, animals and 
other similar uses, or to prevent outside intrusion.  This fence may be installed in rear 
yards only. 

 
5. Solid Fence.  A fence in which eighty (80) percent or more of the surface area of the 

fence is solid. Fencing shall be constructed with the finished or decorative side facing 
the adjacent or abutting property or street. 

 
6. Railroad Screening Fence.  A fence erected to provide screening of active railroad 

tracks. (Am. Ord. 2894, passed 11.19.09) 
 

064



Village of Frankfort 
Article 7: Site Development Regulations 

 

September 17, 2001 170 

c. Locations in Rights-of-Way and Utility Easements.  No private fences shall be allowed or 
constructed on public street, highway or alley right-of-ways.  Fences may, by permit, be 
placed on public utility easements, so long as the structures do not interfere in any way 
with existing underground, ground or over ground utilities.  Further, the Village or any 
utility company having authority to use such easements shall not be liable for repair or 
replacement of such fences, in the event they are moved, damaged or destroyed by 
virtue of the lawful use of said easement.  Fences in violation may be summarily removed 
by the Village. 

 
d. Barbed Wire.  No barbed wire or barbed wire fences shall be allowed on private property 

in residential zones, or on lots in any zone being used for single or multiple family 
dwelling purposes.  No barbed wire or barbed wire fences shall be allowed on private 
property in business or industrial zones where the property lines of such property abut 
lots or parcels zoned or being used for single or multiple family purposes, or on fences in 
front yards.  Barbed wire may be allowed on the top of fencing in the I-2 district subject 
to special use approval by the Planning Commission. 

 
e. Dangerous Fences.  No fence shall be constructed of material obviously intended to inflict 

great bodily harm, should a person or animal attempt to climb or scale it.  Such materials 
include, but are not limited to, electrically charged wires or other electrical conduit, 
broken glass, razor blades and sharp or ragged metal spikes or spears.  

 
f. Construction Requirements.  All fences shall be constructed in conformity with the wind 

stress, foundation, structural and other requirements of the building codes and laws of 
the Village. 

 
g. Good Repair.  All fences shall be maintained in good, structurally sound repair and in a 

neat, clean, presentable and attractive condition.  If, on inspection by the Code Official, 
any fence, in their determination, does not meet these requirements, they shall order the 
owner or occupier of the premises, by registered or certified mail, to make the necessary 
repairs or improvements within thirty (30) days.  Should the owner or occupier of the 
premises fail to make repairs or improvements as directed, the owner of occupier shall be 
in violation of the Code and the Code Official shall cause a complaint to be issued and 
processed against said owner or occupier, in accordance with the rules of the Circuit 
Court of Will County, Illinois. 

 
h. Residential District Fences.  In residential zones, in front yards no fences may exceed four 

(4) feet above ground level to the upper most rail, or 54 inches to the top of the upper-
most post.  In such zones, fences along the side property lines to the rear of the front 
yard and along the rear lot line may not exceed five (5) feet in height above ground level 
except when permitted for a railroad screening fence. Residential district fences are 
subject to the following requirements: 

 
1. All fences located in the front yard, or that abut or face street right-of-ways shall be a 

Decorative Fence, as defined in paragraph (b) above.  
 

065



Village of Frankfort 
Article 7: Site Development Regulations 

 

September 17, 2001 171 

2. Woven or cyclone type fences are not permitted in any residential district. Residential 
sports courts may be permitted black or green vinyl-coated cyclone (chain-link) 
fencing when approved under a special use permit.   

 
3. A railroad screening fence, as defined in paragraph (b) above, may be permitted within 

residential zoning districts in accordance with the following standards: 
 

Location: 
 

1. The property on which the fence is to be constructed must be located as described 
by one of the following: 

 
a) The property directly adjoins property used for an active railroad; or 

 
b) The property is within two hundred (200) feet of property used for an 

active railroad and is not separated from the railroad property by 
residential property or a public right-of-way; 

 
2. Railroad screening fences are only permitted along the property line that is parallel 

to the railroad tracks.  
 

Height: 
 

a) May not exceed seven (7) feet in height; 
 

b) Within thirty (30) feet of a public right-of-way, railroad screening fences 
may not exceed five (5) feet in height; 

 
i. Business or Industrial Fences.  In business or industrial zoned districts, fences may not 

exceed six (6) feet in height in business areas, and eight (8) feet in industrial areas above 
ground level.  No fence or wall, other than a decorative fence of 4 feet or less in height, 
shall be erected, constructed or maintained within fifty (50) feet from the front lot line.  
For purposes of security only, fences for business or industrial zoned districts may be 
provided along side and rear yard lot lines. 

 
j. Non-Conforming Fences.  Fences existing at the time of adoption of this Ordinance which 

are not in violation of paragraph (e) above, and are not located on public street, highway 
and alley right-of-ways, but which violate other sections of this Ordinance may continue 
to be maintained and to exist, but may not be replaced if destroyed or removed, to the 
extent that the violations would be continued. 

066



Village of Frankfort 
Article 12: Rules and Definitions 

 

September 17, 2001 180 

Accessory Structure or Use: An “accessory structure or use” is one which: 
 

a. Is subordinate to and serves a principal structure or principal use; 
 

b. Is on the same zoning lot as the principal structure or principal use served. 
 
c. Accessory structures shall include:  

1. Garages, detached  
2. Storage sheds 
3. Child’s playhouses 
4. Arbors/Trellises/Pergolas/Gazebos 
5. Decks, terraces and patios 
6. Swimming pools 
7. Permanently affixed outdoor fireplaces 
8. Permanently affixed outdoor stoves 
9. Air-conditioning units, generators, pool mechanical equipment and similar equipment 

(ground-mounted) 
10. Pole barns, silos and other accessory farm structures  
11. Laundry drying equipment 
12. Trash enclosures 
13. Television or radio towers for residential use (ground-mounted) 
14. And similar accessory structures  

 
d. Accessory structures shall not include:  

1. Sports Courts 
2. Fences or walls 
3. Statuary and fountains 
4. Flagpoles 
5. Any rooved structure attached to the primary structure 
6. Ramps for use by persons with disabilities  

067



Village of Frankfort 
Article 12: Rules and Definitions 

 

September 17, 2001 184 

Awning:  A roof-like cover that is temporary in nature, and that projects from the wall of a building for the 
purpose of shielding a doorway or window from the elements. 

 
Balcony:  A level plane or platform which, for the purpose of this Ordinance, is located adjacent to one or 

more faces of the principal structure located above the first floor. 
 
Banks and Financial Institutions:  Commercial banks, savings and loan associations, brokerage offices and 

other similar financial institutions, but not including pawn shops. 
 
Basement:  That portion of a building having more than one-half (1/2) of its height below the average lot 

grade. 
 
Bed and Breakfast:  A residential building containing lodging rooms offered for rent to transient guests, 

for a continuous period of fourteen (14) days or less, and containing the owner's principal 
residence. 

 
Billboard:  A surface whereon advertising matter is set in view conspicuously and which advertising does 

not apply to premises or any use of premises wherein it is displayed or posted. 
 
Billiard or Pool Hall:  A business establishment containing more than two pool or billiard tables for the use 

of patrons. 
 
Block:  A tract of land bounded by streets, or by a combination of streets and public parks, cemeteries, 

bulkhead lines, shore lines of waterways or corporate lines of the Village. 
 
Body Piercing Establishment:  An establishment whose principal business activity, either in terms of 

operation or as held out to the public, is the practice of piercing patrons’ bodies with 
sharp instruments in order to allow insertion of rings, pieces of jewelry, or other 
ornamental devices through the orifices thus created. 

  (Am. Ord. 2174, passed 07.05.05) 
 
Bowling Alley:  An establishment that devotes more than 50 percent of its gross floor area to bowling 

lanes, equipment, and playing area. 
 
Breeding Facility:  An establishment in which more than four (4) domestic animals, such as cattle or 

horses, are bred for commercial purposes. 
 
 
Buffer Area:  A landscaped area intended to separate and partially obstruct the view of two (2) adjacent 

land uses or properties from one another.  

068



Village of Frankfort
Article 12: Rules and Definitions

September 17, 2001 185

Building:  A permanently located, roofed structure affixed to the land which is designed or intended for 
the enclosure, shelter or protection of persons, animals or moveable property of any 
kind.

Building Height:  The vertical distance measured from the established grade to the highest elevation of the 
roof.  

The following appurtenances shall not be included in the calculation of building height:

a. Chimneys, flues, stacks, fire escapes, gas holders, elevator enclosures, ventilators, 
skylights, water tanks and similar roof structures needed to operate and maintain the 
building on which they are located.

b. Flag poles, television aerials mounted on rooftops, and water towers and tanks.

c. Decorative rooftop finials or spires up to four feet in height. (Am. Ord. 3229, passed 
10.07.19)

Building Line: The line nearest the front of, and across a zoning lot, establishing the minimum open space 
to be provided between the front line of a building or structure and the street right-of-
way line.

Building, Principal:  A non-accessory building in which a principal use of the lot on which it is located is 
conducted.

069



Village of Frankfort 
Article 12: Rules and Definitions 

 

September 17, 2001 189 

Driveway.  On residential properties, a driveway shall be the paved area which provides exclusive access 
to the garage.   

 
Dump:  A lot of land or part thereof used primarily for the disposal, by abandonment, dumping, burial, 

burning or any other means, of garbage, sewage, trash, refuse, junk, discarded 
machinery, vehicles or parts thereof, or waste material of any kind. 

 
Dwellings:  A building, or portion thereof, but not a mobile or manufactured home, designed or used for 

residential occupancy. 
 
Dwelling, Attached:  A residential building which is joined to another dwelling at one or more sides by a 

party wall or walls. 
 
Dwelling, Detached:  A residential building which is entirely surrounded by open space on the same lot. 
 
Dwelling, Multiple Family:  A residential building containing three (3) or more dwelling units. 
 
Dwelling, Single Family:  A residential building containing one (1) dwelling unit only. 
 
Dwelling, Two-Family:  A residential building containing two (2) dwelling units only. 
 
Dwelling Unit:  One or more rooms in a residential building, or residential portion of a building, which are 

arranged, designed, used or intended for use by one family, and which includes cooking 
space and lawful, sanitary facilities reserved for the occupants thereof. 

 
Easement:  The area of land set aside or over or through which a privilege, distinct from ownership of the 

land, is granted to the public or some particular person, quasi-public entity (such as a 
homeowners’ association), or part of the public. 

 
Efficiency Apartment:  A dwelling unit containing one or more rooms, but no bedroom, designed for 

occupancy by one family. 
 
Environmental Performance Standards:  A criterion to control noise, odor, smoke, toxic or noxious matter, 

vibration, fire and explosive hazards, or glare or heat generated by or inherent to uses of 
land or buildings. 

 
Façade:  The exterior wall of a building exposed to public view or that wall viewed by persons not within 

the building. 
 
Factory-Built Housing:  A factory-built structure designed for long-term residential use.  For the purposes 

of these regulations, factory-built housing consists of three types: modular homes, 
manufactured homes, and mobile homes. 

 
Family:  Either (a) an individual, or two (2) or more persons related by blood, marriage or adoption, 

maintaining a common household in a dwelling unit;  (b) a group of not more than four 
(4) persons who are not related by blood, marriage, or adoptions living as a common 

070



Village of Frankfort 
Article 12: Rules and Definitions 

 

September 17, 2001 193 

 
Heliport:  An area of land and/or a structure or building which is used or intended for use for the landing 

and taking off of helicopters, and any appurtenant areas which are used or intended for 
use for heliport buildings or other heliport facilities or rights-of-way, including all 
necessary pads, helicopter storage and tie down areas, hangars and other necessary 
buildings and open spaces. 

 
Historic District:  An area containing buildings or places in which historic events occurred or having special 

public value because of notable architectural or other features relating to the cultural or 
artistic heritage of the community, of such significance as to warrant conservation and 
preservation. 

 
Home Day Care Center:  A family home which receives up to three (3) children, or up to three (3) seniors or 

adults requiring care, for less than twenty-four (24) hours a day for compensation. 
 
Home Occupation:  A gainful occupation or profession engaged in by an occupant of a dwelling unit as a 

use that is clearly incidental to the use of the dwelling unit for residential purposes. 
 
Homeowners’ Association:  A non-profit membership corporation or entity which serves as an association 

of homeowners within a Subdivision, Certified Survey Plat, or Condominium who have 
shared common interest responsibilities with respect to the costs and upkeep of 
common private property of such Subdivision, Certified Survey Plat, or Condominium.  
Such common property includes private recreation and open space areas within the 
Subdivision, Certified Survey Plat, or Condominium.  For the purposes of this Code, 
Homeowners’ Associations include Condominium Associations. 

 
Hospital:  An institution devoted primarily to the maintenance and operation of facilities for the diagnosis, 

treatment, or care for not less than twenty-four (24) hours in any week, of three (3) or 
more non-related individuals suffering from illness, disease, injury, deformity or other 
abnormal physical conditions.  The term “hospital” as used in this Ordinance does not 
apply to institutions operating primarily for treatment of mental illness, drug addicts, 
liquor addicts, or other types of cases necessitating restraint of patients, and the term 
“hospital” shall not include assisted or independent living facilities, nursing homes, 
shelters or boarding houses. 

 
Hotel:  An establishment which is open to transient guests, in contradistinction to a boarding house, 

lodging house or apartment hotel, and is commonly known as a hotel in the community in 
which it is located; and which provides customary hotel services such as maid service, the 
furnishing and laundering of linen, telephone and secretarial or desk service, the use and 
upkeep of furniture, and bellboy service. 

 
Impervious Lot Coverage:  A ratio determined by dividing that area of a lot which is occupied or covered by 

all impervious surfaces, by the net area of that lot.   
 
Impervious Surface:  A surface which does not absorb water.   

a. Impervious surfaces shall include, but not be limited to:  
1. Primary buildings 

071



Village of Frankfort 
Article 12: Rules and Definitions 

 

September 17, 2001 194 

2. Accessory structures (except laundry drying equipment) 
3. Driveways (paved or gravel) 
4. Sidewalks 
5. Sports courts 
6. Swimming pools (including the decking) 
7. Porches (enclosed or unenclosed) 
8. Decks (attached or detached) 
9. Carports 
10. Parking lots (including parking spaces and drive aisles) 
11. Any areas of concrete or asphalt  
12. For lumber yards or similar uses, areas of stored lumber 

 

 
Independent Living Facility:  Specially planned, designed, and managed multi-unit housing for the elderly 

with self-contained dwelling units.  These communities are typically designed to provide 
supportive environments for older adults and to accommodate a relatively independent 
lifestyle.  A limited number of support services, such as meals, laundry, housekeeping, 
transportation, and social and recreational activities may be provided.  This definition 
shall not include group homes, health clinics, hospitals or treatment facilities, as defined 
by this Ordinance. (Am. Ord. 2247, passed 12.05.05) 

 
Indoor Business Sales and Service:  Uses which display or conduct, entirely within an enclosed building, the 

sale or rental of business-oriented products, equipment, merchandise, or services that 
are non-personal and non-professional in nature.  Examples may include: duplicating or 
photocopying sales and service; addressing, mailing, or stenographic sales and services; 
locksmith shops; computer sales and service; employment agencies; and similar land 
uses. 

 
Indoor Civic, Cultural, Religious, or Institutional Use: Civic, cultural, religious, or institutional uses which 

occur within an enclosed building.  Examples may include:  government offices, libraries, 
museums, aquariums, community centers, post office, fire/police/rescue station, 
hospitals,  convention center, service/fraternal club or lodge, civic/social organization, 
labor union/organization, political organization, charitable organization, church, 
synagogue, temple, mosque, non-profit organization, educational institution (including 

072



Village of Frankfort 
Article 12: Rules and Definitions 

 

September 17, 2001 196 

 
Long-Term Care Facility:  A building or premises which must be licensed pursuant to the Illinois Nursing 

Home Care Act (210 ILCS 45/1-101 et seq.).  This definition shall not include group homes, 
health clinics, hospitals or treatment facilities, as defined by this Ordinance. (Am. Ord. 
2247, passed 12.05.05) 

 
Lot:  A platted parcel of land intended to be separately owned, developed and otherwise used as a unit. 
 

 
 
 

Lot Area, Minimum:  The minimum area of a horizontal plane bounded by the front, side and rear lot lines. 
 
Lot, Corner:  A lot which adjoins the point of intersection or meeting of two or more streets, and in which 

the interior angle formed by the street lines is 135 degrees or less.  If the street lines are 
curved, the angle shall be measured at the point of intersection of the extensions of the 
street lines in the directions which they take at the intersections of the street line, with 
the side lot line and with the rear lot line of the lot.  If the street line is curved at its point 
of intersection with the side lot line or rear lot line, the tangent to the curve at that point 
shall be considered the direction of the street. 

 
Lot Coverage:  That percentage of a lot which, when measured from exterior walls or posts on the first 

floor level, would be covered by primary and accessory structures, excluding projecting 
roof eaves measuring less than two (2) feet.  For purposes of calculating maximum lot 
coverage, structures shall not include swimming pools, patios, decks, sports courts, or 
similar accessory structures without a roof.  

 

073



Village of Frankfort 
Article 12: Rules and Definitions 

 

September 17, 2001 205 

 
Sign, Double-Faced:  A double faced sign has two faces with identical copy on each face and with the 

maximum angle between said faces no greater than forty-five (45) degrees. 
 
Sign Location:  The sign location is determined by measuring from the furthermost projecting point of the 

sign to the front lot line. 
 
Site Plan:  A plan, prepared to scale, showing accurately and with complete dimensions, the boundaries of 

a site and the location of all buildings, structures, uses and principal site development 
features proposed for a specific parcel of land. 

 
Smoke:  Small gas-borne particles other than water that form a visible plume in the air. 
 
Sports court, residential: An outdoor hard-surface court located in a residential zone district designed for 

athletic purposes. Temporary or permanent goals located adjacent to a hard surface shall 
constitute a sports court, except as noted in Article 1, Section I, Part 1, (c).  

a. Residential sports courts shall include, but not be limited to:  
1. Tennis courts 
2. Basketball courts 
3. Volleyball courts 
4. Shuffleboard courts 
5. Hockey rinks 
6. And similar courts 
 

Standard Cubic Feet (SCF):  Standard cubic feet, which is the measure of the volume of a gas reduced to 
14.73 pounds per square inch pressure absolute and 60% F. 

 
Street:  A public or private thoroughfare used, or intended to be used, for passage or travel by motor 

vehicles.  Streets are further classified by the functions they perform.  See also Major 
Highway; Major Industrial Roadway; Road, Private; Road, Public; Street, Arterial; Street, 
Major Collector; Street, Minor; and Street, Neighborhood Collector. 

 
Street, Arterial:  A federal, state, or county marked route normally having four (4) lanes for traffic and 

some form of median marker or may be a Village-designated “arterial street” in the 
adopted Comprehensive Plan.  Parking may be banned.  A street used, or intended to be 
used, primarily for fast or heavy through traffic providing for the expeditious movement 
of through traffic into, out of, and within the community.  Arterial streets shall be located 
to minimize the penetration of such streets through existing and proposed residential 
areas.  Arterial streets shall be designed to convey an average daily traffic (ADT) of ten 
thousand (10,000) and greater. 

 
Street, Major Collector:  A street used, or intended to be used, to carry traffic from minor streets to the 

system of arterial streets including principal entrance streets to residential developments 
and/or activity/employment centers.  Collector streets shall be designed to convey an 
average daily traffic (ADT) of between five thousand (5,000) and ten thousand (10,000). 

 

074



     

   Memo 
To:  Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals   

From:  Janine Farrell, AICP 

Date:  January 13, 2021 

Re:  2021 Year End Review   

The following is a brief overview of the actions taken by the Plan Commission/Zoning 
Board of Appeals from January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2021. The goal in 
providing this information is to foster discussion amongst the Commission on the past 
year’s activity and to evaluate if Zoning Ordinance text amendments may be warranted. 
In 2021, there were 22 meetings held with only two meetings canceled (July 8th and 
December 23rd). There was a special meeting scheduled on November 9th to 
accommodate case load which is included in the abovementioned 22 meetings. There was 
also a special training session held on August 11th. 

 
 

CASES REVIEWED 
Case Type Total Approved Denied 
Variation 37 34 3 
Special use 21 19 2 
Text Amendment 3* 2 0 
Map Amendment 1 1 0 
Minor PUD change 1 N/A N/A 
Final Plat 3 3 0 
Resubdivision Plat 3 3 0 
Plat of Abrogation 1 1 0 
Plat of Dedication 1 1 0 
1.5-mile review 1 1 0 
Workshops 16 N/A N/A 
TOTAL 88 65 5 

*Text amendment for outdoor beer garden tabled 
indefinitely on August 26th 

 
 



2 

VARIATIONS 
 
VARIATION BREAK-DOWN 

Request Amount 
Side yard setback – principal structure 3 
Front yard setback – principal structure 1 
Rear yard setback – principal structure 2 
Side yard setback – accessory structure 4 
Rear yard setback – accessory structure 2 
Driveway setback  3 
Driveway width 1 
Building materials 6 
Lot coverage 1 
Impervious coverage 2 
Parking spaces 1 
Fence height 1 
Fence material 1 
Accessory structure size 5 
Accessory structure height 1 
Lot size 1 
Lot width 1 

 

 
Proposed residence at 99 N. White St., variations approved for building materials and rear yard setback. 

The top two most requested variations 
were for non-masonry building 
materials and accessory structure size.  
 
Five out of six requests for non-
masonry building materials were 
approved.  
 
All of the accessory structure size 
variations were approved. Staff has 
drafted and presented at a Plan 
Commission workshop (December 9th) 
proposed amendments to the accessory 
structure and use regulations, 
including the possibility of increasing 
the size. 

Denied Variations:  
 
Non-masonry building materials at 21295 Ginger Ln. (withdrawn before Village Board) 
 
Driveway width at 11 W. Sauk Trail (later approved by the Village Board on June 21st)   
 
Sports court side yard setback at 22960 Hankins Ct. (scheduled for January 18th Village 
Board) 



3 

SPECIAL USES 
 
 

SPECIAL USE BREAK-DOWN 
Request Amount 
Outdoor storage 1 
Drive-up service window 1 
Major PUD change 2 
Indoor recreation/entertainment 6 
Outdoor seating 2 
Accessory liquor 1 
Animal clinic 1 
Massage establishment 3 
Personal service 1 
Automobile repair and service 1 
Hours of operation beyond 7a-11p 2 

 
 

 

 
Elevation of the approved special use for outdoor seating at the Wine Thief, 6 Elwood St. 

 

The top two most requested special uses 
were for indoor recreation/entertainment 
and massage establishments.  
 
All of the indoor recreation/entertainment 
requests were approved. Staff is currently 
drafting text amendments to separate the 
indoor and outdoor recreation/entertainment 
use categories. With direction by the Plan 
Commission and Village Board, staff could 
evaluate the special use requirement in 
certain zoning districts through this text 
amendment.  
 
Two out of three massage establishment 
requests were approved. 

Denied Special Uses: 
 
Massage establishment at 21116 Washington Parkway (denials upheld by Village Board 
on September 20th)  
 
Personal service at 21116 Washington Parkway (denials upheld by Village Board on 
September 20th) 



4 

TEXT AMENDMENTS 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Vacation rentals text amendment  

 
SUBDIVISIONS 

 

 
Crystal Brook Phase 2  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Final Plat of Crystal Brook Phase 2  
(approved January 14th but is waiting to 
satisfy conditions before proceeding for 
Village Board approval)  
 
Resubdivision of Lighthouse Pointe Phase 3 
(approved May 3rd by the Village Board) 
 
Final Plat of Nebraska Pines (approved 
December 20th by the Village Board)  
 
Final Plat of Homestead Center (approved 
September 20th by the Village Board) 
 
(this list does not include lot consolidations, only 
divisions of property) 
 

Outdoor beer garden (tabled indefinitely 
on August 26th by the Plan Commission) 
 
Truck terminal definition (approved 
November 15th by the Village Board) 
 
Vacation rentals (approved September 20th 
by the Village Board) 



5 

LIST OF CASES 
 

• Crystal Brook Phase 2 (northwest corner of Steger Rd. and Harlem Ave.) 
o Final Plat approval of a 73-acre site containing 116 residential lots and five 

outlots.  
o Plan Commission approval on January 14th. 
o Conditions still need to be satisfied so the case has not yet proceeded to Village 

Board. Anticipated to be before the Board in early 2022.  
• 20553 S. LaGrange Rd./Abri Credit Union 

o Special uses for drive-up service window and major PUD change to construct a 
free-standing building for Abri Credit Union. 

o Workshop held on January 28th.   
o Plan Commission approval on June 24th and Village Board approval on July 6th  
o Workshop on revised plans held on November 18th. No further action on the plan 

revisions by the applicant.   
• 6 Elwood St./Wine Thief 

o Special use for outdoor seating associated with a permitted restaurant.  
o Workshop held on January 28th.  
o Plan Commission approval on February 25th and Village Board approval on April 

5th. 
• 254 Willow St./Ziokowski  

o Variation for a new driveway setback.  
o Plan Commission approval on February 11th and Village Board approval on 

February 16th. 
• 10850 W. Laraway Rd., Unit 3E/Polaris Martial Arts  

o Special use for indoor recreation/entertainment to operate a martial arts studio.  
o Plan Commission approval on February 25th and Village Board approval on 

March 1st. 
• 9324 Gulfstream Rd., Unit 1E/Xtreme E-Sports  

o Special use for indoor recreation/entertainment to operate a virtual gaming center. 
o Plan Commission approval on February 25th. Withdrawn by applicant before 

Village Board meeting.  
• 22200 Wolf Rd./Multack Eye Care 

o Variation for rear yard setback to permit the construction of a new building 
addition.  

o Workshop held on February 25th. 
o Plan Commission approval on April 22nd and Village Board approval on May 3rd. 

• 143 Kansas St./Brown  
o Eight variations to construct a new single-family residence: rear yard and side 

yard setbacks for a detached garage, front yard and side yard setbacks for the 
residence, driveway setback, lot coverage, impervious coverage, and building 
materials to permit non-masonry materials on the first floor.  

o Workshop held on February 25th. 



6 

o Plan Commission approval on March 25th and Village Board approval on April 
5th. 

• 21295 Ginger Ln./Barz 
o Variation for first floor building materials to permit non-masonry materials on a 

residential building addition. 
o Plan Commission denial on March 11th and withdrawn prior to Village Board 

meeting. 
• 99 N. White St./Michau and Bertrand 

o Two variations for rear yard setback and building materials to permit non-
masonry materials on the first floor in order to construct a new single-family 
residence.  

o Workshop held on March 11th. 
o Plan Commission approval on May 27th and Village Board approval on June 7th. 

• 613 Prestwick Dr./Varner 
o Three variations to construct a new single-family residence: two side yard 

setbacks and building materials to permit non-masonry materials on the first floor.  
o Workshop held on March 11th. 
o Plan Commission approval on April 8th and Village Board approval on April 19th. 

• Lighthouse Pointe Phase 3 (south of St. Francis Rd. along Pfeiffer Rd.) 
o Plat of Resubdivision and major PUD change to amend lot layouts and 

architectural designs for the 87-unit townhome development.   
o Plan Commission approval on April 8th and Village Board approval on May 3rd. 

• 22791 S. Challenger Rd./Graefen  
o Plat of Resubdivision to consolidate Lots 10 and 21 within Fey-Graefen Industrial 

Park Phase 1 and special use for outdoor storage to permit the operation of a 
construction business.  

o Plan Commission approval on April 22nd and Village Board approval on May 3rd. 
• 10850 W. Laraway Rd., Units 1-3W/Ultimate Volleyball  

o Special use for indoor recreation/entertainment to permit the operation of an 
athletic training facility. 

o Plan Commission approval on April 8th and Village Board approval on May 17th. 
• 21112 S. LaGrange Rd./Buford’s BBQ and Bourbon 

o Special use for accessory liquor sales at a permitted restaurant.  
o Plan Commission approval on April 8th and Village Board approval on May 3rd. 

• 112 Center Rd./Falkner  
o Three variations for rear yard and side yard setbacks and lot coverage to permit 

construction of a new detached garage.  
o Workshops held on April 22nd and May 13th. 
o Applicant withdrew request and it did not proceed to a public hearing.    

• 41 N. White St./Bulbrooke  
o Variation for a new driveway setback.  
o Plan Commission approval on April 22nd and Village Board approval on May 3rd. 

• 20827 S. LaGrange Rd./Chef Klaus’ Bier Stube  
o Special use for outdoor seating associated with a permitted restaurant.  
o Plan Commission approval on April 22nd and Village Board approval on May 3rd. 



7 

• 22265 S. 80th Ave./Chelsea Intermediate School  
o Two variations for fencing material and height to permit the construction of a 

masonry wall with PVC gate.  
o Plan Commission approval on April 22nd and Village Board approval on May 3rd. 
o Workshop held on November 18th for a special use for a school addition and a 

variation for fencing material. Public hearing for this request is anticipated for 
January of 2022.  

• Olde Stone Village 1st Addition (west of Wolf Rd., north of Steger Rd.) 
o Annexation, rezoning, and a Final Plat of Subdivision to create a new 16-lot 

single-family residential subdivision.  
o Workshop held on May 13th. 
o Engineering review is nearly complete and the case is expected for public hearing 

in early 2022.   
• Lots 143 and 144 Lighthouse Pointe Phase 2/Gaddam  

o Plat of Resubdivision to consolidate two lots within Lighthouse Pointe Phase 2 in 
order to construct a new single-family residence.  

o Plan Commission approval May 13th and Village Board approval on July 6th. 
• 11 W. Sauk Trail/Rapcan  

o Variation to permit a driveway wider than the width of the garage and wider than 
28’. 

o Plan Commission denial on June 10th and Village Board approval on June 21st. 
• 702 Center Rd./Method Athletics 

o Special uses for indoor recreation/entertainment and extended hours of operation 
to permit the operation of a fitness and training facility. 

o Plan Commission approval on June 10th and Village Board approval on June 21st. 
• 9257 W. Franklin Ave./Pedigo 

o 1.5-mile review of a two-lot subdivision located in unincorporated Will County. 
o Plan Commission approval on June 10th and Village Board approval on June 21st. 

• 20523 Abbey Dr./Kunz 
o Plat of Abrogation to remove a portion of a utility easement from Lot 8A in the 

Abbey Woods Subdivision.  
o Plan Commission approval on June 10th and Village Board approval on June 21st. 

• PIN 19-09-23-100-014-0000/Fritz 
o Plat of Dedication for a portion of North Ave. in order to construct a single-family 

residence. 
o Plan Commission approval on June 24th and Village Board approval on July 19th. 

• 11258 York Dr./Wagner 
o Variation for detached pool cabana size.  
o Workshop held on June 24th. 
o Plan Commission approval on August 12th and Village Board approval on August 

16th. 
• 10650 Yankee Ridge Dr./Murphy 

o Variation for detached pool cabana size. 
o Workshop held on June 24th.  
o Plan Commission approval on August 12th and Village Board approval on August 

16th. 



8 

• 49 N. White St./Doogan and Warfield  
o Variations for detached garage height, open patio side yard setback, and accessory 

structure side and rear yard setbacks to permit construction of a covered patio and 
garage remodel. 

o Workshop held on June 24th. 
o Plan Commission approval on October 14th and Village Board approval on 

October 18th. 
• 15 Ash St./Frankfort Bowl  

o Text amendment to permit an outdoor beer garden use and special use for an 
outdoor beer garden. 

o Workshop held on June 24th and public hearing noticed, but case tabled 
indefinitely by the Plan Commission on August 26th. 

• Rezoning of parcels in accordance with the Comprehensive Plan  
o Workshop/discussion held on July 22nd. 

• 10315 Vans Dr., Units B, C, D, E/Cheer City  
o Special use for indoor recreation/entertainment to operate a cheerleading training 

facility. 
o Plan Commission approval on August 26th and Village Board approval on 

September 7th. 
• 9545 W. St. Francis Rd./Jameson’s Pub 

o Notification of minor PUD change to permit a restaurant addition for additional 
bathrooms and office space. 

• 20815 S. LaGrange Rd./Balanced Body Veterinary Clinic 
o Special use for an animal clinic. 
o Plan Commission approval on August 26th and Village Board approval on 

September 7th. 
• Vacation Rentals text amendment 

o Text amendment for multiple sections of the Zoning Ordinance to regulate 
vacation rentals.  

o Plan Commission approval on September 9th and Village Board approval on 
September 20th.  

• 300 S. Maple St./BorgWarner  
o Village initiated zoning map amendment from I-1 to R-4. 
o Plan Commission approval on October 14th and Village Board approval on 

December 20th. 
• 21116 Washington Parkway/Tracy’s Beautique 

o Two special uses for massage establishment and personal services to operate a 
salon/spa. 

o Plan Commission denial on September 9th and Village Board denial on September 
20th. 

• 9975 W. Lincoln Highway, Unit 2/JFZ Fitness 
o Two special uses for indoor recreation/entertainment and extended hours of 

operation to permit operation of a fitness facility.  
o Plan Commission approval on September 9th and Village Board approval on 

September 20th. 



9 

• Homestead Center (southwest corner of Laraway Rd. and Wolf Rd.) 
o Final Plat approval of a two-lot commercial subdivision. 
o Plan Commission approval on September 9th and Village Board approval on 

September 20th. 
• 161 Ontario St., Unit 3/$how & Go Kustomz  

o Special use for automobile repair and service to operate a custom suspension and 
wheel business. 

o Plan Commission approval on September 23rd and Village Board approval on 
October 4th. 

• 11195 Siena Dr./Hampton 
o Variation for detached pergola size.  
o Plan Commission approval on October 14th and Village Board approval on 

October 18th. 
• 7403 Mayfield Dr./Mays 

o Variation for sports court size. 
o Plan Commission approval on October 28th. Case is scheduled for the January 18th 

Village Board meeting.  
• 314 W. Nebraska St./Nebraska Pines 

o Final Plat of Nebraska Pines Subdivision and four variations for lot width and 
size, and two for building materials to permit a two-lot subdivision and two new 
single-family residences.  

o Workshop held on October 28th. 
o Plan Commission approval on December 9th and Village Board approval on 

December 20th. 
• 20550 S. LaGrange Rd., Suite 230/Orthopedic Body Works  

o Special use for a massage establishment.   
o Plan Commission approval on November 9th and Village Board approval on 

November 15th. 
• Truck terminal text amendment 

o Text amendment for two sections of the Zoning Ordinance to clarify the truck 
terminal definition. 

o Plan Commission approval on November 9th and Village Board approval on 
November 15th. 

• 22960 Hankins Ct./McCarthy 
o Two variations for sports court size and side yard setback to address a basketball 

court constructed without a permit. 
o Plan Commission approval of the sports court size request and denial of the side 

yard setback request on November 18th. Case is scheduled for the January 18th 
Village Board meeting. 

• 9645 Lincolnway Ln./Hollie’s Massage 
o Special use for a massage establishment. 
o Plan Commission approval on November 18th and Village Board approval on 

December 6th. 
• Digital menu boards and gas station pricing text amendment 

o Workshop held on December 9th. 
o Case is anticipated for public hearing in early 2022.  



10 

• Accessory uses and structures text amendment 
o Workshop held on December 9th. 
o A second workshop will be held in early 2022. Case is anticipated for public 

hearing in early 2022.  
 

 
COMMISSIONER ATTENDANCE 

 
Commissioner Present Absent 
Guevara, Ken 16 6 
Hogan, David* 8 4 
Hogan, Lisa 15 7 
Knieriem, Dan 20 2 
Markunas, Will 19 3 
Rigoni, Maura 20 2 
Schaeffer, Nichole* 9 3 

*Started term at the June 10th meeting 
 

 
August 11th Plan Commissioner training presented by the Illinois Chapter of the American Planning Association 

and the DePaul University Chaddick Institute for Metropolitan Development. 


	January 13, 2022
	PC Minutes 12.9.2021 DRAFT
	A. Approval of the Minutes from November 18, 2021

	ALL PAGES FOR AGENDA ITEM (Millennium)
	ALL PAGES FOR AGENDA ITEM
	Binder1
	Aerial
	Site Plan 12.8.21
	Sheets and Views
	21-0005 10&21 FE-SITE PLAN


	Site Plan 4.14.21 (formerly approved for reference only)
	Plans 12.8.21
	Sheets and Views
	21-0005 10&21 FE-ENG COVER SHEET (1)
	21-0005 10&21 FE-EX COND & REM PLAN (4)
	21-0005 10&21 FE-SEP PLAN (5)
	21-0005 10&21 FE-SEP DETAIL SHEET (6)
	21-0005 10&21 FE-GEO & UTIL PLAN (7)
	21-0005 10&21 FE-GRADING PLAN (8)
	21-0005 10&21 FE-CONSTRUCTION DETAILS (9)


	Landscape Plan 11.22.21
	Final Plat 12.8.21
	Sheets and Views
	21-0005 FP-Final Plat
	21-0005 FP-Final Plat (2)


	Utility Plan 3.10.21 (formerly approved)
	Elevation 4.15.21 (formerly approved)
	Fencing specs 4.19.21 (formerly approved)
	Floorplan 3.15.21 (formerly approved)
	Photometric 3.16.21 (formerly approved)


	email 12.28.21

	ALL PAGES FOR PC PACKET - CHELSEA-compressed
	Chelsea Intermediate 22265 S. 80th SUP-VAR PH 1.13.22
	ALL PAGES FOR PC PACKET - Chelsea
	Binder1
	PC PACKET ALL SHEETS 1.13.22
	Binder1
	PC AGENDA ITEM 1.13.22 - CHELSEA PH compressed
	1 Aerial GIS
	2 Site Plan & Floorplan 3.15.21
	3 Submittal 9.9.21
	4 Roof Plan 8.5.21
	Sheets
	000 - ROOF PLAN - NEW MECHANICAL UNIT LOCATIONS


	5 Roof Screen Study 8.5.21
	3D Views
	ROOF SCREEN CHECK - SAUK EAST
	ROOF SCREEN CHECK - SAUK WEST
	ROOF SCREEN CHECK - 80TH NORTH
	ROOF SCREEN CHECK - 80TH SOUTH
	ROOF SCREEN CHECK - CHURCH LOT


	7 All pics2

	Final Plat 12.22.21 (good per Dana)
	Landscape Plan 12.16.21

	PC Minutes 11.18.2021 excerpt

	Rooftop screening details 1.5.22



	ALL PAGES FOR AGENDA ITEM - TONG MASSAGE
	ALL PAGES FOR AGENDA ITEM - Tong
	1. 20499 La Grange (massage) - Public Hearing Staff Report
	2. Aerial map
	3. Parking Analysis - Vineyards of Frankfort 1.5.22
	4. Tenants List
	5. Floorplan 12.27.21
	6. Cross Access Agreement (1995)
	7. Massage establishments - use regulations
	8. SUP Findings of Fact (applicant)
	9. Findings of Fact_Special Use Permit_Applicant
	10. picture

	Survey

	ALL PAGES FOR PC PACKET - Accessory structures
	0. Memo PC 1.13.22
	1. Basic Summary of Changes
	2. Overall Logic
	3. Accessory Structure variance history
	4. Accessory Structure Research 2021
	5. Sports Court research
	6. Sports Court variance history 2015-2021
	7. Impervious estimates examples
	8. Sports Courts Regulations - Existing and Proposed
	9. Definitions - Before and After
	10. Zoning Ordinance - Accessory Structure changes WORKING FILE 1.13.22 (strikeouts)
	11. Zoning Ordinance - Accessory Structure changes WORKING FILE 1.13.22 (excerpt)

	2021 Year End Review

	Text1: 
	Text2: 
	Text3: 
	Text4: 
	Text5: 
	Text6: 
	Text7: 


